
 

 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Management Committee 
 
Friday 14 February 2020 at 10.00 am 

 
To be held at the Town Hall, Pinstone 
Street, Sheffield, S1 2HH 

 
The Press and Public are Welcome to Attend 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Membership 
  

 
Councillors Mick Rooney (Chair), Ian Auckland, Steve Ayris, Ben Curran, 
Denise Fox, Julie Grocutt, Tim Huggan, Douglas Johnson, Mike Levery, 
Cate McDonald, Sioned-Mair Richards and Jim Steinke 
 
Substitute Members 
In accordance with the Constitution, Substitute Members may be provided for the 
above Committee Members as and when required. 
 

  

 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 

PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE MEETING 

 
The Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee comprises the Chairs and 
Deputy Chairs of the four Scrutiny Committees. Councillor Cate McDonald Chairs 
this Committee. 
 
Remit of the Committee 
 
 Effective use of internal and external resources 
 Performance against Corporate Plan Priorities 
 Risk management 
 Budget monitoring 
 Strategic management and development of the scrutiny programme and process 
 Identifying and co-ordinating cross scrutiny issues 
 
A copy of the agenda and reports is available on the Council’s website at 
www.sheffield.gov.uk.  You can also see the reports to be discussed at the meeting if 
you call at the First Point Reception, Town Hall, Pinstone Street entrance.  The 
Reception is open between 9.00 am and 5.00 pm, Monday to Thursday and between 
9.00 am and 4.45 pm. on Friday.  You may not be allowed to see some reports 
because they contain confidential information.  These items are usually marked * on 
the agenda.  
 
Members of the public have the right to ask questions or submit petitions to Scrutiny 
Committee meetings and recording is allowed under the direction of the Chair.  
Please see the website or contact Democratic Services for further information 
regarding public questions and petitions and details of the Council’s protocol on 
audio/visual recording and photography at council meetings. 
 
Scrutiny Committee meetings are normally open to the public but sometimes the 
Committee may have to discuss an item in private.  If this happens, you will be asked 
to leave.  Any private items are normally left until last.  If you would like to attend the 
meeting please report to the First Point Reception desk where you will be directed to 
the meeting room. 
 
If you require any further information about this Scrutiny Committee, please contact  
Deborah Glen, Policy and Improvement Officer,  on 0114 27 35065 or email 
deborah.glen@sheffield.gov.uk 
 
 

FACILITIES 

 
There are public toilets available, with wheelchair access, on the ground floor of the 
Town Hall.  Induction loop facilities are available in meeting rooms. 
 
Access for people with mobility difficulties can be obtained through the ramp on the 
side to the main Town Hall entrance. 
 

http://www.sheffield.gov.uk/
mailto:deborah.glen@sheffield.gov.uk


 

 

 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE AGENDA 
14 FEBRUARY 2020 

 
Order of Business 

 
1.   Welcome and Housekeeping Arrangements 

 
 
2.   Apologies for Absence 

 
 
3.   Exclusion of Public and Press 
 To identify items where resolutions may be moved to exclude the press 

and public 
 

4.   Declarations of Interest 
 Members to declare any interests they have in the business to be 

considered at the meeting 
 

5.   Minutes of Previous Meetings 
 To approve the minutes of (a) the meeting of the Committee held on 14th 

November, 2019 and (b) the special meetings held on 26th and 28th 
November and 3rd and 18th December, 2019  
 

6.   Public Questions and Petitions 
 To receive any questions or petitions from members of the public 

 
7.   Revenue Budget 2020-21 and Capital Strategy 2020-2025 
 Report of the Executive Director of Resources on the Revenue Budget 

2020/21 and Capital Strategy 2020-2025 
 

8.   Draft Two-Year Progress Report 2018-20 and Work Programme 
Issues 2020-21 

 Report of the Policy and Improvement Officer 
 

9.   Issues to Report from the Scrutiny Committees 
 The Chairs of the Scrutiny Committees to report 

 
10.   Date of Next Meeting 
 The next meeting of the Committee will be held on Thursday, 16th April, 

2020, at 1.30 pm, in the Town Hall 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

ADVICE TO MEMBERS ON DECLARING INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 

 
If you are present at a meeting of the Council, of its executive or any committee of 
the executive, or of any committee, sub-committee, joint committee, or joint sub-
committee of the authority, and you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) 
relating to any business that will be considered at the meeting, you must not:  
 

 participate in any discussion of the business at the meeting, or if you become 
aware of your Disclosable Pecuniary Interest during the meeting, participate 
further in any discussion of the business, or  

 participate in any vote or further vote taken on the matter at the meeting.  

These prohibitions apply to any form of participation, including speaking as a 
member of the public. 

You must: 
 

 leave the room (in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct) 

 make a verbal declaration of the existence and nature of any DPI at any 
meeting at which you are present at which an item of business which affects or 
relates to the subject matter of that interest is under consideration, at or before 
the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest becomes 
apparent. 

 declare it to the meeting and notify the Council’s Monitoring Officer within 28 
days, if the DPI is not already registered. 

 
If you have any of the following pecuniary interests, they are your disclosable 
pecuniary interests under the new national rules. You have a pecuniary interest if 
you, or your spouse or civil partner, have a pecuniary interest.  
 

 Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain, 
which you, or your spouse or civil partner undertakes. 
 

 Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from your 
council or authority) made or provided within the relevant period* in respect of 
any expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards 
your election expenses. This includes any payment or financial benefit from a 
trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992.  
 
*The relevant period is the 12 months ending on the day when you tell the 
Monitoring Officer about your disclosable pecuniary interests. 

 

 Any contract which is made between you, or your spouse or your civil partner (or 
a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a beneficial 
interest) and your council or authority –  
 
- under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 

executed; and  
- which has not been fully discharged. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



 2 

 

 Any beneficial interest in land which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, 
have and which is within the area of your council or authority. 

 

 Any licence (alone or jointly with others) which you, or your spouse or your civil 
partner, holds to occupy land in the area of your council or authority for a month 
or longer. 
 

 Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) – 

- the landlord is your council or authority; and  
- the tenant is a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a 

beneficial interest. 
 

 Any beneficial interest which you, or your spouse or your civil partner has in 
securities of a body where -  

 

(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of 
your council or authority; and  
 

(b) either - 
- the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 

hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or  
- if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal 

value of the shares of any one class in which you, or your spouse or your 
civil partner, has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

If you attend a meeting at which any item of business is to be considered and you 
are aware that you have a personal interest in the matter which does not amount to 
a DPI, you must make verbal declaration of the existence and nature of that interest 
at or before the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest 
becomes apparent. You should leave the room if your continued presence is 
incompatible with the 7 Principles of Public Life (selflessness; integrity; objectivity; 
accountability; openness; honesty; and leadership).  

You have a personal interest where – 

 a decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting 
the well-being or financial standing (including interests in land and easements 
over land) of you or a member of your family or a person or an organisation with 
whom you have a close association to a greater extent than it would affect the 
majority of the Council Tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the ward or 
electoral area for which you have been elected or otherwise of the Authority’s 
administrative area, or 
 

 it relates to or is likely to affect any of the interests that are defined as DPIs but 
are in respect of a member of your family (other than a partner) or a person with 
whom you have a close association. 

 

Page 2



 3 

Guidance on declarations of interest, incorporating regulations published by the 
Government in relation to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, has been circulated to 
you previously. 
 
You should identify any potential interest you may have relating to business to be 
considered at the meeting. This will help you and anyone that you ask for advice to 
fully consider all the circumstances before deciding what action you should take. 
 
In certain circumstances the Council may grant a dispensation to permit a Member 
to take part in the business of the Authority even if the member has a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest relating to that business.  

To obtain a dispensation, you must write to the Monitoring Officer at least 48 hours 
before the meeting in question, explaining why a dispensation is sought and 
desirable, and specifying the period of time for which it is sought.  The Monitoring 
Officer may consult with the Independent Person or the Council’s Audit and 
Standards Committee in relation to a request for dispensation. 

Further advice can be obtained from Gillian Duckworth, Director of Legal and 
Governance on 0114 2734018 or email gillian.duckworth@sheffield.gov.uk. 
 
 

Page 3

mailto:gillian.duckworth@sheffield.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



S H E F F I E L D    C I T Y     C O U N C I L 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 
 

Meeting held 14 November 2019 
 
PRESENT: Councillors Mick Rooney (Chair), Ian Auckland, Denise Fox, 

Julie Grocutt, Tim Huggan, Douglas Johnson, Mike Levery, Sioned-
Mair Richards and Jim Steinke 
 

 
   

 
1.   
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

1.1 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Ben Curran and Cate 
McDonald. 

 
2.   
 

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 

2.1 No items were identified where resolutions may be moved to exclude the public 
and press. 

 
3.   
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

3.1 There were no declarations of interest. 
 
4.   
 

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
 

4.1 The minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 17th October 2019, were 
approved as a correct record, subject to the amendment of Item 6 - Reviewing 
Decision Making in Sheffield City Council, by (a) the substitution of the words “be 
involved in decision-making, as part of any new system” for the words ‘have an 
input in terms of formulating the model’, and (b) the addition of the words “ 
especially local” after the words “at all levels”, in paragraph 6.8 of that item. 

  
4.2 Arising therefrom, with regard to Item 4 – Minutes of Previous Meeting, and 

specifically (a) paragraph 4.1(a)(i), the Chair reported that this information had 
now been received by Members, (b) paragraph 4.1(a)(ii), the Chair stated that he 
was still awaiting guidance from Councillor Mark Jones (Cabinet Member for 
Environment, Streetscene and Climate Change) in connection with the proposed 
establishment of a Citizens’ Assembly to look at climate change, (c) paragraph 
4.1(a)(iii), Councillor Sioned-Mair Richards confirmed that she had been informed 
by Councillor Tim Huggan that Councillor Roger Davison had been appointed as 
the nominee from the Liberal Democrat Group on the cross-party Member Task 
and Finish Group to look into communications and consultation on the budget 
process, and (d) paragraphs 4.1(a)(v) and paragraph 4.1(b), the Policy and 
Improvement Officer stated that she would contact Louise Brewins (Head of 
Performance and Intelligence), asking that she provides the information 
requested, and when received, circulate the information to Members on the 
Committee. 

 
5.   PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 14.11.2019 

Page 2 of 10 
 

  
5.1 Members of the public raised questions as follows:- 
  
5.2 Nigel Slack 
  
5.2.1 Whilst recognising that the usual protocol is for details of the agendas for meetings 

to be published seven days before the meeting itself, could I ask that, in these 
unusual circumstances of the special sessions of the Committee, details be 
circulated as soon as possible? 

  
5.2.2 The Policy and Improvement Officer reported that details of all the special 

meetings of the Committee, to discuss the governance review, were now on the 
Council website, and there were plans to upload the presentation to be made at 
this meeting, and which contained a detailed schedule in terms of how the special 
meetings would be organised, together with timings, to the website. 

  
5.2.3 The Committee placed on record its thanks and appreciation to the valuable work 

undertaken by Nigel Slack in connection with the governance review. 
  
5.3 Woll Newall  
  
5.3.1 Given that thousands of Sheffield voters have told It’s Our City that they want their 

Councillors to work together, to do the best for the City, what proposals are this 
Committee going to recommend to encourage a healthy culture and cross-party 
working? 

  
5.3.2 The Committee noted Mr Newall’s question, which had been read out by the 

Policy and Improvement Officer in his absence, and agreed that this was relevant 
to the governance review underway, and stressed that this was part of the 
deliberation of governance issues. 

 
6.   
 

ETHICAL PROCUREMENT 
 

6.1 The Committee received a report of the Executive Director, Resources, containing 
an update on the Council’s Ethical Procurement Policy, the aim of which was to 
enable the Council to conduct business ethically, effectively and efficiently for the 
benefit of Sheffield.  The report contained details of the background to the Policy, a 
Policy summary, Policy outcomes, operational changes and progress, success so 
far, which included Real Living Wage, Early Payments Scheme, Social Value, 
Sourcing Team and Local Spend, and Code of Conduct, and Measurement and 
Performance.  The report also attached, as appendices, details of various 
measures, including the Employment and Skills Social-Value Dashboard, Sourcing 
Team Savings and the Stonewall Submission Score Summary and Overview, 
together with details of the City Council Social Value Evaluation. 

  
6.2 In attendance for this item were Mark Ellis (Senior Procurement and Supply Chain 

Manager), Jill Smith (Procurement and Supply Chain Manager), Kerry Moon 
(Investment Support Manager) and Adam Piotrowski (Category Manager). 

  
6.3 Mark Ellis introduced the report and Jill Smith and Kerry Moon reported on the 

Page 6



Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 14.11.2019 

Page 3 of 10 
 

social value aspects of the Policy. 
  
6.4 Members of the Committee raised questions, and the following responses were 

provided:- 
  
  Information on new suppliers was obtained through a variety of means.  In 

terms of the Real Living Wage (RLW), data was being collated across the 
supply chain, including the toolkit set up in conjunction with the University of 
Sheffield. 

  
  The Authority worked extensively to encourage the payment of the Real 

Living Wage across its supply chain.  Procurement officers carried out 
reviews at the commissioning, tender and contract stage to ensure that the 
RLW was considered in every procurement strategy.  All new suppliers were 
asked to meet the standards of the Authority’s Ethical Charter. 

  
  The primary focus of the Policy had been its impact in Sheffield.  Filip 

Leonard (Head of Procurement and Supply Chain) had been working with the 
Progressive Procurement Group, and this work was being shared with 
Sheffield City Region (SCR), as well as other anchor organisations in 
Sheffield.   

  
  The Authority had amended the Standard Selection Questionnaire, used at 

tender stage, to allow for suppliers to be deselected on negative ethical 
performance, such as professional grave misconduct, blacklisting and misuse 
of migrant labour. 

  
  Officers continued to work closely with care commissioners and those Trade 

Unions having signed up to the Unison Ethical Care Charter. 
  
  A considerable amount of work had continued to be undertaken in connection 

with the Early Payment Scheme (Sheffield Pay Plus).  All officers responsible 
for raising orders were being actively encouraged to receipt orders in a timely 
manner to ensure suppliers received payment within 30 days and in 
accordance with agreed payment terms.   

  
  Use of the Social Value Portal, to measure Social Value benefits, was being 

implemented across the Authority.   Appendix 2 to the report was a snapshot 
of the initial tender using this method to evaluate Social Value benefits. 
Officers were still evaluating and seeking clarification of figures and variation 
of evidence.  The final outcome of this and the future tenders would be 
included across a final suite of Key Performance Indicators (KPIs). 

  
  The Authority does not currently go down to the level regarding 

apprenticeships for people with profound disabilities or learning difficulties.  
However, it does work with construction companies in connection with the 
employment of such people. 

  
  There was a process in place for suppliers to self-declare, and checks were 

also made for tax compliance. 

Page 7



Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 14.11.2019 

Page 4 of 10 
 

  
  Local spend was defined as spend in the ‘S’ postcode, within the Sheffield 

Ward boundaries. 
  
  The figures supplied in relation to local spend excluded Amey, where the 

invoice was paid from their head office, in Birmingham.  In reality, the 
Authority’s spend had a positive impact on the local economy as staff 
working on the contract were likely to live and work in Sheffield. 

  
  The proxy values in Appendix 2 to the report, which were measures of Social 

Value contribution, had not been defined by the Authority.  There figures had 
been established by the Social Value portal, and were used nationally.  There 
were 35 measures, some of which had been determined through the Local 
Government Association (LGA) Green Book.  These proxy values could not 
be changed.  However, the Authority could adapt how it asked the question 
or provide further explanation on how bidders should respond.  Currently, the 
Authority did not specify which measures a supplier needed to respond 
against as this approach mitigated against the bidders, including costs to 
deliver Social Value in their tender price. 

  
  The monitoring of organisations was being undertaken as part of the 

submission to the Authority, and as part of the contract agreement.  
Companies were also expected to provide evidence to the Social Value 
Portal in order to allow for the target social value element of the contract to 
be monitored.  Companies would be provided with dashboards showing their 
progress and, as part of contract management, they would be held to 
account if they did not deliver on Social Value commitment.   

  
  In terms of the social value evaluation, companies bidding for contracts only 

have to input a target figure, and not a specific value.  The Authority was 
represented on the Social Value National Taskforce, which was the 
responsible body for reviewing the application of all elements of Social Value.  
Any revisions required to either the measures or associated values would be 
undertaken at this level.   

  
  The fact that companies bidding for contracts set their own social value 

targets did not appear to have any financial detriment to the Authority.  This 
was on the basis that Social Value was always the added benefit over and 
above what was part of the core contract. 

  
  The work on ethical procurement that the Authority had undertaken and 

delivered to date was being recognised.  For example, the Real Living Wage 
Foundation  had asked the Authority to draft a case study which it could use 
as a means of sharing good practice.  The Authority had recently been 
awarded the 2019 Chartered Institute of Procurement and Supply (CIPS) 
Award for Ethical Procurement and following this, had received a number of 
enquiries from other local authorities for advice.   

  
  Sheffield was represented on the Strategic Procurement Group,  which 

comprised representatives from local authorities in Yorkshire and the 

Page 8



Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 14.11.2019 

Page 5 of 10 
 

Humber, and at which good practice was shared. 
  
  Local spend in terms of contracts currently stood at 47%, or £330 million, for 

the first six months of 2019/20.   
  
  As the programme was rolled out, Social Value would represent as a 

minimum 10% weighting.  All potential bidders were aware of this at tender 
stage, as well as what the Authority’s expectations were.  As part of lower 
value spend (below £150,000 contract value), there was a requirement to 
source, where possible, at least one local quote.  However, the Authority was 
not permitted to award a contract simply based on whether or not the 
company was based in the ‘S’ postcode area. 

  
  Monitoring of suppliers and KPIs could take considerable time but, where 

possible, there were systems to reduce this.  For example, establishing the 
RLW suppliers had been resource intensive.  However, moving forward, 
plans were in place to capture and report on this type of information, and 
capturing information on the finance system.   

  
  The Authority was required to publish details of payments it had made to 

suppliers.  However, this had not been broken down to “S” postcode or local 
economy level.  This information could be circulated to Members of the 
Committee.  The Authority spent approximately £700 million on works, goods 
or services, with local spend currently being around 47%.   

  
  The officers present could not confirm whether the ethical performance 

outputs were included on the Corporate Performance Framework, but would 
inform Members of this.   

  
  It was not envisaged that there would be any major changes to the 

Authority’s tendering processes following Brexit, mainly on the basis that, 
under UK law, there would still be a requirement on Authorities to be fair, 
equal, open and transparent in terms of its tendering processes.   

  
  The standard settlement time for paying suppliers was 30 days.   
  
  Discounts were made in terms of early payments and these varied 

dependent on a number of factors.  Reference was made to Social 
Enterprises paying a discount in order to receive early payment. The 
Sheffield Pay Plus programme was not mandatory and the City Council 
standard terms were 30 days. 

  
  The 50% local spend, as part of the submission to the Chartered Institute of 

Procurement and Supply, was at a previous point in time in respect of the 
financial year 2018/19. The 47% stated in the scrutiny report was only a 
measure of the first six months of 2019/20. 

  
  The Procurement Team was working hard to improve the figure in terms of 

local spend.  This measure formed part of monthly reporting which allowed 

Page 9



Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 14.11.2019 

Page 6 of 10 
 

the Team to consider gaps and potential opportunities.  This was an ongoing 
piece of work and there would always be a variance depending on the 
category of what was being bought and which suppliers were actually based 
in, and operating out of, Sheffield. 

  
  Whilst issues with regard to the steps companies took to reduce their carbon 

footprint was included as part of the social value assessment criteria, it was 
not applicable, at the current time, to all contracts. 

  
6.5 RESOLVED: That the Committee:- 
  
 (a) notes the contents of the report now submitted, together with the 

information now reported and the responses to the questions raised; 
  
 (b) thanks Mark Ellis, Jill Smith, Kerry Moon and Adam Piotrowski for attending 

the meeting and responding to the questions raised; 
  
 (c) extends it congratulations to the Procurement Team for the  progress made;  
  
 (d) requests the Executive Director, Resources, to:- 
  
 (i) look into whether all contractors should be assessed, as part of the 

social value assessment criteria, with regard to their carbon footprint; 

 (ii) try to get the issue of ethical procurement on other organisations’ 
agendas, such as the Universities, NHS and Sheffield City Region, 
and specifically on the agendas of the Sheffield City Partnership,   
Sheffield Health and Wellbeing and Sheffield City Region Boards; 
and 

 (iii) find a system to measure the number of people with disabilities 
employed by companies contracted with the Authority; and 

  
  (e)   requests that ethical procurement is included as part of the Council’s 

Performance Management Framework.  
  
 
7.   
 

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL'S EQUALITY DUTIES 
 

7.1 The Committee received a report of the Head of Policy and Partnerships outlining 
the City Council’s statutory duties in terms of equality, and providing an overview 
of the work undertaken by the Equalities Team to meet those duties.  The report 
also attached, as appendices, which were embedded into the report, a leaflet 
setting out the Equality Objectives 2019-23 and the Council’s Equality, Diversity 
and Inclusion Policy Statement 2017. 

  
7.2 In attendance for this item were Laurie Brennan (Head of Policy and Partnerships), 

Diane Owens (Senior Equalities and Engagement Officer) and Rosie May 
(Development Officer, Equalities and Engagement). 

  

Page 10



Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 14.11.2019 

Page 7 of 10 
 

7.3 Members of the Committee raised questions, and the following responses were 
provided:- 

  
  Human Resources had carried out detailed analysis of the Council’s 

workforce and an Annual Workforce Equality Report was produced thereon.  
The report, which provided detailed analysis across a range of areas, 
including disability, sex, sexual orientation and ethnicity, would be evaluated 
to see if any new action was required.  The report was due to be submitted to 
the Strategic Equality and Inclusion Board, and signed off by the relevant 
Cabinet Member.  The Equality and Engagement Team also produced an 
Annual Equality Report, which outlined some key examples in terms of work 
that had been undertaken to meet the Council's statutory duties and equality 
objectives. 

  
  The Equality and Engagement Team provided advice, guidance and system 

support in terms of Equality Impact Assessments (EIA).  EIAs were used as a 
way of systematically assessing the effects and potential disproportionate 
impacts that a proposed policy or decision was likely to have on different 
groups of people, including women, BAME (Black, Asian, Minority Ethnic), 
termed as having protected characteristics under the Equality Act 2010.  
EIAs should inform decision-making, and remain live to enable them to be 
updated as new information becomes known, for example from an 
engagement exercise or if any changes occur.  

  
  There was a need for a better understanding of how aims were measured.  

As a large public sector organisation, the Council’s equality objectives 
inevitably covered a broad range of topics, and also reflected areas of 
persistent inequality, many of which reflect challenges at a national level.  
The Council’s workforce focussed objective (Equality Objective 2 - “Ensure 
our workforce reflects the people that we serve”) highlighted three specific 
aims, and was delivered and monitored through the HR led Equality, 
Diversity and Inclusion Action Plan.  For each of the three remaining 
objectives, the Equality and Engagement Team has outlined three aims, and 
would report against these through its annual equality reporting.    

  
  The issue of the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) was picked up 

by Portfolios during any communications with the public, and as part of any 
asks with regard to equality monitoring. 

  
  The Council established the Equality Hub Network in 2014, with the aim of 

strengthening the voice and influence of communities of identity in the City.  
The Network comprised seven hubs, representing different communities of 
identity, including age, LGBT+ and BAMER (Black, Asian, Minority Ethnic 
and Refugee), and meetings were held four times a year, at a location in the 
City Centre.  The idea of the Network was to bring under-represented 
communities and decision-makers together to work for positive change.  
There was a website and a separate Facebook page for each of the seven 
hubs.  Members of the hubs were invited to events and meetings by email, 
and details of events and meetings were posted on the Network’s website 
and on the respective hubs Facebook pages.  The Equalities and 

Page 11



Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 14.11.2019 

Page 8 of 10 
 

Engagement Team, along with the voluntary sector “Support Organisations” 
that were funded to support the hubs, were always striving to attract more 
members, particularly to increase attendance at meetings and involvement in 
activities.  The Team was planning to work with colleagues in 
Communications in order to promote the hubs.  Suggestions had been made 
with regard to holding  meetings at different locations around the City, in 
order to make it easier for members to attend meetings. Plans were being 
made to pilot this in connection with the Age Hub, with plans for similar 
arrangements for the other hubs if successful.  It was accepted that the 
current operation had room for improvement, but it was considered that the 
Network represented an effective way of reaching out to people who needed 
a stronger voice.  There were approximately 300 people on the mailing lists 
for each of the seven hubs.  An external review had been undertaken of the 
Network in 2016, following which a number of recommendations had been 
made, some of which had been implemented.  Officers had visited other local 
authorities, and had spoken to colleagues in other local authorities, in order 
to discuss best practice with regard to the Network.  Although it wasn’t done 
at the moment, consideration would be given to analysing and/or collecting 
postal addresses of members of the Network, and also communicating 
channels other than online, on the basis that several people, particularly the 
elderly, would not be online, and would find it difficult to access information 
regarding events and meetings. 

  
7.4 RESOLVED: That the Committee:- 
  
 (a) notes the contents of the report now submitted, together with the comments 

now made and the responses to the questions raised; 
  
 (b) thanks Laurie Brennan, Diane Owens and Rosie May for attending the 

meeting and responding to the questions raised; and 
  
 (c) requests that:- 
  
 (i) future Annual Equality Reports be submitted to this Committee for 

consideration, and should include details on the measurement of the 
success of the objectives set out in the Reports; 

 (ii) in terms of the Equality Hub Networks, consideration be given to 
collecting data on which areas of the City attendees at meetings 
came from and publicising meetings/events; and 

 (iii) the Equality Hub Newsletter be sent to all Members of the Council. 

 
8.   
 

ISSUES TO RAISE FROM SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
 

8.1 Councillor Mick Rooney reported that the Children, Young People and Family 
Support Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee had considered the Special 
Educational Needs Inspection Action Plan at its meeting held on 4th November 
2019.   

Page 12



Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 14.11.2019 

Page 9 of 10 
 

  
8.2 Councillor Denise Fox reported that the Economic and Environmental Wellbeing 

Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee had received updates on (a) Brexit 
and the current financial position regarding the Sheffield City Trust at its meeting 
held on 22nd October 2019, and (b) on Heart of the City 2, the Transforming Cities 
Fund and CycleSheffield in connection with the recent Division Street temporary 
closure, at its meeting held on 12th November 2019. 

  
8.3 The Committee noted the information now reported. 
 
9.   
 

UPDATE ON GOVERNANCE WORK 
 

9.1 The Policy and Improvement Officer (Alice Nicholson) gave a presentation 
updating Members on the Governance work.  Ms Nicholson reported on the aims 
of the process, a proposed programme of activity and referred to the timetables in 
respect of the three planned evidence sessions, at the special meetings of the 
Committee to be held on 26th and 28th November and 3rd December 2019, 
respectively.  She concluded by reporting that, following the conclusion of the 
evidence gathering sessions, a draft report would be prepared for consideration 
by Members at an informal meeting on 10th December, with the final draft being 
published by 13th December, for consideration by the Committee at its meeting to 
be held on 18th December 2019.  The final report would then be submitted for 
debate to the meeting of the Council to be held on 6th January 2020. 

  
9.2 In response to questions raised by Members of the Committee, it was reported 

that every effort would be made to ensure that links were sent to Members in 
connection with other local authorities’ websites, with regard to their governance 
arrangements, if applicable.  All those organisations and individuals who would be 
attending the special meetings of the Committee to provide evidence had self-
selected to attend.   

  
9.3 Members of the Committee raised the following points:- 
  
  It was important that Members of all political parties on the Council attended 

the visits to other local authorities, as part of the evidence-gathering process. 
  
  Members of the Committee be reminded to send colleagues appointed as 

reserves to meetings if they were unable to attend themselves.   
  
  Details of examples where changes in governance systems at local 

authorities had not worked out should be forwarded to Members.   
  
  It was considered that there was far too much work to be undertaken in too 

little time. 
  
9.4 Nigel Slack expressed his concerns at the potential for a lack of an in-depth 

conversation with the public given the very short timescale.  He was, however, 
hopeful that, following the work of the Committee, a robust report would be 
drafted, and would hopefully receive support from all parties. 

  

Page 13



Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 14.11.2019 

Page 10 of 10 
 

9.5 The Committee notes the information reported as part of the presentation, the 
information now reported and the comments now made. 

 
10.   
 

WORK PROGRAMME 2019/20 
 

10.1 RESOLVED: That the Committee notes and approves the report now submitted 
by the Policy and Improvement Officer, containing the Work Programme for 
2019/20. 

 
11.   
 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 

11.1 It was noted that the next meeting of the Committee would be a special meeting, 
and would be held on Tuesday, 26th November 2019, at 1.00 pm, in the Town 
Hall. 

 

Page 14



S H E F F I E L D    C I T Y     C O U N C I L 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 
 

Special meeting held 26 November 2019 
 
 
PRESENT: Councillors Mick Rooney (Chair), Ian Auckland, Steve Ayris, 

Denise Fox, Tim Huggan, Douglas Johnson, Mike Levery, 
Cate McDonald and Jim Steinke 
 

 
   

 
1.   
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

1.1 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Julie Grocutt and Sioned-
Mair Richards. 

 
2.   
 

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 

2.1 No items were identified where resolutions may be moved to exclude the public 
and press. 

 
3.   
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

3.1 In relation to Agenda Item 6 (Governance Review – Evidence Gathering Session 
1), Councillor Denise Fox declared a personal interest as wife of Councillor Terry 
Fox (Cabinet Member for Finance, Resources and Governance). 

 
4.   
 

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS 
 

4.1 Members of the public raised questions as follows:- 
  
4.2 Ruth Hubbard 
  
4.2.1 (a) Why, on the basis that there were a lot of people interested in the emerging 

issues regarding the governance review, were Members not putting these 
issues forward? 

  
 (b) As part of this exercise, there needed to be reference to a clear definition of 

precisely what governance means, as well as its purpose? 
  
 (c) Did the Committee acknowledge the potential conflict of interest in terms of 

undertaking the review, and the issue of Members’ Allowances, specifically 
with regard to the additional allowances for chairing scrutiny committees? 

  
4.2.2 The Chair stated that as regards the review currently being undertaken, as part of 

the four special meetings of this Committee which had been arranged, Members 
would listen to all sides of the debate, including the views of the public and experts, 
as well as the information gathered as part of The Big Conversation event.  With 
regard to the issue of potential conflict of interest, he stated that the Committee 
would not decide on exactly what system the Council would to adopt, but was 

Page 15



Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 26.11.2019 
 
 

Page 2 of 8 
 

simply looking at a set of principles.   
  
4.3 Alan Kewley 
  
4.3.1 It is my opinion that some scrutiny meetings are not very ‘user-friendly’ to the 

average member of the public who wished to participate, so what is the Council 
doing to encourage more members of the public to attend meetings and submit 
relevant questions, which would enhance the effectiveness of scrutiny?  Are the 
agendas intelligible to the average member of the public, is the room layout 
suitable so that all members of the public can see and hear anything being 
discussed and could attendees have an opportunity to submit their comments on 
their experience via a simple questionnaire? 

  
4.3.2 The Chair stated that he did not consider that much could be done in terms of 

simplifying agendas, but did feel that some reports submitted to scrutiny 
committees could be more ‘user-friendly’.  He stated that consideration would be 
given to reviewing the layout of the rooms in which meetings were held, and 
requested that the practice of leaving feedback forms for members of the public 
attending meetings, which had been used in the past, be re-introduced.  The Chair 
stated that he did not consider that the Authority could do much more to increase 
attendance at meetings by members of the public. 

 
5.   
 

GOVERNANCE REVIEW - EVIDENCE GATHERING SESSION 1 
 

5.1 The Committee received a report of the Policy and Improvement Officer setting out 
the schedule for the first session as part of the governance review. 

  
 National Experts in Governance and Decision Making 
  
5.2 Ian Parry – Centre for Public Scrutiny 
  
5.2.1 The Committee received two documents from the Centre for Public Scrutiny: 

Rethinking Governance – Practical Steps for Councils Considering Changes to 
their Governance Arrangements and Musical Chairs – Practical Issues for Local 
Authorities in Moving to a Committee System. 

  
5.2.2 Ian Parry stressed that the Centre for Public Scrutiny did not have a view or 

position in terms of an optimum governance model for local authorities, and 
pointed out that a governance model comprised a method of decision-making, and 
not public consultation.  He stated that it was important that elected Members, 
being the main decision-makers, were held to account, with this role being 
undertaken, as part of the cabinet model, through scrutiny.  The clarity of decision-
making was always key, as it helped shape, and even change, decisions.  The 
Council needed to be mindful of the expectations, both of members of the public 
and all Members of the Council, as well as needing to determine the level of 
inclusivity in any new governance model in order to help shape decisions it made 
on the part of the public.   

  
5.2.4 Members of the Committee raised questions, and the following responses were 

provided:- 

Page 16



Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 26.11.2019 
 
 

Page 3 of 8 
 

  
  It had been determined, as long as 20 years ago, in an Audit Commission 

report, that decision-making by local authorities was traditionally very slow, 
and needed to be quicker. 

  
  The Centre for Public Scrutiny was currently working with a number of local 

authorities in connection with proposed changes to their governance models.  
There was no ‘one system fits all’, as individual authorities would have to look 
and determine precisely what model it required.  There were some limitations 
as to what changes could be made, due to the law, but there were a few 
examples of hybrid models, which was another approach the Authority could 
adopt. The majority of local authorities which had recently reviewed its 
governance model had remained with a cabinet system.   

  
  Whilst there were cases where local authorities appointed either opposition 

members or independent people as Chairs of their scrutiny committees, this 
was very rare.  The practice of authorities having independent people co-
opted on to their scrutiny committees was common. 

  
  It was accepted that political and organisational cultures, attitudes and 

behaviours were what made systems successful and any cases of Members 
having ‘other agendas’ should be discouraged as part of the scrutiny role as 
such behaviour diluted its aims. 

  
  The Authority would have to start by setting out protocols in terms of how it 

wanted things to operate, and then get ‘buy in’ from senior officers and 
Members.  Such protocols can’t simply be prescribed, but needed to evolve, 
and this process was often led by the scrutiny chairs. 

  
  Scrutiny can often work well when looking at big, strategic issues.   
  
  There had been a number of examples where delegating council budgets to 

area-based committees or community assemblies had been successful.   
  
  A number of local authorities were currently reviewing their respective 

governance models, with the majority appearing to move from a cabinet and 
leader model to a committee system.  Some authorities had only made a 
number of small changes due to the complexity and expense linked to 
wholesale changes.  A number of authorities who had changed to a 
committee model had moved back to a cabinet and leader model as the 
arrangements did not work for them.   

  
  The move by those local authorities looking to change back to a committee 

system did not appear to be led by any specific political party, but was mainly 
being done in order to increase inclusivity in its decision-making processes.   

  
  An example of a hybrid system, which had been discussed by a number of 

authorities wishing to change to a committee system, included the 
establishment of a Policy Advisory Committee. 

Page 17



Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 26.11.2019 
 
 

Page 4 of 8 
 

  
  The question to be used as part of the referendum on this issue would be 

prescribed, with the Authority being unable to influence its wording.  The 
Authority, however, would be entitled to use whatever wording it chose to 
describe the different models, as part of its advertisement literature. 

  
  Whilst there was a considerable amount of evidence in the public realm 

regarding the ratio of officer decisions to Member decisions, a lot of this was 
anecdotal.  One of the main reasons for delegating to officers was that 
meetings were only held at certain times, and some decisions needed to be 
made prior to such meetings being held. 

  
  The clarity and responsibility with regard to decision-making was not totally 

clear.  Under a committee system, if a consensus could not be reached, 
decisions would be made by a show of hands, therefore the majority were 
accountable.  The vast majority of such decisions would therefore be made 
by the ruling political group on a Council.   

  
  There was a possibility, under a move to a committee system, that Members 

would spend more time in meetings. 
  
5.3 John Cade – Institute for Local Government Studies 
  
5.3.1 The Committee received a briefing note from the Institute for Local Government 

Studies, summarising the historical and legal background to local government 
political structures, evaluations of the cabinet model in England, examples of 
councils reviewing their governance and guidance on how councils could do this 
effectively.   

  
5.3.2 John Cade referred to a number of his personal reflections with regard to 

governance models, which were included in the paper. 
  
5.3.3 Members of the Committee raised questions, and the following responses were 

provided:- 
  
  Cases where changes to a local authority’s governance model had been 

requested by the public were very rare but, in such circumstances, could 
actually be given more weight. The number of signatures on the petition 
clearly show that the Authority’s decision-making processes represented a 
big enough issue for the public. 

  
  There were several examples which highlighted that the call-in procedure, in 

terms of post scrutiny decision-making, was not effective, and rarely brought 
about any changes.  On the other hand, pre-scrutiny decision-making 
involved a wider section of Members, who could highlight some important 
points regarding major issues. 

  
  If, under any new governance model, the Authority chose to establish a policy 

and resources committee, as had been the case in other areas, it was 
important that consideration was given to precisely what the Authority wanted 

Page 18



Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 26.11.2019 
 
 

Page 5 of 8 
 

in terms of the role of such a committee.  In some areas, such committees 
had replaced the cabinet, which had resulted in very little change to their 
decision-making processes.  If the Authority wanted to see a major change in 
terms of its decision-making, as had been requested by the public, other 
committees, whichever form they would take, would have to have the relevant 
powers to make decisions. 

  
  Whilst not being able to provide a definitive response, it was going to be very 

difficult for the Authority to establish a new governance model, particularly 
one with any major changes, within the very tight timescale provided.   

  
  Whilst it was accepted that not every decision made needed to be 

scrutinised, particularly on the grounds that there simply would not be the 
time or resources to provide for this, the Authority’s scrutiny function was 
more about giving Members a chance to scrutinise major issues that 
decisions would be made on at a future date, such as those included in their 
Forward Plans.   

  
  It was important that the Authority, from the outset, was clear in terms of 

where and how it wanted decisions to be made, which would then be 
reflected in an agreed model. 

  
  There were examples where changes to local authorities’ governance models 

had not been successful, and one such case involved an authority where 
changes resulted in some meetings lasting a whole day.  As part of the 
review process, consideration needed to be given to the size of committee 
agendas, the nature of the items and whether some decisions could be 
delegated.  Another option could be to encourage Members to ask questions 
on specific issues before the meetings.  Some local authorities did not want 
to change their existing executive function, therefore introduced a hybrid 
model, which comprised different elements of the various models.  One 
example of this involved an authority where a cabinet member chaired the 
Committee where a particular issue was discussed, then the cabinet made 
the final decision.   

  
  It was important to ensure that any major decisions taken by external bodies 

that the Authority worked alongside, such as Sheffield City Region, Equality 
Hubs and Area Housing Committees, were reported back to a relevant 
council meeting. 

  
  There was still a statutory duty on local authorities in terms of public health, 

and the majority of authorities that had changed their governance models had 
retained a health scrutiny committee.  It was very important for authorities to 
ensure that their committees were properly scoped. 

  
5.4 Judith Hurcombe – Local Government Association 
  
5.4.1 The Committee received a paper of the Local Government Association setting out 

a list of principles which any future decision-making structure should include.   
  

Page 19



Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 26.11.2019 
 
 

Page 6 of 8 
 

5.4.2 Judith Hurcombe stressed that there was no ideal governance model due to the 
ever-changing political environment, and that there would always be advantages 
and disadvantages in terms of any chosen governance model.  She stated that the 
Council needed to be bold in terms of precisely what it wanted from its decision-
making processes, and that it was important that it monitored what was working 
well and what was not working so well.  Ms Hurcombe concluded by stating that 
striking a balance between inclusivity and accountability was key to a successful 
governance model.   

  
5.4.3 Members of the Committee raised questions, and the following responses were 

provided:- 
  
  There was no definitive answer with regard to fast or slow decision-making, 

but local authorities simply needed to adopt a system which suited them best.   
  
  The recent austerity measures had resulted in a major adverse impact on all 

local authorities.  It had been very difficult for authorities during this time, and 
given their decision making powers, they would always be the target for 
blame by the public. 

  
  If the Authority was to move to a committee system, a decision would have to 

be made in terms of the number of committees and where its resources 
needed to be targeted.   

  
  The Local Government Association had not looked, in any detail, at any 

cases where problems had arisen in local authorities where their scrutiny 
committees had been chaired by members of the opposition.  If requested, 
the Association could make some investigations and provide the Authority 
with some examples.   

  
  Any change in systems was likely to involve a degree of cost, such as having 

to pay to hire additional meeting rooms and/or providing additional support for 
democratic services.  It was important that local authorities continued to hold 
full Council meetings as this was the only forum where Members could 
debate major issues in public.   

  
5.5 Following the evidence provided by the three national experts in governance and 

decision-making, Members of the Committee made comments as follows:- 
  
  It was clear that there was a need for a change in culture, as well as 

amendments to the decision-making structures of the Council.   
  
  There was a need to review the operation of full Council meetings. 
  
  The evidence was very useful, but more detail on the pros and cons of the 

different governance models would be welcomed. 
  
  There needed to be improvements in terms of the reports submitted to 

committees. 

Page 20



Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 26.11.2019 
 
 

Page 7 of 8 
 

  
  It would be helpful to receive a clear definition of the term governance.  The 

Authority needed to decide on a model, then tailor it in terms of exactly what it 
wanted.   

  
  It was important that any future model was inclusive, particularly for the 

public. 
  
  Given the 10-year rule, in terms of changes to a model that wasn’t working, 

there was a strong emphasis on getting it right this time. 
  
  If a move to a Committee system was agreed, individual Committees would 

need to have some level of autonomy. 
  
  Community engagement was key in any agreed model.   
  
  The option of pre-decision scrutiny should be explored. 
  
  On the basis that pre-decision scrutiny appeared to be a link between 

scrutiny and cabinet, there was a need to focus efforts on the key decision-
makers. 

  
  The conflict between the different political parties was often over-

emphasised. 
  
5.6 Councillor Terry Fox (Cabinet Member for Finance, Resources and Governance) 

stated that Members needed to focus more on what system they required, as 
opposed to concentrating on the various structures.  He stated that, following 
several meetings he had attended on the issue, there had been a strong focus on 
community involvement, therefore Members needed to look at what powers they 
wanted in terms of devolvement.  He concluded by stressing that Members needed 
to be mindful, when looking at a new system, of the number of committees, and the 
time they were likely to spend in meetings.   

  
5.7 How Decision-Making Currently Works in Sheffield City Council 
  
5.7.1 The Committee received a report from Gillian Duckworth (Director of Legal and 

Governance) and Laurie Brennan (Head of Policy and Partnerships) on how 
decision-making currently works in Sheffield City Council. The report was 
supported by a presentation from Gillian Duckworth and Laurie Brennan. 

  
5.7.2 Gillian Duckworth reported on the current model of decision-making, referring to 

the Cabinet, Executive Decisions, Key Decisions, and referring to statistics relating 
to the number of decisions made since May 2018, Members’ allowances relating to 
the cabinet model and political proportionality during 2019/20.  Ms Duckworth 
concluded by referring to the minimum requirements in terms of committee 
memberships under a committee model. 

  
5.7.3 Laurie Brennan reported on the role of scrutiny, specifically how it worked and 

operated in Sheffield, what scrutiny could do, how people could get involved, 

Page 21



Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 26.11.2019 
 
 

Page 8 of 8 
 

examples of effective scrutiny and areas where the role of scrutiny could be 
enhanced. 

  
5.7.4 Members of the Committee raised questions, and the following responses were 

provided:- 
  
  Whilst more decisions could be added to the Forward Plan, there was only a 

requirement to include key decisions.   
  
  Under a committee system, certain committees would have the power to deal 

with a specific level of decisions.   
  
  It was accepted that there had been unnecessary delays in terms of decision-

making in the past but, whichever system was chosen, behaviour and culture 
was always likely to pay a part with regard to the speed of decision-making.  
There would always be situations, particularly with regard to the more 
complex issues, or particular issues of public interest, where decisions would 
take longer.  It was reported that Members received adequate training in 
terms of effective decision-making. 

  
  Whilst the opportunity for scrutiny to play a wider role in holding wider public 

services to account at the sub-regional level, the reasons why such a system 
had not been explored in any detail was mainly due to capacity and resource 
issues.  Discussions had been held with officers at Sheffield City Region, the 
outcome of which would be forwarded to Members. 

  
  A cross-party Member working group had looked into the issue regarding 

costs of holding meetings, which resulted in changes to how full Council 
meetings operated.  As part of the review process there may be a 
requirement for a further review.  Full Council meetings were very labour 
intensive, with several members of Democratic Services involved.   

  
  It was accepted that it would be very helpful, as part of any future governance 

model, if there were Forward Plans for bodies such as the Health and 
Wellbeing Board, Sheffield City Region and Local Area Partnerships.  This 
would also provide a further level of accountability for such bodies.  There 
was also a need to make sure there was some form of reporting back 
mechanism in respect of such bodies. 

  
  The figure of £1,235 in the report referred to the approximate cost of 

arranging a committee meeting and not a full Council meeting.   
  
  Rotherham MBC operated an effective pre-scrutiny system.   
 
6.   
 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 

6.1 It was noted that the next meeting of the Committee would be a special meeting, 
and would be held on Thursday, 28th November 2019, at 10.00 am, in the Town 
Hall. 

 

Page 22



S H E F F I E L D    C I T Y     C O U N C I L 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 
 

Special meeting held 28 November 2019 
 
PRESENT: Councillors Mick Rooney (Chair), Ian Auckland, Steve Ayris, 

Julie Grocutt, Tim Huggan, Douglas Johnson, Mike Levery, 
Cate McDonald, Sioned-Mair Richards and Jim Steinke 
 

 
   

 
1.   
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

1.1 An apology for absence was received from Councillor Denise Fox. 
 
2.   
 

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 

2.1 No items were identified where resolutions may be moved to exclude the public 
and press. 

 
3.   
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

3.1 There were no declarations of interest. 
 
4.   
 

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS 
 

4.1 There were no questions raised or petitions submitted by members of the public. 
 
5.   
 

GOVERNANCE REVIEW - EVIDENCE GATHERING SESSION 2 
 

5.1 The Committee received a report of the Policy and Improvement Officer setting 
out the schedule for the second evidence gathering session as part of the 
governance review. 

  
 Local Organisations with an Interest in Governance and Decision-Making 
  
5.2 Ruth Hubbard – It’s Our City 
  
5.2.1 The Committee received a report from ‘It’s Our City’ setting out the community 

perspective of the decision making processes in Sheffield City Council.  The 
report outlined commentary and evidence as a result of almost 20,000 
conversations held with Sheffield citizens  during the Sheffield People’s Petition 
campaign. 

  
5.2.2 Ms Hubbard thanked the Committee for considering the evidence submitted by 

‘It’s Our City’ and stated that scrutiny would hopefully amplify the voice of ‘It’s Our 
City’.  She outlined people’s frustrations with the current governance system and 
that from the exceptional response of the Sheffield communities and of their 
overwhelming aspiration to see a more democratic council governance, this has 
resulted in the statutory requirement for the City Council to develop a modern 
committee system model of governance which would be voted on in a city wide 

Page 23



Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 28.11.2019 

Page 2 of 15 
 

referendum. 
  
5.2.3 The Group’s concerns in terms of decision making in Sheffield were- 

 

 How are the citizens of Sheffield listened to and enabled to influence 
decision making within the City; 

 How can people participate in decision making; and 

 What is the purpose of governance at Sheffield City Council 
  
5.2.4 The Committee was advised that the public’s confidence in Sheffield City Council 

had declined between 2016-2018, and they were highly critical of the ‘strong 
leader’ model of the Council.   

  
5.2.5 Ruth talked about community principles for a modern committee system, which 

included fair and meaningful representation, increased participation and impact, 
cultural change hand in hand with new system structures and processes and 
setting clear standards and improvements. 

  
5.2.6 Members of the Committee raised questions and the following responses were 

provided:- 
  
  80-90% of people approached over the year wanted to sign the petition 

and this had to be used to trigger the referendum for a change in 
governance; 
 

 It was felt that Sheffield City Council was excluding the public from 
participating. Other council, for example Nottingham City Council, held 
area committees, which included representation from different community 
groups. In their opinion, holding public question sessions at the beginning 
of committees and meetings was not the best form of public 
engagement/participation;  
 

 Sheffield City Council needed to start building strong relationships with 
community groups as at the moment they did not think the Council listened 
to their views.  It was stated that the public did not like consultations; 
 

 The strong-leader model was seen as top heavy with a low voter mandate. 
It’s Our City wanted a referendum to change to a committee system as 
they did not think the current system was a good fit for Sheffield, they 
wished to see more proportionate participation in decision making; 
 

 In terms of decision making, the public would rather see more thoughtful 
decisions than quick decision making. 

  
5.2.7 The Chair thanked ‘It’s Our City’ for their contribution and, in summary, 

commented that the petition was not wholly representative of the electorate and 
there were still the views of a further 95% of the city to consider. A decision 
should not be made on the views of only 5% of the electorate as a new model of 
governance would be in place for a minimum of 10 years. 

  

Page 24



Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 28.11.2019 

Page 3 of 15 
 

5.3 Nigel Slack – Active Citizen 
  
5.3.1 The Committee received the Independent Governance Event report and a paper 

on “Transforming Sheffield City Council Governance”.  On 30th October 2019, a 
Big City Conversation event was held at Sheffield Town Hall, independently 
chaired by Nigel Slack.  The event was the first of two.  It gave members of the 
public the opportunity to talk about how they wanted to engage with the Council 
on issues that mattered to them and contribute to the debate on how Sheffield 
City Council makes decisions ahead of the referendum on 7th May 2020. 

  
5.3.2 As part of the conversations with the public about governance, most of the 

responses concerned issues about Planning matter, and refuse bins, not directly 
about how the Council makes decisions.  However, the issues raised were still in 
a way affected by how the Council made its decisions. 

  
5.3.3 Mr Slack referred to the document ‘Transforming Sheffield City Council’s 

Governance, which was well received by the Leader of the Council, but a lack of 
action following this report has led to where the Council was now. 

  
5.3.4 Mr Slack outlined principles for the design of the proposed change to a 

committee model:- 
 

 Structure – Open and transparent decision making 

 Neighbourhoods – Devolved decision making 

 Transparency – Open information 
  
5.4 Vicky Seddon, Co-Ordinator, Sheffield 4 Democracy 
  
5.4.1 The Committee considered information from a response to an online call for 

evidence and a paper on Sheffield for Democracy Improvements we seek to local 
democracy in Sheffield City Council. 

  
5.4.2 Good decision making was seen as timely, well informed, taking into account 

different effects on individuals and communities, with clear explanation why the 
decisions had been taken. 

  
5.4.3 Ms Seddon talked about what their preferred outcomes of democratic renewals 

would be, ranging from more people participating and being engaged with  a 
greater cross-section of Sheffield’s population doing so.  It was felt that greater 
political stability was needed between elections.  Currently, with elections being 
every year for three years, then a fallow year, Members seemed to be constantly 
in election mode, seemingly attacking each other instead of working together to 
deal with important issues.  It was preferred that all out local elections should 
take place every 4 years. 

  
5.4.4 Members of the Committee raised questions with both Nigel Slack and Vicky 

Seddon and the following responses were provided:- 
  
  There should be a right of public consultation within the Council’s 

Constitution, as it wasn’t clear at present; 

Page 25



Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 28.11.2019 

Page 4 of 15 
 

 It was felt that the whip system was a good idea as it ensured things got 
done, however it could also create a very small voting majority; 

 It was agreed with Members that cross party working happened; however 
there was still a duty for the public to be involved in meetings such as 
scrutiny.  It was found difficult to submit evidence to the Council; the 
Council should be striving to create structure that promotes cultural 
changes.  As referred to in the document submitted to the Committee 
‘Residents were unhappy with the way some Councillors treated each 
other and the public and the seeming impunity with which bad behaviour 
was tolerated’.  It was felt that there should be a clear code of conduct and 
clear sanctions, as it wasn’t thought the current process was acceptable 
and did not promote good Member behaviour; 

 Social media also had an impact on Member behaviour and now with this 
being a big part of reality, it wasn’t sure how this would be dealt with; 

 In terms of dealing with important/urgent decisions under a new system, it 
was thought the Council needed to find a consensus view/decision on 
difficult matters and if a committee decision was needed then a recorded 
vote should be taken so the public knew which way a Member had voted; 

 Decisions should be balanced by informing the public that if a decision is 
not taken on a particular matter it would be more transparent to explain 
what would happen instead; 

 Development was crucial for new Members and, if necessary, money 
should be re-directed into training for improved democracy. 

  
 Views of the Voluntary Sector and Business Community 
  
5.5 Maddy Desforges – Vountary Action Sheffield 
  
5.5.1 The Committee received a paper from Voluntary Action Sheffield setting out the 

views of the Service on the decision-making structures in Sheffield.  The paper 
contained information on suggested principles to be applied as part of the 
decision-making process, issues to be addressed, components of what the 
revised structures might look like, and suggested things for the Council to avoid 
as part of the review. 

  
5.5.2 Maddy Desforges stated initially that the sector welcomed the review as it was 

deemed a very important issue to the voluntary sector.  She stated that the 
Council should not, at this stage, be considering whether to maintain a cabinet 
and leader system or move to a committee system, but needed to agree on the 
best model for the City, then look at the various structures.  In any new 
governance model, it was important that the views of the public, all Council 
partners and communities were listened to as part of any future decision-making 
processes.  Ms Desforges referred to the importance of long-term decision-
making, robust scrutiny and accountability.  She stressed that there was a need 
to ensure that various methods of democracy were used as part of a new 
governance model, and it was vital that the public had their say in future decision-
making.  She concluded by highlighting the importance of a change in culture, 
indicating that such changes could take some time. 

  
5.6 Richard Wright – Sheffield Chamber of Commerce 

Page 26



Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 28.11.2019 

Page 5 of 15 
 

  
5.6.1 Richard Wright stated that the Chamber represented a wide variety of 

organisations that employed people, with the majority being private bodies, but 
also a number of public services, such as the Universities and University 
Technical Colleges.  The Chamber attempted to assist organisations to meet 
current legislation, and represented the only one-stop shop facility with regard to 
international trade.  Mr Wright reported on the roles and responsibilities of the 
Chamber, referring specifically to the City which, amongst other things, included 
the responsibility to create wealth and employ people.  Mr Wright reported on the 
importance of partnership working, indicating that such practice had improved 
over the last few years, resulting in several positive achievements, such as flood 
defences and the University Technical Colleges.  It was important for the 
Chamber to have good relationships and good communication links with the 
City’s decision-makers.  He considered that many proposed governance changes 
would be difficult due to the changing political environment, but stressed that, if 
any proposed change did not work out for any reason, the Authority should 
accept this and take action straightaway. 

  
5.6.2 Members of the Committee raised questions with both Maddy Desforges and 

Richard Wright, and the following responses were provided:- 
  
  The voluntary and community sector in Sheffield was very strong, with a 

high proportion of adults either volunteering or being active in some way.  
Performance of the sector compared very favourably with the other Core 
Cities, and there was a strong network of community ‘anchor’ organisations 
which acted as links for many local communities and individuals.  Such 
groups had assisted the sector in helping to make better use of NHS 
England funding.  Whilst successful, the sector could make more use of 
such organisations, and it had been identified that there was a need for the 
sector to work more collaboratively with the Council and its partners, 
particularly with regard to levering in funds from charities.  The sector had 
been very proactive in connection with the recent Winter Planning through 
working with the NHS and the Council. 

  
  The sector was already represented on a number of boards and 

committees, and would like such arrangements to continue under any new 
governance model.  As part of any changes, the sector would like to engage 
more effectively with the Council and its partners, and considered it 
important that members of the public needed to know who and where they 
could influence decisions, preferably at an early stage of the process.   

  
  The Chamber tended to liaise with the Council’s Executive, rather than 

individual Members.  The Chamber is of the view that there was a lack of 
consistency in terms of the Authority’s planning processes, and considered 
that decisions of the Planning and Highways Committee should be made for 
the good of the City, as opposed to be made in accordance with rules and 
regulations.   

  
  It was considered that the Authority had made considerable progress in 

terms of helping the public to understand why certain decisions had been 

Page 27



Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 28.11.2019 

Page 6 of 15 
 

made. 
  
  It has been well documented in recent times that trust of the political system 

and politicians had declined.  It was also considered that relationships 
between the Council and the public had become too remote.  There was a 
need for the Council to do things ‘with’ the public and not ‘to’ the public.  
Once trust had broken down, it often took a long time to get that trust back. 

  
  A No Deal Brexit, which in effect, was the current position, was the worst 

case scenario, and the very short timescale involved meant that it was 
highly likely a trade deal could not be negotiated.  A No Deal Brexit would 
result in a number of adverse effects on the British economy.   

  
  The view of the Chamber of Commerce was that Yorkshire and the Humber 

was struggling to work as a region and whilst it was hoped this situation 
could improve, there were doubts that it would.   

  
  Both Maddy Desforges and Richard Wright had been members of the 

Sheffield Partnership Board, which they considered was a very useful forum 
in terms of what it was trying to achieve as a City.  The forum was now 
known as Business Sheffield, and it had a good working relationship with 
the Chamber, undertaking some positive work.   

  
  There had been a number of excellent relationships between the Council 

and the voluntary and community sector.  In terms of the devolvement of 
budgets, with the current arrangement comprising the Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL), it was believed that, whilst having its benefits, this 
was too Member led, with insufficient input from the voluntary and 
community sector.  There was a need for a more formal mechanism in 
terms of how people could put forward their views with regard to influencing 
decisions.  There still remained a lack of trust of the Council as people’s 
views were often ignored.  There was also the belief within the voluntary 
and community sector that the Council was not doing anything of any 
benefit to them.  A large proportion of the public did not really have a clear 
idea as to precisely what the Council does.   

  
  Both the Chamber of Commerce and Voluntary Action Sheffield had very 

little contact with the Town and Parish Councils. 
  
  The Manor Action Group were viewed as a very positive and helpful 

approach to bringing together organisations working in a  local area, but, to 
date, had limited involvement from local businesses. 

  
5.7 Written Evidence Provided Through the Online Call for Evidence 
  
5.7.1 The Committee received the written evidence provided through the online Call 

For Evidence, which contained 691 responses.   
  
5.7.2 The Chair reported that there was nothing significantly unexpected in terms of the 

responses received, and there was a correlation between the evidence provided 

Page 28



Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 28.11.2019 

Page 7 of 15 
 

and that provided by the other witnesses.   
  
5.8 Member Discussion 
  
5.8.1 Members raised the following comments following the receipt of views of the 

voluntary sector and business community, and the evidence provided through the 
online Call For Evidence:- 

  
  It is apparent that there was a certain level of frustration within the business 

community in terms of working with the Council, in the sense that it did not 
consider that the Council had a clear vision or strategy.   

  
  There was a need for more clarity in terms of how what was going on in 

Sheffield could be linked to the wider South Yorkshire and Yorkshire and 
Humberside region to ensure that everyone was heading in a similar 
direction. 

  
  Some Members believe that, in their capacity as local Councillors, they did 

not consider themselves to have any links into the local business sector. 
  
  It was important to ensure that people had confidence in the City, in the 

sense that new businesses coming to the City would provide investment, as 
well as providing additional business rates.  This, in turn, would provide 
more jobs, and attract more people to the City, resulting in increases in 
Council Tax receipts. 

  
  It was hoped that, as part of any new governance model, it was important 

that links between the Council and the business sector and other 
government organisations were improved.   

  
  There was a need to look at the Council’s existing governance structures, 

particularly on the basis that there appeared to be little connection between 
the Council and its partners, such as the NHS and the police.  There was a 
need to both undertake an audit of all relevant partner organisations and be 
clear about lines of communication and engagement. 

  
  It was clear that the voluntary and community sector wanted to be consulted 

more, and that there was a need for the Council to direct more resources 
into being more open and engaging with the Sector.  Feedback in respect of 
the partnership boards indicated that they were often viewed as “closed 
shops”. 

  
  There was a need to review a number of areas of current working, including 

scrutiny, engagement with the voluntary and community sector and locality 
working. 

  
  It would be helpful if Members could provide examples of good practice, or 

otherwise, of partnership/locality working in their respective Wards. 
  

Page 29



Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 28.11.2019 

Page 8 of 15 
 

  All Members, as part of the Big City Conversation, had given a commitment 
in their respective Wards to look at how the Council could improve its 
working relationship with local communities. 

  
  The Council needed to look at all the issues raised, regardless of the result 

of the referendum. 
  
  Consideration needs to be given to how the process of providing written 

answers to members of the public’s questions could be improved. 
  
  It was recognised that Full Council meetings could be used more creatively 

to provide a more meaningful forum for debate. 
  
  It was hoped that, under any  new governance model, Members would not 

have to approve numerous sets of committee minutes at Council meetings, 
as had been the case under the old committee system. 

  
  It was acknowledged that, if the referendum resulted in a preference for a 

committee system, a considerable amount of work would then be required 
to look at the structure of a new system. 

  
  Consideration should be given to the most appropriate forum at which 

governance issues could be considered in the future. 
  
5.9 The Committee received a report written by the Sheffield Young Advisers and 

Sheffield Youth Cabinet.  The report gave feedback from these two groups of 
young people, following key questions submitted to them regarding the future 
decision making structure of the City Council.  Emma Hinchliffe, Sheffield Futures 
Involvement Lead, gave a brief summary of discussions held at meetings of the 
groups. 

  
5.10 The question “What does good decision making look like to you” was asked and 

the responses were as follows:- 
  
  The way the central government and local government produce 

documents was not very clear.  It was felt that there should be more 
transparency in the decision-making process, so that young people might 
feel more able to engage in democracy. 

  
  Documents should be written in a way that everyone can understand and 

has to be representative of all young people. 
  
  Accessibility – the use of different languages, using easy to understand 

words. 
  
  Have involvement from the start and then give updated versions of the 

decisions made to build good relationships within communities. 
  
  The consequences of a decision and how it has an effect; transparency 

Page 30



Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 28.11.2019 

Page 9 of 15 
 

and the ability to access key decisions that have or are to be made and 
the ability to have input on that decision. 

  
  It was felt that there was under representation of some ethnic minority 

groups. 
  
  It was felt that the City Council’s website was not very clear.  Most of the 

young people present said that they had difficulty in finding and accessing 
documents on the website and that not everything was available.  If 
Council documents were readily available, people might engage more. 

  
  Many young people were not aware of the current system and how it 

works.  They feel they are unable to access information regarding the new 
system and how to form an opinion on it and then vote. 

  
  Documents need to be concise. 
  
  People don’t realise what they are voting for at elections. 
  
5.11 The Chair asked if there was anything specific that prevented young people 

voting and their ability to vote.  The responses given were as follows:- 
  
  Due to people not being able to vote until they reach the age of 18, 

stopped young people taking an interest in voting.  It was felt that if the 
age was lowered, more young people might engage more. 

  
  With regard to Brexit, under 18s didn’t get the chance to vote but the 

upcoming General Election has been called due to the issues surrounding 
Brexit. 

  
  Again, there should be more transparency, young people don’t get to know 

about what’s happening. 
  
  Democracy and politics should be implemented into education.  One 

young person had a module in school that lasted for two weeks and 
covered basic democracy.  Those present felt that democracy should be 
part of the curriculum and if it was, more young people might become 
more interested and get involved.   

  
  Those present had friends who were not registered to vote as they did not 

know how to or at what age they were eligible to register. 
  
  If more information was provided, it was felt that more interest would be 

taken.  A lot of young people don’t know what to look for or how to access 
information. 

  
  Children should engage more in schools.  The vote should be given to 16 

year olds.  By not giving the vote to 16 year olds shows that the views of 
young people are not taken on board and the young therefore become 

Page 31



Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 28.11.2019 

Page 10 of 15 
 

disengaged.  In Scotland, children can register to vote at the age of 14. 
  
  Heard many people say that young people are not educated enough to 

make a decision, but being given the right to vote is the best way that 
young people can participate. 

  
  The legal age to work is 13, so if a young person can earn a wage, should 

they also be able given the right to make decisions about what affects their 
future. 

  
  People are too apathetic and it’s easy to say that young people are not 

able to give an informed opinion on anything.  The system should be more 
enabling towards young people. 

  
  When the recent Health and Social Care Strategy was at the “final draft” 

stage, the Youth Cabinet felt that they should have been given an input 
into the Strategy before a decision was taken.  They felt that they should 
have a say on something that covers five years and could have an effect 
on them.  The Youth Cabinet also felt that they should have had a chance 
to contribute. 

  
  It’s about getting young people involved at the start of projects, getting 

them involved. 
  
  The majority of Sheffield people don’t know how decisions are made.  One 

of the reasons that the turnout for local elections is low is because they 
don’t know what they are voting for, and cannot make an informed vote. 

  
  Councillors are never seen in local areas and the only time MPs are seen 

is around election time.  Paul Blomfield, MP, is pro-active and gets groups 
together in his area to find out what they want.  Young people want 
Councillors and MPs to ask them what they want, perhaps by visiting 
youth clubs, youth services, schools, etc.  If people don’t see their local 
Councillor, they don’t engage, mainly because they don’t know what they 
do. 

  
  It was felt that Councillors needed to get out into the community more by 

attending local events.  They had admiration for the former Lord Mayor as 
he attended many local events and was passionate about what he 
believed. 

  
  With regard to Ward boundaries, it was stated that the Electoral 

Commission decides on these and are determined by roughly the same 
number of constituents in each Ward, which typically makes the Central 
Ward a very wide and diverse area. 

  
  In Sheffield, there are many young people charity-centred activities. Youth 

clubs take place every night of the week and Sheffield Futures could direct 
Councillors to where groups/meetings are taking place. 

Page 32



Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 28.11.2019 

Page 11 of 15 
 

  
  Due to many schools now being academy run, permission is needed to go 

onto school premises; Councillors have to wait to be invited to attend.  It 
was felt that Councillors could be more proactive in asking schools to let 
them in and give talks to young people, maybe during assemblies, about 
the Council, how it is run and about their local area. 

  
  Lives could be changed in areas where not enough young people are 

involved in politics, by engaging more with them. 
  
  There was a need to inform the public why a decision has been taken, not 

just say that the decision has been made. 
  
  The Council’s website was not clear and concise, it was complicated.  

Much more could be publicised through social media by signing up for 
facebook, twitter, Instagram etc.  Young people can understand and relate 
to this and find it more accessible.   

  
  The young people were informed that Council, Cabinet and Scrutiny 

Committee meetings were now webcast and can be found on the 
Council’s website. 

  
5.12 The Chair thanked members of Sheffield Young Advisors, Sheffield Youth 

Cabinet and Sheffield Futures for attending the meeting and said that he didn’t 
want this meeting to be the first and last time that the Council met with them.  He 
suggested that a cross-party working group could be established with a long term 
link into the Youth Council. 

  
5.13 Evidence given by Robin Hughes – Joined Up Heritage, Sheffield 
  
5.13.1 A written submission was previously circulated to the Committee. 
  
5.13.2 Robin Hughes explained that he had experience of negotiating with the Council 

on heritage matters and within its current governance arrangements. He then 
identified key areas for improvement, as set out below.  

  
5.13.3 A change in attitude was important and a process of change in governance 

arrangements would not guarantee that. It was about more than structures but 
might include an all-party, non-partisan culture. The experience of Planning and 
Highways Committee was that it operated in a non-partisan way. However, 
perception may be different and so appearance of the way it operated was also 
important. 

  
5.13.4 There was a high level of skills/knowledge required and it was important that a 

committee was able to challenge effectively and with sufficient knowledge to do 
so. In any new system, councillors should participate in training and proactively 
seek to develop themselves. In addition to their own skills and knowledge, 
councillors would also need to seek advice from experts, including officers of the 
Council with specialist knowledge and external expertise, where appropriate.  

  

Page 33



Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 28.11.2019 

Page 12 of 15 
 

5.13.5 It was also important to see any potential conflict between decisions, such as 
those taken for economic reasons, and the potential effect on other relevant 
issues and aims.  

  
5.13.6 Continuity and consistency were considered to be important in the development 

of relationships and it was also felt that there should be a limit on the powers of 
individuals. 

  
5.13.7 It was thought that structures may be a consequence of the culture of an 

organisation and there was a risk in any change of structure that the previous (in 
this case, cabinet) structure would simply be carried over in another form (such 
as lead committee chairs). Any new generation of Chairs should be from a range 
of political parties and in a culture which did not allow individuals to dominate. 

  
5.13.8 There should also be a good scheme of delegation which needed to be carefully 

handled and there was a potential for small sub- committees to be formed as part 
of a new structure. Decisions about policy should be collective and not made at 
an individual level. 

  
5.13.9 Stability would help to foster relationships with the heritage community and it was 

hoped that there would be early engagement and demonstrable opportunities for 
input throughout the decision making process. Such an example was the Heart of 
the City Two Project and the opportunity for open conversations in the design of 
a scheme that worked with heritage and without compromising viability. This was 
considered to be an open and inclusive approach and was a benchmark for such 
decisions and would result in a better scheme. 

  
5.13.10 Changing peoples’ perceptions was an issue and there was a need to be seen to 

make a difference. This should be measured to take the temperature of public 
perception before and after a change. 

  
5.13.11 Members of the Committee asked questions and responses were provided by 

Robin Hughes, as summarised below:- 
  

  In reference to a question concerning longevity and the term of committee 
membership, there was a balance in ensuring that the composition of a 
committee was not either entirely static or subject to sudden change. In 
practice, it was thought that the process may manage itself. There was 
also a lot to be said for experience and the commitment of committee 
members and their own recognition of their responsibilities.  

  

  There had to be some agreed protocol in respect of relationships, such as 
between Members and officers and Members and developers and to avoid 
a situation where any individual had the final say. However, it was 
acknowledged that protocol alone may not solve some problems. 

  

  In relation to how a different system might address perceived problems, it 
was important for the public to understand what they were able to do to 
participate and hold discussions with those making decisions as part of 
the process of decision making.  

  

Page 34



Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 28.11.2019 

Page 13 of 15 
 

  In relation to people standing for public office as members of the Council 
and enhancing representation and a connection with communities, it was 
important to have in place training and opportunities for the acquisition of 
relevant knowledge in order for Members to carry out their roles.  

  

  At the same time, it was appropriate not to set too high a bar for entry, but 
for training to be supportive and to provide the appropriate tools. It would 
also be possible for newer Members to acquire skills from existing 
committee members. Training could be seen as a set of tools which were 
relatively easily deliverable and which provided knowledge and it was 
appropriate to offer learning materials to councillors. It was also 
acknowledged that most people did not come into the Council as experts. 

  

  It was suggested that a heritage committee was established because 
heritage was considered fundamental to the economic success of the city 
and it had related social and health benefits. It was therefore important to 
build on the advantages of those heritage benefits. It also allowed the city 
to compete, using its own heritage characteristics and provided people 
with a sense of belonging. The particular story of a city helped to root 
people in that place.  

  
5.14 Evidence given by Dr Karen Ford  
  
5.14.1 A written submission was previously circulated to the Committee. 
  
5.14.2 Dr Karen Ford spoke about her experience of putting objections to the Council’s 

Planning and Highways Committee, in writing and then by attending a meeting of 
the Committee. She commented on the amount of time (five minutes) allocated to 
people wishing to speak at the Committee and said she felt that questions that 
she had raised had not been answered. She said that the experience had been 
off-putting,  in terms of her engaging with other issues in the future.  

  
5.14.3 She said that the cabinet system placed the power to make decisions in the 

hands of a small number of people. Any new system of governance would need 
to be transparent and it was considered that there was a lack of transparency in 
the way some decisions, such as those regarding the Highways Private Finance 
Initiative (PFI) were made. There also needed to be a change in attitude and a 
process which was clear and transparent and in service of action. 

  

5.14.4 Dr Ford suggested four principles, namely fair and meaningful representation; 
increased participation and impact; cultural, structural and process change; and 
clear standards and measuring improvement. She enquired as to the extent to 
which the Centre for Public Scrutiny (CfPS) was being engaged in the process 
and use made of its expertise. Support could also be given to councillors to be 
confident about engaging with experts and knowing when it was the right time to 
seek expertise. 

  
5.14.5 The Chair clarified that the CfPS had addressed the Scrutiny Committee at its 

meeting on 26 November and had also participated in the public event held on 30 
October 2019. 

  

Page 35



Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 28.11.2019 

Page 14 of 15 
 

5.14.6 Members of the Committee asked questions and responses were provided by Dr 
Karen Ford, as summarised below:- 

  

  As regards the role of councillors and relationships, which included 
respect and necessary challenge, it was felt that the role of officers (for 
example in the Planning and Highways Committee) was not clear, 
although in the particular case to which she was referring (regarding an 
application for student accommodation), it appeared that the Committee 
accepted what officers had written in the report together with its 
assumptions. A comment was made that the role of officers was to enable 
elected Members to carry out their roles properly. 

  

  As regards the Planning and Highways Committee and whether it was felt 
that Members were familiar with the site under consideration,  Dr Ford 
said that the site was near to other sites previously considered and she 
was unsure as to whether the Committee grasped the implications for 
people living in that area. 

  
5.15 Evidence given by Kevin Poppelwell 
  
5.15.1 A written submission was previously circulated to the Committee. 
  
5.15.2 Kevin Poppelwell informed the Committee that he would like to see a more 

democratic Council and he commented that the term ‘strong leader’ could be 
perceived as having negative connotations.  

  
5.15.3 In response to a question from a member of the Committee, Mr Poppelwell said 

that he believed a modern committee system was one where decisions were 
based upon all the relevant information being available to the decision makers 
and for decisions not to be made by a small number of people.   

  
5.15.4 Mr Robin Hughes then commented that it was necessary to make it clear to 

people what the Council did and did not do. He said it would be important not to 
repeat the problems experienced in the previous (pre-2000) committee system. 
He also said that the issue was not so much about structure but what worked 
well and the outcomes in delivering services. It was also important to have 
councillors that were properly involved in the process. 

  
5.15.5 In responding to a question concerning the experience of attending and speaking 

at Planning and Highways Committee and in relation to a particular planning 
application, Dr Karen Ford said that she had been given five minutes to speak at 
that meeting. She commented that she believed there were certain assumptions 
in the officer’s report and which were not fully explained when queried. 
Therefore, she had felt ignored and commented that there had been a lack of 
response to the issues which she had raised.  

  
5.15.6 As to whether it had been explained or made clear that the Planning Committee 

would only look at planning considerations, Dr Ford said that had not been 
apparent to her.  

   
5.16 Green Party evidence – The item was deferred.  

Page 36



Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 28.11.2019 

Page 15 of 15 
 

 
6.   
 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 

6.1 It was noted that the next meeting of the Committee would be a special meeting, 
and would be held on Tuesday, 3rd December, 2019, at 1.00 pm, in the Town Hall. 

 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



S H E F F I E L D    C I T Y     C O U N C I L 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 
 

Special meeting held 3 December 2019 
 
PRESENT: Councillors Mick Rooney (Chair), Ian Auckland, Steve Ayris, 

Denise Fox, Julie Grocutt, Tim Huggan, Douglas Johnson, Mike Levery, 
Cate McDonald, Sioned-Mair Richards and Jim Steinke 
 

 
   

 
1.   
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

1.1 No apologies for absence were received. 
 
2.   
 

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 

2.1 No items were identified where resolutions may be moved to exclude the public 
and press. 

 
3.   
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

3.1 In relation to Agenda Item 6 (Governance Review – Evidence Gathering Session 
3) (Item 5 of these minutes), Councillor Denise Fox declared a personal interest 
as wife of Councillor Terry Fox (Cabinet Member for Finance, Resources and 
Governance). 

 
4.   
 

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS 
 

4.1 Members of the public raised questions as follows:- 
  
4.2 Nigel Slack 
  
4.2.1 (a) In the interest of transparency from all Councillors and stakeholders, 

including members of the public, will the conference call with Reading 
Borough Council be recorded, or notes taken to be included in the final 
published evidence for the Committee? 

  
 (b) In the interest of transparency from all Councillors and stakeholders, 

including members of the public, will the Committee publish the draft report 
to be considered at the private meeting on 10th December 2019, as well as 
the final draft report to be discussed at the public meeting on 18th 
December 2019? 

  
4.2.2 The Chair stated that, at the request of Reading Borough Council, the conference 

call will not be recorded, but notes will be taken of the call, and would be included 
in the final published evidence for the Committee.  He added that the private 
meeting to be held on 10th December 2019, would provide an opportunity for the 
Committee to consider the contents of the final draft report to be discussed at the 
public meeting on 18th December 2019. 

  

Page 39



Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 3.12.2019 

Page 2 of 8 
 

4.3 Natasha Parry 
  
4.3.1 (a) The Committee’s job seems to be to produce design principles for a 

modern committee system.  However, I note that in its visits to other 
councils, the Committee does not appear to have visited any councils 
currently operating a modern committee system.  Why not?  Having 
refused to get into any discussion last year (so giving itself an inadequate 
timeframe for the job that needs doing), is the Council still not taking the 
task seriously? 

  
 (b) I refer to Section 4 of the report on the visits - despite the Committee 

discussions taking place solely because of Sheffield communities, I note 
that community involvement in decision-making, and the importance of all 
elected Councillors playing a meaningful decision-making role are central 
issues that the Committee has not even named yet.  I also note from the 
webcast that the Committee spent only five minutes on 691 responses to 
its short online consultation, and that every single witness last week 
appears to have highlighted the importance of mechanisms for community 
involvement in decision-making.  Why has the Committee not yet named 
these core issues? 

  
 (c) From the webcasts available, there seems to be a disproportionate 

concentration on the question of something called ‘pre-decision scrutiny’.  
This appears to reflect the particular interests of some individual scrutiny 
committee members.  On the other hand, I have not yet seen the 
Committee discuss how it intends to amplify the voices and concerns of the 
public.  How will it? 

  
4.3.2 The Chair stated that the Committee had, or would be talking to, a range of 

councils, including Cheshire East and Reading, who either had moved to, or were 
in the process of moving to, a committee system. The Chair added that the 
Committee was taking its task, to develop a set of principles that should underpin 
any future governance structure, very seriously, and had spent considerable time 
considering the issues highlighted. The final report would set out the Committee’s 
findings on these and other issues.   

 
5.   
 

GOVERNANCE REVIEW - EVIDENCE GATHERING SESSION 3 
 

5.1 The Committee received a report of the Policy and Improvement Officer (Emily 
Standbrook-Shaw) setting out the schedule for the third evidence gathering 
session as part of the governance review. 

  
 What Works Elsewhere? – Feedback from Site Visits 
  
5.2 Pre-Decision Scrutiny in Rotherham – Councillor Brian Steele, Chair, Overview and 

Scrutiny Management Board, Rotherham MBC 
  
5.2.1 Councillor Steele reported that Rotherham MBC’s Overview and Scrutiny 

Management Board (OSMB) comprised 12 members, having a political balance, 
with three Select Committees sitting under the Board (Health, Lives and Places).  

Page 40



Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 3.12.2019 

Page 3 of 8 
 

The Council’s scrutiny and pre-decision scrutiny functions operated effectively as a 
result of the excellent cooperation and commitment of both Members and officers.  
As part of pre-decision scrutiny, the Chair of the OSMB, in consultation with the 
Deputy Chair, who was a member of the opposition party, would look at the 
Forward Plan and decide which issues should be referred to the Board.  The 
decision as to which issues were referred for scrutiny was based on the potential 
beneficial effects on the public.  Relevant Cabinet Members and officers would 
attend the scrutiny meetings to present the reports, and respond to questions.  The 
Council’s scrutiny function was currently well supported, with three officers in the 
Policy Team, and a Link Officer, from Assistant Director level upwards, from each 
Directorate assigned to work on scrutiny.  Councillor Steele stressed that the 
scrutiny function was non-political, and that this was one of the main reasons as to 
why it worked so effectively. 

  
5.2.2 Members of the Committee raised questions, and the following responses were 

provided:- 
  
  All Councillors could get involved in scrutiny if they wished, through their 

respective Committees.  All Councillors would be invited to meetings of the 
OSMB if it was deemed a major issue.  The relevant Cabinet Member would 
be invited to attend a meeting of the Board, but only to provide any relevant 
information, and respond to questions, and would not have any influence 
over any decisions made.  During the last three years, when pre-decision 
scrutiny was introduced, only around 4% of decisions taken by the Board 
had been overturned by Cabinet.   

  
  Following the Council being placed in special measures, the scrutiny 

function was one of the first issues to be reviewed.  The Overview and 
Scrutiny Management Board also considered the budget, to which all 
Directors and Cabinet Members were invited.  All the reports submitted to 
the Board were the same as those submitted to the Labour Group, with no 
amendments being made. 

  
  There had been a number of occasions where decisions had been amended 

by the Board, with the agreement of the Cabinet, with some amendments 
being proposed by opposition Councillors. 

  
  The Board would receive the Forward Plan three months in advance of any 

decisions being made.  There was a further opportunity for the Chair and 
Deputy Chair of the Board to discuss any issues in the Plan with the scrutiny 
Link Officers.   

  
  The Chair and Deputy Chair of the Board would have to prioritise which 

policies it wanted to scrutinise.   
  
  Special Cabinet meetings were arranged when specific decisions of a 

matter of urgency were required to be taken.   
  
  The Council’s decision-making processes were reviewed every 12 months, 

which included a check on delegated decisions to ensure that the system 

Page 41



Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 3.12.2019 

Page 4 of 8 
 

was working transparently.  It was Councillor Steele’s belief that Rotherham 
had a very effective decision-making system, with opposition Members 
having the opportunity to receive all papers sent to the Cabinet, and being 
able to attend Cabinet meetings and ask questions. 

  
  The Deputy Chair of the OSMB/Leader of the Opposition Party, was entitled 

to suggest any policy they wished to be considered through the pre-decision 
scrutiny process.  One condition of this was that the policy had to affect at 
least two Council Wards and/or involve costs of £250,000 or more.  If the 
Council Leader did not wish to accept any recommendations of the Board, a 
decision is made to this effect, and there was an option for the Leader to call 
reports back in if considered worthwhile.  The opposition party had never 
called-in a decision on the basis that they had been given the opportunity to 
discuss it.   

  
  All Councillors could sit on two Scrutiny Committees. 
  
  It was the responsibility of the Health Select Commission in terms of how it 

worked with partner agencies.  The Commission worked very closely with 
Voluntary Action Rotherham in connection with pre-decision scrutiny.  
Depending on what policy was being discussed, and when appropriate, 
officers from other agencies or organisations were invited to attend scrutiny 
meetings.  There were also independent people co-opted on to the Select 
Committees. 

  
  The standard process was for the OSMB to consider policies on the 

Forward Plan, but if there was sufficient time and resource, other policies 
could be programmed into the system. 

  
  The commitment of Members on the Board was generally very good, and 

this was one of the reasons why the Council’s scrutiny function worked so 
effectively. 

  
  There had been very little change in terms of the operation of the full 

Council meetings, mainly as its proceedings were set by statutory 
legislation.  The meetings allowed for public engagement, in terms of 
questions and petitions, with the public being able to submit written 
questions, comprising 50 words or less, and with the facility for them to ask 
a follow-up question if needed.  Under Rotherham’s Petitions Scheme, 
members of the public can submit petitions to Council meetings, and speak 
to them, with petitions having 600 or more signatures being considered by 
the OSMB, which could then make recommendations to the Cabinet, and 
petitions having 2,000 or more signatures would trigger a Council debate. 

  
  The Chair of the OSMB was elected by the majority group, and the Deputy 

Chair was the leader of the main opposition group. 
  
  All Councillors, including those who were not members of the Cabinet, were 

encouraged to get involved in terms of changing any policies.  They were all 
entitled to contact officers, and were able to request further information if 

Page 42



Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 3.12.2019 

Page 5 of 8 
 

needed. 
  
  The leader of the opposition was allowed to attend Cabinet meetings and 

ask questions.  In addition, all Councillors had access to the majority of 
policy documents, apart from reports submitted to the Licensing Committee, 
unless they were members of that Committee. 

  
  The Select Commissions met every six weeks, with a number of working 

parties being held in between meetings.  The OSMB met 24 times a year. 
  
  The devolved Ward-based budget in Rotherham amounted to £13,000 per 

Ward during 2019/20, and it was hoped that, with the addition of further 
funding based on the number of Council houses in Wards, this amount 
would increase next year.  The Ward Councillors decided amongst 
themselves how the funding should be allocated, and were required to 
report back on this at Council meetings. 

  
  It was believed that, in Councillor’s Steele’s opinion, the cabinet model was 

the most effective decision-making structure. 
  
  The public, in general, were not concerned with the Council’s decision-

making structures, but just concerned about the outcome regarding 
decisions. 

  
5.3 Feedback from Conversations with Cheshire East and Melton Borough Councils 
  
5.3.1 The Committee considered a report of the Head of Policy and Partnerships 

containing details of the feedback from conversations with other councils with 
regard to how their governance structures worked.  The report set out details 
regarding the visits by Members of the Committee to Rotherham MBC on 13th 
November, 2019 and Melton Borough Council on 20th November, 2019, as well as 
a discussion held with Councillor James Nicholas, Cheshire East Council, on 22nd 
November, 2019. The report included information on the purpose of the visits and 
the discussion, and the key issues arising from the visits and the discussion.  The 
report also attached, as an appendix, details of governance structures of Kent 
County Council, Reading Borough Council, Cambridgeshire County Council, Royal 
London Borough of Kingston Council and the London Borough of Barnet, which 
comprised a mixture of Committee, Leader/Cabinet and Mayoral systems, and 
details of which had been sourced from the Authorities’ websites. 

  
5.3.2 Arising from comments raised by Members of the Committee, the Policy and 

Improvement Officer stated that she would contact Melton Borough Council to seek 
further information with regard to their policy working groups.  It would be difficult to 
compare Sheffield with Melton on the basis that it was a very small Borough 
Council, with a number of different political views. 

  
5.3.3 With regard to Cheshire East Borough Council, Members of the Committee made 

the following comments:- 
  
  It will be interesting to find out how the change from a call-in system to the 

Page 43



Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 3.12.2019 

Page 6 of 8 
 

referral to the Corporate Committee works. 
  
  The reasons given for changing their model appeared to be due to issues 

with the previous Leader. 
  
  The reasons for moving to a new system was a wish for clarity in terms of 

who does what, which appeared to be confusing at present. 
  
  The Council had established a cross-party Urgency Committee to deal with 

any urgent decisions. 
  
5.4 Interim feedback from the Big City Conversation 
  
5.4.1 The Committee received a presentation from Laurie Brennan (Head of Policy and 

Partnerships) on the key messages, to date, following the Big City Conversation.  
Mr. Brennan reported on the approach undertaken, where the events had been 
held, the online survey, and the interim responses. 

  
5.4.2 Members of the Committee raised questions, and the following responses were 

provided:- 
  
  People were asked, as part of the event, whether they wished to leave their 

email addresses, so that the Council could keep in touch with them in terms 
of future events or initiatives.   

  
  People were not asked about the webcasting of Committee and Council 

meetings, but this could influence conversations to be held after the 
election. 

  
  It was hoped that conversations could be held in terms of how the Council’s 

governance model engaged with its partners models, such as the police and 
health. 

  
  There was a number of things the Council could do in terms of getting more 

people engaged in the Council’s decision-making system.  It was important 
to ensure that people received assurances that they could have some form 
of influence in decision-making. 

  
  It was important that the Council used its evidence base to find out precisely 

who wanted to be actively involved. 
  
  The next phase, following the information-gathering as part of the event, 

was to focus on community interest, as well as to work with the voluntary 
and community sector in order to ask further questions. 

  
  A commitment was given to those members of the public who took part, that 

the Council would follow up on the results following the event. 
  
5.4.3 The Chair stated that it was important that issues or concerns raised by the public  

Page 44



Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 3.12.2019 

Page 7 of 8 
 

in connection with other organisations, such as the SYPTE, were raised with such 
organisations, and pressure placed on them to deal with the concerns or issues. 

  
5.5 FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS 
  
5.5.1 Further to the receipt of the evidence and information received at this meeting, 

Members of the Committee made the following comments:- 
  
  A hybrid committee system could be an option to look at as the Council 

could potentially get the best out of all the different systems used. 
  
  It was imperative that Members adopted and embraced a more effective 

system with regard to cross-party working, which would be for the benefit of 
the City as a whole. 

  
  There needed to be clarity, under any preferred governance model, 

regarding the commitment of Members in terms of their constituents and 
attending meetings. 

  
  Openness and transparency was key in terms of everything the Council 

does.  It was also important that there was appropriate input from all 
Members of the Council and the public, and that all members of the public 
felt empowered. 

  
  Any new governance model should not be prohibitive to those members of 

the public who wished to become Councillors. 
  
  Culture, leadership, transparency and accountability were all key factors to 

consider. 
  
  It was important that the decision-making processes were simple in order to 

make it easier for the public to participate. 
  
  The current cabinet system worked effectively.  Consideration should be 

given to maintaining the current system or having a committee system.  It 
was considered that a hybrid system would not work. 

  
  There was a need to review the Council’s scrutiny function. 
  
  No further delegations should be made to officers than at present, and 

Members should be making the majority of decisions. 
  
  Whilst it would be suitable to delegate routine decisions to Members and 

officers, the current system regarding Individual Cabinet Member Decisions 
was not inclusive as there was no input from opposition Members.   

  
  The most important decisions should be made at full Council meetings or at 

senior committee meetings. 
  

Page 45



Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 3.12.2019 

Page 8 of 8 
 

  It was important to ensure that any Member of the Council could request a 
briefing from officers on any issue they wished. 

  
  More emphasis needs to be placed on the Forward Plan as it was important 

that everyone was aware of its contents. 
  
  Consideration should be given as to whether the Council could share its 

Forward Plan with external organisations. 
  
  If Scrutiny Committees were able to hold the Cabinet to account, there 

would be no need for the call-in process. 
  
  It was important that there was clarity with regard to public participation and 

decision-making. 
  
  The Council needed to reflect on how it undertook its business, which 

included improved consultation with local communities. 
 
6.   
 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 

6.1 It was noted that the next meeting of the Committee would be a special meeting, 
and would be held on Wednesday, 18th December, 2019, at 10.00 a.m. in the 
Town Hall. 

 

Page 46



S H E F F I E L D    C I T Y     C O U N C I L 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 
 

Special meeting held 18 December 2019 
 
PRESENT: Councillors Mick Rooney (Chair), Ian Auckland, Steve Ayris, 

Denise Fox, Julie Grocutt, Tim Huggan, Douglas Johnson, Mike Levery, 
Cate McDonald, Sioned-Mair Richards and Jim Steinke 
 

 
   

 
1.   
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

1.1 An apology for absence was received from Councillor Ben Curran. 
 
2.   
 

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 

2.1 No items were identified where resolutions may be moved to exclude the public 
and press. 

 
3.   
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

3.1 There were no declarations of interest. 
 
4.   
 

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND PETITIONS 
 

4.1 Members of the public raised questions as follows:- 
  
4.2 Woll Newall 
  
4.2.1 Mr. Newall referred to the evidence gathering sessions, at which the Committee 

had heard evidence from a number of groups and organisations, as well as the 
numerous responses to the online survey, with many views being expressed 
about the importance of communities having a proper say and role in the decision 
making system.  He questioned why giving real power to communities, in the heart 
of the decision-making system, was not one of the fundamental principles in the 
report. 

  
4.2.2 The Chair stated that it was not, and never had been, within the Committee’s gift 

to design a system in terms of how the Council would interact with the public.  He 
pointed out that there was a reference in the report to the effect that the Council 
needed to engage differently and more effectively with local communities, and 
stressed that further work would be undertaken in this regard.  The nature of the 
discussions would be dependent on the outcome of the referendum and the 
municipal elections to be held in May 2020.  It had not been in the Committee’s 
remit to make any specific suggestions or ideas in connection with locality 
working.  Councillor Rooney concluded by stating that the Council welcomed as 
much community involvement as possible, as part of any final agreed committee 
system. 

  
4.3 Ruth Hubbard 

Page 47



Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 18.12.2019 

Page 2 of 4 
 

  
4.3.1 (a) By law, the Council must not use its resources to prefer one governance 

model over another.  The report, at Item 6, claims advantages and 
disadvantages of both governance systems, but does not state these.  
However, threaded through the report, statements clearly steer in favour of 
the status quo strong leader model and away from a modern committee 
system.  For example, by definition, the strong leader model leaves 
decision-making power in the gift of the strong leader.  Will the Committee 
acknowledge that this is problematic (and likely a deal-breaker for 
Sheffielders)? 

  
 (b) The biggest gap in the report – despite the evidence – is the continuing 

marginalisation of Sheffield communities and the public, the failure to 
commit to devolving any decision-making power or real participation.  In 
fact, the report appears to reiterate top-down power and “silo” communities 
away from decision-making, only as informants or to be consulted.  
However, on another matter, it is unsurprising that a Committee made up 
mostly of scrutiny chairs seeks to strengthen scrutiny, particularly via pre-
scrutiny, to support and recommend decisions after a close look of issues 
by a number of different voices.  Despite calling it “scrutiny”, it is not, in fact, 
exactly a key basis of how a modern system works? 

  
4.3.2 The Chair indicated that he would respond to Ms. Hubberd in writing. 
 
5.   
 

PRINCIPLES FOR GOVERNANCE AT SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 
 

5.1 The Committee received a report, introduced by the Policy and Improvement 
Officer, setting out draft principles for governance at Sheffield City Council. 

  
5.2 Also in attendance for this item was Councillor Terry Fox (Cabinet Member for 

Finance, Resources and Governance).  
  
5.3 As part of the process of developing referendum options, this Committee had 

been asked by Full Council to work with the Deputy Leader to establish a set of 
principles that should underpin both the options that were to be put to the 
referendum, and present these to Full Council on 8th January, 2020.  The 
Committee’s draft report identified governance ambitions and principles, as well 
as ways of working that should shape future governance options. 

  
5.4 Councillor Ian Auckland stated that the report comprised a basis for consensus, 

and accurately reflected the discussions held at the previous three special 
meetings of the Committee.  He did, however, express an element of concern in 
terms of the lack of any detailed reference to the receipt of the petition, which had 
given rise to the recent work of the Committee.  He also hoped that an emphasis 
on a preferred system would become clear following the subsequent discussions 
to be held by the different political groups, and that there was a need for such 
discussions to be influenced by the evidence heard at the previous three special 
meetings of the Committee.  Councillor Auckland also believed that there should 
be a more detailed reference to locality working in the report. 

  

Page 48



Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 18.12.2019 

Page 3 of 4 
 

5.5 Councillor Douglas Johnson stated that he was happy with the contents of the 
report and that, whilst he was aware that it wasn’t within the remit of this 
Committee, queried whether Members would receive information in terms of how 
any future committee system would be resourced.  The Chair, in response, stated 
that the Committee’s remit was to establish a set of principles, which would be 
referred for consideration by the Council, at its meeting to be held on 8th January, 
2020. 

  
5.6 Councillor Terry Fox stated that the results of the consultation held as part of the 

Big City Conversation would be reported to the Council, at its meeting on 8th 
January, 2020, together with the report submitted to this meeting, which should 
provide the Council with the opportunity of recommending a detailed proposal to 
the Cabinet, at its meeting to be held on 12th March, 2020.  The Cabinet, at this 
meeting, would then devise the question to be used as part of the referendum.  
Councillor Fox stressed that the views of local communities, which were 
continuing to be sought, could change following the outcome of the referendum 
and the municipal elections to be held in May, 2020. 

  
5.7 Councillor Julie Grocutt referred to the public question raised at this meeting, 

which she believed highlighted a lack of detail/guidance in terms of the Council’s 
statutory duties/obligations.  She stressed that there was a need, either in this 
report or elsewhere, to include a reference to this to enable the public to have an 
understanding in terms of what the Council can and cannot change with regard to 
its governance systems. 

  
5.8 Councillor Cate McDonald stated that she would like to extend her thanks to all 

officers involved in the process and that, in her opinion, she considered that the 
Committee had undertaken exactly what had been asked of it.  She considered 
that there was plenty of scope for further deliberation in terms of the details going 
forward. 

  
5.9 RESOLVED: That the Committee:- 
  
 (a) notes the contents of the report now submitted, together with the comments 

now made and the responses to the questions raised; 
  
 (b) approves the recommendations set out in the report, subject to the 

following amendments:- 
  
 (i) the substitution of the following words for those set out in the fourth 

bullet point in paragraph 5.2 – “ensuring that a commitment to 
meaningful community engagement, involvement and consultation 
runs through the organisation”; and 

  
 (ii) details of the Council’s statutory duties/obligations in terms of its 

governance systems be attached as an appendix to the report; and 
  
 (c) expresses its thanks and appreciation to all officers involved in connection 

with supporting the Committee in the work in establishing a set of principles 
for governance at Sheffield City Council. 

Page 49



Meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 18.12.2019 

Page 4 of 4 
 

 
6.   
 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 

6.1 It was noted that the next meeting of the Committee would be held on 
Wednesday, 6th February, 2020, at 1.30 p.m., in the Town Hall. 

 

Page 50



 

 

 

 
 

 
Report of: Eugene Walker - Executive Director of Resources  
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Subject: Revenue Budget 2020/21 and Capital Strategy 2020 to 2025 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Author of Report: Dave Phillips, Head of Strategic Finance (x35872) 
 Tim Hardie, Head of Commercial Business Development (x53609) 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:  
This report summarises key features of the 2020/21 Revenue Budget and 2020-25 Capital 
Strategy which are being presented to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee for review. These 
documents are due to be presented to Cabinet on 19th February 2020, and to be presented to Full 
Budget Council for formal approval (subject to any Amendments) on 4th March 2020. 
 
The context and background information relating to the financial position for the Council in setting 
the 2020/21 Revenue Budget was presented and discussed with the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee in September 2019. 
 
__________________________________________________________ 
 
Type of item:  The report author should tick the appropriate box  

Reviewing of existing policy  

Informing the development of new policy  

Statutory consultation  

Performance / budget monitoring report  

Cabinet request for scrutiny  

Full Council request for scrutiny  

Call-in of Cabinet decision   

Briefing paper for the Scrutiny Committee  

Other X 

 
 
The Scrutiny Committee is being asked to: 
 
Provide views and comments on the 2020/21 Revenue Budget and 2020 to 2025 Capital Strategy.  
___________________________________________________ 
 
 
  

Report to Overview and Scrutiny 

Management Committee 

Insert date  

Page 51

Agenda Item 7



 

  1 | P a g e  

 

Background Papers:  
 
The 2020/21 Revenue Budget  
 
The 2020/25 Capital Strategy 
 
Category of Report: OPEN 

  

Page 52



 

  2 | P a g e  

 

Report of the Director of Finance and Commercial Services   
 
The Revenue Budget 2020/21 and Capital Strategy 2020 to 2025 
 
 

1. Introduction 
 
Every Local Authority must by law set a balanced revenue budget including setting its Council Tax 
annually. Setting the budget requires the calculation of the budget requirement including an 
allowance for contingencies, and consideration of the adequacy of reserves. These calculations 
must be completed before the 11th March preceding the financial year in question (i.e. before 11th 
March 2020 for the 20/21 budget).  
 
The Council’s Revenue Budget includes all the relevant information and calculations necessary to 
complete this process.  
 
Sections 4 and 5 of this report summarise the Council’s Capital Strategy. 
 
Sections 6 and 7 summarise Consultation and Engagement, and assessment of equalities 
implications.  
 
 

2. Contents of the Revenue Budget  
 
The Revenue Budget consists of the main report itself, which gives information on the background 
to the budget, the challenges faced, the development of the budget and the key figures. It ends 
with a number of recommendations, including the recommended Net Revenue Budget for 2020/21 
and the recommended Council Tax (shown as the amount required for a Band D property). 
 
The Revenue Budget also contains a number of Appendices covering: 
 

 Portfolio pressures 

 Portfolio savings 

 Overall summary budget, and summary budgets by Portfolio 

 Reserves 

 Corporate risk register 

 Council Tax Determination 

 The annual Treasury Management Strategy 

 Pay Policy and supporting information 

 Equality Impact assessment 

 Glossary of Terms 
 
 

3 Short summary of the key messages 
 
Key messages in the Budget are as follows: 

a) 4-year view 

The October 2019 Medium Term Financial Analysis predicted an overall funding gap of 

approximately £35m between 2019/20 to 2022/23. More recent updates indicate this gap remains 

broadly the same for 2020/21 to 2023/24. 

Page 53



 

  3 | P a g e  

 

Funding uncertainty continues to hamper effective budget planning. 

Growth in demand for services and cost inflation continues to outstrip additional funding available 

from Central Government or local taxation over the medium term. 

b) Council Tax and Reserves 

Subject to Council approval, the Council Tax rate will increase by 3.99%. This increase will be 

1.99% for the Core Council Tax and 2% for the Adult Social Care Precept. 

There is a £10.9m reduction in use of reserves when compared to 2019/20, mainly due to the 

reversal of the £11.2m draw from reserves required to balance the previous year’s budget. 

The Section151 Officer (the Executive Director of Resources) has reviewed the adequacy of 

reserves and the robustness of the estimates behind calculating the budget requirement in line 

with the requirement under Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003. 

c) Corporate 

There are a number of Council-wide or major programmes and projects funded centrally. 

Examples include the Heart of the City 2 development and the new Customer Experience 

programme. The increased cost of these corporately-funded items is £9.1m for 2020/21. 

d) Portfolio Budgets 

Additional funding is provided to cover inflation and service demand costs, as well as, corporate 

investments for major projects. This increase is offset by budget reductions delivered by proposed 

savings identified within portfolio’s strategic plans.  

The transfer of additional funds and/or the agreement to deliver savings receive political sign off to 

ensure the efficient use of funds in delivery of the Council’s priorities and statutory duties.  

People are the only portfolio to receive significant investment, with a net budget increase in 

funding of £17.9m for 2020/21. This investment demonstrates the Council’s ongoing commitment 

to social care and the most vulnerable residents in the city. 

The total level of in-year savings proposed by the Portfolios for 2020/21 is £14.7m and covers 

categories such as services effectiveness, cost reduction and staff savings. 

e) Workforce 

The potential workforce impact arising from the recommended savings proposals to set the 

2020/21 budget equates to a reduction of approximately 35 full time equivalent (FTE) posts. 

 
 

  

Page 54



 

  4 | P a g e  

 

4. Contents of the Capital Strategy  
 
The Capital Strategy first provides a succinct Executive Summary, setting out the broad budget 
position for next year and the following 5 years. It also sets out the brief background to each of the 
nine priority areas for investment.  
 
Section 2 then provides greater background and key facts on the Capital Programme, including 
how it is funded, our investment strategies and programme governance. 
 
Sections 3 – 11 then provide greater detail on each of the nine priority areas, setting out: 
 

 Background and context 

 Projects completed in 2019/20 

 Key current projects already in delivery 

 Potential priority areas / projects under consideration 

 Key challenges and how we are addressing them. 
 
The nine priority areas covered are: 
 

 Economic Growth 

 Transport 

 Housing growth 

 Housing investment 

 Love where you live 

 Green and open spaces 

 People: capital and growth 

 Heart of the City II 

 Essential compliance and maintenance.  
 
Appendix 1 provides information on the Corporate Investment Fund. Appendix 2 provides a full 
list of all projects, split by priority area.  

 
 

5. Short summary of the key messages 

a) Size of the capital programme 
 

The size of the proposed capital programme in 2020/21 is £176.4m: 
 
  

Economic growth £4.9m 

Transport £7,2m 

Housing growth £38.9m 

Housing investment £44.1m 

Love where you live £19.2m 

Green and open spaces £0.9m 

Page 55



 

  5 | P a g e  

 

People: capital and growth £5.4m 

Heart of the city II £53m 

Essential compliance and maintenance £1.4m 

ICT £1.4m 

 
The size of the proposed 5-year capital programme for 2020/21 to 2024/25 is £726.1m.  
These amounts represent headline figures for existing commitments within the Capital 
Programme and those currently within the approvals process. They do not, however, 
include allocations for potential pipeline projects which have not yet received approval. 

 

Economic growth £6.1m 

Transport £7.5m 

Housing growth £241.7m 

Housing investment £272.2m 

Love where you live £72.4m 

Green and open spaces £1.2m 

People: capital and growth £9.9m 

Heart of the city II £112.3m 

Essential compliance and maintenance £1.4m 

ICT £1.4m 

 

b) Capital Planning Principles 

 

 Capital planning is integrated into the Council’s overall strategic planning, 
ensuring capital activities are considered in relation to the Council’s overall 
corporate plans, its budget, its financial strategies and the Priorities set out in 
this Capital Strategy; 

 We maximise the external funding of capital investments wherever possible to 
maximise the availability of the Council’s scarce funds to support agreed 
activity, using our funds as ‘match’ funding to lever in external investment as 
much as we can; 

 Our capital investments are affordable, sustainable and prudent (ensuring 
compliance with the CIPFA Prudential Code); 

Page 56



 

  6 | P a g e  

 

 Our capital projects deliver value for money, by ensuring that our governance 
processes for the appraisal and approval of capital projects are robust and 
challenging; and 

 We ensure effective risk management through our governance, in accordance 
with best professional practice set out in the Treasury Management Code of 
Practice. 

c) Investment Strategy Principles 

 
Sheffield City Council will invest in Land and Property and provide loan/equity 
investments to third parties when: 

 

 The primary purpose of the investment is to benefit the people of Sheffield – 
for example through regeneration or redevelopment – rather than income 
generation for its own sake; 

 The investment supports the delivery of an existing Council policy or strategy;  

 The investment will take place within Sheffield City Council’s boundary (or 
immediate environs);  

 The investment adheres to clear criteria set for investment decisions and risk 
management both individually and cumulatively; 

 A full risk and return analysis of the investment has been completed and 
Members and senior officers are content that any risks are appropriate for the 
Council to take and proportionate to the potential benefit being delivered; 

 The investment has been taken through Sheffield City Council robust and 
transparent governance procedures and been subject to enhanced decision 
making and scrutiny prior to approval;  

 The investment would be subject to ongoing monitoring and management with 
reporting by exception to Full Council when necessary; and 

 The loan to a third party/equity investment is state aid compliant. 

d) Funding sources 

 
In descending order, these are: 
 

 HRA contribution to capital 

 Prudential borrowing 

 Government grants 

 Capital receipts 

 Other grants and contributions 

 CIL 
 

e) Future priorities 

 
Members are currently engaged in a ‘strategic commissioning’ process, which 
will inform our investment priorities over the coming years. We anticipate that 
this will be launched early in the new financial year, if not before. 

Page 57



 

  7 | P a g e  

 

6. Consultation and engagement 

We are committed to representing the needs and views of Sheffielders across all the 
city’s neighbourhoods and communities.  
 
This year, to inform, develop and enable citizens to have their say on options for the 
2020/21 budget, the Council ran a budget survey between 20 December 2019 and 
24 January 2020, in addition to wider engagement with citizens, and partner 
organisations over the last year.  This has helped us to ensure that our budget 
proposals have been shaped by people who may be affected by decisions taken as 
part of the budget, and that they have had an opportunity to put forward ideas for 
consideration. 
 
Over a 5 week period during December and January we ran an online survey that 
received 313 responses through the Council’s Citizen Space consultation portal 
(https://sheffield.citizenspace.com). 
 
The consultation on our 2020/21 budget proposals has taken place alongside the Big 
City Conversation. This has been a citywide conversation, talking to citizens from 
across the city’s neighbourhoods about the issues that matter most to them, what 
they would like to see change in Sheffield and how they want to get involved in the 
decisions that affect their communities and their city.  There is a clear link between 
how the City Council invests its budget and the issues and priorities that Sheffielders 
have talked to us about in the Big City Conversation. 
 
Key findings from the Budget Consultation: 

 As in the consultation on our 2019/20 budget, Adult Social Care, Children’s 
Social Care and Public Health/Education were highlighted as the top three 
priorities that the Council should fund more 

 Respondents cited leisure and culture, Environmental Health/Waste and 
Recycling, and Housing as areas where spending levels should stay the same 
Respondents were more likely to say that the Sheffield City Council should 
spend less on the cost of borrowing, central costs and housing benefits. The 
majority of respondents supported raising Council Tax. Of those that gave a 
reason as to why they felt that Council Tax should be raised, the most 
common reason given was that a slight increase would be worth it to have 
improved public services 

 Over half of respondents said that they did not want to see an increase in fees 
and charges and that the levels should stay the same. Many thought that fees 
and charges are high enough, that increases would be deemed unacceptable 
and likely to have most impact on poorer residents of the city 

 Respondents mainly suggested that it was important for the Council to invest 
in transport, green and open spaces and quality of life.  When asked why, 
people tended to suggest that investment is important to promote 
regeneration and the need for a fair and improved transport infrastructure to 
support both business and leisure. 

 Transport was seen as a very important area for investment, and noted that 
we need a far more accessible service which can run on an upgraded 

Page 58

https://sheffield.citizenspace.com/


 

  8 | P a g e  

 

infrastructure. Comments also noted that currently people who do not live in 
the city centre find it very difficult to travel across the city.  A proportion of 
people felt much more investment was needed to support more 
environmentally friendly travel for bikes and pedestrians. A good transport 
network was commented on as essential for the city’s regeneration along with 
regular and clean public transport. 

 We received an extensive range of comments and suggestions on how the 
Council could increase income, reduce costs or make savings to support the 
budget. In terms of raising income these included collecting owed Council Tax 
and raising Council Tax; increasing car parking charges and business rates; 
and lobbying central Government for more money. 

 
Further, as specific budget proposals are developed, services and portfolios across 
the council are required to produce Equality Impact Assessments (EIAs) on their 
budget proposals.  
 
This process ensures that services have fully considered any potential implications 
for their proposals for people in Sheffield (particularly the protected characteristics 
covered by the Equality Act 2010) and explain any mitigations that are necessary to 
avoid any unlawful discrimination that may result from the proposed changes. 
 
69 individual Equality Impact Assessments have been developed in support of the 
specific proposals in the budget and Appendix 9 of the Revenue Budget contains a 
summary of some of the key implications for Sheffield’s communities.  
 
The Council-wide EIA and the individual service EIAs on budget proposals that 
underpin it are focused on the impact on the protected characteristics in the Equality 
Act 2010. These are age, disability, race, marriage and civil partnership, sex, sexual 
orientation, religion/belief, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity. 
 
 

7. What does this mean for the people of Sheffield? 

Equality Impact Assessments (EIA) have been completed in relation to the elements 
of the budget already approved as part of the thematic approach and continue to be 
updated to reflect the impact upon Sheffield citizens. Any new savings / income 
generation proposals will be presented with accompanying EIA’s when approved.  

As set out above, we have undertaken engagement with the population on our 
budget proposals and Portfolios will have engagement with citizens and service 
users as part of the development of specific proposals.  

In setting its budget for 2020/21, the Revenue Budget recommends an increase in 
council tax, in order to protect essential services whilst allowing a balanced budget to 
be set. The Council acknowledges the financial impacts this can have on the City’s 
residents, and will therefore increase its Hardship Fund to support those least able to 
afford any increase. 

  

Page 59



 

  9 | P a g e  

 

8. Recommendations 
 
The Committee is asked to:  
 

a) provide its views and comments on the contents of the 2020/21 Revenue 
Budget and 2020 to 2025 Capital Strategy; 

 
  

Page 60



 

  10 | P a g e  

 

APPENDIX 1 Areas not covered by the 2020/21 Revenue Budget 
 
The following financial areas are subject to separate arrangements for review and 
approval. 
 
Capital 
 
Alongside the Revenue Budget the Council has been developing its capital strategy 
and key priorities for the forthcoming years, and setting its Capital Strategy for 2020 
to 2025. This Strategy is presented alongside the Revenue Budget.  

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
 
The HRA is a statutorily separate ring-fenced fund that accounts for the revenue 
income and expenditure relating to Council Housing. Its budget is therefore set 
separately to the Council’s main Revenue Budget, and does not affect the setting of 
Council Tax.  
 
Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) 
 
Funding for schools is ring-fenced and so it not included in the Council’s main 
Revenue Budget or in the setting of Council Tax. Spending for the forthcoming year 
is discussed and agreed with the Schools Forum and with the relevant Cabinet 
Members. 
 

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

FOREWORD 

Brexit and the 2019 General Election have dominated the national political agenda 

and provide a challenging backdrop to Sheffield City Council’s 2020/21 budget. 

There has been little Central Government focus on the domestic issues that matter 

to the people of Sheffield, such as the continuing and increasing pressures on our 

health and social care services, the climate emergency, and air quality issues. On 

the financial side, the Council has seen nine years of cuts to Central Government 

funding for local services.   

The announcement in the September 2019 Spending Review that, for the first time in 

ten years, additional funding for Local Government would made available from 

Central Government for 2020/21, was welcome. The additional funding means the 

Council does not have to make unplanned cuts to services in 2020/21. However, like 

the rest of Local Government, we continue to call for additional resources. The 

additional 2020/21 funding does address in-year cost pressures, but does nothing to 

reverse the cuts of the nine previous years. This is also only a one year settlement, 

with no certainty beyond 2020/21. The Council hopes that a settlement covering 

2021/22 to 2024/25 will be announced in summer 2020 to allow planning for services 

to take place over the medium term rather than year-to-year. 

Like all councils, Sheffield has faced rising cost and demand pressures for services 

to our most vulnerable citizens, in particular those who need children’s and adults’ 

social care. Social care services, many of which are preventative in nature, help 

people to live independently and safely in the community, and to leave hospital in a 

timely manner. It is generally accepted that community-based provision provides 

more positive outcomes for people, as well as being significantly less costly than 

hospital-based medical treatments. The lack of funding for preventative services puts 

additional operational and financial pressures on the NHS.  

In addition, the rising cost of social care for our elderly people across the nation, as 

our population ages, remains an issue that urgently needs addressing. It is accepted 

by most commentators that the current model for adult social care is unsustainable. 

However, despite various reviews over the past 20 years, to date no solution has 

emerged from Central Government, and one is urgently required. 

The Council is determined to maintain strong ambitions for the City, and not to 

retreat into providing only statutory services.  

We want to see our communities grow and be sustainable, so these communities 

meet the needs of existing and future residents, their children and other users, to 

contribute to a high quality of life and provide opportunity and choice, within a safer, 

stronger, cleaner environment. 

We can achieve this by decent, affordable homes, a diverse, inclusive and safe 

community, access to jobs, green spaces and services, and the chance to get 

Draf
t

Page 1
Page 63



 

 

engaged in and make a difference to a community in which people want to live and 

work now and tomorrow. 

We can achieve this in the Climate Emergency by making use of natural resources, 

enhancing the environment, promoting social cohesion and inclusion and 

strengthening our economic prosperity. 

We do not achieve these aims by doing short-term across-the-board cuts to budgets, 

which we have resisted throughout the last 10 years. Instead, the Council has 

maintained a programme of strategic changes to services, adopted new technology, 

focussed on the needs of each individual, and sought to provide streamlined 

services.  

Throughout, the Council has prioritised support for social care, using money 

released from savings, together with money raised locally from fees and charges and 

council tax increases, and some specific grants for social care from Central 

Government.  

The budget for the People Portfolio, which provides these care services, has risen 

from £198m in 2017/18 to £251m in 2020/21, enhancing the major principle of this 

Council of looking after the most vulnerable in our city.  

The Council continues to work with our partners across Sheffield, particularly in the 

NHS, to use these funds, and the funds managed jointly with the NHS, to strengthen 

our preventative and community based services to provide the best outcomes we 

can for the people of Sheffield. Our future financial sustainability relies on further 

progress in this area in the coming years. 

A balanced budget for 2020/21 is recommended to Council for approval, and 

sufficient reserves are being retained to protect essential services in the short-term if 

further Central Government funding reductions occur after 2020/21. However, the 

Council hopes that Central Government will maintain the approach to funding started 

in 2020/21 and provide additional funding from 2021/22 onwards. This will be 

essential if the Council is to protect and invest in the services that are key priorities 

for the people of Sheffield.  

The Council remains committed to providing the best possible services for the 

people of Sheffield, whilst maintaining a sustainable medium-term financial position.  

Terry Fox 

Deputy Leader and Finance Cabinet Member 

 

  

Draf
t

Page 2
Page 64



 

 

BUDGET REPORT 2020/21 

 

Contents 

 

List of Appendices ....................................................................................................... 4 

Purpose of the Report ................................................................................................. 5 

Medium Term Financial Outlook ................................................................................. 5 

Business Planning for 2019/20 .................................................................................... 7 

Section 25 Statutory Statement on Sustainability of Budget and Level of Reserves ... 8 

Formulation of the Budget for 2020/21 ...................................................................... 10 

Local Government Finance Settlement ..................................................................... 11 

Business Rates Income ............................................................................................. 12 

Council Tax income  .................................................................................................. 16 

Balances and Reserves  ........................................................................................... 19 

Corporate Expenditure .............................................................................................. 20 

Development of Portfolio Budgets ............................................................................. 21 

Savings Proposals for 2020/21 ................................................................................. 24 

Portfolio Revenue Spending Plans for 2020/21 ......................................................... 25 

Financing the 2020/21 Budget Requirement ............................................................. 28 

Precepts .................................................................................................................... 30 

Legal Advice .............................................................................................................. 31 

Levies ........................................................................................................................ 33 

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Budget ................................................................. 34 

Treasury Management Strategy ................................................................................ 34 

Financial Implications ................................................................................................ 35 

Workforce Impact ...................................................................................................... 35 

Pay Policy ................................................................................................................. 35 

Members’ Allowances ............................................................................................... 35 

Budget Consultation .................................................................................................. 37 

Equality Impact .......................................................................................................... 37 

Recommendations .................................................................................................... 50 

 
  

Draf
t

Page 3
Page 65



 

 

List of Appendices 
 

Reference Section Detail 

 

Page 

Number 

Appendix 1 

 

Portfolio Pressures 

 

53-54 

Appendix 2 

 

Portfolio Budget Savings Summaries 55-56 

Appendix 3 

 

Summary Budget for 2018/19 

3a: People Budget Summary 

3b: Place Budget Summary 

3c: Resources Budget Summary 

3d: Policy Performance & Communications Budget Summary 

 

57-58 

59-70 

71-76 

77-80 

81-84 

Appendix 4 

 

Reserves Strategy 85-92 

Appendix 5 

 

Risk Register 93-106 

Appendix 6  

 

Council Tax Determinations 107-108 

Appendix 7 

 

Treasury Management and Annual Investment Strategy, 

including The Prudential Code and Prudential Indicators 

 

109-146 

Appendix 8 

 

Pay Policy for 2018/19 147-154 

Appendix 9 Equality Impact Assessment 

 

155-208 

Appendix 10 Glossary of Terms 

 

209-212 Draf
t

Page 4
Page 66



 

 

Key messages 

 The October 2019 Medium Term Financial Analysis predicted an overall funding gap of 

approximately £35m between 2019/20 to 2022/23. More recent updates indicate this 

gap remains broadly the same for 2020/21 to 2023/24.  

 Funding uncertainty continues to hamper effective budget planning. 

Growth in demand for services and cost inflation continues to outstrip additional funding 

available from Government or local taxation over the medium term. 

 

2020/21 REVENUE BUDGET 

REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND THE EXECUTIVE 

DIRECTOR, RESOURCES 

 

 

Purpose of the Report 

1. The purpose of this report is to:  

 approve the City Council’s revenue budget for 2020/21, including the 

position on reserves and balances; 

 approve a 2020/21 Council Tax for the City Council; and 

 note the levies and precepts made on the City Council by other 

authorities. 
 

Medium Term Financial Outlook 

2. This budget has been set in the context of the likely resources available and 

calls on those resources over the medium term to ensure sustainability. The 

Medium Term Financial Analysis (MTFA), published in October 2019, set out 

the Council’s latest financial forecast for the period 2020/21 to 2023/24.  

3. The Council’s Social Care services continue to experience significant cost and 

demand pressures which, even with additional social care funding announced 

in the 2019 Spending Round, completely outstrip growth in local taxation. 

Even after significant proposed portfolio savings and mitigating actions the net 

gap still to find stands at approximately £35m over the MTFA period.  

4. The following graph, Figure 1, shows the forecast net gap as per the 

published MTFA (October 2019), and the latest forecast. The gap remains 

broadly unchanged overall, despite later actions to balance the 20/21 budget, 

Draf
t

Page 5
Page 67



 

 

as these actions have been counter-balanced by demand growth in later 

years  

Figure 1 

 

Reform to Local Government funding 

5. The Council’s financial planning continues to be hampered by short term 

Spending Review announcements by Central Government. The Final 

Settlement announced on the 6th February 2020 is no different as it only 

confirms funding for 2020/21. There was welcome news that previous years’ 

one-off funding will be added to the baseline and additional funding for social 

care has been allocated, but effective planning beyond 2020/21 is not 

possible, which is not conducive to delivery of long-term value for money 

solutions. 

6. In addition to the uncertainty created by short-term funding announcements, 

there are currently two Government consultations underway which will change 

the way Local Government is funded in future in total, and could also 

significantly affect the distribution of these funds. These consultations are 

changes to the Business Rates Retention scheme and the Fair Funding 

Review. 

7. Under previously announced Government plans, the assumed level of 

business rates retained by Local Authorities was due to be increased from 

50% to 75% from 2020/21. However this change has been delayed until 

2021/22 and, on current plans, it will be included in the 2020 Spending 

Review. 

8. The Council continues to assume that any growth in retained rates would be 

matched by reductions in Government grants – in effect; the net increase in 

Draf
t

Page 6
Page 68



 

 

Key messages 

 The budget gap identified for 2020/21 (additional costs - less grant income + local 

taxation) needs to be met by service savings. 

 SCC will focus on delivering savings via transformative strategic changes in discrete 

areas. 

 

finances would be nil. This assumption is consistent with the views of public 

commentators such as the ‘Public Finance’ publication, and by Government 

comments that the change will be “fiscally neutral”. 

9. In addition, the Ministry for Housing, Communities & Local Government 

(MHCLG) is still reviewing the formula that determines baseline funding levels 

for all local authorities, the Fair Funding Review. This review was also due for 

completion during 2019, and should have formed part of the Council’s 

settlement for 2020/21, but it has also been delayed to 2021/22.  

10. The results of this Review are uncertain for the Council and further 

consultations are expected in 2020. There are potential downsides if the parts 

of the formula that benefit the Council (e.g. the funding for population density) 

are, in the round, decreased, in favour of less-advantageous measures to 

Sheffield. There are also potential upsides, in so far as re-baselining has the 

chance to recognise better our funding needs (i.e. our social care pressures 

and level of deprivation).   

11. For the reasons set out above, we continue to assume the impacts will be 

fiscally neutral, and that the impact will simply slip by one year to 2021/22. 

Therefore no increase or reduction to central government funding has been 

assumed from 2021/22 onwards. This assumption is a key uncertainty and 

risk for the Council going forward.  

Business Planning for 2020/21 

12. The Council’s approach to managing its financial position in the medium term 

is controlled through the Business Planning process. This requires Services 

and Portfolios to develop Business Implementation Plans (BIP’s), which show 

what activities will be provided in 2020/21 for a specified cash limited budget. 

The Business Planning process for 2020/21 began before the consideration of 

the MTFA report by Cabinet in October 2019. 

13. As reported in the MTFA and detailed above, budget pressures such as 

contract inflation and the increasing demand for services continue to outstrip 

available resources over the medium term. Consequently budget savings and 

Draf
t

Page 7
Page 69



 

 

Key messages 

The Section151 Officer (the Executive Director of Resources) has reviewed the 

adequacy of reserves and the robustness of the estimates behind calculating the budget 

requirement in line with the requirement under Section 25 of the Local Government Act 

2003 

 

service efficiencies will have to be delivered during 2020/21 and beyond in 

order to achieve a balanced budget and protect our front-line services. 

14. For 2020/21, we have continued the approach adopted in the previous two 

years of concentrating on finding savings from a smaller number of discrete 

areas and continuing a four-year programme of transformative strategic 

changes in individual services. This programme is supplemented by a 

Council-wide and continuing search for lower level “tactical” reductions in 

expenditure, where we identify that there is scope for further efficiencies in 

individual services.  

Section 25 Statutory Statement on Sustainability of Budget and 

Level of Reserves  

15. The Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy (CIPFA) are due to 

publish the Financial Management Code in the coming year, including the 

Financial Management Framework as a way of self-assessing compliance 

with the Code. Part of the Framework reinforces the requirement under 

Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 for the Section151 Officer (the 

Executive Director of Resources) to review the adequacy of reserves and the 

robustness of the estimates behind calculating the budget requirement. This 

section specifically addresses this requirement, with relevant data referenced 

elsewhere within this Report. 

The adequacy of reserves 

16. Appendix 4 details the Council’s current reserves and balances, and the 

overall strategy for the coming years. Holding reserves is part of good 

financial management for any organisation, and the Council holds reserves 

mostly as a provision against future liabilities. The Council also holds 

unearmarked reserves to deal with unknown emergencies, and the amount of 

this (£12.6m) benchmarks as low compared to other authorities. 

17. As above at Paragraph 2, the Council maintains a Medium Financial Strategy 

(MTFA) to assess the risks within the Council’s financial position. The 2019/20 

Budget was unusual in that it contained a planned draw from reserves of 

£11.2m to avoid making further cuts to front line services. This was agreed as 

Draf
t

Page 8
Page 70



 

 

a one-off borrowing from reserves that would be repaid within future budgets 

within the 4-year term of the MTFA. 

18. Following the Spending Round (announced by the Chancellor in October) the 

Council expects to receive a funding uplift of approximately £30m from a mix 

of grant funding and increases to local taxation. This figure has been 

confirmed within the Final Settlement. This Budget assumes a repayment of 

the £11.2m to reserves during 2020/21, and the remainder of the uplift will 

fund increases in portfolio expenditure – mainly within social care. 

19. This section, read together with Appendix 4, satisfies the requirement to 

review reserves balances and confirms them as adequate in the medium 

term. However, there are three key factors at play that could undermine the 

sustainability of future budgets.  

20. The three key factors are: 

 The Council’s own ability to continue to deliver savings and manage 

increased pressures. The Council has an excellent track record of delivery, 

but nine years of reductions make it harder every year to achieve more;  

 the lack of a more stable funding regime from Central Government that 

recognises the pressures in social care linked to the NHS Long Term Plan; 

and 

 failure to achieve more significant savings from working with our partners in 

the local NHS than we have so far been able to do, linked to improving 

outcomes for the people of Sheffield from better integrated services. 

Achieving improvements in outcomes whilst making savings should be 

possible. 

21. Only one of these factors is fully within the Council’s control. 

The robustness of estimates behind the budget requirement 

22. This Report proposes a budget requirement of £420.2m, and a Band D 

Council Tax charge of £1,621.40 for the year 2020/21. The calculations 

behind these figures are reported principally within Appendix 6, though the 

calculations are based on estimates from a number of sources that are also 

published within this Report. The publication and inclusion of relevant 

estimates within this document stands as confirmation of their robustness. 

The Council has a proven track of record of establishing realistic and robust 

balanced budgets, relying on its specialist functions of business and financial 

planning. 

Draf
t

Page 9
Page 71



 

 

Key messages 

The Council is required by statute to set a balanced budget. There are a number of 

stages involved in formulating a balanced budget, these include: 

 The assessment of likely increases or reductions to income sources such as 

Central Government grants, Council Tax and Business Rates. 

 Assessment of increased expenditure for both Corporate funded items and cost 

pressures within Portfolios resulting from increased demand for services and 

cost inflation. 

 The resulting Budget Gap from the above two stages has to be met by delivery 

of budget savings. Should the level of savings be insufficient to meet this Gap, 

the Council’s reserves have to be used. £11.2m of reserves were used to fund 

the 2019/20 budget Gap, which is unsustainable. There is no planned use of 

reserves for balance the 2020/21 budget. 

The following sections provide details of the assessments undertaken and the 

processes followed to ensure the 2020/21 budget is balanced. 

 

 The Business Planning Process is described above at Paragraph 12, and 

informs the Portfolio Spending Plans beginning at Paragraph 711. 

 The Council’s other main sources of income taken in to account when setting 

council tax retained Business Rates and specific grant funding can be subject 

to considerable variation year on year. The Business Rate position is 

discussed at Paragraph 27, and the grant funding position is discussed at 

Paragraph 26.  

23. The Council maintains a Risk Register to assess the main financial risks 

facing the Council. In doing so, the Council maintains an awareness of issues 

that would greatly prejudice the accuracy of the estimates in the Budget. This 

Register is published in its entirety in Appendix 5, and reviewed throughout 

the year. 

Formulation of the Budget for 2020/21 

 

24. In formulating the Budget for 2020/21, there are a number of adjustments that 

will need to be made to reflect variations in costs and resources, some of 

which are outside of the control of the Council, whilst others reflect the 

continuation of current Council policy.  The following sections show those 

                                            

 
1
 The full Business Implementation Plans (BIPS) are published online here 

https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/home/your-city-council/budget-spending.html;. 

Draf
t

Page 10
Page 72

https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/home/your-city-council/budget-spending.html


 

 

Key messages 

The annual Local Government Finance Settlement announced on the 6th February 

2020 confirmed the financial settlement allocations from Central Government for the 

year 2020/21. 

This confirmed, among other things, various grants payable to the Council for the year 

and levels of Business Rates funding to be retained locally, as well as the referendum 

threshold for Council Tax. 

 

items that have been included in the proposed budget, along with a summary 

graph (Figure 2) which demonstrates how the Council’s revenue budget for 

2020/21 has been balanced. 

Figure 2 

 

Local Government Finance Settlement 

 

25. The Government announced details of the Provisional Local Government 

Finance Settlement for 2020/21 on 20th December 2019, with the Final 

Settlement allocations presented the House of Commons on the 6th February 

2020.   

Draf
t

Page 11
Page 73



 

 

Key messages 

The Council retains 49% of business rates collected within the authority (remainder 

paid to Government and SY Fire). 

The Council also receives grant income, to top up this income to the level of a set 

‘baseline’ need. 

For 2020/21, the Council will receive £162.0m income from business rates, made up of 

£103.8m retained rates and £58.2m of grant income. This is £8.6m more than received 

in 2019/20 

 

26. Below is a summary of the key points set out in the Final Settlement which 

impact on the 2020/21 budget for the Council:   

 Revenue Support Grant (RSG) for Sheffield will increase in 2020/21 by 

around £0.6m or 1.6% in line with CPI as at September 2019. 

 Additional Social Care Support Grant of £1 billion for 2020-21 was 

announced during the Autumn Spending Round and confirmed in the 

Final Settlement. Sheffield’s share of this funding is £12.2m and is in 

addition to the £4.6m Adult Social Care Grant awarded in 2019/20 which 

now forms part of the baseline funding. 

 Confirmation that SCC’s £2.7m share of the Winter Pressures Grant 

awarded in 2019-20 will be continued and rolled into the Better Care 

Fund for 2020/21. This funding will remain in the funding baselines going 

forward with the ring-fence removed, which is in-line with our forecast 

assumptions, so provides no additional resources.  

 The overall referendum trigger for Council Tax increases has been 

increased to 4%, to accommodate authorities’ ability to raise a ‘Social 

Care Precept’ of up to 2% (an additional flexibility of 1% compared to 

2019/20). The threshold to increase Core Council Tax before a 

referendum is triggered has reduced from 2.99% in 2019/20 to 1.99% for 

2020/21. Full details of the anticipated increase to Council Tax income 

for 2020/21 are reported later in this report. 

 Full details of the forecast increase to Business Rates income including 

the impact of the Local Government Finance Settlement are detailed in 

the following section.  

Business Rates Income  

 

27. In April 2013 the Government introduced the Business Rates Retention 

scheme. As a result the Council collects all of the business rates in its area, 

Draf
t

Page 12
Page 74



 

 

but it is only allowed to retain a portion (49%). The remaining portion is paid 

over to Government (50%) and South Yorkshire Fire Authority (1%).  The 

Government announced in December 2017 that the proportion of business 

rates to be retained locally will increase to 75% from 2020/21, however in 

September 2019, this increase was delayed until 2021/22. 

28. The basis for the Business Rates estimate is the valuation list issued by the 

Valuation Office Agency (VOA) in December 2019. Using this list it is 

estimated that the number of business premises in Sheffield that are liable for 

business rates is 19,078 (19,003 as at December 2018) with an aggregate 

rateable value of £554.5m (£548.9m as at  December 2018). These figures 

include two parts of the city where special rules apply. 

 

Sheffield Retail Quarter and Enterprise Zone  

29. As shown in the table below, the designated areas referred to as the Sheffield 

Retail Quarter and the Enterprise Zone account for less than 2% of the 

aggregate rateable value of the city.  However, both areas are significant 

because any growth in business rates above the “baseline” established in 

2013/14 can be retained in full locally, rather than half being repaid to 

Government. On the NNDR1, they are called “Designated Areas”. 

Table 1 

  £m   

Sheffield Retail Quarter  4.6 0.8% 

Enterprise Zone 4.9 0.9% 

Rest of Sheffield 545.0 98.3% 

Total 554.5 100% 

 

30. The Business Rates growth above baseline for the Sheffield Retail Quarter 

and Enterprise Zone are forecast to be £987k and £547k respectively. 

 

Calculating the Business Rates Estimate for 2020/21 

31. Based on the Rating List and the 2020/21 rating multiplier (the “rate 

poundage”, which is set by Government) produces a gross business rate 

estimated income (the “Gross Rate Yield”) of £274.9m (£262.7m in 2019/20).  

This is the most realistic estimate of the expected level of income before any 

adjustments.  There are however a number of deductions from this figure: 

Draf
t

Page 13
Page 75



 

 

 Reliefs: there are a number of reliefs against business rates liability 

including small business rates relief, charitable relief, deductions for 

empty properties and partly occupied premises.  It is estimated that the 

total value of these reliefs and deductions will amount to approximately 

£51.3m (£49.3m in 2019/20). There has been an increase in reliefs 

relating to Empty Property Relief (£1.5m) and Charitable Relief (£0.9m) 

offset by small changes to other reliefs which amount to £2.0m in total. 

Items such as Charitable relief have increased in line with inflation 

however Empty property relief is forecast to increase due to current 

market conditions.   

 Losses and costs of collection: this includes an estimate of the bad and 

doubtful debts in 2020/21, the potential legal and other recovery costs.  

Using the assumptions set out in Government guidance, the estimated 

figure is £4.4m (£4.3m in 2019/20). 

32. A further deduction is required relating to refunds of business rates due to 

successful appeals.  Business ratepayers can seek an alteration to the 

rateable value of a property by appealing to the Valuation Office Agency 

(VOA). A prudent provision has been established to mitigate the impact of any 

appeals that are outstanding. 

 

Overall Business Rates Estimate for 2020/21 

33. Based on assumptions relating to reliefs and appeals, it is estimated that the 

total net business rates for Sheffield will amount to £211.5m in 2020/21 

(£201.5m in 2019/20). Business Rate income is taken to the Council’s 

Collection Fund, where the appropriations are made.  The estimated 

Collection Fund for 2020/21, relating to business rates, is shown below: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Draf
t

Page 14
Page 76



 

 

Table 2 

 

 

34. The estimated 49% of net business rates for Sheffield amounts to £102.8m in 

2020/21 (£98.8m for 2019/20).  The designated areas figure includes £984k 

which relates to Sheffield City Council. It is proposed that the Council budget 

for 2020/21 includes both of these figures as its share of business rates 

income.  

Table 3 

Total Income from Business Rates – Sheffield Share 

 

2019/20 2020/21 Variance 

 

£'000 £'000 £'000 

Net Business Rates 98,826 102,844 4,018 

Designated Area Business Rates (NDD) 515 984 469 

Business Rates Top Up Grant 42,529 43,222 693 

S31 Grant for Small Business Rates Relief 6,841 6,852 11 

S31 Grant for Business Rate Inflation Cap (BRIC) 3,261 5,834 2,573 

S31 Grant for Retail Relief Scheme 1,518 2,312 794 

Total Income from Business Rates 153,490 162,048 8,558 

 

2019/20 2020/21

262,699 Gross Business Rates income yield 274,938

-49,348 LESS Estimated Reliefs -52,786

-4,295 Losses in Collection -4,450

-7,525 Losses on Appeals re Current Year Bills -7,666

201,531 Net Estimated Business Rates 210,036

Appropriation of net business rates:

98,826 Sheffield City Council 102,844

1,989 SY Fire Authority 2,070

99,472 Government 103,518

1,244 Designated Areas 1,604

201,531 210,036

Collection Fund - Business Rates Estimate for 2020/21

Draf
t

Page 15
Page 77



 

 

Key messages 

Subject to Council approval, the Council Tax rate will increase by 3.99%. This will be 

1.99% for the Core Council Tax and 2% for the Adult Social Care Precept. 

There are 140,243.94 Band D equivalent properties, an increase of 1.1% from 2019/20 

(table 4, below). 

The Council will therefore receive £227.4m of income via Council Tax, which is £11.1m 

greater than 2019/20 

This Report recommends the 3.99% increase to Council Tax, and the increased levy on 

long-term empty properties (pars 46-48 below). 

 

35. The net business rates income for 2020/21 has increased by £4.0m from 

2019/20 figures. This is primarily due to anticipated retail developments which 

would have seen an initial decrease in business rate income not progressing 

in line with the expected timetable.  

36. The net business rates income is also impacted on by Government policy on 

rates relief. The increases in Small Business Rates Relief in 2017/18 and the 

introduction of the Retail Relief Scheme for 2019/20 have significantly 

reduced the level of Net Business Rates income. We do however receive 

government compensation through Section 31 grants.  

37. The Government introduced the Localism Act in 2011 with the aim of 

devolving decision making powers from Central Government to Local 

Authorities. The increased use of the rate reliefs to administer Government 

Policy and alter hereditaments business rates bills does not see us 

disadvantaged financially, however, it does see us more reliant on grant 

income and is contrary to the Localism Act.   

38. The increases to the Business Rates Top-up Grant, Retail Relief and Small 

Business Rates Relief are primarily inflationary. The Business Rates Inflation 

Cap increase is mainly due to recognising compensation income following 

confirmation that we are to be fully reimbursed for the government policy 

change to CPI from RPI as the inflationary multiplier. The changes detailed 

above were confirmed as part of the Final Settlement.  

Council Tax income  

 

Council Tax base for 2020/21 

39. It is proposed to set a Council Tax Requirement of £207.6m for 2020/21 

based on a 1.99% increase.  There is also an option provided by the 

Draf
t

Page 16
Page 78



 

 

Government to apply an additional 2% to the Adult Social Care Precept for 

2020/21. If taken, the total raised from the Adult Social Care precept for 

2020/21 will be £19.8m. This brings the total Council Tax Requirement to 

£227.4m, an £11.1m increase from 2019/20, and results in a Band D Council 

Tax of £1,621.40.   

40. This includes a determination that the Council Tax base – the number of 

properties on which a tax can be charged – will be 140,243.94 Band D 

equivalent properties.  This represents an increase in the tax base of 1.1% 

compared to the previous year. 

41. The Council recognises that any increase in Council Tax can impact on 

vulnerable people and families. To mitigate the increase in Council Tax, we 

will increase the Council Tax Hardship Fund by £200k in 2020/21. The 

Hardship Fund will total £1.6m and is reviewed on an annual basis.  

42. The phrase “Band D equivalent properties” is used throughout this report 

because Band D is used by the Government as the standard for comparing 

Council Tax levels, between and across local authorities.  This measure is not 

affected by the varying distribution of properties in bands that can be found 

across authorities.  A definition of Council Tax can be found in Appendix 10. 

43. A summary of the Council Tax levels by band can be found in Table 7 in the 

‘Financing the 2020/21 Budget Requirement’ section of this report. Further 

details can also be found in Appendix 6. 

44. The practice has been to establish a prudent estimated in year collection rate 

as part of the tax base calculations.  For tax base setting purposes, a 

collection rate of 95.5% has been assumed (although we still intend to collect 

99% over the long term). This collection rate remains unchanged from 

2019/20. The collection rate is continuously monitored to ensure that it 

accurately reflects the current trends on collection. 

45. The Council Tax Base for 2020/21 has therefore been determined as 

140,243.94 Band D equivalent properties, as shown in Table 4 below.  This is 

an increase of 1,499.52 properties (or 1.1%) compared to 2019/20 and will 

result in an increase in Council Tax income of £11.1m assuming a 1.99% 

increase in Band D Council Tax and a 2% increase in the Social Care 

Precept. Of the £11.1m increase, £2.3m is as a result of the net increase in 

Band D equivalent properties, £4.4m is due to the proposed 1.99% increase in 

Band D Council Tax and £4.4m is as a result of the 2% Adult Social Care 

Precept. 

 

Draf
t

Page 17
Page 79



 

 

Table 4 

 

 

Long Term Empty (LTE) premium 

46. In Sheffield, under amendments to the Local Government Finance Act 1992, 

dwellings that are liable for Council Tax, and are a Long Term Empty 

Dwelling, which is a dwelling that has been continuously unoccupied and 

substantially unfurnished for a period of 2 or more years, are charged an 

additional 100% Council Tax. This is known as the Long Term Empty (LTE) 

premium. The intention behind this additional charge is to encourage owners 

of empty dwellings to bring them into use, so as to improve the housing 

supply, locally and nationally. 

47. Further, arising from amendments to the Local Government Finance Act 1992, 

which come into force 1 April 2020, Local Authorities from that date may 

increase the LTE premium from 100% to 200% in respect of all dwellings that 

have been Long Term Empty Dwellings for a period of 5 years or more.  

48. For the purpose of encouraging owners of Long Term Empty Dwellings within 

Sheffield to bring them back into use, so as to improve the housing supply; it 

is proposed that the LTE premium is amended, in line with the amended 

legislation that comes into force 1 April 2020. It is therefore proposed that with 

effect from 1 April 2020, dwellings that have been a Long Term Empty 

Dwelling for a period of less than 5 years shall be subject to a LTE premium of 

100% and dwellings that have been a Long Term Empty Dwelling for at least 

5 years shall be subject to a LTE premium of 200%.  

 

 

Band D 

equivalent 

number of 

properties

Council Tax Base of Band D equivalent properties for 2019/20 138,744.42

Additional properties in 2019/20 2,234.51

Reduction in properties entitled to CTSS 366.93

Increase in number of properties entitled to discounts / exemptions -1,101.92

Council Tax Base of Band D equivalent properties for 2020/21 140,243.94

Draf
t

Page 18
Page 80



 

 

Key messages 

£10.9m reduction in use of reserves when compared to 2019/20, mainly due to the 

reversal of the unsustainable £11.2m draw from reserves required to balance the 

previous year’s budget. 

Attached to this report as Appendix 4 is the Councils Reserves Strategy showing 

details of the reserves held and planned uses.  

 

Council Tax referenda 

49. The Localism Act 2011 introduced the requirement for a local authority to 

determine whether its Council Tax for a financial year is excessive.  If the 

Council Tax were to be considered excessive, a referendum is required in 

respect of that amount. 

50. The principles upon which a Council Tax is considered to be excessive are 

determined by the Secretary of State for Housing, Communities and Local 

Government. The 2020/21 Local Government Finance Settlement announced 

that an authority’s relative basic amount of Council Tax for 2020-21 is 

excessive if the authority’s relevant basic amount of Council Tax for 2020-21 

is 2% more than its relevant basic amount of Council Tax for 2019/20 and that 

its Adult Social Care precept increase for 2020-21 is greater than 2% of the 

relevant basic amount of Council Tax for 2019/20. This report does not 

recommend any increases that would trigger a referendum. 

Balances and Reserves  

51. There is a planned £10.9m reduction in the use of reserves for 2020/21 when 

compared to 2019/20, as set out in Figure 2 above. This reduction is the result 

of removing the draw on reserves required to balance the 2019/20 budget. 

52. The overall movement on reserves is a planned £7.1m contribution to 

reserves, which is predominantly due to the repayment of £8.7m of reserves 

used to fund the pensions’ deficit prepayment during 2016/17.  

53. The Executive Director of Resources has reviewed the position relating to 

Reserves and has produced a Reserves Strategy which is attached at 

Appendix 4.  This sets out the estimated requirement for Reserves to meet 

expenditure in 2020/21, and/or smooth costs in future years, for various 

purposes and explains the purpose of each earmarked reserve.  This report 

also includes the statutory statement (section above) from the Executive 

Director on the sustainability of reserves and the budget. 

Draf
t

Page 19
Page 81



 

 

Key messages 

There a number of council wide or major programmes and projects funded centrally. 

Examples include the Heart of the City 2 development and new Customer Experience 

programme.  

The increased cost of these corporately funded items is £9.1m for 2020/21. 

Corporate Expenditure  

54. There are a number of proposed additions to the budget for 2020/21,which 

are to be funded corporately, the most significant of which are as follows: 

 Heart of the City 2 Capital Financing (HotC2) (£0.9m): This £0.9m is in 

addition to the existing £4.6m bringing the total cost to £5.5m.The costs 

are split between the interest of £2.8m and MRP of £2.7m in relation to 

the development costs of Blocks D, E, F and G1. These costs are to be 

financed via additional rental and business rates income generated by 

the scheme.  

 Streets Ahead (£0.8m): the planned Council investment in the Streets 

Ahead programme will increase by £0.8m as planned.  This consists of 

contract inflation of £1.1m and a reduction in repayments to borrowing 

for the programme of £0.3m.  

 Customer Experience Programme (£1.5m): The Council has an existing 

Customer Experience Strategy which aims to make continual 

improvements to the services we provide to all of our residents. In 2019 

we launched a 6 week Customer Survey – the first in over 4 years and 

received over 2500 responses (online and face to face). The findings 

suggest that whilst we have made some progress in improving our 

customers experience we still have a way to go and are not consistently 

meeting customer expectation or need. To address this we need to be 

more ambitious than ever in order to meet the needs of our customers 

and give them the experience we want them to have and we know that 

they deserve. The scale of change is significant and must reach all parts 

of our organisation - people, process, information and technology.  This 

will require additional investment of up to £3.0m over a two to three year 

period.  

 Sheffield International Venues (SIV) (£1.3m). The Month 6 Revenue 

Budget Monitoring report detailed that the Council and SCT have been 

working to reduce the subsidies paid to support SCT’s operations. A 

business plan was received from SCT that proposed to move to a zero 

Draf
t

Page 20
Page 82



 

 

Key messages 

Additional funding is provided to cover inflation and service demand costs, as well as, 

corporate investments for major projects. This increase is offset by budget reductions 

delivered by proposed savings identified within portfolio’s strategic plans.  

The transfer of additional funds and/or the agreement to deliver savings receive 

political sign off to ensure the efficient use of funds in delivery of the Council priorities 

and statutory duties.  

People are the only portfolio to receive significant investment with a net budget 

increase in funding of £17.9m for 2020/21. This demonstrates the Council’s ongoing 

commitment to social care and the most vulnerable residents in the city. 

subsidy by 19/20. This relied heavily on plans to grow their income base. 

This proposal was agreed, but is not being achieved by SCT, with 

deficits over the last few years averaging £2.8m and expected to 

continue at this level. The anticipated shortfall identified, and provided 

for, during the 2019/20 budget process was £1.5m. In order to meet the 

amended forecast shortfall of £2.8m, £1.3m of additional funding is 

needed for 2020/21. 

 Pay strategy (£3.4m): this covers the expected costs of staff salary 

increments for 2020/21. This figure excludes a 2% cost of living increase 

covered within Portfolio pressures that equates to approximately £3.7m. 

 

Development of Portfolio Budgets 

 

55. The following table (Table 5) shows how the portfolio budgets are proposed to 

change from 2019/20 to 2020/21. The three main reasons for changes to 

portfolio budgets are: 

 Pressures £29.7m – further details can be found in both Appendix 1 as 

well as the budget implementation plans at the following link: 

https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/home/your-city-council/budget-

spending.html;  

 Savings £14.7m – further details can be found in the Savings Summary 

in Appendix 2 of this report and /or the budget implementation plans at 

the following link:  https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/home/your-city-

council/budget-spending.html; 

 Other movements (£4.1m net increase) – virements from corporate items 

to Portfolios, mainly in relation to corporately funded contract inflation on 

Draf
t

Page 21
Page 83

https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/home/your-city-council/budget-spending.html
https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/home/your-city-council/budget-spending.html
https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/home/your-city-council/budget-spending.html
https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/home/your-city-council/budget-spending.html


 

 

Streets Ahead contract of £1.1m and pay strategy of £3.4m, offset by the 

anticipated income of £1.0m in relation to HotC2 rental income.   

Table 5 

  

 

Note Appendix 3 will reconcile between the figure above, and the Net Budget 

requirement of £420m shown in paragraph 22 

56. The figures in Table 5 demonstrate that, subject to Full Council approval, the 

People Portfolios with its social care responsibilities will see significant 

investment of £17.9m. This is the third successive year of investment totalling 

approximately £53m. Figure 3 below demonstrates this ongoing commitment 

to social care and the impact on other service of this prioritisation. 

Figure 3. 

 

57. The net £17.9m increase in the People portfolio budget understates the scale 

of the challenge facing the Council’s social care services and is also 

Adjusted Other Original

Budget Pressures Savings Movements Budget

2019/20 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21 2020/21

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Portfolio budgets:

People 232,655 27,689 (12,561) 2,799 250,582

Place 145,423 1,096 (1,257) 1,344 146,606

Policy Performance and Communications 2,195 90 (90) (37) 2,158

Resources 39,747 789 (790) (42) 39,704

420,020 29,664 (14,698) 4,064 439,050

Draf
t

Page 22
Page 84



 

 

predicated upon the Portfolio’s ability to deliver £12.6m worth of savings for 

2020/21.  

58. This level of additional funding has only been possible via a combination of an 

increase in the Social Care Grant of £12.2m and the Council’s difficult 

decision to increase council tax, including the Adult Social Care precept. The 

Council has had to balance the extra costs to Sheffield taxpayers from the 

increase, with the need to protect its social care services to its most 

vulnerable residents. 

59. It will be vital that this additional investment allows the People portfolio to 

continue its implementation of the approved recovery plans (details included 

in the Portfolio Spend Revenue Plans section below) to drive down costs and 

manage demand.  

60. There is however a significant risk around the impact of any delays in or non-

delivery of the aforementioned recovery plans and the significant savings 

proposed in this budget. The increasing demand pressures on social care, 

both adults and children’s, are widely recognised, not just in Sheffield, but 

across the country. As well as lobbying for improved funding, SCC will need to 

remain resolute in delivering its strategic plans but also flexible in response to 

new or changing demands.    

61. Whilst increased funds have been provided by Government for Social Care 

(through the Social Care Grant) for 2020/21, these additional funds will not 

compensate for the larger national funding cuts imposed over the previous 

decade.  

62. To date, all additional funding provided for social care has been focussed on 

adult social care and in particular on NHS related services for older people 

and delayed discharges from hospital. However growth in demand for 

Children’s social care services has significantly increased over recent years 

and is quickly becoming acknowledged as the most significant financial risk 

amongst upper tier Local Authorities.  

63. Additional Social Care Grant funding will help support investment in these 

areas. However, it will not be sufficient to fund the forecast increase in 

demand for services in the coming years. Additional focused resources are 

needed from Central Government to adequately protect these services and 

the Children supported by them. 

64. The historic and current underfunding of Children’s social care has and will 

continue to result in the diversion of budget from other council services to 

ensure effective service delivery and transformation.   

Draf
t

Page 23
Page 85



 

 

Key messages 

The total level of savings proposed by the Portfolios for 2020/21 is £14.7m and 

covers categories such as services effectiveness, cost reduction and staff savings.  

65. This transfer of funds along with allocations from the Social Care Grant have 

enabled an increase in funding to Children’s Services to support: 

 new initiatives and support for families, including preventative measures 

such as reducing referrals to social care and the number of children 

entering the care system by delivering earlier support and other 

programmes;   

 the redesigning of services to ensure the right resources are available to 

children taken into care: and 

 performance initiatives to ensure that the service has the right number of 

appropriately trained staff to improve the quality of service delivery. 

66. Should no new investment from Central Government be forthcoming after 

2020/21 and into the medium term, the Service is likely to become reliant on 

temporary funding sources such as reserves.  

67. The Place Portfolio has pressures of £1.1m for 2020/21, which are mainly the 

result of contract inflation and pay pressures. However, the Portfolio has been 

able to commit to additional savings of £1.3m, via a combination of reducing 

costs by doing things differently and increasing fees and charges to reflect the 

actual cost of the service. This will facilitate a £0.2m budget reduction for the 

portfolio.    

68. Resources portfolio has been able to mitigate its 2020/21 pressures to deliver 

a balanced budget. The main pressures facing the Resources portfolio relate 

to pay inflation of £0.6m and have been mitigated predominantly via staff 

savings resulting from service restructures, reductions in pension costs and a 

slight increase in income generation targets.  

Savings Proposals for 2020/21 

69. Discussions with Members have taken place since the consideration of the 

MTFA, to produce a set of proposals that will achieve a balanced budget. The 

proposals set out in this report form the basis of a balanced budget and a 

recommendation to Council on 4th March 2020. The total amount of Portfolio 

savings are £14.7m. If any of these proposals were not to be approved by 

Council then alternative compensating savings would need to be identified 

and recommended to Council.  

Draf
t

Page 24
Page 86



 

 

Key messages 

Each Portfolio develops a Revenue Spending Plan, which provides a high level 

summary on how funding will be spent to deliver service priorities. These are set in 

line with the Councils’ overarching priorities and ensure the Fairness principles are 

adhered to.  These plans also include a high level summary of the savings to be 

delivered for 2020/21 

 

70. The graphs below display the level of savings by portfolio but also by 

category. 

Figure.4      Figure. 5 

 

Portfolio Revenue Spending Plans for 2020/21 

 

71. Attached at Appendix 3a to 3d are the Portfolio Revenue Spending Plans, 

which include high level summaries of the Portfolio savings proposals required 

to deliver the £14.7m in 2020/21.  These plans set out the future direction of 

the Portfolio’s in meeting the Councils’ priorities but also how longer term 

financial sustainability will be achieved. 

72. Further details of the funding allocated to each service to support these plans 

along with the detailed savings proposals are contained within Budget 

Implementation Plans (BIP’s). BIP’s and have been completed for each of the 

three Portfolios and can be found on the website via the attached link: 

https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/home/your-city-council/budget-spending.html   

73. A summary of the savings contained within the BIPs, together with a detailed 

cash allocation for each Portfolio, is provided and summarised at Appendix 2 

and Appendix 3a to 3d respectively.  As in previous years, the BIPs will be 

subject to regular monitoring reports throughout the year, in accordance with 

the City Council’s overall budget monitoring procedures. 

Draf
t

Page 25
Page 87

https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/home/your-city-council/budget-spending.html


 

 

74. The sections below set out the Councils’ priorities and Fairness principles 

applied in setting the 2020/21 budget and informing the Portfolio Revenue 

Spend Plans.  

Our Priorities 

75. Our budget for 2020/21 and Portfolio Revenue Spend Plans are driven by the 

five key priorities: 

 An in-touch organisation: This means listening; being connected and 

being responsive to a range of people and organisations; ideas and 

developments. This includes local people; communities and 

Government, as well as keeping pace with technology. This means 

understanding the increasingly diverse needs of individuals in Sheffield, 

so the services we and our partners provide are designed to meet these 

needs. It also means understanding how to respond. This priority is also 

about empowering individuals to help themselves and providing 

opportunities to do this, so they and their communities are increasingly 

independent and resilient. 

 Strong economy: This means creating the conditions for local 

businesses to grow and making Sheffield an attractive location to start a 

business. We want Sheffield to achieve our economic potential and for 

the pace of Sheffield’s economic growth to quicken, particularly in the 

private sector. This means being well-connected, both physically and 

digitally, building on our success as a city that supports businesses to 

grow and play a full, distinctive role in the global economy. We want 

local people to have the skills they need to get jobs and benefit from 

economic growth; and to make the most of the distinctive things 

Sheffield has to offer, such as cultural and sporting facilities. 

 Thriving neighbourhoods and communities: This means neighbourhoods 

where people are proud to live, with communities that support each other 

and get on well together. This includes good, affordable housing in 

places that are well-maintained and easy to get around. It means places 

with access to great, inclusive schools that also act as community 

amenities, together with libraries and it means places with access to high 

quality sport and leisure facilities, including green and open spaces. We 

want people living in Sheffield to feel safe and will continue to join with 

other agencies in the city to make it easier for local people and 

communities to get involved, so we can spot and tackle issues early. We 

will work with communities to support them and to celebrate the diversity 

of the city. 

Draf
t

Page 26
Page 88



 

 

 Better health and wellbeing: This means helping people to be healthy 

and well, by promoting and enabling good health whilst preventing and 

tackling ill-health, particularly for those who have a higher risk of 

experiencing poor health, illness or dying early.  Health and wellbeing 

matters to everyone.  We will provide early help and look to do this 

earlier in life to give every child the opportunity to have a great start in 

life.  This is strengthened by our other priorities that make sure the city 

has facilities and amenities that help people to stay healthy and well, 

such as leisure and culture, as well as access to green and open 

spaces. 

 Tackling inequalities: This means making it easier for individuals to 

overcome obstacles and achieve their potential. We will invest in the 

most deprived communities; supporting individuals and communities to 

help themselves and each other, so the changes they make are resilient 

and long-lasting.  We will work, with our partners, to enable fair 

treatment for individuals and groups, taking account of disadvantages 

and obstacles that people face. 

76. Part of our response to the recommendations made by the Fairness 

Commission, was to embed the fairness principles into our Corporate Plan. 

The Fairness Commission report is available on the Council’s website at 

www.sheffield.gov.uk/fairnesscommission and we have continued to use the 

Fairness Principles to influence the shape of the budget as a whole, ensuring 

the Council’s budget is invested as fairly and equitably as possible. These 

principles are: 

 Those in greatest need should take priority. 

 Those with the most resources should make the biggest contributions. 

 The commitment to fairness must be for the long-term. 

 The commitment to fairness must be across the whole city. 

 Preventing inequalities is better than trying to cure them. 

 To be seen to act in a fair way as well as acting fairly. 

 Civic responsibility - all residents to contribute to making the city fairer 

and for all citizens to have a say in how the city works. 

 An open continuous campaign for fairness in the city. 

 Fairness must be a matter of balance between different groups, 

communities and generations in the city. 

Draf
t

Page 27
Page 89

http://www.sheffield.gov.uk/fairnesscommission


 

 

Key messages 

In accordance with the Local Government Finance Act 1992 (as amended by the Localism 

Act 2011) the Council is required to make a number of determinations.  These are set out 

in Appendix 6 and include: 

• a Budget Requirement (a “section 32 calculation”) = £420.2m 

• a Council Tax Requirement (a section 31A(4) calculation) = £227.4m 

• a basic amount of tax (Band D equivalent) = £1,621.40 

 

 The city’s commitment to fairness must be both demonstrated and 

monitored in an annual report. 

Financing the 2020/21 Budget Requirement 
 

77. The earlier part of this report is concerned with the formulation of the revenue 

budget and the issues which need to be considered in arriving at a total 

budget for 2020/21.  This section of the report sets out the overall summary 

position and the statutory determinations relating to total net expenditure and 

its financing.  

Council Tax  

78. After taking account of the Revenue Support Grant, Business Rate income 

and Top Up Grant for 2020/21, the total amount to be raised from Council Tax 

amounts to £227.4m: this is the Council’s Council Tax Requirement.  

Collection Fund 

79. The City Council is required to estimate, for Council Tax setting purposes, the 

projected year-end balance on the Collection Fund.  This estimate must take 

account of payments received to date, the likely level of arrears and provision 

for bad debts, based on information available by 15 January.  Taking these 

factors into account, the projection on 15 January was that the Collection 

Fund is in surplus, with a distribution to the City Council of £8.2m due in 

2020/21.   

Council Tax Base 

80. On 15 January, the Executive Director of Resources, under delegated 

authority, approved the calculation of the Council Tax Base for the 2020/21 

financial year.  The amount of the Tax Base is 140,243.94 Band D equivalent 

properties.   

 

 

Draf
t

Page 28
Page 90



 

 

 

Budget Requirement for 2020/21 

81. If the Council votes in favour of increasing the Council Tax by 3.99% the 

Budget Requirement for 2020/21 will be £420.2m, as shown in the table 

below. 

82. The Budget Requirement will be financed by a combination of Revenue 

Support Grant, Business Rate income, Top Up Grant and Council Tax 

income.        

 

Table 6 

  
2019/20 2020/21 

£'000 £'000 

      

Service Expenditure 403,291 420,171 

      

Total Expenditure 403,291 420,171 

      

Financed by:     

Revenue Support Grant -36,893 -37,494 

Business Rates -99,341 -103,828 

Top Up Grant -42,529 -43,222 

Council Tax -216,328 -227,391 

Collection Fund Surplus  -8,200 -8,236 

      

Budget Requirement  -403,291 -420,171 

      

  £ £ 

Band D Council Tax (City Council) 1,559.18 1,621.40 

 

 

Council Tax Levels 

83. Details of the indicative level of Council Tax for Bands A to H are set out 

below with further details in Appendix 6. 

 

 

 

 

 

Draf
t

Page 29
Page 91



 

 

Table 7  

          

Band Multiplier Value (up to) Chargeable Tax 
   in 1991 Properties £ 
    %   

A 6/9 £40,000 58.3 1,080.93 

B 7/9 £52,000 15.9 1,261.10 

C 8/9 £68,000 12.7 1,441.24 

D 9/9 £88,000 6.5 1,621.40 

E 11/9 £120,000 3.7 1,981.70 

F 13/9 £160,000 1.7 2,342.03 

G 15/9 £320,000 1.1 2,702.32 

H 18/9 
over 

£320,000 
0.1 3,242.80 

      100.00%   

 

Precepts 

{Work in Progress} 
 

South Yorkshire Police & Crime Commissioner and of South Yorkshire Fire & 

Rescue Authority 

84. The budget proposals of the South Yorkshire Police & Crime Commissioner 

(PCC) and of South Yorkshire Fire & Rescue Authority (SYFRA) are as 

follows. The PCC and SYFRA figures were formally approved on {awaiting 

dates and confirmation increase} 2020 and {awaiting dates and confirmation 

increase} 2020 respectively.  Further details can be found in Appendix 6. 

Table 8 

  2019/20   2020/21     

Major Preceptors Precept 
Band 

D 
Precept 

Band 
D 

Increase 

South Yorkshire Fire 
& Rescue Authority 

10,146,379 73.13     -100.00% 

South Yorkshire 
Police and Crime 
Commissioner 

26,938,616 194.16     -100.00% 

 

 

 

 

Draf
t

Page 30
Page 92



 

 

Key messages 

The Chief Finance Officer has a number of responsibilities for which the authority 

should have regard. These include:- 

 Reporting on the robustness of estimates in determining the budget requirement 

and the adequacy of reserves. 

 Producing a balanced Revenue Budget and setting the Council Tax in line with 

the budget requirement. 

 Having due regard towards the interest of Council Tax payers, eliminating 

discrimination and advance equality of opportunity to all. 

 Being satisfied that the Council can continue to meet its statutory duties. 

Parish and Town Councils  

85. The overall level of Council Tax needs to include the precepts of Parish and 

Town Councils that lie within the City’s boundaries.  The levels of precepts for 

Parish Councils is set out in the table below: 

 

Table 9 

 

86. In March 2015, it was agreed with Parish Councils to reduce the Council Tax 

Support Scheme (CTSS) grant in line with anticipated RSG cuts. The CTS 

subsidy for 2020/21 is the final year of this agreement and no CTS subsidy 

will be paid in future years. 

 

Legal Advice 

 

 

Responsibility of the Chief Financial Officer 

87. Under section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003, the Chief Finance Officer 

of an authority is required to report on the following matters: 

 the robustness of the estimates made for the purposes of determining its 

budget requirement for the forthcoming year; and  

Council Tax 

Income

Grant from 

Council

Total Precept 

on Collection 

Fund

£ £ £

Bradfield Parish Council 249,542       4,098        253,640        

Ecclesfield Parish Council 263,622       4,113        267,735        

Stocksbridge Parish Council 129,669       2,959        132,628        

Draf
t

Page 31
Page 93



 

 

 the adequacy of the proposed financial reserves. 

88. There is also a requirement for the authority to have regard to the report of the 

Chief Finance Officer when making decisions on its budget requirement and 

level of financial reserves. Details of Reserves are set out in Appendix 4. The 

view of the Executive Director of Resources is that Reserves are adequate to 

cover the medium term financial risk. 

89. In addition, under the Prudential Code framework the Chief Finance Officer of 

an authority is required to prepare and report upon a series of Prudential and 

Affordability indicators. These are set out in Appendix 7. 

90. The Local Government Finance Acts of 1988 and 1992 specify that the City 

Council determines its Revenue Budget before 11 March each year. The City 

Council is also required by section 30 of the Local Government Finance Act 

1992 to set its Council Tax after determining its Revenue Budget requirement 

in accordance with the provisions of sections 31A, 31B and 34 to 36 of the 

same Act.  Details of how the Council Tax has been calculated are included 

as part of the Council Tax resolution in this report at Appendix 6 , which is set 

out as required by legislation. 

91. By the law the Council must set a balanced budget, which is a financial plan 

based on sound assumptions which shows how income will equal spend over 

the short- and medium-term. This can take into account deliverable cost 

savings and/or local income growth strategies as well as useable 

reserves.  However a budget will not be balanced where it reduces reserves 

to unacceptably low levels and regard must be had to any report of the Chief 

Finance Officer on the required level of reserves under section 25 of the Local 

Government Act 2003, which sets obligations of adequacy on controlled 

reserves. 

92. In the Local Government Finance Settlement 2020/21 the Secretary of state 

for Housing, Communities and Local Government proposed that local 

authorities will be able to increase council tax in 2020-21 by a core principle of 

up to 2%, without holding a local referendum. In addition, councils with adult 

social care responsibilities will be able to increase their council tax by a further 

2%, on top of the core principle, to be spent exclusively on adult social care. 

The Draft Referendums Relating to Council Tax Increases (Principles) 

(England) Report 2020/21 states that the relevant basic amount of council tax 

of an authority is excessive if the authority’s relevant basic amount of council 

tax for 2020-21 is 4% (comprising 2% for expenditure on adult social care, 

and 2% for other expenditure), or more than 4%, greater than its relevant 

basic amount of council tax for 2019-20. 

Draf
t

Page 32
Page 94



 

 

93. In determining its budget as in all other matters, an authority should have due 

regard towards the interest of Council Tax payers and Members must, in 

arriving at a balanced decision based on the evidence, take into account all 

relevant information placed before them and ignore irrelevant matters. 

94. The proposed budget has been prepared in the context of the requirement for 

the Council to make significant savings in its overall expenditure.  The 

implementation of some of the proposals in the budget will require Executive 

decisions.  These will be made in accordance with the Leader’s Scheme of 

Executive Delegations, and any further delegations (e.g. from Cabinet) made 

in accordance with the Leader’s Scheme.  It is important to note that in 

making these decisions, there will have to be full consideration of all the 

relevant issues such as the Council’s legal duties and contractual obligations. 

95. In setting the budget the Council has a duty to have regard to the need to 

eliminate discrimination and advance equality of opportunity between all, 

irrespective of whether they fall into a protected category such as race, 

gender, religion etc. Further detail on this is in the Equalities Impact section 

and the Equality Impact Assets in Appendix 9.   

96. The Council needs to be satisfied that it can continue to meet its statutory 

duties and meet the needs of vulnerable young people and adults.  Proposals 

have been drawn up on the basis that Directors are satisfied that this will 

enable them to continue to meet their statutory duties and the needs of the 

most vulnerable.  In some cases further consultation may be required. 

97. If the outcome of such further considerations were to present difficulties in 

adhering to the agreed Council budget, officers would bring further proposals 

to members as appropriate. 

Levies 

98. The Council currently has approximately £22.8m in its revenue budget for 

levies.  This includes the following :  

 Sheffield City Region (SCR) Combined Authority Local Transport Board 

(CALTB) levy; the SCR Combined Authority approved its budget for 

2020/21 on 27th January 2020.  The transport levy payable is frozen at 

2019/20 levels of £22.5m.  

 Payments to the South Yorkshire Pensions Authority and to the 

Environment Agency amounted to £161k and {awaiting information} 

respectively in 2020/21.  The figures for 2019/20 are £181k and £227k 

respectively. 

Draf
t

Page 33
Page 95



 

 

Key messages 

As part of its budget decision, the Council is required to approve a Treasury 

Management Strategy for 2020/21.  Treasury Management relates to the 

management of the Council’s investments, borrowings and banking operations. 

This is set out in detail in Appendix 7. 

 

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Budget  

99. This Report concerns the position of the Revenue Account of the Council, i.e. 

the income and expenditure for the majority of Council services, other than 

those that are accounted for separately as part of the Housing Revenue 

Account.  A separate report on the HRA budget was considered by Cabinet on 

15 January 2020.   

Treasury Management Strategy  

 

100. The Council’s Treasury Management activities must comply with the CIPFA 

Code of Practice on Treasury Management which sets out the controls over 

the risks associated with those activities and looks to achieve optimum 

performance consistent with those risks. 

101. A separate CIPFA code, the Prudential Code for Capital Finance, requires the 

Council to set a range of Prudential Indicators as part of the budget process to 

ensure that capital spending plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable.  

The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Council to have regard to the 

Prudential Code and to set Prudential Indicators for the next three financial 

years. 

102. The Sheffield City Council Treasury Management Strategy for 2020/21, 

including the proposed Annual Investment Strategy, Prudential Indicators and 

the Minimum Revenue Provision Policy, is set out in Appendix 7. The 

responsibility for day to day management of the Council’s treasury 

management activities rests with the Head of Strategic Finance, and it is 

recommended that authority for undertaking treasury management activity 

and relevant reporting continue to be delegated to the Head of Strategic 

Finance. 

103. The Administration has requested the inclusion of provisions in the Annual 

Investment Strategy to make clear the Administration’s desire not to hold any 

direct investments in fossil fuels or companies involved in tax evasion or grave 

misconduct.  

Draf
t

Page 34
Page 96



 

 

Key messages 

The potential workforce impact arising from the recommended savings proposals to 

set the 2020/21 budget, equates to a reduction of approximately 34 full time 

equivalent (FTE) posts.   

Key messages 

Each year the Council has to agree a Members’ Allowances Scheme. There are no 

proposed changes to the structure of the scheme for 2020/21. However, pay inflation 

currently forecast at 2%, will be added to allowances and is linked to average cost of 

living increases for SCC staff. 

Financial Implications 

104. The financial implications of the recommendations in this report (below) are 

set out in the preceding sections of the report. 

Workforce Impact  

 

105. The Budget Implementation Plans (BIPs) found at the following link 

https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/home/your-city-council/budget-spending.html; 

contain details of these reductions.  This will be managed, in the first instance, 

through deleting vacant posts, voluntary early retirement (VER) and voluntary 

severance (VS) schemes, where appropriate, and then through the Council’s 

Managing Employee Reductions (MER) procedure to achieve the balance of 

reductions and re-design of services. 

106. VER/VS activity and the outcomes of MER processes have been the subject 

of Equality Impact Assessments (EIAs), as described in the Equality Impact 

section of this report, and they will continue to be monitored on an ongoing 

basis to ensure there is no disproportionate impact on any group within the 

workforce. 

107. Consultation is taking place with the trade unions at a corporate and Portfolio 

level to identify opportunities to mitigate redundancies and support is provided 

to any employee who is affected by potential redundancy. 

Pay Policy 

108. In accordance with the Localism Act the Council is required to publish a Pay 

Policy for 2020/21.  Details of this can be found in Appendix 8.   

Members’ Allowances 

 

Draf
t

Page 35
Page 97

https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/home/your-city-council/budget-spending.html


 

 

109. Prior to 1 April each year, the Council has to agree a Members’ Allowances 

Scheme for the forthcoming financial year. At least every four years, or 

whenever the Council wishes to amend its Scheme, its Independent 

Remuneration Panel has to consider the Scheme (and any changes being 

proposed by the Council) and make recommendations to the Council. 

110. The Council’s Independent Remuneration Panel conducted a review of the 

Council’s Members’ Allowances Scheme in January 2017. The report of the 

Panel was considered by the Council at its budget meeting held on 3 March 

2017, and the Council approved a Scheme for 2017/18 and onwards. The 

2017/18 Scheme was also implemented for 2018/19 and 2019/20. 

111. The Scheme that was approved for 2017/18 was unchanged from the 

previous Scheme. The structure of the previous Scheme had first been 

implemented in 2013/14 and had subsequently only been subject to minor 

alterations, as noted in previous years’ budget reports, for example, as a 

result of regulatory changes introduced in 2014/15 to remove, on a phased 

basis, Members’ entitlement to participation in the Local Government Pension 

Scheme (LGPS), resulting in budget savings on superannuation contributions. 

112. Savings have also been achieved on the budget for Members’ Allowances 

since 2013/14 as a result of the changes made to the responsibilities for which 

Special Responsibility Allowances were to be paid, and to the amounts of the 

Special Responsibility Allowances. 

113. As regards the Scheme for 2020/21, officers have not identified any 

forthcoming changes in the structure or operation of the Council’s decision 

making arrangements which would require consideration by the Independent 

Remuneration Panel due to their impact on the structure of the Scheme, and, 

accordingly, it is recommended that the current Scheme be rolled forward 

unchanged for 2020/21.  

114. Additionally, in May 2020, a referendum will be held in relation to the Council’s 

governance arrangements. Any changes to the structure or operation of 

Council decision making as a result of the outcome of the referendum would 

also need to be considered by the Panel. The impact on the Members’ 

Allowances budget arising from changes to governance arrangements will be 

assessed in advance of a new structure being implemented. Notwithstanding, 

the Council will be required to reconvene the Independent Remuneration 

Panel in late 2020/early 2021 to undertake a review of the Scheme to ensure 

the requirement for the Scheme to be reviewed at least every four years is 

met.  

Draf
t

Page 36
Page 98



 

 

115. The Scheme contains provision for the allowances to be adjusted on an 

annual basis in line with an agreed index. The index that has been used for 

many years for applying to the allowances (and continues to be the index 

within the current Scheme) is the average percentage officer pay award in 

Sheffield. The Council agreed to implement the annual increase in 2017/18, 

and again in 2018/19 and 2019/20, having agreed not to apply the annual 

increase each year from 2010/11, including in four years when Council 

employees received a pay rise. 

 

116. Implementation of the annual increase on allowances in 2020/21 would give 

rise to a budgetary pressure. Savings will be found from elsewhere within the 

Council’s overall financial position. 

 

Budget Consultation 

117. To inform, develop and enable citizens to have their say on options for the 

2020/21 budget, the Council ran a budget survey between 20 December 2019 

and 24 January 2020, in addition to wider engagement with citizens, and 

partner organisations over the last year. 

118. This has helped us to ensure that our budget proposals have been shaped by 

people who may be affected by decisions taken as part of the budget, and that 

they have had an opportunity to put forward ideas for consideration. 

119. To inform longer term thinking and Equality Impact Assessments our budget 

consultation activity consisted of two main strands: 

 An online survey supported by social media promotion activity that 

looked at the financial position and the Council-wide approach. This 

provided opportunities for residents to have their say on priorities, 

investment in services and capital projects, our proposals for Council 

Tax, and provide suggestions on areas for further savings or generating 

income. 

 On-going conversations on particular topics and specific proposals, 

including meetings with the VCF and Businesses and key partner 

agencies. 

120. Over a 5 week period during December and January we ran an online survey 

that received 313 responses through the Council’s Citizen Space consultation 

portal (https://sheffield.citizenspace.com). 

121. In addition, the consultation on our 2020/21 budget proposals has taken place 

alongside the Big City Conversation. This has been a citywide conversation, 

Draf
t

Page 37
Page 99

https://sheffield.citizenspace.com/
http://www.sheffield.gov.uk/bigcityconversation


 

 

talking to citizens from across the city’s neighbourhoods about the issues that 

matter most to them, what they would like to see change in Sheffield and how 

they want to get involved in the decisions that affect their communities and 

their city.  There is a clear link between how the City Council invests its 

budget and the issues and priorities that Sheffielders have talked to us about 

in the Big City Conversation.  While the Big City Conversation is ongoing, key 

themes and issues that citizens have raised are also reflected in the content 

below. 

Citizens’ Spending Priorities for Sheffield 

122. Continuing the trend from recent years, respondents showed a clear support 

for the Council prioritising services and support for the most vulnerable in our 

city. 

123. In relation to a question about the Council’s priorities there were 306 

responses with the majority of comments indicating that money should be 

spent on Children and Adult Social Care with specific references to support 

services, education, and protecting the most vulnerable. Health and wellbeing 

also had a significant number, in particular ‘helping people to stay healthy’, 

and also supporting people with mental health issues. 

124. As in the consultation on our 2019/20 budget, Adult Social Care, Children’s 

Social Care and Public Health/Education were highlighted as the top three 

priorities that the Council should fund more. Over 200 comments were 

received on these areas with most comments being explanations as to what 

respondents want to see an increase in spend for a particular service.  

Responses included wanting to see support for vulnerable children and adults, 

especially around Mental Health and education services. A number of 

respondents who indicated that more should be spent on Public Health felt 

that cuts in services to support people’s health and wellbeing has had a huge 

impact on the people of Sheffield. In comparison to 2019/20, there was a 

percentage increase in those wishing to spend more on education, children 

and adult social care and public health. 

125. Respondents also indicated that there were a number of service areas where 

the level of spend should remain the same. In particular, respondents cited 

leisure and culture, Environmental Health/Waste and Recycling, and Housing 

as areas where spending levels should stay the same. 

126. Respondents were more likely to say that the Sheffield City Council should 

spend less on the cost of borrowing, central costs and housing benefits  We 

received over 200 comments relating to these three areas with comments 

suggesting additional money saved by reducing spend in these areas could 

Draf
t

Page 38
Page 100



 

 

then be  invested in education and social care.   In addition, through the Big 

City Conversation, respondents have strongly argued that they particularly 

value their local parks and open spaces but would like to see greater activity 

to tackle congestion, improve public transport, reduce crime and improve the 

local neighbourhood/street environment. This is important to reflect upon 

alongside the below service spending priorities. 

 

Summary of spending priorities 

 

 

Council Tax and fees and charges 

127. The majority of respondents (164) supported raising Council Tax with 121 

people indicating that Council Tax should stay the same. Of those that gave a 

reason as to why they felt that Council Tax should be raised, the most 

common reason given was that a slight increase would be worth it to have 

improved public services. In addition, a number of respondents said that they 

supported an increase in Council Tax but would like reassurance and 

transparency that this extra money would be spent wisely and have a real 

impact.  

128. Over half of respondents said that they did not want to see an increase in fees 

and charges and that the levels should stay the same. Many thought that fees 

and charges are high enough, that increases would be deemed unacceptable 

and likely to have most impact on poorer residents of the city.  As in 2019/20, 

a number of the specific comments made by respondents related to parking 

9% 

8% 

40% 

16% 

19% 

5% 

40% 

62% 

9% 

23% 

9% 

11% 

46% 

59% 

9% 

36% 

40% 

54% 

4% 

4% 

46% 

23% 

43% 

42% 

39% 

29% 

39% 

41% 

36% 

33% 

37% 

18% 

39% 

47% 

42% 

42% 

Education

Adult Social Care

Housing Benefits

Housing

Planning, Highways and Transport

Children’s Social care 

Central costs

Cost of Borrowing

Public Health

Leisure and Culture

Env. Health

Waste Disposal/ Recycling

Less Same More

Draf
t

Page 39
Page 101



 

 

fees which are considered to be too high and there is concern for knock-on 

implications for the city centre.  

129. Of the respondents that suggested fees and charges should be raised (85), 

the main reasons cited included that it could finance improved public services 

and leisure facilities and that the Council had few other choices if it needs to 

increase its overall funding. Finally, a number of respondents agreed that fees 

and charges must be increased but suggested that any increase should not 

include charges associated with library, bereavement or social care services. 

 

Council Investment 

130. Respondents mainly suggested that it was important for the Council to invest 

in transport, green and open spaces and quality of life. Other areas seen as 

important included essential compliance & maintenance and people: capital 

and growth. Of the comments received, the thread throughout is that people 

agree that investment is important to promote regeneration and the need for a 

fair and improved transport infrastructure to support both business and 

leisure. 

131. In relation to essential compliance and maintenance of the Council’s estate, 

many agreed that there needs to be investment in where we all live, and gave 

positive feedback regarding changes to the Moor and some parks, which was 

a common theme in the Big City Conversation. Some people felt that there are 

areas in the community which are very neglected and only help to encourage 

graffiti and anti-social behaviour. This was also a strong theme that came out 

of the discussion with the public during the Big City Conversation. 

Draf
t

Page 40
Page 102



 

 

132. Transport was seen as a very important area for investment, and noted that 

we need a far more accessible service which can run on an upgraded 

infrastructure. Comments also noted that currently people who do not live in 

the city centre find it very difficult to travel across the city.  A proportion of 

people felt much more investment was needed to support more 

environmentally friendly travel for bikes and pedestrians. A good transport 

network was commented on as essential for the city’s regeneration along with 

regular and clean public transport. 

133. The focus on transport reflects many of the comments received when we have 

spoken to residents as part of the Big City Conversation (face to face and 

through the online survey), with issues relating to public transport, congestion 

and air pollution regularly cited as issues that need addressing in 

neighbourhoods across the city.   

134. The following chart indicates the proportion of comments that fell into each of 

the three categories. It should be noted that some respondents made several 

comments/suggestions that fitted into two or all three categories. 

Council investment 

 

135. We received an extensive range of comments and suggestions on how the 

Council could increase income, reduce costs or make savings to support the 

budget. In terms of raising income these included collecting owed Council Tax 

and raising Council Tax; increasing car parking charges and business rates; 

and lobbying central Government for more money. Examples of comments 

about reducing costs included reducing pay, pooling local authority resources 

for South Yorkshire, and working more closely with the NHS and Universities. 

Comments on savings included ending external contracting and bringing 

outsourced council services back in-house. 

Draf
t

Page 41
Page 103

http://www.sheffield.gov.uk/bigcityconversation


 

 

136. Alongside our corporate budget consultation, we consulted people about 

proposals in particular areas. This consultation has taken different forms, 

depending on both the nature of the proposals and which providers, service 

users and communities are likely to be affected. This has included 

consultation with employees where we are proposing staffing reductions. 

137. In People Services, proposals are based on a range of approaches, including: 

investments in Children’s Social Care and Inclusion; risk and benefit sharing 

through integration with health partners; negotiation with fund holders and 

service-providers; individual support and casework; and general efficiencies. 

Some proposals have been informed by consultation feedback relating to 

dementia services; drugs and alcohol services; Adult Social Care payment 

processes; and Grant Aid to voluntary, community and faith sector 

organisations. Changes to fees and charges have been communicated. Other 

proposals will require communication with individuals and forms of co-

production to develop ideas further. Consultation has been, or will be, carried 

out where proposals affect employees.   

138. In Place Portfolio, the 2020/21 proposals are a mix of internal change and 

efficiencies, renegotiation of contract arrangements with partners and 

inflationary increase in charges/fees. A range of data has been used to help 

inform if there are any potential differential equality impacts and these will be 

considered as part of the decision making process for the proposals, 

depending on both the nature of the proposals and which providers, service 

users and communities are likely to be affected. This has included 

consultation with employees where we are proposing staffing reductions. 

139. We have consulted closely with Voluntary, Community and Faith 

organisations providing Community Services to adults to inform the detail of 

our proposals to taper the level of Grant Aid in 2019/20, as outlined in our 

grant agreements. A Grant Aid consultation has been undertaken in 2020. 

Following an on-going engagement exercise, grant agreements with 

Associate Libraries will similarly be tapered in 2019/20. We will consult on 

different options for the day to day service currently offered for adults with 

learning difficulties at Love Street – the redevelopment of the West Bar area 

will see the site close. Further consultation may be required as we develop 

other in-house services. 

140. Consultation on proposals will not stop once the budget has been agreed with 

Members. Further consultation with those affected individuals, groups, 

organisations and staff will take place throughout the forthcoming year as 

decisions are taken through the Council’s governance process. Where 

appropriate, Equality Impact Assessments on specific budget proposals 

Draf
t

Page 42
Page 104



 

 

include details about our approach to consulting people and further work that 

may be required. Reports on the consultation activity will be made available 

on the Council’s consultation hub and the Council’s budget webpages. 

 

Equality Impact 

141. Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010, the Public Sector Equality Duty 

states that a Public Authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have 

due regard to: 

 Eliminating discrimination, harassment, and victimisation. 

 Advancing equality of opportunity. 

 Fostering good relations. 

142. Having due regard to these involves: 

 Removing or minimising disadvantage suffered by persons. 

 Taking steps to meet the needs of persons with different 

characteristics. 

 Encouraging people to participate in public life. 

 Tackling prejudice and promote understanding. 

 Taking steps to take account of a person’s disabilities. 

143. This is with regard both to people who share Protected Characteristics 

under the Act and those who don’t. The Duty means we need to 

understand the effect of our policies and practices have on inequality. To 

do this we will examine the available evidence and work with staff and 

people who use services to consider the impact of Council activity and 

actions on the people who share protected characteristics. One of the 

ways we do this is through conducting Equality Impact Assessments 

(EIAs). 

144. The Council-wide EIA (Appendix 9) and the individual service EIAs on 

budget proposals that underpin it are focused on the impact on the 

protected characteristics in the Equality Act 2010. These are age, 

disability, race, marriage and civil partnership, sex, sexual orientation, 

religion/belief, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity. 

145. In Sheffield, we have decided to go beyond our statutory duty under the 

Equality Act 2010. We also assess the impact on health and wellbeing, 

the Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS), poverty and financial 

exclusion, carers, armed forces and cohesion. We believe that this gives 

Draf
t

Page 43
Page 105



 

 

us a wider understanding than the statutory framework would without 

these additions. 

146. This provides an overview of the potential implications of the proposals in 

the 2020/21, taking learning from the 69 individual EIAs that support each 

proposal. 

147. The individual EIAs are not however a one-off tasks; instead they are 

ongoing or ‘live’ ensuring that they develop as the budget proposals 

develop and evolve over time. So, for example, an EIA may identify the 

need to consult with a particular section of the community and the 

outcome of this may mean the EIA needs to be updated and change the 

way the proposal is to be implemented. The EIA should be a record of the 

process not just the ultimate outcome. Through our ‘live’ EIA process we 

will be monitoring closely any adverse equality impacts as reductions and 

changes in provision occur during the next year. 

148. As a consequence not all EIAs are currently complete and therefore this 

assessment should be seen as a reflection of our current understanding 

of the impact but not necessarily how the impact may look in three or nine 

months’ time. Therefore, it’s important to ensure that all equality impacts 

are fully considered when services report on the specific implementation 

plans for their Budget Saving Proposals. 

149. It is possible that some decisions will have a disproportionate impact on 

some groups in comparison to others e.g. on certain geographic locations 

or groups, for example disabled people. Our assessments help us to 

identify, avoid or mitigate these impacts. 

150. It is also important that we consider the cumulative effect of any decisions 

made. This could be cumulative year-on-year or different proposals 

impacting on the same group. EIAs also help us identify and make 

positive changes where possible. 

151. Inevitably, funding reductions at the scale and pace that we have 

experienced over the last nine years does have implications for the front-

line services we deliver, on those in greatest need and on some of the 

work we do with groups who share equality characteristics under the 

Equality Act 2010. We have tried to minimise the impact on the most 

vulnerable and those in greatest financial hardship as far as possible, 

however we have to make some really difficult choices. This year the 

savings and demand pressures that are required mean that we are less 

able to protect frontline services than before. 

Draf
t

Page 44
Page 106



 

 

152. Tackling inequality is fundamental to the values of the Council and is 

considered throughout our proposals. Although the required level of 

savings have reduced we still and we are investing in a number of areas, 

including Adult Social Care, we must prioritise supporting those at risk or 

in need, and focus on ensuring we do not slide backwards or lose ground 

in tackling areas of persistent inequality. However, it is inevitable when 

funding levels are cut year on year that there will be an impact on the 

services we deliver, including some of our work with those who are most 

vulnerable. 

153. Impact analysis is started early in the process of considering service 

changes, to ensure we involve relevant individuals and groups, including 

those who use services. This also gives us time to understand and 

consider evidence we have about the potential impact of any proposal. 

The action plans for individual EIAs are designed to ensure that the 

services concerned implement changes with as little negative impact as 

possible. There is also careful management control of each proposal. The 

impact analysis process helps to shape both proposals which were not 

accepted and not included in the budget and those that are. 

154. A commitment to tackling inequality, ensuring fairness and increasing 

social justice is at the heart of the Council’s values. We have a Corporate 

Plan which includes tackling inequalities as one of the Council’s five key 

priorities. We have also supported the Fairness and Tackling Poverty and 

Social Exclusion Partnership and the Making Sheffield Fairer Campaign. 

The Fairness and Tackling Poverty Partnership, of which the Council is a 

part of, has produced a Sheffield wide Tackling Poverty Strategy. The 

Fairness Framework and campaign, as well as our Corporate Plan and 

Tackling Poverty Strategy, have influenced our priorities and decision 

making across the Council. 

155. In the last year, we have launched our new Equality Objectives 2019-23 

which demonstrate our commitment to challenging inequality and 

promoting a fair and inclusive Sheffield. 

Evidence supporting our impact analysis 

156. As set out in Appendix 9, our equality impact analysis is underpinned by a 

robust evidence base, including: 

 Demographic analysis - the 2011 Census and population data, 

Joint Strategic Needs Assessment, Open Data and Community 

Knowledge Profiles, which are used to help us identify possible 

Draf
t

Page 45
Page 107

http://www.sheffield.gov.uk/content/sheffield/home/your-city-council/corporate-plan.html
http://www.sheffield.gov.uk/content/sheffield/home/your-city-council/corporate-plan.html
http://makingsheffieldfairer.co.uk/
http://www.sheffield.gov.uk/content/sheffield/home/your-city-council/tackling-poverty.html
http://www.sheffield.gov.uk/content/sheffield/home/your-city-council/tackling-poverty.html
http://www.sheffield.gov.uk/home/campaigns/equality-objectives.html


 

 

impacts requires an understanding of how the city is made up and 

the issues people face 

 Welfare and poverty data - although not within the scope of our 

budget proposals, we consider the impact of welfare reform and the 

rollout of Universal Credit on our communities 

 Consultation - to inform, develop and enable citizens to have their 

say on options for the 2020/21 budget, the Council ran a budget 

survey between 20 December 2019 and 24 January 2020. 

Mitigating impact 

157. As set out in the wider Budget Report, a commitment to tackling 

inequality, ensuring fairness and increasing social justice is at the heart of 

the Council’s values. We have considered the Fairness Commission and 

the resultant Fair City Campaign. We have also considered the Tackling 

Poverty Strategy, 2019-23 Equality Objectives, and our Corporate Plan. 

158. As throughout austerity, our overall approach has been to protect services 

for those in greatest need, develop preventive solutions for the longer 

term, and to make savings by changing how we manage and deliver 

services. This will have an impact on what the Council can continue to 

deliver, and especially on the Council’s universal offer. 

159. The year on year reductions over the last nine years have impacted on 

the people of Sheffield, including those in greatest need and groups that 

share protected characteristics.  Most impacts relate to age, both younger 

and older people, disabled people and their carers, women and 

households on lower incomes.  In all of these areas mitigating actions 

have been identified and will be implemented as part of EIA action plans.  

160. Although there are very difficult choices to make, our impact assessments 

illustrate our commitment to fairness principles and to mitigate negative 

impacts where possible. Through our ‘live’ EIA process we will monitor 

closely for any adverse equality impacts as reductions and changes in 

provision occur during the next year. 

Cumulative impact 

161. As in previous years, we have regard to the cumulative impact of changes 

from recent years to inform our decision making this year. Whilst there are 

fewer implications this year and important investments in key services like 

social care, we should recognise the impact that almost a decade of 

austerity has had on communities and public services. We have found 

Draf
t

Page 46
Page 108



 

 

that service transformation, including staff reductions and joined up 

services, and the prioritisation of those in most need have been the most 

effective ways to mitigate the negative impact of budget reductions and 

increased cost pressures. 

162. The groups which are impacted across EIAs and portfolios are disabled 

people, older and young people, women, carers and people on low 

incomes.  

163. Due to low income some groups are more likely to be cumulatively 

impacted, these are disabled people, carers, some BAME groups, young 

people and some groups of women, such as lone parents and female 

pensioners.   

164. Some people who previously received a service will receive a changed or 

reduced service, or no service, as we focus services on those most in 

need. The reduction in universal provision is likely to impact on those who 

are not in the greatest need, but who are struggling financially and may 

find it difficult to pay for alternative provision. 

165. A further impact across a range of proposals will be the transition from 

one provider to another. These changes have the potential to impact 

individuals. We will take this into account and will provide support for 

these people and their carers. 

166. Looking across this year’s budget proposals, there may be cumulative 

implications for a number of protected characteristics, largely because of 

increased investment and the positive development of services.  This 

includes: 

 Women -  looking across the proposals in the 2020/21 budget, 

women may experience positive cumulative impacts through 

increased investment in areas such as the Strengthening Families 

(supporting families and addressing issues around domestic and 

sexual abuse), and the Fresh Start Programme (working with those 

most at risk of having a child removed). 

 Older people and disabled people – the budget includes increased 

investment in social care and enables the People Portfolio to 

continue to develop the services for adults including through the 

‘Conversations Count’ approach and the focus of the Home First 

team in helping keep people out of hospital and keeping people 

independent, safe and well at home. 

Draf
t

Page 47
Page 109



 

 

167. It is difficult to quantify the cumulative level of impact as mitigations have 

been highlighted in all EIAs and external factors, such as welfare reform, 

are also impacting negatively on some of the same groups of people. 

Headline summary of impact assessments 

168. There are 69 EIAs supporting this year’s budget proposals but as 

identified in above, the Government’s Spending Review in September 

2019 allocated a small increase in local government funding for 2020/21. 

This addresses the in-year cost pressures that the Council faces but does 

not reverse the reductions in funding we have seen over the last nine 

years. 

169. Therefore, the total amount of Portfolio savings we are required to make 

in 2020/21 amount to £14.7m, mainly focusing on service effectiveness, 

cost reductions and staff savings.  There is significant continuity from 

previous years where multi-year transformation programmes continue to 

be delivered. 

170. Key implications: 

 Council Tax – the proposed increase in Council Tax (including the 

Adult Social Care Precept) has enabled the Council to invest in 

social care services for the third year in a row, supporting some of 

the most vulnerable people in the city. The increase in Council Tax 

was largely supported by respondents to the Budget Consultation.  

However, the increase in Council Tax brings increased financial 

pressure on lower income households (particularly those impacted 

on by Welfare Reform) and it is clear from the collection rates that 

under the Council Tax Support scheme, some working age 

households have found (and will continue to find) it harder to meet 

their Council Tax liability than others, though the overall collection 

rate amongst Council Tax Support recipients has increased.  The 

impact of this is mitigated through a Local Assistance Scheme and 

the Council Tax Support Scheme, which limits support to 77% of the 

Council Tax liability for working age applicants despite Government 

funding cuts in these areas. The Council Tax increase is also 

mitigated by increasing the Council Tax Hardship Scheme in 2020/21 

by £200k. 

 SCC workforce - internal restructuring as a result of the budget 

proposals and other significant drivers, for example the change 

programmes linked to SCC2020, have implications for the City 

Council’s workforce.  There has clearly been an impact on staffing 

Draf
t

Page 48
Page 110



 

 

levels as austerity has continued and the budget indicates further 

possible staff reductions of up to a further 34 FTE (full time 

equivalent) positions 2020/21.  The full EIA document sets out more 

detail on how reductions in 2018/19 have impacted on protected 

characteristics within our workforce. 

 Voluntary, Community and Faith Sector – the proposal to extend 

existing Grant Aid contracts by one year recognises the importance 

of the work done by the VCF sector in Sheffield to support our 

communities with protected characteristics.  The proposed small 

reduction in Grand Aid allocations is considered to be manageable 

but this will be monitored given that it impacts on already stretched 

organisations.  

 Social Care – the budget includes additional investment for social 

care which should benefit people with a number of protected 

characteristics (e.g. older people, people with disabilities) and 

supports some of the more vulnerable people in the city. Given the 

ongoing scale of demand increases in adults and children’s care, 

these investments are important but do not compensate for national 

funding reductions and are predicated on the People’s Portfolio 

delivering £12.6m of savings. 

 Health – spending is integrated throughout the Portfolios in the 

Council. The 2020/21 budget indicates that the Public Health grant is 

not expected to be reduced this year and there are positive 

investments being made in the Sexual Health contract which will 

support unrepresented groups to access sexual health services, 

including young people, men and members of the LGBT+ 

community.  More broadly, SCC is committed to working closely with 

NHS partners to deliver better health outcomes for people in the city.  

 Inequality – whilst Council Tax increases will impact on people on 

low incomes (mitigated through increased investment in the Council 

Tax Hardship Scheme), there are a number of positive investments 

which contribute to addressing the root causes of inequality.  For 

example, improving educational attainment and inclusion for children 

and young people with more complex needs through the 

Strengthening Inclusion Programme which will help pupils with a 

number of protected characteristics (race, cohesion, age). Further, 

there are also a range of investments through the Strengthening 

Families Programme to support some of our must vulnerable 

children, young people and families. 

Draf
t

Page 49
Page 111



 

 

171. We are continuing to target resources at those who most need our 

support and are at risk, to help people to become more independent, to 

intervene earlier where possible and do more preventative work, to get 

even better value for money from the services we purchase and to pursue 

innovative approaches in service commissioning and design. 

172. As part of the ongoing transformation of the City Council (e.g. SCC2020) 

services. We are continuing with restructures of Council services and are 

both internalising and externalising services where appropriate. 

173. We are continuing to get value for money from our contracts. This is with 

our major strategic providers but also across Portfolios such as with our, 

housing commissioning, learning disability services, youth services etc.  

174. A list of the available EIA’s is attached in Appendix 9 and can be 

accessed online via ‘Our Equality Duty. EIA’s can be requested 

individually or collectively and at the time of your request you will receive 

the most up to date version. 

Recommendations 

175. Council is recommended: 

a) To approve a net Revenue Budget for 2020/21 amounting to £420.171m; 

b) To approve a Band D equivalent Council Tax of £1,621.40 for City Council 

services, i.e. an increase of 3.99% (1.99% City Council increase and 2% 

national arrangement for the social care precept); 

c) To approve the proposed amendments to the Long Term Empty premium 

which applies to Council Tax charges in respect of Long Term Empty 

Dwellings, as set out in paragraph 48, with effect from 1 April 2020; 

d) To note that the section 151 officer has reviewed the robustness of the 

estimates and the adequacy of the proposed financial reserves, in 

accordance with Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003. Further 

details can be found in Appendix 4 and within the Section 25 Statutory 

Statement on Sustainability of Budget and Level of Reserves from 

paragraph 15; 

e) To approve the savings as set out in Appendix 2; 

f) To approve the revenue budget allocations for each of the services, as set 

out in Appendices 3a to 3d; 

g) To note that, based on the estimated expenditure level set out in 

Appendix 3 to this report, the amounts shown in part B of Appendix 6 

would be calculated by the City Council for the year 2019/20, in 

Draf
t

Page 50
Page 112



 

 

accordance with sections 30 to 36 of the Local Government Finance Act 

1992; 

h) To note the information on the precepts issued by the South Yorkshire 

Police & Crime Commissioner and of South Yorkshire Fire & Rescue 

Authority, together with the impact of these on the overall amount of 

Council Tax to be charged in the City Council’s area;  

i) To approve the proposed amount of compensation to Parish Councils for 

the loss of Council Tax income in 2020/21 at the levels shown in the table 

below paragraph 85; 

j) To approve the Treasury Management and Annual Investment Strategies 

set out in Appendix 7 and the recommendations contained therein; 

k) To approve the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy set out in 

Appendix 7; which takes into account the revisions proposed for 2019/20 

onwards;  

l) To agree that authority be delegated to the Executive Director of 

Resources to undertake Treasury Management activity, to create and 

amend appropriate Treasury Management Practice Statements and to 

report on the operation of Treasury Management activity on the terms set 

out in these documents; 

m) To approve a Pay Policy for 2020/21 as set out in Appendix 8; and 

n) To agree that the Members’ Allowances Scheme for 2017/18 and 

onwards, approved on 3 March 2017, and implemented for 2018/19 and 

2019/20, be also implemented for 2020/21.  

 

 

Charlie Adan 

Interim Chief Executive 

 

 

Eugene Walker 

Executive Director, Resources 

 

Draf
t

Page 51
Page 113



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally blank. 

Draf
t

Page 52
Page 114



Appendix 1

Portfolio Pressures

BIP Reference*
Loss of 

Funding

Increasing 

Demand on 

Services

Pay & Price 

Inflation

Legislation 

Changes
Other Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

People

End of Strengthening Families investment activities 14.E3, 22.E1 2,210 2,210

Miscellaneous pressures due to loss of funding (<£150k) Various 508 508

Loss of temporary funding 22.E2 500 500

Project continuation 6.E2, 8.E2, 11.E4 22 1,567 1,589

Anticipated growth in client base and assessed needs 10.E3, 11.E3 10,052 10,052

Growth in Children in Care 20.E1 1,250 1,250

Increase in Transforming Care demand 10.E5 487 487

Miscellaneous demand pressures (<£300k) Various 1,241 1,241

Pressure on fieldwork non-staffing costs 18.E4 700 700

Pressure on fieldwork staffing costs 18.E5 1,100 1,100

Pressure on staying put 18.E6 314 314
Inflationary increases

10.E2, 11.E2, 

30.E2 5,235 5,235

2% Pay award Various 1,968 1,968

Increase in teachers' pension costs 28.E5 35 35

Legislative changes to payments to care homes 11.E5 500 500

3,240 16,711 7,238 500 0 27,689

Place

Loss of parking revenue due to city centre redevelopment 41.E5 123 123
Provision for increased cost of Waste Management services 

arising from growth in households/volumes. 41.E3 200 200

2% Pay Award Various 1,100 1,100

Inflationary increase on waste contract 41.E2 900 900

Reversal of 2018/19 pressure 41.E4 (1,227) (1,227)

123 200 2,000 0 (1,227) 1,096

Policy, Performance and Communications

2% Pay Award 44.E1 90 90

0 0 90 0 0 90

Resources

2% Pay Award Various 589 589
Reduction in the level of external spend from BIP proposals resulting in 

reduced contract discounts 48.E1 200 200

0 0 589 0 200 789

Total Pressures 3,363 16,911 9,917 500 (1,027) 29,664

* - Full Budget Implementation Plans (BIPs) available here - http://www.sheffield.gov.uk/content/sheffield/home/your-city-council/budget-spending.htmlDraf
t

Page 53
Page 115



This page is intentionally blank

Draf
t

Page 54
Page 116



Appendix 2

Portfolio Savings

BIP Reference*

Cost/

Contract 

Price 

Reduction

Service 

Effectiveness

Staff Cost 

Reductions

Income 

Generation
Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

People

End of RFID Equipment Lease 35.B1 (22) (22)

Fieldwork Non-staffing Costs - review of Section 17 discretionary spending 18.B2 (350) (350)

Increasing independence and inclusion 11.B1 (590) (590)

Increasing Independence and Shift to Prevention 11.B2 (450) (450)

Mental Health Service reductions 30.B1 (500) (500)

Premises Cost 33.B2 (20) (20)

Reduction in annual insurance premiums 2.B9 (58) (58)

Youth Commissioning 30.B3 (37) (37)

Business Strategy - risk and resilience improvements 2.B7 (14) (14)

Improving Independence and Inclusion 10.B1 (2,123) (2,123)

Increase in in-house fostering, kinship and regulation 24 carers 20.B1 (1,000) (1,000)

Increasing the Proportion of Adults living at Home 10.B4, 10.B5, 11.B3 (1,078) (1,078)

Increasing the Shift to Prevention 10.B2, 10.B3 (1,750) (1,750)

Information Systems and Corporate Digital Services 2.B2 (17) (17)

Integrated Social Work Model 18.B1 (1,100) (1,100)

Management Growth in Demand 20.B2 (1,000) (1,000)

Reduction in out-of-city placements 20.B3 (150) (150)

Sustainable Provider Market 10.B6, 10.B7, 10.B8 (75) (802) (877)

Sustainable Provider Market and Fairer Charging 11.B4 (979) (979)

Business Support Staff, attendance and wellbeing continuation 1.B1 (47) (47)

Resources and Strategy 2.B1 (63) (63)

Social Care and Payments Team 2.B8 (32) (32)

Staff Restructure 30.B2 (68) (68)

Staffing and Management Review 36.B1 (26) (26)

Staffing and Management Review in central teams 35.B2 (67) (67)

Charging for football pitch at Lowfield School 30.B4 (15) (15)

Income from Joint Commissioning work 2.B6 (24) (24)

Increased Income 28.B2 (39) (39)

Increased Income to Information Systems 2.B4, 2.B5 (30) (30)

Teacher's Pension grant funding 28.B5 (35) (35)

(2,102) (10,013) (303) (143) (12,561)

Place

Upperthorpe Healthy Living Centre, Cultural Trusts - approved in prior year 38.B1, 38.B3 (86) (86)

Portfolio-wide Improved Operational Efficiency 37.B1, 37.B2, 43.B2 (592) (592)

Place HUB - approved in prior year 41.B2 (218) (218)

Fees & Charges Review
37.B4, 38.B2, 41.B1, 

43.B3 (361) (361)

(86) (592) (218) (361) (1,257)

Policy, Performance and Communications

General savings across the service 44.B2 (85) (85)

Increase in Communications income 44.B1 (5) (5)

0 (85) 0 (5) (90)

Resources

BCIS Non-staffing Savings 46.B1 (13) (13)

Reduced pension costs for former employees 47.B1 (200) (200)

Review of HR Contracts 52.B3 (20) (20)

Finance & Commercial Services - restructured service 50.B1 (180) (180)

HR Operational Structure 52.B2 (70) (70)

Learning and Development Service Delivery Model 52.B1 (60) (60)

On-line and web chat offer staffing efficiencies 49.B5 (60) (60)

Repairs changes - staffing efficiencies 49.B6 (30) (30)

Savings in Out of Hours Contact Centre 49.B2 (30) (30)

BCIS Staffing Savings 46.B2 (39) (39)

Members allowances savings 53.B3 (30) (30)

Increased out of hours income generation 49.B1 (10) (10)

Increased Registry Office income locally set 49.B3 (40) (40)

Register Office – national revisions on income 49.B4 (8) (8)

(233) (430) (69) (58) (790)

Total Savings (2,421) (11,120) (590) (567) (14,698)

* - Full Budget Implementation Plans (BIPs) available here - http://www.sheffield.gov.uk/content/sheffield/home/your-city-council/budget-spending.html

Draf
t

Page 55
Page 117



This page is intentionally blank

Draf
t

Page 56
Page 118



Appendix 3
Restated

2019/20 Summary Revenue Budget 2020/21

£000 £000

Portfolio budgets:

232,655 People 250,582

145,423 Place 146,606

2,195 Policy Performance and Communications 2,158

39,747 Resources (inc. Housing Benefit & Council Tax Collection) 39,704

420,020 439,050

Corporate Budgets:

Specific Grants

-74,437 PFI Grant -74,437

-5,961 New Homes Bonus (LGF) -5,929

-3,261 Business Rates Transitional Grant -5,861

-6,841 Small Business Rates Relief -6,852

-21,896 Improved Better Care Fund -21,896

-1,518 Retail Relief -1,541

0 Adult Social Care Grant -12,242

0 Health Income -2,600

Corporate Items

5,500 Redundancy Provision 5,500

5,961 New Homes Bonus (LGF) 5,929

-1,138 Public Health Savings / re-investments 0

3,000 Better Care Fund 3,000

3,290 Social Care Demand Contingency 3,290

4,000 Strengthening Families  - Think Forward Investment 4,000

25,702 Schools and Howden PFI 25,930

900 Infrastructure Investment 900

14 Payment to Parish Councils 11

1,500 Sheffield International Venues 2,800

0 Customer Experience Programme 1,500

2,100 Other 2,600

Capital Financing Costs

13,662 General Capital Financing Costs 13,662

4,573 Heart of the City 2 5,473

13,092 Streets Ahead Investment 12,730

18,887 MSF Capital Financing Costs 18,816

Reserves Movements  

-13,268 Contribution from Reserves -1,653

9,410 Reserves Movements Relating to Pensions 8,735

403,291 Total Expenditure 420,915

Financing of Net Expenditure

-36,893 Revenue Support Grant -37,494

-99,341 NNDR/Business Rates Income -104,572

-42,529 Business Rates Top Up Grant -43,222

-201,090 Council Tax income -207,615

-8,200 Collection Fund surplus -8,236

-15,238 Social Care Precept -19,776

-403,291 Total Financing -420,915

Draf
t

Page 57
Page 119



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally blank. 

Draf
t

Page 58
Page 120



Appendix 3a

Gross Expenditure Income Net Expenditure

£'000 £'000 £'000

BUSINESS STRATEGY - PEOPLE

Business Strategy Business Support 956 (562) 394

Busines Strategy Operational Budgets 10,010 (5,953) 4,057

Portfolio Leadership Team 881 (146) 735

Portfolio Wide Budgets 66,157 (60,561) 5,596

School Budgets 142,633 (142,633) 0

220,636 (209,855) 10,782

CARE AND SUPPORT

Access & Prevention 16,692 (5,078) 11,615

Care & Support Business Support 1,502 (117) 1,385

Care & Support Commissioning 7,662 (4,485) 3,177

Contributions to Care 2,367 (2,367) 0

Learning Disabilities 66,768 (23,496) 43,272

Long Term Support 115,782 (48,488) 67,293

Preactice Development 470 0 470

Safeguarding Adults 1,503 (162) 1,340

212,746 (84,194) 128,552

CHILDREN & FAMILIES

Children & Families - CILS 8,922 (5,019) 3,904

Children & Families Business Support 4,035 (342) 3,692

Childrens Disabilities Service 2,173 (110) 2,063

CYP Provider Services 19,525 (6,224) 13,300

Fieldwork Services 18,738 (371) 18,368

Health Strategy 2,570 (334) 2,237

Placements 29,843 (2,532) 27,312

Policy & Service Improvement 912 (269) 643

Prevention & Early Intervention 8,470 (3,702) 4,768

Safeguarding Children 2,739 (1,026) 1,714

97,928 (19,927) 78,001

COMMISSIONING, INCLUSION AND LEARNING SERVICES (CILS)

Children's Public Health 14,497 (14,441) 56

CILS Business Support 1,219 (1,033) 185

Early Support & Prevention 3,576 (1,059) 2,517

Inclusion & Schools Services 5,445 (4,765) 680

Schools and Learning 7,753 (7,631) 122

SEN 21,660 (21,160) 500

Supporting Vulnerable People 34,876 (14,921) 19,955

89,025 (65,010) 24,015

COMMUNITY SERVICES

14-24 Partnership 1,629 (1,191) 438

Community Services Business Support 366 (232) 135

Employment & Skills 5,221 (3,285) 1,936

Family & Community Learning 4,997 (4,653) 344

Libraries, Information & Archives 5,417 (1,001) 4,416

Locality Management 3,274 (1,310) 1,964

20,904 (11,672) 9,233

641,239 (390,657) 250,582

People

Draf
t

Page 59
Page 121



This page is intentionally blank

Draf
t

Page 60
Page 122



Appendix 3a 

 

People Portfolio Revenue Spend Plan 

1. The People Services Portfolio is an integrated service within Sheffield City 

Council (‘the Council’) which supports adults and children, young people, 

families and communities, and has three key areas of focus: 

 Improved management of demand for services by shifting from crisis 

response to a greater focus on early intervention and prevention, 

ensuring we listen to the people who use our services and work with our 

partners to do the right thing at the right time.  

 Ensuring that there is high-quality, diverse and robust care and support 

for our customers, providing good value for money for the Council.  

 Developing our workforce, making sure we have the right-sized staff 

groups, enabled by effective systems and supported to develop their 

skills.  

2. Underpinning this is an ‘all age’ approach to disability-related services across 

the portfolio which supports individuals from childhood through to old age in a 

consistent and seamless way, without barriers or difficult transition points.  

3. In 2020/21, we are budgeting to spend in the region of £250.6m cash and 

£28m of Public Health grant on delivering services for People. A further 

£463.7m of funding was allocated separately by Government for schools and 

early year providers. The majority of our funding is spent on social care: 

£128.6m for Adults Care and Support and £78.2m for Children, Young People 

and Families.   

 In partial recognition of the pressures affecting Social Care the 

Government announced an extra £1bn of funding. This money will help 

to support the increasing cost of social care in both Adults and Children’s 

services. 

 The Government also announced it will continue to release Additional 

Better Care Fund monies to local authorities which was due to end in 

2019/20.  This money alongside the Winter Pressures Funding and the 

Adult Social Care Grant will continue to alleviate pressures in Adult 

Social Care. 

 Whilst these additional pots of money have improved the Council’s 

medium term financial position, the funding will not fully cover the 

financial pressures in Social Care and unless there is clear information 

to suggest this funding will be made permanent there exists the real 

possibility of significant additional budget challenge beyond 20/21.  

Draf
t

Page 61
Page 123



Appendix 3a 

 

Children, Young People and Families 

4. Our ambition is that all children, young people and families in Sheffield 

achieve their full potential in all aspects of their lives, that they have a great 

start in life, go to great schools, are safe, healthy, active, informed and 

engaged in society. 

5. We will continue to work together with our partners and communities to 

ensure we raise expectations and attainment and enable our children, young 

people and adults to gain first class qualifications and skills, have enriching 

experiences and make a positive contribution to their local community and our 

City, and to support them through their journey to independence. 

6. We will continue to respond to increases in demand for services, our range of 

statutory duties, and expectations of inspections (e.g. Ofsted). We will be 

creative, innovative and transformational in the way we work and deliver 

services to ensure that outcomes for children, young people and families 

continue to improve. 

7. We will continue to improve our IT systems to enable better quality of 

information, improve automation and integration with other systems that will 

enable our staff to spend more time working with families. Furthermore, we 

are committed to the training and development of our staff so they are 

equipped to face the challenges ahead, for example the roll-out and continued 

use of ‘Signs of Safety’, a strength-based safety organised approach to child 

protection casework.   

8. We are being creative about how we commission, deliver and pay for 

services, increasingly working with all our partner organisations, including 

schools, and seeking alternative funding streams. We are committed to 

protecting services which support children, young people and families, and 

this will always be a priority for us. 

9. The strategies that underpin our ambition for successful children, young 

people and families are shaped in three main areas: 

 Keeping children, young people and families healthy, safe and 

strong and giving every child a great start in life. Our services focus 

on safeguarding, learning difficulties/disabilities, early help and 

intervention and the city’s health strategy for children and young people.  

We provide multi-agency support services for children with additional 

needs and social care services for Children in Need (CIN), including 

those at risk of harm, in need of accommodation and those in care. Our 

services promote the early identification of children in need and deliver 

Draf
t

Page 62
Page 124



Appendix 3a 

 

high quality preventative and supportive services, enabling children to 

achieve their potential.  

Effective plans are informed by good quality assessments, and address 

children’s needs, including the need to be safeguarded, and improve 

their outcomes.  

We will ensure that services are put in place to support children and 

young people to live within their families, wherever possible. Where they 

cannot remain in their families, we will make timely decisions to ensure 

that they are secured in a permanent placement as soon as possible. 

We will deliver, monitor and provide the highest quality care and 

placements for our children in care. 

 Developing skills for life and work and encouraging active, 

informed and engaged young people and adults into further 

education, employment, training and their journey to independence. 

We target our resources in supporting those teenagers and adults who 

are most at risk of not being in education, employment or training.  We 

work to create technical pathways that better connect education and 

employers, and we are working to redesign the skills and employment 

systems so that they better meet the needs of the local economy. This 

has included creating a multi-agency and localised employment service 

for those facing the greatest barriers to work, integrating support from 

the Council, Health and Jobcentre Plus to create a jobs and skills 

brokerage service that makes best use of the apprenticeship levy and 

the generation of job opportunities for the most vulnerable. 

 Supporting schools,  children and young people’s education, 

lifelong and community learning and being the champion and 

advocate for children, young people and their families, improving 

the quality of learning outcomes, raising  attainment and enabling 

enriching experiences. The quality of children’s school experiences is 

fundamental to their later life chances. Children who experience high 

quality teaching and learning are much more likely to experience positive 

outcomes, such as sustained employment, good mental and physical 

health, avoidance of poverty and increased social mobility.  

We have a vital role in working in partnership with schools, colleges, 

Learn Sheffield, and other education providers on the key educational 

issues affecting the whole city, such as ensuring enough school places 

across the city and support for vulnerable learners. In addition, this 

partnership working enables a focus on raising attainment and 

Draf
t

Page 63
Page 125



Appendix 3a 

 

expectation by challenging schools and other education providers when 

required and supporting them to improve  

10. We are seeing significant and growing demand and need in areas such as 

special educational needs, emotional health and wellbeing, and child poverty. 

Alongside this are changes in legislation and policy which impact on the way 

we operate, and the expectations children, young people and families have of 

us, including the Children and Families Act 2014 (and the linked Care Act), 

the National Minimum Wage, and an ongoing shift towards more autonomy for 

schools. In addition, we are working with the schools in the city to prepare for 

the implementation of National Fair Funding Formula.  

11. One of our biggest challenges is the increase in demand for children’s 

services. We will address this challenge through the early identification of 

children with additional needs, and deliver high quality preventative and 

supportive services to enable children to continue living successfully and 

safely with their families and communities. Our strategy continues to be to 

deliver the right level of support by the right service at the right time. 

12. The scale of financial challenge facing children’s social care is significant and 

cannot be resolved in the short term. An improvement and recovery plan 

focuses on the delivery of new initiatives to support families and to improve 

practice, and is structured under three themes. 

 Demand: We are working to reduce referrals to social care and the 

number of children entering the care system by delivering earlier support 

and the development of several evidence based programmes. This 

includes working with expectant parents who have already had children 

taken into care, to prevent repeat removals. We are also delivering 

targeted parenting programmes to increase resilience and help reduce 

family breakdown, as well as engaging with wider families and 

community by delivering restorative practice techniques (Family Group 

Conferences, Multi Systemic Therapy) for young people to stay with their 

families wherever possible instead of entering into the care system. 

 Supply: We are redesigning and investing to ensure the right resources 

are available so that children taken into care in Sheffield are able to stay 

within the city. We are also working to ensure appropriate sufficiency of 

placements to meet changing needs. Our focus is on increasing the 

number of local authority foster carers through development of a 

comprehensive package of support, including wraparound support and 

ongoing training packages for foster carers. 

Draf
t

Page 64
Page 126



Appendix 3a 

 

 Performance: Having the right number of appropriately-trained staff is 

critical to improving the quality of service delivery. We are committed to 

children and families receiving support in a timely manner, and we are 

investing in staff training and development to ensure strong and 

consistent social care work practices and good quality risk management. 

Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG)    

13. The provisional 2020/21 DSG settlement amounts to £463.7m for Sheffield, of 

which it is estimated that £354.7m will be earmarked for mainstream 

schools. The remaining funding is used to provide Early Years activities 

(£35.4m), services for children and young people with Special Education 

Needs and/or Disabilities (£66.7m), and statutory educational services 

(£6.9m). The final settlement for DSG will be received in spring 2020. 

14. In recent years, the national Government has been implementing the National 

Funding Formula (NFF), with the aim of providing ‘fairer funding’ for all 

schools. As a result, Sheffield Schools will receive a DSG increase of an 

estimated £22m (Schools Block) in 2020/21, all of which will be transferred 

directly to schools. 

15. We have agreed with Sheffield Schools Forum to implement a transitional 

model in 20/21 towards the National Fair Funding (NFF) by prioritising the use 

of new funding allocation to deliver it. The reason we are making the decision 

to transition towards the national funding is to protect Sheffield schools from 

the sudden impact of a hard national funding formula in the future. 

 The changes for 20/21 are: 

 Increases primary AWPU by 4% and secondary by 6% - increased 

funding for all schools and delivers the NFF ratio of 1:1.29 

 Aligns English as an Additional Language to NFF. 

 Adopts Ever6 factor, ensuring more support for ‘just managing’ families 

and transitions into secondary. 

 Adopts Lump Sum of £120k.  

 Re-aligns Social Deprivation significantly closer to NFF, with a further 

increase to be implemented in 2021/22.  

 Re-distributes Prior Attainment to support re-alignment of Social 

Deprivation. 

16. It is also expected that the amount of DSG held centrally to fund services 

delivered by the Council on behalf of schools will come under increasing 

pressure from 2020/21 and beyond. 

Draf
t

Page 65
Page 127



Appendix 3a 

 

Adult Services 

17. Adult social care supports thousands of people every year in Sheffield, and 

our vision is to keep people healthy, safe and well, and to support them to live 

the lives they want to live. 

18. We do this by having the right conversations with people to ensure they 

receive the right support from the right person at the right time, focussed on 

three different kinds of need:  

 People who may need a little support to stay resilient and strong. They 

will maintain their level of independence if they are connected to the 

resources and support available within their neighbourhoods and 

networks. 

 People who have experienced some difficulty, perhaps following a period 

of poor health. They will regain their previous level of independence if 

they get focused help. 

 People for whom regaining their previous level of independence may not 

be possible. They will still live a good life if they receive targeted and co-

ordinated support that is geared to priorities important to them. 

19. The financial pressures facing adult social care are well publicised. Nationally, 

the LGA has estimated that there will be a national social care funding 

shortfall of £3.5bn by 2025 just to maintain existing standards of care. In 

Sheffield, the Council’s financial pressures can broadly be defined in two 

categories: rising provider costs (predominantly the costs associated with the 

crucial investment in staff wages to meet the National Minimum Wage) and an 

increasing demand for care and support services - increasing numbers of 

people are requiring higher levels of support in the community for longer. A 

significant element of these demand pressures is associated with supporting 

increasing numbers of people out of hospital and other restrictive health 

related settings, to care in or nearer the home.  

20. In partial recognition of these pressures, the Council received some additional 

one-off Government funding through the Improved Better Care Fund (iBCF) 

for the three years from 2017/18, which continues into 20/21. Whilst this has 

improved the Council’s medium term financial position, unless there is clear 

information to suggest this funding will be made permanent, there exists a real 

possibility of significant additional budget challenge beyond 2020/21.  

21. It should be noted that the Council also received funding to support 

emergency winter planning, which has now been confirmed for 20/21.   

Draf
t

Page 66
Page 128



Appendix 3a 

 

22. The scale of the financial challenge facing adult social care remains 

significant. As a result, our Adult Social Care Improvement Plan is updated 

annually and sets out how we will seek to meet the financial challenges ahead 

whilst ensuring that Sheffield people can stay healthy, stay out of hospital and 

live independently at home for as long as possible. The budget proposals for 

20/21 form a part of this plan. 

23. The Adult Social Care Improvement Plan is structured under five themes: 
 

 Increasing the shift to prevention. The strategic intention of Adult 

Social Care in Sheffield is to support a shift into prevention and 

wellbeing. This means we are increasingly moving our focus to early 

help and preventative support by developing resilient communities, 

better use of online resources, equipment and adaptations. This 

approach to supporting people earlier in their community, including those 

with dementia, is improving outcomes for local people whilst promoting 

better usage of adult social care resources. 

 Increasing the independence and inclusion of adults of working 

age. A continued focus within the plan is to improve the support provided 

to existing recipients of adult social care services. We value people for 

the strengths and motivations they bring, and work with people of all 

ages to help them get the best possible life, not the best possible 

service. Over 20/21 we will further develop our all-age approach to 

disability including: 

 Helping young people as they prepare for adulthood to access social 

and community activities, employment and universal services in order to 

provide better outcomes for individuals and their communities 

 A reablement-focused approach to review and support planning with a 

focus on moving people from static long-term care to greater 

independence. 

 Developing a sustainable provider market. The development of the 

Council’s relationship with its providers is key to providing a consistent 

focus on outcomes, prevention, quality and value for money. We have 

continued to oversee significant provider fee rate uplifts in recent years 

in recognition of the cost of providing quality care through a properly 

remunerated and resilient workforce. 20/21 will see a continued focus on 

the Council’s commercial relationship with its external contractors to 

ensure value for money and consistency. This will be achieved through 

contract management, review and negotiation, efficient use of provision, 

Draf
t

Page 67
Page 129



Appendix 3a 

 

making better use of in-house services, by improving support to people 

with direct payments, and through continued growth in approaches such 

as Shared Lives and Short Breaks.  

 Increasing the proportion of adults who are able to live at home. 

Better preventative support means that people are able to live in their 

own homes and remain active in their communities for longer. A new 

supported living scheme is set to open in 20/21 which will increase 

opportunities for adults of working age to live independently. We 

continue to work closely with our NHS partners to ensure people are 

able to able to return home from hospital in a timely way and to avoid 

unnecessary care home admissions. Together we will continue to 

develop new preventative approaches to ensure that people are better 

supported to remain healthy and safe at home, avoiding the need for 

hospital admission in the first place, for example through the recently 

launched joint multi-disciplinary team, based at Shortbrook.  

 Fairer charging. It is crucial that we ensure people do not have financial 

worries or concerns about being supported properly, but also that we 

charge fairly and consistently for social care. In 20/21 we will continue 

with our programme of change to improve the way we support service 

users to access benefit income, pay their contributions for care and 

avoid accruing debt. We will also continue to ensure uplifted fee rates, 

benefit income and capital asset information is used to inform our 

contribution calculations. We are continuing to work with health 

colleagues to ensure that the allocation of Continuing Health Care 

funding in Sheffield is balanced and equitable  

 

24. The Sheffield Mental Health Transformation Programme is a collaborative 

programme of work that has been jointly developed and is being jointly 

delivered by the Council and our NHS partners. The projects which make up 

the programme have a focus on prevention, reablement and progression, 

reduced use of restrictive settings, the development of alternative models of 

provision, seeking best value and more efficient ways of delivering services. 

This collaborative approach has already delivered better value for money 

across the partnership, and we will continue to focus our efforts on it in 20/21. 

In particular we will develop our approach to integrating and streamlining 

support for children, young people and adults encompassing health, social 

care, education and employment. 

Draf
t

Page 68
Page 130



Appendix 3a 

 

25. In 2019 the Council and the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) established 

a new Joint Commissioning Committee (JCC) which builds on health and 

social care integration through the Better Care Fund, to bring together the 

planning and budgets of the two commissioning organisations and allow for 

joint decision making and a single commissioner voice for the city. Closer 

integration of the system is essential to the delivery of a financially sustainable 

future and to improving the quality of experience of the thousands of people 

accessing health and social care services in Sheffield. 

Services in Sheffield’s communities 

26. Our aim is that Sheffield’s communities thrive and are positive places for 

people to live and be successful. We want people to feel they are listened to 

and enable them to access support and gain benefit from community 

infrastructure, assets and actions. 

27. Funding for the core service of Council-run hub libraries, the Home Library 

service and Central Library will continue at current levels in 20/21. In addition 

the Council will also continue to support the co-delivered and associate 

libraries which are run by volunteers, as well as a range of schemes to 

support people in their local communities. We plan to review the way our 

libraries and communities teams are structured to ensure that they are as 

effective as possible. 

28. A decision was taken by cabinet in November to extend the majority of 

existing Grant Aid funding arrangements for 12 months to 31 March 2021, to 

allow for a full and thorough review of Voluntary Sector Grant Aid to be 

undertaken. 

Learning and Skills 

29. We will continue to support the development of thriving communities where 

citizens are supported to develop the skills, confidence and ambition for life, 

active citizenship and work.  The Lifelong Learning and Skills Service works to 

ensure people are supported and enabled to achieve their learning, skills and 

employment outcomes and develop their careers through high quality, locally-

led learning and employment opportunities. 

30. This work includes the delivery of a localised employment service for those 

facing the greatest barriers to work, jobs and skills brokerage, making best 

use of the apprenticeship levy, the generation of job opportunities for the most 

vulnerable, and the redesign of a devolved skills system.  

31. In addition, this includes the delivery of a wide range of learning programmes 

including Family, Adult and Community learning to improve the life chances 

Draf
t

Page 69
Page 131



Appendix 3a 

 

and opportunities of adults and their families, and provision for young people 

including those with Special Education Needs and Disabilities via our 

specialist training centres. The service also leads on brokerage of education 

provision, support and progression planning within the 14-25 education arena. 

Cross-portfolio 

32. We have a number of teams which provide crucial support for our front-line 

services. Over 20/21 we will continue to find ways to deliver this support 

efficiently and effectively in as streamlined a way as possible. Part of this will 

involve reducing premises costs where we can, and in a small number of 

areas we will carry out reviews of staffing. 

33. In 2019/20 we renewed our focus on the support we provide to our workforce 

in order to increase the number of people who are active and healthy at work 

and reduce our reliance on agency staff. This work will continue into 20/21. 

Public Health 

34. Across People Services we continue to deliver our distributed public health 

model, ensuring that all service delivery is evidence based and meets need. 

We will continue to ensure that the Public Health grant is allocated where it 

will have the greatest impact in improving people’s health and wellbeing and 

reducing inequalities. Despite significant challenges with the Public Health 

Grant being reduced nationally we have prioritised service delivery particularly 

focusing on ensuring children and families have the best start in life. Priority 

services including Substance Misuse services and Sexual Health services 

have recently been recommissioned through robust tendering processes.  

We continue to prioritise working with NHS partners including Sheffield 

Clinical Commissioning Group, Sheffield Teaching Hospitals, Sheffield Health 

and Social Care Trust, Primary Care Sheffield and Sheffield Children’s NHS 

Foundation Trust to redesign and remodel services including Emotional 

Wellbeing and Mental Health Services and the 0-19 Healthy Child 

Programme. The Public Health Grant continues to fund a range of services 

provided by the Voluntary, Community and Faith sector working to support the 

needs of the most vulnerable.  

35. Overall People Services is prioritising through the use of the Public Health 

grant a model which ensures prevention and early intervention is focused on 

ensuring that older people, adults, children, young people and families are 

supported to maintain their health and wellbeing 

 

Draf
t

Page 70
Page 132



Appendix 3b

Gross Expenditure Income Net Expenditure

£'000 £'000 £'000

City Growth 43,000 (23,883) 19,118

Culture & Environment 22,983 (14,183) 8,801

Housing General Fund 9,939 (5,661) 4,277

Major Projects 132 (39) 93

Operational Services 120,641 (23,205) 97,436

Place Strategy & Change 1,356 (670) 687

Transport & Facilities Management 77,055 (60,859) 16,195

275,106 (128,500) 146,606

Place

Draf
t

Page 71
Page 133



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally blank. 

Draf
t

Page 72
Page 134



Appendix 3b 

 

Place Portfolio Revenue Spend Plan 

1. In discussion with Members the Place portfolio has five main priorities to 

deliver: 

 A Growing Economy that is inclusive and ambitious helping businesses 
thrive providing good quality jobs  

 Housing that provides affordable homes for all and protects the vulnerable in 
society  

 Sustainability to ensure that the city is resilient for the future and moving it 
towards being Carbon Neutral 

 Quality of life so that people feel proud of the place where they live with 
clean green spaces and a sustainable transport network 

 Good Customer Service and Access to the portfolios services which are 
joined up to require minimum contact from the customer.  

 These priorities are explained in more detail below. 

2. The portfolio works to further develop and strengthen Sheffield’s economy by 

helping existing and new businesses to grow, and provide more, and better, 

jobs. The successful attraction of Boeing and McLaren to the Advanced 

Manufacturing Park are two examples of helping businesses thrive. We also 

recognise the need to develop small businesses (which of course have the 

potential to grow into larger employers) through initiatives like our Launchpad 

programme which provides practical technical advice and support.  

3. Alongside this, Place will proactively lead the initiatives required to meet the 

city’s housing needs across all sectors and areas. .Both of these two priority 

objectives can only be delivered if the city has an efficient transport 

infrastructure which supports journeys for work and leisure.  

4. The Council’s commitment to environmental responsibility is demonstrated by 

our Green agenda.  This includes reducing the carbon footprint of our own 

buildings and vehicles; encouraging Sheffield’s businesses to reduce their 

carbon emissions; and working with our partners to invest in sustainable and 

affordable energy, such as in our District Heating network. Transport and 

Sustainability priorities will be further aligned through plans to improve air 

quality by developing a Clean Air Zone where planning is well advanced. Our 

Parks and Countryside service works to preserve and develop Sheffield’s 

woodlands which hold approximately 2.1 million trees. 

5. We also want to continue to offer a vibrant mix of cultural, leisure and sporting 

facilities and events.  This includes putting on events in the city centre, 

supporting cultural venues such as the Sheffield Theatres – the Crucible, 

Studio and the Lyceum; Sheffield Museums – Millennium Gallery, Weston 

Park Museum, and Graves Gallery; as well as major sporting and cultural 

Draf
t

Page 73
Page 135



Appendix 3b 

 

facilities, such as the Arena, Ponds Forge and the City Hall. The city is one of 

the greenest in the country with extensive local parks. 

6. We want to create new and improved existing public spaces and buildings so 

that they are safe and welcoming for businesses and people to use, for 

example our improvements to the Moor pedestrian area and creating a 

pedestrian area around the University of Sheffield campus.  Much of our work 

in this area relies on large one-off project funding, and large scale projects, 

such as Heart of the City 2 (formerly the Sheffield Retail Quarter), will 

continue to transform the city over the next few years. The construction of the 

new HSBC office building at the Moorhead is one tangible example. 

Construction work adjacent to this building is well underway to develop the 

next phases of this project. 

7. Construction work to improve the public realm has also begun to encourage 

the regeneration of the Castlegate area. Outside the city centre, the Council 

has played a major part in the development of the Olympic Legacy Park 

creating a setting for both public and private investment, in education and 

medical related industries. This is also leading to regeneration of the area 

around the park as shown by the opening of  the National Centre of 

Excellence for Food Engineering, developed by Sheffield Hallam University 

8. Our ambition around creating a competitive city, with a strong economy and 

great assets and transport links, will not change, but how we go about it will.  

In particular, we are going to have to pay for things in different ways and 

influence our partners, like us, to find new ways of preserving activity by 

working more efficiently. 

9. We also want Sheffield to be a city that has successful places and sustainable 

communities, with access to high quality housing, local services, shops, and 

jobs, as well as having excellent parks, streets and other physical 

infrastructure.  Our ambition is that everyone in Sheffield should have a high 

quality of life, and that people feel proud of where they live.  

10. It means making sure our neighbourhoods are safe and easy to move around, 

through delivering our Streets Ahead scheme to improve our roads and 

pavements, and keep them in good condition.  We also want people to be 

able to choose how they travel about the city, whether by bus, tram, cycling or 

walking.  

11. We need to maintain our parks, sports and leisure facilities to encourage 

people to use and enjoy them, and keep the streets clean by collecting and 

processing the city’s waste and recycling, whilst continuing to review the 

affordability and costs of all of our strategic contracts.  As well as making 

Draf
t

Page 74
Page 136



Appendix 3b 

 

Sheffield a better place to live in, all of these help to promote the health of the 

people of Sheffield as part of our responsibilities for Public Health. We have 

dedicated teams running weight management, smoking cessation and 

campaigns against illicit alcohol and tobacco supplies.  We also want 

communities to be better able to help themselves and for people to have a say 

over what happens in their local area.        

12. As a local authority, we also provide a number of other public protection 

services that are required by law.  These include planning, pest control, 

trading standards and health protection services, as well as the coronial and 

bereavement services for the city.  

13. The portfolio spends around £500m per year providing these services. This is 

funded by the Housing Revenue Account, external income and recharging 

internal services for those activities Place provides as the professional expert 

of the Council e.g. project management. The remainder (approximately 

£146m comes from the Council’s General Fund. Of this support, around 

£122m (84%) is expended on four key items – the Streets Ahead and Waste 

Management contracts, the PFI contract for some of the Council’s 

accommodation, and, payments to the South Yorkshire Passenger Transport 

Executive for the provision of transport interchanges, concessionary fare 

schemes and tendered bus services.  

14. The remaining amount of around £24m supports the rest of the vast range of 

services which Place provides. We spend approximately £200m providing 

these services and the gap is made up by charging the (internal and external) 

users for the service.   

15. In 2020/21, we need to reduce our portfolio budget by a further £1.3 million to 

meet the reduced central government funding, inflationary and demand 

pressures and make a £0.2m contribution to the pressures faced by the 

Council.  Not only do we need to reduce how much we spend; we need to do 

it quickly.  The level and pace of change isn’t easy so we will make sure that 

we keep a close eye on how any changes affect different groups of people in 

the city.  

16. A key part of this strategy is to improve our use of resources, by seeking new 

business models, streamlining processes and raising productivity, either 

through using less, or releasing resource, to earn additional income through 

the services we provide to business and residents. Through this 

transformation programme we will be able to preserve the public facing 

services, without reducing service standards or ceasing services.     

Draf
t

Page 75
Page 137



Appendix 3b 

 

17. We will be seeking to drive additional value from our key contracts and our 

external partners who operate as trusts providing services once delivered by 

the Council.   

18. So, given the importance of income from external users of our services, we 

are proposing therefore that we review charges for services to ensure we 

recover the full cost of providing these services reflecting the inflationary 

pressures the Council faces. Those charges that do increase will be 

benchmarked against market rates. 

19. Approximately one third of the planned savings will come from improving our 

use of resources by setting targets for those services which are essentially 

trading activities.to make a small return on sales.  

20. Finally, we have developed a new funding model to align Council services to 

the nature of their activities.  So, where allowed by statute, those activities 

providing services to the public or business will be funded from fees and 

charges. Statutory responsibilities will be paid for by the General Fund, and, 

those activities developing the Housing and Economic Growth priorities will be 

funded by external development grants or the rewards from growth such as 

New Homes Bonus or capital receipts from the sale of land which has been 

developed by the Council.   

21. As in 2019/20 we plan to transfer approximately £3.1m of growth type 

activities from the General Fund to the Growth Investment Fund.  These 

activities will be subject to review to ensure they do meet the criteria before 

funding is allocated.  

 Draf
t

Page 76
Page 138



Appendix 3c

Gross Expenditure Income Net Expenditure

£'000 £'000 £'000

Business Change & Information Solutions 3,419 (1,930) 1,489

Contract Rebates & Discounts 0 (851) (851)

Customer Services 7,185 (1,699) 5,486

Finance & Commercial Services 9,730 (3,272) 6,458

Human Resources 6,502 (1,384) 5,118

Legal & Governance 7,133 (3,120) 4,013

Resources Management & Planning 244 0 244

34,213 (12,255) 21,957

Central Costs 14,954 (18,037) (3,083)

Central Costs - CAPITA 20,674 0 20,674

Housing Benefit 179,465 (179,309) 156

215,093 (197,346) 17,747

249,305 (209,601) 39,704

Resources

Draf
t

Page 77
Page 139



This page is intentionally blank

Draf
t

Page 78
Page 140



Appendix 3c 

 

Resources Portfolio Revenue Spend Plan 

1. We have a number of corporate services which support Sheffield residents in 

their day to day lives directly through the Council’s Customer Service function, 

our service for assessing and paying benefits, and collecting Council Tax and 

Business Rates.   

2. The Council is, a large and complex organisation, where we rely on effective 

professional support to run our business and the services we provide to 

Sheffield people.  This indirect support from the Resources portfolio includes: 

 helping our teams to manage their budgets and staff; 

 providing and maintaining the information technology systems which are 

essential to delivering Council savings in an efficient and cost effective 

way; 

 helping our teams with legal advice ensuring our activities are lawful and 

transactions are effected; 

 making sure we get the best value for money when we buy goods and 

services; and 

 helping us as a whole Council to manage our performance, financial and 

human resources, contracts and our plans for the future. 

3. The Resources and PPC portfolios can help deliver savings across the 

Council by changing the way the Council works.  In 2020/21 directors from 

these portfolios will lead five broadly themed initiatives aimed at delivering 

better value for money user satisfaction.  This is part of the Council’s SCC 

2020 programme to transform and deliver better and more sustainable council 

services for the future. These initiatives are: 

 ensuring we deliver value for money services to Sheffield; 

 preparing the Council for future technology changes and ensuring there 

are business planning procedures which deliver member priorities; 

 develop talent and skills within the workforce to ensure high quality 

performance in everything the Council does; 

 redesign, reform and improve our public services through citizen 

involvement, customer insight and business intelligence; and  

 review of the Council’s governance and assurance framework to ensure 

open and transparent decision making is enabled. 

Draf
t

Page 79
Page 141



Appendix 3c 

 

4. Resources portfolio has just completed a major change project insourcing 250 

locally based staff employed by the current contractor to deliver ICT and 

Revenues and Benefits services in order to ensure we have a service that can 

deliver change efficiently and effectively.  

5. We have already made substantial savings for example we have reduced the 

number of offices we occupy: consolidating 27 locations into three city centre 

sites, thereby avoiding expenditure of £34 million over 10 years.  

6. For 2020/21, further reviews to streamline process and concentrate on the 

priority tasks will allow us to meet the predominantly salary based inflationary 

pressures of £0.7m faced by the portfolio without drawing on additional 

support from the General Fund budget. 

7. Many corporate services have small core budgets and are increasingly reliant 

on trading income (some are fully traded, so receive no budget allocation) – 

this trading income is effectively subsidising the strategic functions that would 

need to exist irrespective of general services to Council departments, such as 

Legal Services. The resources portfolio leadership team has concluded that it 

would be high risk to reduce the net budgets of those services much further by 

assuming additional speculative income.  

Draf
t

Page 80
Page 142



Appendix 3d

Gross Expenditure Income Net Expenditure

£'000 £'000 £'000

Policy, Performance & Communications 4,884 (2,591) 2,293

Public Health (PPC) 1,488 (1,623) (135)

6,373 (4,215) 2,158

Policy, Performance & Communications

Draf
t

Page 81
Page 143



This page is intentionally blank

Draf
t

Page 82
Page 144



Appendix 3d 

 

 

Policy, Performance and Communications Portfolio Revenue Spend Plan 
 

1. Policy, Performance and Communications provides a number of strategic 

support services for the Council, including policy advice, performance 

management, partnership development, research and analysis, equalities and 

consultation advice, communications support, and web and intranet 

services.  It is also responsible for supporting the Council’s statutory Scrutiny 

function and running electoral services. 

2. Sheffield City Council is a democratically elected organisation.  This means 

we have specific additional responsibilities associated with running elections, 

ensuring that the public can engage with the council and have their say on 

important decisions, and supporting Councillors who make these decisions on 

behalf of the people of Sheffield.  We are also responsible for ensuring people 

are registered to vote, and for running parliamentary and regional elections.   

3. The majority of the service’s Revenue Budget funded expenditure is incurred 

on core democratic services (elections, electoral registration, and Scrutiny), 

and the provision of policy, equalities, and analytical advice and support to the 

organisation. The Communications service generates a net surplus to the 

Council, through a range of income sources, including through external 

trading and the management of the Council’s external advertising. 

 Draf
t

Page 83
Page 145



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally blank. 

Draf
t

Page 84
Page 146



  Appendix 4 

Reserves Strategy 

Introduction 

 

1. This appendix reports on the latest position in relation to the level of the 

Council’s reserves. Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003 requires the 

statutory Chief Finance Officer (the Executive Director of Resources) to present 

to the authority a report assessing the adequacy of unallocated reserves in the 

context of corporate and financial risks facing the Council and in determining 

council tax levels.  

2. The Council needs to balance the necessity for reserves against the immediate 

impact on council taxpayers and arrive at a level it considers adequate and 

prudent, but not excessive. 

3. This Reserves Strategy therefore needs to be considered and agreed by the 

Council in setting its 2020/21 budget, capital programme and council tax. 

4. This assessment of reserves is even more important in the context of the 

significant cuts in central government funding over recent years and the cost 

pressures faced by the Council in some areas (e.g. Social Care). In addition, 

there is pressure on the capital programme and ultimately any deficit on the 

programme would have to be charged to revenue reserves.   

5. Reserves can be used temporarily to fund services, and this approach is 

reviewed as part of the budget strategy. However: 

 they are “one off” funds and using them in the budget will only delay the 

need to make savings. Once used, they are clearly not available to 

support future years. 

 they are therefore most suited to covering one off, unexpected costs and 

emergencies (e.g. the 2007 and 2019 floods) or costs that are likely to be 

incurred in the future but the timing is uncertain (e.g. legal or other claims 

against the council). 

Total Reserves 

 

6. The Council's Statement of Accounts for 2018-19 shows a figure for “usable” 

reserves in the balance sheet at page 24 of £409.3m as at 31st March 2019.  

However, this figure is a technical accounting one and is not relevant for the 

purposes of setting the General Fund revenue budget.   

Draf
t

Page 85
Page 147

https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/content/sheffield/home/your-city-council/statement-accounts.html


  Appendix 4 

7. The Council’s total spending and reserves is legally separated in to four main 

blocks: 

 Capital - committed to funding schemes planned over a number of years, 

e.g. highways,  major repairs or rebuilding; 

 Schools  - held in trust and only usable for schools spending; 

 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) - spend on council housing, funded by 

rents; 

 General Fund - spend on all other services not in the above three 

categories, funded from government grants, the local share of business 

rates and council tax.  

8. For the purposes of setting the budget and this reserves strategy, £198.5m of the 

“usable reserves” are irrelevant as below: 

 

9. This leaves around £210.8m of General Fund reserves as at 31st March 2019. 

However, as part of the assessment of the adequacy of reserves referred to 

above, a number of reserves are “earmarked” i.e. committed to cover liabilities 

for expenditure which is already committed but not yet paid for. 

Estimate of reserves going forward 

 

10. The table below highlights the split of earmarked and non-earmarked reserves 

forecast at 31st March 2020 and 31st March 2021.  

11. Of the £221.0m total reserves forecast as at 31 March 2020, all but £12.6m is set 

aside as earmarked reserves for future liabilities. 

409.3  

210.8  

162.3  

24.2  

12.1  

- 100.0 200.0 300.0 400.0 500.0

Usable Reserves

Capital

Schools

HRA

General Fund
Reserves

£m 
Usable Reserves as at 31st March 2019 

Draf
t

Page 86
Page 148



  Appendix 4 

12. Reserves levels are planned to increase by £7.1m during 2020/21. This is 

primarily a cash flow movement as a result of repayments to reserves following 

their temporary use to fund the early pension deficit payment made to South 

Yorkshire Pensions Authority (SYPA) during 2016/17. This early payment 

attracted a significant discount, and so enabled the delivery of savings over the 

following three years.   

 

Estimate of reserves at 31 March 2020 & 31 March 2021 

  
Balance at 

31/03/20 
Movement 
in 2020/21 

Balance at 
31/03/21 

Description £000 £000 £000 

Non-earmarked Reserves       

General Fund Reserve 12,616 0 12,616 

  12,616 0 12,616 

        

Earmarked Reserves       

        

PFI Reserve 31,974 (2,041) 29,933 

Highways PFI Reserve 4,465 (2,614) 1,851 

Total PFI Reserve 36,440 (4,655) 31,784 

        

Invest to Save Post 2015 7,046 1,642 8,688 

Insurance Fund Reserve 9,564 0 9,564 

New Homes Bonus 15,113 0 15,113 

Major Sporting Facilities 28,647 (4,619) 24,028 

Business Rates Appeals 19,595 0 19,595 

Public Health 807 0 807 

Service Area Reserves 16,041 500 16,501 

Other earmarked 75,163 14,214 89,377 

        

Total Earmarked Reserves 208,416 7,082 215,458 

        

Total Revenue Reserves 221,032 7,082 228,114 

 

 
General (non-earmarked) revenue reserves 
 

13. The purpose of general revenue reserves is to provide funding for any 

unforeseen risks and expenditure which may arise during the year. The Council 

will always need a minimum level of emergency reserves. A good example being 

the Sheffield floods in 2007, when we had to use reserves to fund spending on 

the recovery operation before reclaiming costs from insurance or the 

Draf
t

Page 87
Page 149



  Appendix 4 

Government. Finally, cash backed reserves and other working capital generate 

interest which is used in the funding of the budget. 

14. Non-earmarked General Fund Reserves are estimated to be £12.6m at 31 March 

2020, representing 3.0% of the 2020/21 budget (at the maximum net budget 

requirement of £420.9m). It should be noted that, during the year 2019/20, the 

General Fund balance was increased by £4.5m to £12.6m. This decision was 

taken in order to replenish the reserve to the minimum level that would be 

considered prudent. 

15. There is no overall formula that can calculate what the level of reserves should 

be; it is a matter of judgement based on the known risks, budgetary pressures 

and local factors. The 2012 Audit Commission report ‘Striking a Balance’ 

indicated that: 

 

“most Chief Finance Officers in our research regarded an amount between 3 and 

5 per cent of the council’s net spending as a prudent level for risk-based 

reserves…”  

16. Sheffield’s forecast level of General Fund reserves as at 31 March 2020 meets 

this benchmark. However, it is low in comparison to most other major cities.  The 

table below shows that Sheffield had the lowest levels of General Fund reserves 

as at 31 March 2019 as a percentage of its 2019/20 net revenue budget when 

compared to similar councils. This was before it was topped up to remain within 

the boundaries discussed above. 

 

  

Un-earmarked 
Reserves at 

31/3/19,  
(£m)* 

Un-earmarked 
Reserves as % of 

Net revenue Budget 
2019/20, (£m)** 

Birmingham 144.0 16.0% 

Bristol 23.3 6.6% 

Leeds 28.0 5.2% 

Manchester 22.0 4.5% 

Newcastle 10.1 4.5% 

Liverpool 16.3 3.6% 

Nottingham 8.0 3.3% 

Sheffield 8.1 2.0% 

*  Based on 2018-19 Statement of Accounts 

 ** Based on 2019-20 RA data 

 

17. The graph below shows a comparison of both earmarked and un-earmarked 

reserves as a percentage of Net Revenue Budget in relation to other major cities;  

Draf
t

Page 88
Page 150



  Appendix 4 

 

Earmarked Reserves 

 

18. A list of earmarked reserves, their purpose and proposed use are set out below. 

Figures in brackets represent their anticipated balance at 31/3/20. 

19. Earmarked reserves are set aside to meet known or predicted liabilities, but ones 

that are not certain enough to create an exact provision in the accounts.  The 

liabilities are, however, likely enough to say that the earmarked reserves are not 

normally available to fund the budget or other measures. 

Private Finance Initiative (PFI) Reserve (£36.4m) 

20. This PFI grant is a good example of why we have earmarked reserves – 

Government pays us money in advance to pay future years’ liabilities, so we set 

these sums aside in a reserve until they are needed. If we did not do so, there 

would be insufficient funds to cover the cost of contracts in future years. These 

reserves are therefore firmly committed in the medium to long term.  

21. The PFI reserve balance is forecast at £36.4m as at 31st March 2020 and is 

expected to reduce by £4.7m over the course of 2020/21 in line with the 

established PFI spend profile.   

Invest to Save Projects (£7.0m) 

22. The Council’s Modern and Efficient Council programme has delivered a number 

of core infrastructure and business transformation projects that are essential to 

the future success of the Council’s business operations. The ongoing successes 

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

60.0%

70.0%

80.0%

Reserves as a Percentage of Net Revenue Budget 

Earmarked

Unearmarked

Draf
t

Page 89
Page 151



  Appendix 4 

of these programmes have delivered in excess of £9m of permanent savings, 

which have been used to help offset budget pressures over the last few years. 

23. Following this success, the Council is launching a number of new initiatives 

aimed at delivering significant long term savings as a result of some upfront 

developmental investment.  

Insurance Fund (£9.6m) 

24. This reserve was created in 2013/14 following the audit of the 2012/13 accounts.  

The External Auditor recommended that the difference between the Council’s 

best estimate of actual losses and the maximum potential liability should be 

classified as an earmarked reserve. 

New Homes Bonus (£15.1m) 

25. The Government pays all Councils New Homes Bonus to incentivise them to 

bring empty properties back into use or encourage new housing to be built.  The 

Council intends to use the payments to promote housing development and to 

fund economic growth projects. This reserve sets aside the payments until 

required for agreed projects, which now form part of the wider Corporate 

Investment Fund. 

Major Sporting Facilities (MSF) (£28.6m) 

26. The remaining funds are required for the future costs of the Major Sporting 

Facilities debt (Ponds Forge, Hillsborough Leisure Centre, etc.). £4.6m will be 

used in 2020/21 to service the outstanding MSF debt in line with the established 

spend profile. The remaining balance will reduce over the remaining life of the 

contract ending in 2023/24. 

Business Rates Appeals (£19.6m) 

27. This reserve is required to cover potential reductions in Business Rates income 

following future successful appeals. 

Public Health (£0.8m) 

28. Public Health grant funding is given to the Council on a yearly basis. The 

conditions of the grant specify that these funds are restricted to public health 

functions and that any surpluses must be carried to a reserve for use in future 

years. This balance therefore represents underspends in prior years. 

Service Area Reserves (£16.0m) 

29. These are a variety of service specific reserves agreed by Cabinet in previous 

years set aside for long term projects / plans, examples include the Workplace 

Accommodation Strategy and the Flexible Development Fund. 

Draf
t

Page 90
Page 152



  Appendix 4 

Other Earmarked Reserves (£75.2m) 

30. This includes various specific earmarked reserves including: 

 pension deficit payments; 

 children’s and adults social care; 

 redundancies; 

 contingencies for potential budget deficits, including interest rate risk; 

31. There is a forecast net in-year increase on these reserves totalling £14.2m in 

2020/21. This is largely due to a repayment to the pension reserve following the 

early payment in 2016/17.  

Assessment of levels of reserves 

 

32. The Section 151 officer has carried out an assessment of the adequacy of the 

level of reserves held by the Council in light of the principal risks it faces.  While 

the maximum total financial impact of these risks far exceeds the reserve held, 

the overall likelihood of all these risks being incurred in any one year is low and 

therefore, it is not deemed prudent, nor offers best value to hold sufficient 

reserves to cover all eventualities.  Appendix 5 details the risks and the level of 

their potential impact. 

33. The Executive Director of Resources recommended during the 2020/21 budget 

process that: 

 The General Fund Balance be maintained at around £12.6m, and 

therefore in line with the recommended level of 3% to 5% of the Council’s 

net spending, regarded by most Chief Finance Officers in the Audit 

Commission’s research as a prudent level for General Fund reserves. 

 Given the current over spend position against the 2019/20 revenue budget, 

and the possibility of an over spend at year end, the General Fund balance 

will be charged with the amount of any over spend.  In this event, the 

Executive Director of Resources will recommend replenishing the General 

Fund balance to the minimum level outlined above, either by un-

earmarking part of an earmarked reserve, or charging the 2020/21 

Revenue Budget with an alternative savings plan.   

 The most significant ongoing risk is the delivery of financial savings from 

the social care recovery plans. Non-delivery of the plans over an extended 

period of time would start to hit earmarked reserves and threaten the 

financial stability of the Council. The position is not yet critical, but 

stringent focus on monitoring and review of the plans will be essential. 

 

Draf
t

Page 91
Page 153



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally blank. 

Draf
t

Page 92
Page 154



  Appendix 5 

 

CORPORATE RISK REGISTER 

AS AT 1
st

 April 2020 

1. This Appendix provides a brief overview of the main financial risks facing the Council 

in 2020/21 and beyond.  A more detailed schedule of these risks will be monitored by 

the Executive Management Team to ensure that the risks are mitigated. 

Corporate Risks 

Capital financing costs 

2. The Council currently maintains a substantial but manageable under borrowed 

position (i.e. The Council has used reserves to cash-flow capital spend, rather than 

borrow externally) to help support the revenue budget and mitigate residual 

counterparty default risk on cash investments. In operating with an under borrowed 

position the Council exposes itself to interest-rate risk. This risk is exacerbated by the 

uncertainty created by the on-going Brexit negotiation. Recognising this, our Treasury 

Management function maintains a regular dialogue with the Director of Finance and 

Commercial Services and the Executive Director of Resources to monitor the risk and 

review mitigation opportunities. 

Business Rates 

3. Following the advent of the Government’s Business Rates Retention Scheme in April 

2013, a substantial proportion of risk has been transferred to local government, 

particularly in relation to appeals, charitable relief, tax avoidance, hardship relief and 

negative growth.   

4. There is a current effort by the Valuation Office Agency to clear all outstanding 

appeals relating to the 2010 list by the end of September 2019. As at 31st December 

2019, there are around 330 properties relating to the 2010 valuation list with a rateable 

value of approximately £45m under appeal in Sheffield.   

5. Not all of the above rateable value noted above is at risk and not all the appeals will 

be successful.  However due to uncertainty around these factors prudent provisions 

are taken whenever appropriate to mitigate the loss of income as a result of 

successful appeals.  

6. Of the properties outstanding, the majority are either ATM’s or related  and 

approximately 50% are ATM’s. There is a longstanding legal case concerning the right 

to charge Business Rates on ATM’s. The case has currently been decided in favour of 

the supermarkets bringing the case however the VOA has been given the right to 

appeal this ruling by the Supreme Court. Sheffield City Council has fully provided for 

the risk of losing this appeal.  

Draf
t

Page 93
Page 155



  Appendix 5 

 

7. The appeals process following the 2017 Revaluation has also changed and is now 

known as Check, Challenge, Appeal. The aim of this system is to reduce the number 

of spurious and speculative appeals and reduce the time taken to process genuine 

appeals. 

8. To date, the number of Check, Challenges and Appeals processed appears to have 

reduced on previous years. Data released by MHCLG in September 2019 show that 

there were only 90 checks outstanding for Sheffield and 150 challenges outstanding. 

A review of the appeals provision has been conducted to ensure that it remains 

adequate to cover all outstanding checks and challenges. 

9. Up to the point at which the General Election was called for June 2017, the local 

government sector was working on the assumption that 2019/20 would see the 

implementation of 100% business rates retention, the implications of which were 

covered in significant detail in last year’s MTFS. 

10. Subsequently the Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement (Dec 17) 

announced that only 75% of business rates would be retained by Local Authorities. 

The new level of retention was set to be implemented in 2020/21 however following 

the Spending Round in September 2019, it was confirmed that this was now delayed 

until 2021/22 due to the complexities of the current political landscape. The Council 

still expects this increase to replace existing grants such as RSG and the Public 

Health grant, and as such we expect this to have no overall impact on the Council’s 

net financing position 

11. The Council’s financial position is significantly determined by the level of Business 

Rates and Council Tax income.  Each of these may be subject to considerable 

volatility, especially give the legislative changes above, and will require close 

monitoring and a focus on delivering economic growth to increase our income and on 

delivering outcomes jointly with other public sector bodies and partners. 

Medium Term Financial Analysis 

12. On 9th October 2019, Cabinet considered a report of the Executive Director of 

Resources entitled Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFA) 2020/21 to 2023/241. 

This report provided an update on the Medium Term Financial Strategy and the 

financial position of the Council for the next 4 years. This report established the 

budget planning scenarios for the medium term.   

13. The MTFA position is regularly reviewed, and since publication the underlying position 

has changed.  The Council now faces an estimated £73.1m budget gap over the next 

4 years. This reduces to £37.0m if £36.0m of identified savings are delivered 

successfully. 

                                            
1
 Item 9, October 2019 Cabinet meeting 

Draf
t

Page 94
Page 156

http://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=123&MId=7261&Ver=4


  Appendix 5 

 

14. The future fundung environment for the medium term is very uncertain (see below). 

For the first time since 2010/11, the Council is expecting a real terms increase in 

funding from Central Government, but the Council nonetheless faces an £73.1m 

budget gap over the next 4 years. The Council undertakes an ongoing business 

planning process to identify mititgations to these pressures and develop demand 

management strategies. 

Future funding uncertainty 

15. The Government is currently reviewing the basis on which funding is distributed  to 

local authorities (‘Fair Funding review’).  This is contemporaneous with the 

introduction of 75% retention of business rates described above, and also with the 

wider Spending Review, and allocating budgets to central Government departments.  

The Fair Funding Review has been subject to considerable delay and there is 

extensive consultation already complete with more still to do.  This was originally 

scheduled to be in place by 1st April 2020 – the Council is planning on the basis that 

this will be introduced 1st April 2021 at the earliest. 

16. There is a potential risk of net loss in terms of revenue funding, either in terms of how 

funding is distributed within the system or the amount of funding being distributed by 

whatever mechanism.  Currently the MTFS forecasts an overall nil effect of the Fair 

Funding Review.  Any loss therefore would have an immediate impact on service 

delivery and financial sustainability. This also creates uncertainty for business 

planning purposes.  2019/20 is the last year of a four year funding settlement, and 

there is a lack of information from government about future plans for the sector. 

Financial planning for 2020/21 and beyond is currently proceeding on uncertain and 

cautious footing. Late announcements of temporary, one-off funding do not create a 

safe foundation for business planning and investment.2 

17. The current planning assumption is that the net effect of these changes will be fiscally 

neutral, and this is being closely monitored by business planning functions and the 

Strategic Finance team. These teams are able to respond quickly to consultations and 

communicate with colleagues in other authorities to effectively communicate our 

position, to argue for a fair financial settlement and to formulate a sustainable plan for 

future years’ budgets. 

Implementation of savings proposals 

18. The MTFA described a net revenue funding gap, after identified mitigations, of £34.6m 

by 2023/24. As described in the main report, this has since changed to a £37.0m net 

gap. This position assumes the delivery of £36.0m of savings in that term.  The risks 

                                            
2
 Reccomendations and Conclusions from the 76th Report of the Public Accounts Committee on Local 

Authority Spending, published 6
th
 February 2019. 

Draf
t

Page 95
Page 157

https://publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm201719/cmselect/cmpubacc/1775/177505.htm


  Appendix 5 

 

of delivery of savings in all years specific areas such as adults’ and children’s social 

care is considerable, given the increasing demand pressures and the levels of savings 

that have been achieved in previous years.   These risks are underscored by the need 

for the Council to identify and deliver additional savings to be able to address the 

£37.0m gap.  The risk is that non-delivery of budgeted savings will create a threat to 

the medium term financial sustainability of the Council. 

19. To mitigate this, officers are working on the safe and legal implementation of budget 

proposals by: 

(a) Ensuring that there is a thorough understanding of the impact of proposals on 

different groups and communities, including undertaking Equality Impact 

Assessments for budget proposals and discussed with Cabinet Members; 

(b) Carrying out appropriate, meaningful consultation activity with affected 

communities and stakeholders, and ensuring that where the proposal affects a 

supplier or provider, that they undertake appropriate consultation and 

equalities work with service users; and 

(c) Discussing budget proposals with affected members of staff in advance of 

them being made public, and putting in place MER processes where required, 

in consultation with HR.  

Pension Fund 

20. External bodies whose pension liability is underwritten by the Council are likely to find 

the cost of the scheme a significant burden in the current economic context. If they 

become insolvent the resulting liability may involve significant cost to the Council.  

21. The greatest risks to the Council are those schemes at risk of their pension fund 

closing in a deficit position.  The deficit when the fund crystallises is based upon a 

‘least risk basis’ calculation by the actuary, which results in a significantly higher deficit 

than if calculated on an ongoing basis.  The Triennial Review which covered the 2017-

20 period, highlighted the total liabilities being underwritten by the Council for external 

bodies at £10.4m.  This figure is on an ongoing, rather than least risk, basis. In the 

worst case, if these funds were to crystallise, the potential liability could be much 

higher.  The results of the latest Triennial Review covering the three-year period from 

April 2020 are still awaited, however, based on the initial fund performance figures for 

the Council itself, it is expected that there will also be a significant improvement for the 

external bodies. 

22. To mitigate these risks, agreement has been reached with South Yorkshire Pensions 

Authority to subsume the assets/liabilities within the Council’s own fund on an ongoing 

basis where appropriate.  This avoids the significant costs associated with a 

crystallisation event. 

Draf
t

Page 96
Page 158



  Appendix 5 

 

Economic Climate 

23. There is potential for current adverse economic conditions to result in increased costs 

(e.g. increased homelessness cases) or reduced revenues. 

24. The Council seeks to maintain adequate financial reserves to mitigate the impact of 

unforeseen circumstances. 

External Funding 

25. The Council utilises many different grant regimes, for example central government, 

Sheffield City Region and EU.  Delivering projects that are grant funded involves an 

element of risk of grant claw back where agreed terms and conditions are not 

stringently adhered to and evidenced by portfolios. In order to minimise risk strong 

project management skills and sound financial controls are required by Project 

Managers along with adherence to the Leader’s Scheme of Delegation to approve 

external funding bids. 

26. As SCC funding reduces, portfolios are increasingly seeking out new sources of 

external funding, both capital and revenue. EU funding contracts have more complex 

conditions, require greater evidence to substantiate expenditure claims and are less 

flexible on timescales and output delivery targets.  This increases the inherent risk in 

projects which are EU funded.  Furthermore as the Council reduces its staff resources 

a combination of fewer staff and less experienced staff increases the risk of non-

compliance with the funding contract conditions and exposes the authority to potential 

financial claw back. 

27. Moreover, the pressure on the General Fund means that Service Managers are forced 

to seek more external funding such that the general level of risk associated with grants 

is increasing because of the additional workload this creates amongst reduced and 

potentially inexperienced staff. 

28. The result of the referendum on EU membership does not in the short term change 

the risk profile of EU grants. 

Taxation 

29. As a general rule, the Authority is able to recover the majority of the value added tax 

(VAT) incurred on its payments to suppliers, i.e. its input tax.  There are, however, 

special rules surrounding the recovery of input tax relating to supplies that are deemed 

‘exempt’ from VAT, e.g. selling, leasing and letting of commercial land and buildings, 

education and insurance services.  The VAT Act 1994 allows local authorities to 

recover input tax incurred in providing VAT-exempt supplies, so long as the tax 

attributable to exempt activities is less than 5% of the VAT incurred on all goods and 

services purchased. 

Draf
t

Page 97
Page 159



  Appendix 5 

 

30. The Council took advantage of its partial exemption position when making an exempt 

lease to a strategic partner as part of the Heart of the City development, delivering 

substantial savings.  The Council has agreed a 7-year average partial exemption 

calculation with HMRC due to the spikes in construction costs which result in a breach 

in a couple of individual years.  Any breach of the agreed threshold over the term 

would lead to substantial VAT recovery by HMRC.   

31. Building the lease into the Authority’s 7-year average partial exemption calculation 

leaves us at just below 4% in terms of the 5% limit, i.e. headroom of just over 1%.  As 

a result, continual monitoring of our partial exemption position is vital in ensuring that 

we do not breach and also to inform decision-making on future projects being 

undertaken by the Authority.   

32. Land and property transactions potentially pose one of the greatest risks of partial 

exemption breach.  The Tax Team currently engages with colleagues in the Property 

Services team on at least a monthly basis to establish whether planned land and 

property transactions are likely to cause any partial exemption issues.  In addition to 

this, communications are due to be issued in the next month to Heads of Service in 

portfolios making exempt supplies, which will further raise awareness of the partial 

exemption issues currently being faced by the Authority.  Furthermore, systems have 

been developed internally to enable effective monitoring. 

Sheffield City Trust 

33. Sheffield City Trust (SCT) was set up in 1987 to oversee running City’s sport and 

leisure facilities, linked to the Major Sporting Facilities (MSF) that were built for the 

1991 World Student Games. The MSF are Ponds Forge, Hillsborough Leisure Centre 

and the FlyDSA Arena. 

34. The Council has faced almost 10 years of austerity, with significant funding cuts and a 

consequent increase in the maintenance backlog across the Council’s asset base, 

including  the Council-owned facilities that are leased to SCT. In 2018 a 6 year 

business plan was received  from SCT that proposed a zero subsidy by 19/20. This 

proposal was agreed by the Council, but has not been achieved to date by SCT.  

35. In late June 2019 SCT requested, and was given, a cash-flow loan of £1m from the 

Council to alleviate a cash shortfall, and to avoid any risk of default on the bond that 

was used to finance the MSF. In July 2019 the Council commissioned Grant Thornton 

to report on SCT’s cash position. On 20th November 2019, Cabinet approved an 

additional £3.7m of in-year funding for SCT.3  

36. The existing relationship with SCT may naturally come to an end in 2024 with the end 

of the MSF debt. However, the process is not simple with a number of transactions 

                                            
3
 Item 11, Novermber 2019 Cabinet 

Draf
t

Page 98
Page 160

http://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=123&MId=7262


  Appendix 5 

 

that will need to be completed. It is also clear that the best outcome will require the 

Council and SCT to work together in partnership.  

37. Consequently there are a number of risks around the future financial position of SCT, 

and around the level of funding required to support future sporting and leisure facilities 

within the City. These risks will be considered and mitigated by longer-term planning 

for leisure facilities within the City.  

Treasury Management 

38. The Council proactively manages its counter-party risk. Counterparty risk arises where 

we have cash exposure to bank and financial institutions who may default on their 

obligations to repay to us sums invested. Counterparty risk continues to  diminish as 

banks have been obliged to improve their capital funding positions to mitigate against 

future financial shocks. However, the UK’s decision to leave the European Union has 

the potential to intensify these risks as the UK’s decision to exit the EU creates 

significant political, economic, legislative and market uncertainty which is unlikely to be 

resolved in the short term. The Council is continuing to mitigate counterparty risk 

through a prudent investment strategy, placing a substantial proportion of surplus cash 

in AAA-rated, highly diversified and liquid funds and the remainder with counterparties 

with investment grade ratings. 

39. As part of the 2020/21 budget process, we are developing a Treasury Management 

and Investment Strategies, both of which were based on discussions with Members 

and senior officers about our risk appetite. This included a review of our counter-party 

risk to ensure it is reflective of the relative risks present in the economy. A cautious 

approach was adopted whilst the uncertainties created by the planned exit from the 

EU are resolved and the level of market volatility returns to normal levels. Given the 

profound nature of the exit from the EU, we will continue to review our Treasury 

Management and Annual Investment Strategies during 2020/21 to ensure we have the 

ability to respond appropriately to market volatility. 

40. The Council is also actively managing its longer term need for cash. Cash flow 

requirements show that the Council will require new borrowing in the coming years to 

finance capital investment (current, future and past unfunded expenditure). This is 

intensified by the size and timing of investment requirement arising from the 

development of the Heart of the City II project and the timing of any divestment. Added 

to this are the uncertainties caused by the UK exit from the EU will require the Council 

to remain vigilant to interest-rate risk, and will draw down loans in a timely manner to 

militate against borrowing costs rising above our target rates – especially following the 

recent change in margin applied to PWLB loans by HM Treasury and the longer 

timeframe for arranging alternative funding sources. However we will use our Treasury 

advisors  to ensure this is undertaken efficiently and effectively 

Draf
t

Page 99
Page 161



  Appendix 5 

 

41. IFRS 9 introduced a new expected credit loss model which broadened the range of 

information the Council is required to consider when determining its expectations in 

terms of credit losses; and resulted in an increased level of provision during 2018/19.  

On the positive side, when making new loans to third parties, the new expected credit 

loss model ensures the Council undertakes effective due diligence and understands 

the potential financial implications at the outset of the loan and annually thereafter. 

Welfare Reforms including Universal Credit 

42. A programme of welfare reforms, introduced in 2013, led to cuts in a range of benefits 

including Housing Benefit (HB) and Council Tax Support posing a risk to residents’ 

ability to pay their rent and council tax and therefore increases in arrears.   

43. The most significant reform, the introduction of Universal Credit (UC) which replaces 

HB for those of working age, is being  rolled out in Sheffield with full take up expected 

in 2023 or later.  

44. UC poses a significant financial risk to the Council as support towards housing costs, 

which is currently paid through HB direct to the Housing Revenue Account will in most 

cases, under UC, be paid directly to individuals. It is estimated that this could double 

or even treble the cost of collection and increase rent arrears to £15m by the end of 

2020/21. However, impacts are uncertain at present as there is limited data available 

therefore estimates will be reviewed as we learn from the roll out.  

45. The Council administers a locally funded hardship scheme to provide extra support to 

residents who cannot pay their council tax and a government funded scheme which 

supports those who cannot afford to pay their rent. The Council will also continue to 

take robust action to recover arrears from those who simply will not pay. It is however 

committed to not evicting a tenant as a result of arrears due to delays in universal 

credit payments. 

46. There is also a UC Project Working Group which is supporting the roll-out of UC and 

taking steps to ensure the Council is prepared for full take up. 

People Risks – Children Young People and Families 

Education Funding 

47. Schools are entitled to receive a proportion of the Council’s Dedicated Schools Grant 

(DSG) which Schools Forum have decided can be de-delegated back to CYPF to fund 

central services. Academies can on conversion choose whether to buy into those 

services thus creating a potential funding gap. In 2020/21 up to £500k could be at risk 

to centrally funded services should Academies choose not to buy back those services 

funded from de-delegated DSG from the local authority. 

48. If an academy is a sponsored conversion then the Council will have to bear the cost of 

any closing deficit balance that remains in the Council’s accounts. In 2020/21 this cost 

Draf
t

Page 100
Page 162



  Appendix 5 

 

to the Council is estimated at around £500k and remains a risk for any future 

conversions, especially with the continuation of the academy conversion programme.  

49. As part of transition to a National Funding Formula, when all funding allocations to 

schools will be directly managed by Education Funding Agency, Sheffield school 

forum is expected to review and approve all previously held centrally held allocation 

subject to a limitation of no new commitments or increase in expenditure over the next 

two years.  These historical commitments are now part of central school block and 

school forum approval is required each year to confirm the amounts on each line.  

Expenditure in centrally held funding amounts to around £8m. The funding 

announcements for 2020/21 have confirmed that the central school block will reduce 

by 20%, which is £1.1m for Sheffield and are likely to continue to reduce over the next 

few years. 

Children’s Social Care 

50. There continues to be an increase in demand and costs for services for children social 

care both in terms of placement costs, fieldwork costs and support costs. 

51. There are a number of ongoing transformational projects in place to manage the 

increasing demand and costs within available resources. These include preventing 

children coming into care and ensuring appropriate family based services, thereby 

avoiding the need for high cost, out of city placements.Implementation of these 

programmes is contingent upon cross service and cross portfolio working. 

Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) 

52. There continues to be an increase in demand and costs for children wirh special 

educational needs and disabilities. This includes increasing demand for Special 

School Autistic Spectrum Disorder (ASD) places and pressures on mainstream 

schools to support increasingly complex needs, with increasing statutory assessment 

pressure reforms. 

53. The government has announced additional Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) of £9m for 

High Needs Funding and there are a number of ongoing transformational projects in 

place to managing increasing demand and costs within available resources. Delivery 

of these programmes is contingent upon cross service, cross portfolio and cross 

partnership working with Health and Schools. 

People Risks – Adult Social Care 

54. In 2020/21 we have a significant partnership arrangement with the CCG which 

includes various funding streams for core services in Adult Social Care.  There is a 

risk that these funding streams are not sustainable long term and there would be a risk 

to the Council delivering core services should this funding cease. 

Draf
t

Page 101
Page 163



  Appendix 5 

 

55. The new year will see a continuation of the pooled budget arrangement with the 

Clinical Commissioning Group and the Sheffield Health and Social Care Foundation 

Trust to manage Mental Health services jointly within the Better Care Fund and 

identify savings through a new joined up approach to delivering services.  Work needs 

to strengthen within the arrangement to ensure that all partner organisations benefit 

from the joint working and that the clients receive the right level of support irrespective 

of where the funding of the service happens. 

56. For 2020/21 we have put in measures to address the budget gap on all Adult Social 

Care Purchasing ( Older People, Physical Disabilities  and Learning Disabilities) 

however the risk remains that continued demand pressures increasingly affect our 

position to balance.  Demand management plans within service should address some 

of the continued pull on resources and potentially redress some of the continued 

increases seen over the last two years. 

57. The Government announced a higher National Living Wage threshold for April 2020 

than had previously been published.  This has the potential to increase costs of 

externally procured services over and above that assuemed  in the pressures 

calculated during business planning.  This places an additional pressure on all delivery 

of Adult Social Care and could impact on clients in terms of their contributions. 

58. For 2020/21 there is a risk that providers will seek to increase their fees above the 

level of pressure that the Council has allowed  which could increase the potential 

overspend beyond that created by the additional increase to National Living Wage. 

Place Portfolio 

Revenue Budget savings 

59. The Place budget comprises five significant contractual commitments - Streets Ahead 

programme, Waste Management, the South Yorkshire Passenger Transport Levy, 

repayment of Major Sporting facilities debt and the Private Finance Initiative costs of 

some buildings – which together absorb the major part of the portfolio’s General Fund 

support. The Portfolio cannot meet projected reductions in local authority funding by 

only reducing costs in the services that share remaining part of the General Fund 

budget without a significant reduction to those services. Thus in the 2015/16 Business 

planning round, the Portfolio’s strategy was based on reducing the cost of the first 

three of these contracts to preserve the other services. The PFI cost is fixed and 

cannot be reduced without buying out the provider. 

60. The South Yorkshire Transport Levy and Waste Management contracts have been 

successfully reduced. Officers continue to review the opportunities to realise further 

benefits from the Streets Ahead contract and this forms a significant part of the future 

cost reduction plans.  

Draf
t

Page 102
Page 164



  Appendix 5 

 

61. The Portfolio has also developed further strategic interventions planned over the next 

four years including reducing the level of support to Sports Trusts, and has embarked 

on the Place Change Programme to review all the other services seeking a business-

like approach to service delivery to maximise efficient and effective delivery whilst 

understanding the full cost of operational decisions.  This knowledge can then be used 

to set fees and charges to recover the full cost of the service. Realising the efficiencies 

and opportunities within these reviews are crucial to the Portfolio delivering a 

sustainable balanced position going forward. Delivery of the Sports Trusts savings will 

be dependant on the performance of the Council’s partners and the general leisure 

market conditions. This is proving to be very challenging and is being carefully 

monitored. 

62. The portfolio’s future financial strategy is to reduce its dependence on General Fund 

support by replacing it with funding from third parties or fees and charges. Raising 

additional income will be dependent on the performance of the overall economy and 

the competitive position of the services in the market place.     

63. The Portfolio undertakes a number of complex, high profile capital projects which 

require strong cost control from the sponsor and project manager.  Experience has 

shown that this discipline is not present in all projects and has exposed the portfolio on 

occasions to find funding from the Revenue Budget to fund overspends. Furthermore, 

the Council has agreed a number of contingent liabilities relating to developments 

within the city centre. If these were to crystallise there would be an immediate 

Revenue and Capital Budget impact. 

Housing Revenue Account Risks 

64. There are a number of future risks and uncertainties that could impact on the 30 year 

HRA business plan.  Work is continually ongoing to assess the financial impact of 

these. Identified risks to the HRA are: 

 Welfare Reform /Universal Credit: the Government’s welfare reform continues to 

be a significant risk to the HRA. The risk to income collection will continue to 

become increasingly difficult as Universal Credit and continues to be rolled out. 

Mitigations are in place such as funding additional officers to manage the impacts 

of welfare changes on affected tenants. Work is continually ongoing analysing the 

financial risk to the business plan. 

 Interest rates:  fluctuations in the future levels of interest rates have always been 

recognised as a risk to the HRA. These are managed through the Council’s 

Treasury Management Strategy. 

 Repairs and Maintenance:  existing and emerging risks within the revenue 

repairs budget include unexpected increased demand (for example due to adverse 

weather conditions) and increases in construction costs due to inflation. 

Draf
t

Page 103
Page 165



  Appendix 5 

 

Capital Programme Risks 

Project Cost Control 

65. There is an inherent risk within all the programme of overspending on any single 

project as a result of unforeseen circumstances (e.g. ground conditions or 

contamination) or poor management and planning. The Council has made significant 

improvements in the management of capital projects including improved risk 

management, however, in the event of an overspend it will have to use its own limited 

resources to plug the gap.  

Housing Growth 

66. There is a risk to delivering the full scope of major schemes such as Park Hill and 

other housing growth schemes because of the instability in the housing market. This 

could result in schemes ‘stalling’, leading to increased costs of holding the sites 

involved and delayed realisation of the projected benefits including Community 

Infrastructure Levy which along with capital receipts form a key element of the 

Corporate Investment Fund. Any reduction in these funding streams will limit the 

Council’s investment capacity. 

67. It is now anticipated that New Homes Bonus funding (central Government funding to 

incentivise house building) will not continue beyond 2020/21. This funding stream was 

also a key element of the Corporate Investment Fund and could therefore negatively 

impact on the council’s investment capacity.  

Heart Of the City 2 (formerly Sheffield Retail Quarter) 

68. The route for delivery of the remainder of the Heart of the City2 (HoC2) programme is 

now being done on an incremental measured block by block basis, working within the 

approved masterplan, which can be delivered comprehensively over time but not 

necessarily by a single developer and/or the Council. This approach mitigates the 

Council’s risk and financial exposure and delivers momentum. 

69. The Council has committed significant funding for the delivery of the HoC2. This is 

made up of a number of phases: 

(a) £62m - To acquire land and carry out initial feasibility work 

(b) £27m - For the appointed development manager to take forward the pre-

construction phases of the scheme. 

(c) £89m - For the construction of the first building and associated public realm. 

The office accommodation of the building has been pre-let to HSBC on a 25 

year lease, with options to exit at years 10 and 15. This means the Council 

carries the longer term vacant property risk on the office and also on a more 

periodic basis for retail and food and beverage units created as shorter leases 

Draf
t

Page 104
Page 166



  Appendix 5 

 

expire. This building is now complete and the letting activity is in progress to 

secure tenants for the remaining office, retail and F&B units. 

(d) £35m -  For the development of blocks B & C of the scheme. These blocks 

are being built speculatively and so the Council carries the letting risk for the 

Office, Residential and Retail space being created. 

(e) £63m – For the development of block H. The block is being sub divided to 

deliver a food hall and separate office building. A food hall operator will be 

secured before construction costs are committed. In addition the construction 

appointment will be split into two distinct phases so that the office building and 

food hall could be delivered to different programmes as required to meet 

market demand if necessary. 

70. There are a further blocks (A, G, I) which are at design review stage. 

71. This phased approach to delivery also allows for future changes in the scheme to 

reflect changes in shopping habits/behaviours and the expectations of shoppers and 

users of the city centre and to reflect on Council priorities such as the Climate 

Emergency. 

72. Creating confidence in the City through the successful delivery and letting of the early 

phases, stimulates more market interest in the later phases and where appropriate 

third party development may be considered for some blocks.  

73. The scheme is being funded through prudential borrowing which will be repaid 

primarily from the rental value created from the various types of property and from the 

increased Business Rates that the completed scheme will produce (known as Tax 

Incremental financing (TIF)). The financing costs are being capitalised while the 

scheme is in development. There is a risk that if the scheme ceases to be active that 

the financing costs of circa £4m pa will have to be provided for from existing budgets. 

The long term impact of the phased delivery has been built in to the Medium Term 

Financial Strategy.  

74. A programme of development of this size carries with it significant levels of risk across 

a number of areas. These risks are amplified because of the length of the 

development programme and because of the uncertainties caused by the rapidly 

changing retail landscape and the unknown effects of Brexit. 

75. In order to mitigate those risks stringent governance will be exercised over the 

progression of the scheme so that additional cost commitments will only be made if 

there is tangible evidence that scheme has positively achieved its pre-conditions and 

that the demand, rental levels and costs can be evidenced to be in line with or an 

improvement on base assumptions. 

Draf
t

Page 105
Page 167



  Appendix 5 

 

Schools’ Expansion programme 

76. In February 2016 the Cabinet approved a report setting out the need to provide 

additional places in primary, secondary and Sixth Form establishments. The 

immediate demand for places required the Council to commit funds ahead of receipt 

from central government. The actual funding gap between expenditure incurred and 

funds received at 2018/19 year end was £13.5m. Future confirmed allocations of 

funding total £13.1m, with a further £8.4m expenditure committed. Therefore, the 

current amount at risk (i.e. expenditure committed without confirmed funding 

allocation) is £8.8m. 

77. An announcement is now expected in spring 2020 of the grant allocation for 2021/22. 

If the amount granted is less than £8.8m or is not announced  until after 31 March 

2020, this will require a further application of council resources in lieu of further 

funding.  

78. Initial estimates by the School Organisation Team indicated the 2021/22 allowance 

could be up to £11m. However, changing government methodologies over the 

calculation of the grant mean this cannot be relied upon. This therefore remains a risk 

to the Council. That said, robust monthly monitoring of the Schools Places Expansion 

Programme has ensured that the level of potential risk has been quantified and work 

on the accounting treatment has significantly reduced the potential draw on corporate 

resources. 

79. In the event of a change of government policy which further reduced the financial 

support available to local authorities’ capital programmes, the Council would very 

probably be faced with a greater affordability gap in the schools’ capital programme 

than has already been identified above, requiring it to contribute its own capital 

resources. 

80. The Council already faces pressure to maintain the condition of the school building 

estate so there is a limited opportunity to divert funds earmarked for maintenance to 

support the school place expansion programme. The Council has taken steps to 

minimise this exposure by challenging the construction industry to build to a specific 

cost target against Education Funding Agency standards, and, matching the provision 

of some 16–18 year places to demand. 

 

Draf
t

Page 106
Page 168



Appendix 6 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 6 (the Council tax Determination) will be completed following formal approval of 

Parish and Preceptor Council Tax Levels for 2020/21, and will appear here. 

Draf
t

Page 107
Page 169



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page is intentionally blank. 

Draf
t

Page 108
Page 170



Appendix 7 

 

APPENDIX 7 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Minimum 
Revenue Provision Policy Statement and the Annual 
Ethical Investment Strategy for 2020/2021 

Executive Summary 

Introduction 

Treasury Management fulfils a number of key roles that link the Revenue Budget and 

the Capital Programme. In line with the CIPFA definition of Treasury Management, 

these roles include:- 

 ensuring that cash flow is adequately planned for and cash is available when 

needed 

 investing surplus funds in line with the authority’s risk appetite 

 the funding of the Council’s capital programme 

 the effective control of the risks associated with those activities 
 

The 2020/21 Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) 

In Section 2, we highlight that the TMSS covers both capital issues and treasury 

management issues as required by the Local Government Act 2003, the CIPFA 

Prudential Code, MHCLG MRP Guidance, the CIPFA Treasury Management Code 

and MHCLG Investment Guidance. 

This section also reports on the Council’s response to requirements under the above 

codes in relation to training and the use of Treasury Management Consultants. 

Capital Prudential Indicators 

In Section 3, we discuss that the Council’s capital expenditure plans are the key 

driver of treasury management activity.  The output of the capital expenditure plans 

is reflected in the Capital Prudential Indicators, which are designed to assist 

members’ overview and confirm capital expenditure plans. 

The Council’s Borrowing Need (Capital Financing Requirement) 

In Section 4, we explain that the Council’s Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), the 

second Prudential Indicator, is the total historic capital expenditure that has not yet 

been paid for; either from revenue or capital resources, and is a measure of the 

Council’s underlying need for borrowing. 

Draf
t

Page 109
Page 171



Appendix 7 

 

Any new capital expenditure not immediately paid for, from grants, capital receipts or 

revenue contributions, will increase the Council’s overall CFR.  

The Council’s CFR is expected to steadily increase over the next few years based on 

the Council’s capital investment plans; moving from £1.5bn in 2018/19 to £1.6bn in 

2023/24. 

Minimum Revenue Provision 

Section 5 sets out its Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) policy for the 2020/21 

financial year, which outlines how the Council will set aside some of its revenue 

resources as a provision for reducing the underlying need to borrow (as identified by 

the CFR). The core requirement is that: 

 The Council has an approved policy for calculating MRP (this policy) 

 The Council sets aside an amount which is deems to be prudent, having 

regard to MHCLG’s statutory guidance. 

The MRP policy for 2020/21 is largely unchanged from 2019/20. However, changes 

under the new Accounting Standard IFRS16 to how we recognise leased assets will 

require the principal elements of lease payments to be treated as MRP. 

Application of Resources 

Section 6 outlines the Council uses resources other than borrowing temporarily to 

finance capital expenditure. This allows the Council to remain “under borrowed” - 

meaning that we have not externally borrowed to fund fully the CFR. 

A consequence of being under borrowed is that the Council has less cash available 

to invest. However as we receive lower interest on our investments than we pay on 

borrowing, this approach is financially advantageous. 

Current Debt Portfolio 

In section 7, we explain that the new borrowing forecast to be taken is based on 

funding expenditure in the Capital Programme whilst broadly maintaining a 

sustainable under-borrowed position.  

In addition to external borrowing we are forecasting PFI Liabilities to fall over the 

forecast period as payments are made, and in 2020/21 we see the final payment on 

the transferred debt relating to the old South Yorkshire County Council. 

 

Draf
t

Page 110
Page 172



Appendix 7 

 

Treasury Indicators 

Section 8 sets out the Treasury Indicators assess the affordability of planned capital 

expenditure and it effect on the Council’s overall finances.  

This main body of the report details the indicators for: 

 Revenue cost as a proportion of net revenue 

 Limits to Borrowing activity 

Members are asked to approve the Treasury indicators within this section. 

Borrowing Strategy 

In section 9 we point out that increased borrowing rates and the Council’s relatively 

strong cash balances support continuing the Council’s under-borrowed position at 

current levels.  

The capital programme will require new borrowing to be taken to achieve this aim. 

It is expected the increased margin on PWLB borrowing will make lending to Local 

Authorities more attractive to banks, and the Treasury team will seek advice as 

necessary to assess the value of these sources of borrowing.  

Treasury Limits on Activity 

Section 10 highlights the boundaries and limits imposed in relation to variable rate 

exposure and maturity profiles. 

Debt Rescheduling 

Section 11 notes that during 2019/20, no rescheduling of the Council’s debt was 

undertaken and none is expected in the foreseeable future 

Annual Ethical Investment Strategy 

In section 12, we set out the Annual Ethical Investment Strategy that aims to ensure 

investment decisions comply with its investment priorities (Security, Liquidity and 

Yield) and do not contradict the Council’s ethical values. 

Investment Strategy 

In Section 13 we highlight the distinction between Treasury and other investments 

types, the considerations in making short and long term decisions as well as limits 

for investment over 12 months. 

 

Draf
t

Page 111
Page 173



Appendix 7 

 

Section 1 - Introduction 

Key Points: 

Treasury Management fulfils a number of key roles that link the Revenue Budget 

and the Capital Programme. In line with the CIPFA definition of Treasury 

Management, these roles include:- 

 ensuring that cash flow is adequately planned for and cash is available 
when needed 

 investing surplus funds in line with the authority’s risk appetite 

 the funding of the Council’s capital programme 

 the effective control of the risks associated with those activities 

 

1.1 

 

 

The Council operates a balanced revenue budget, which should mean that 

cash raised will meet its cash requirements; over the medium term. A key role 

of the treasury management operation is to ensure that cash flow is 

adequately planned for and available when needed.  Surplus cash is invested 

in low risk counterparties and instruments in alignment with the Council’s risk 

appetite. The security and liquidity of the portfolio of investments are our 

primary concerns before considering investment return (yield). 

 

1.2 Another primary function of the treasury management service is the funding of 

the Council’s capital programme. The capital plans provide a guide to the 

borrowing needs of the Council, informing longer term cash flow planning to 

ensure that the Council can meet its capital spending obligations. The 

management of longer term cash may involve arranging long or short term 

loans, or using longer term cash flow surpluses. On occasion any loans or 

credit liabilities previously drawn may be restructured to meet Council risk or 

cost objectives.  

 

CIPFA defines treasury management as:  

 

“The management of the local authority’s borrowing, investments and cash 

flows, its banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective 

control of the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum 

performance consistent with those risks.” 

 

1.3 Accordingly, the document provide a strategic framework for the achievement 
of the following objectives: 

 

Borrowing: 

• Proposed levels of borrowing are sustainable and affordable 

• The expected costs are well-matched to the relevant revenue streams 
to maximise budgetary certainty 

• Financing is readily available when required for major capital 

Draf
t

Page 112
Page 174



Appendix 7 

 

expenditure 

• The most economical sources of borrowing for a given situation are 
identified and made use of. 

Investments: 

• Security: Public funds are not lost 

• Liquidity: Cash is available when required for essential expenditure 

• Yield: Returns are maximised to maintain, so far as the above 
constraints allow, the spending power of public funds held by the 
Authority. 

Effective Balance Sheet Management: 

• A sustainable and prudent balance is struck between the use of cash 
balances in lieu of external borrowing and any potential risks of 
refinancing 

 

1.4  The Council is currently required to receive and approve a number of reports 
each year, incorporating a variety of policies, estimates and actuals.   

 

These reports include: 

 Prudential and treasury indicators and treasury strategy (this report) 

which covers Capital and Treasury Management issues (see 2.1/2.2 

below): 

 A mid-year treasury management report – This will update members 

with the progress, amending prudential indicators as necessary, and 

advise whether any policies require revision. 

 Annual treasury report – This provides details of a selection of actual 

prudential and treasury indicators and actual treasury operations 

compared to the estimates within the strategy. 

 

The above reports are required to be adequately scrutinised before being 
recommended to the Council.  This role is undertaken by the Cabinet Member 
for Finance. 

 

  

Draf
t

Page 113
Page 175



Appendix 7 

 

Section 2 - The 2020/21 Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) 

Key Points: 

The TMSS covers both capital issues and treasury management issues as 

required by the Local Government Act 2003, the CIPFA Prudential Code, MHCLG 

MRP Guidance, the CIPFA Treasury Management Code and MHCLG Investment 

Guidance. 

 

This section also reports on the Council’s response to requirements under the 

above codes in relation to training and the use of Treasury Management 

Consultants. 

 

2.1 

 

The TMSS covers capital issues: 

 the capital plans and the prudential indicators; 
 the minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy 

 

2.2 The TMSS covers treasury management issues: 

• the current treasury position; 
• treasury indicators which limit the treasury risk and activities of the 

Council; 
• prospects for interest rates; 
• the borrowing strategy; 
• the investment strategy; 
• policy on borrowing in advance of need; 
• debt rescheduling; 
• creditworthiness policy; and 
• the Council’s policy on use of external service providers 

 

2.3 The CIPFA Code requires the responsible officer to ensure that members with 

responsibility for treasury management receive adequate training. This 

especially applies to members responsible for scrutiny.   

 

The Cabinet Member for Resources and Finance and the Audit and Scrutiny 

Committee has been provided with treasury management training from officers 

during the year. Further internal and external training will be considered as 

necessary. 

 

The training needs of treasury management officers are also periodically 

reviewed. During the year officers attended workshops, seminars and 

conferences provided by CIPFA, the Council’s treasury management 

consultants and other relevant organisations. 

 

The Council’s Treasury Manager holds a qualification in international treasury 

management awarded by the Association of Corporate Treasurers as well as 

Draf
t

Page 114
Page 176



Appendix 7 

 

being a CCAB qualified accountant. 

 

2.4 The Council uses Link Asset Services as its external treasury management 
advisors. 

 

The Council recognises that responsibility for treasury management decisions 

remains with the organisation at all times  and will ensure that undue reliance 

is not placed upon our external service providers.  

 

It also recognises that there is value in employing external providers of 

treasury management services in order to acquire access to specialist skills 

and resources.  The Council will ensure that the terms of their appointment 

and the methods by which their value will be assessed are properly agreed 

and documented, and subject to regular review. 

 

Section 3 – Capital Prudential Indicators 

Key Points: 

The Council’s capital expenditure plans are the key driver of treasury 

management activity.  The output of the capital expenditure plans is reflected in 

the Capital Prudential Indicators, which are designed to assist members’ 

overview and confirm capital expenditure plans. 

 

3.1 

 

This prudential indicator is a summary of the Council’s capital expenditure 

plans, both those agreed previously, and those forming part of the budget 

cycle. These plans are approved as part of approving the Capital Budget, so 

are noted here for information.  

 

 

2018.19 2019.20 2020.21 2021.22 2022.23 2023.24

Actual Forecast Budget Estimate Estimate Estimate

£'m £'m £'m £'m £'m £'m

People Capital & Growth 44.5 £15.2 £5.4 £2.4 £2.2 £0.0

Essential Compliance & Maint 4.0 £9.5 £1.4 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0

Economic Growth 10.6 £7.7 £4.9 £1.2 £0.0 £0.0

Housing Investment 48.5 £39.7 £44.1 £56.8 £57.7 £113.5

Quality of Life 20.0 £15.4 £19.2 £17.6 £17.7 £17.9

Transport 4.7 £13.7 £7.2 £0.3 £0.0 £0.0

Housing Growth 11.0 £27.9 £38.9 £76.3 £75.6 £51.0

Heart of the City II 48.2 £23.0 £56.0 £33.4 £22.3 £6.7

Green & Open Spaces 1.2 £1.4 £0.9 £0.2 £0.0 £0.0

ICT 0.0 £0.0 £1.4 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0

Corporate 0.0 £1.3 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0

Total 192.7 £154.7 £179.4 £188.2 £175.4 £189.1

Capital ExpenditureDraf
t

Page 115
Page 177



Appendix 7 

 

 

The Council’s Capital Strategy and Capital Programme provides more detail 

on the key investment priorities aligned to the Council’s overall corporate 

objectives, and are available from the Council’s Website. 

 

3.2 In addition to the table above, the Council may also invest up to a limit of 
£10m per year in loans to local enterprises, local charities, wholly owned 
companies and joint ventures as part of a wider strategy for local economic 
growth.  
   

3.3 The Council may also make commercial investments and these will be 
reported via the Capital Strategy as they are non-treasury investments. There 
are currently no plans to make investment of this type. The capital strategy 
establishes a limit on commercial income (currently 3% of net expenditure) to 
minimise any exposure to the risk associated with commercial investments.   

 

3.4 The table below summarises our capital expenditure plans and how these 

plans are being financed by capital or revenue resources.   

 

Any capital expenditure not funded by grants, receipts, or revenue 

contributions, results in a need for borrowing. 

 

 

Capital Receipts and grants are anticipated to be an important but declining 

source of funding for the Council’s capital investment programme. 

Draf
t

Page 116
Page 178



Appendix 7 

 

 

The significant use of revenue resources to fund capital expenditure primarily 

relates to the use of revenue reserves and rental income raised in the Housing 

Revenue Account (HRA) to fund capital works on the Council’s housing stock 

and acquisitions to meet the Council’s housing ambitions. 

 

As in previous years, judicious use of borrowing to support capital investment 

remains a prudent financing option whilst borrowing costs remain relatively low 

(in historical terms). 

 

 The above financing need excludes other long term liabilities, such as Public 

Finance Initiatives (PFI) arrangements, no new PFI assets are expected to be 

acquired during the term of this strategy.   

 

Section 4 – The Council’s Borrowing Need (Capital Financing Requirement) 

Key Points: 

The Council’s Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), the second Prudential 

Indicator, is the total historic capital expenditure that has not yet been paid for; 

either from revenue or capital resources and is a measure of the Council’s 

underlying need for borrowing. 

Any new capital expenditure not immediately paid for, from grants, capital 

receipts or revenue contributions, will increase the Council’s overall CFR.  

The Council’s CFR is expected to steadily increase over the next few years 

based on the Council’s capital investment plans; moving from £1.5bn in 2018/19 

to £1.6bn in 2023/24. 

 

4.1 

 

The following table shows projections for the Council’s CFR: 

 

Draf
t

Page 117
Page 179



Appendix 7 

 

4.2 The CFR does not increase indefinitely.  Statute requires the Council to 

charge an amount each year to the budget known as the Minimum Revenue 

Provision (MRP). This charge mimics depreciation, reduces the CFR, and 

ensures the Council has enough cash to repay its debts.  

 

The CFR also includes other long term liabilities such as PFI arrangements.  

Whilst these form part of the CFR, and therefore the Council’s borrowing 

requirement, these types of arrangements include a borrowing facility which 

means the Council is not required to separately borrow for these schemes. 

The Council currently has £390.0m (2018/19 £400.8m) of such arrangements 

within the CFR. 

 

Section 5  - Minimum Revenue Provision 

Key Points: 

Each year the Council sets out its Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) policy, 
which outlines how the Council will set aside some of its revenue resources as 
a provision for reducing the underlying need to borrow (as identified by the 
CFR). The core requirement is that: 

 The Council has an approved policy for calculating MRP (this policy) 
 The Council sets aside an amount which is deems to be prudent, having 

regard to MHCLG’s statutory guidance. 

 

The MRP policy for 2020/21 is largely unchanged from 2019/20. However, 
changes under the new Accounting Standard IFRS16 to how we recognise 
leased assets will require the principal elements of lease payments to be treated 
as MRP. 

 

The Council is recommended to approve the following MRP statement: 

 

5.1 

 

For capital expenditure incurred before 1st April 2008, or which in the future 

will be Supported Capital Expenditure (expenditure which receives income 

support from government), MRP will be charged on a flat line basis over fifty 

years.  This will ensure that all debt associated with Supported Capital 

Expenditure is fully provided for up to the Adjustment A level that is required of 

us by government within fifty years and better aligns the charges we make to 

the General Fund with the funding we receive from government. Adjustment A 

is a device for achieving neutrality between the old and new MRP systems. 

This was an amount calculated at the start of the new system in 2004 and is 

not subsequently varied. 

 

5.2 The above approach is a prudent way of ensuring the Council can pay down 

debt in good time. In the event changes to the policy create over provisions, 

the over provision will be recovered over a prudent period; ensuring that at no 

Draf
t

Page 118
Page 180



Appendix 7 

 

point the resultant MRP charge is negative. Going forward, changes to the 

guidance prevents over provisions arising from change in MRP policy from 

2018/19 onwards. 

 

5.3 The Council will apply Voluntary Revenue Provisions (VRP) to realign overall 

charges to the ‘regulatory method’ where it is considered prudent to do so.  

From 1st April 2007, the MRP on all unsupported borrowing has been based 

on the ‘asset life method’.  This means that MRP is based on the estimated 

useful life of the assets created.  

Where it is considered prudent to do so, the Council will adopt an annuity 

profile for MRP charges under the asset life methodology.  Adoption of this 

approach will be considered on a scheme-by-scheme basis, and will only be 

used where adoption will result in costs being better aligned to the benefit 

flows that will accrue from the investment. 

 

5.4 There is no requirement on the HRA to make a minimum revenue provision 

but there is a requirement for a charge for depreciation to be made.  The HRA 

may opt to make voluntary revenue provisions where it is prudent to do so. 

 

5.5 Where appropriate, the Council will defer the MRP related to specific projects 

until the asset(s) for the project become(s) operational.  This is known as an 

MRP holiday and will allow the Council to align borrowing repayments to the 

economic benefit generated from those assets. 

 

5.6 The Council will also withhold MRP payments related to the acquisition of 

assets purchased under compulsory purchase orders (CPO) where there is a 

commitment to pass these assets and their costs onto a development vehicle.  

Where capital loans are provided by the Council under section 25 of the ‘The 

Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) Regulations 

2003’, the Council will, where it is prudent to do so, align MRP profiles to loan 

repayments.  This will ensure the Council does not unnecessarily charge 

amounts to its revenue budget. 

The Council can at times receive capitalisation directives from the Secretary of 

State. Where this is the case, the Council’s policy will be to provide for MRP 

as the capitalisation is defrayed, rather than on initial recognition.  The ‘asset-

life’ approach will be taken to providing for MRP on capitalized spend, but 

where there is no discernible asset-life the Council will opt for a 20 year life. 

 

5.7 In line with MHCLG guidance and to mitigate the impact of the move to 

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) on the Council’s revenue 

account, it is the policy of the Council to make an annual MRP charge equal to 

Draf
t

Page 119
Page 181



Appendix 7 

 

the portion of the PFI unitary charge or lease payment taken to the Balance 

Sheet to reduce the liability. 

During 2020/21, the Council will implement the new leasing standard (IFRS16) 

which will result in more lease assets being recognised on the balance sheet 

and therefore impact on the Councils CFR.  As a result there will be an 

increased MRP charge (replacing the revenue impact of the principal element 

of the lease payments so the impact is only presentational). 

 

5.8 A change introduced by the revised MHCLG MRP Guidance was the 

allowance that any charges made over the statutory minimum revenue 

provision (MRP), voluntary revenue provision (VRP) or overpayments, can, if 

needed, be reclaimed in later years if deemed necessary or prudent.   

In order for these sums to be reclaimed for use in the budget, this policy must 

disclose the cumulative overpayment made each year.  In the period to 31 

March 2020 the total VRP overpayments were £0.3m. 

Where revenue funds are identified as being available to make VRP payments 

by a service, advice is to use the surplus to offset in year capital expenditure if 

possible, before allocating funds to reduce existing MRP costs. 

 

Section 6 - Application of Resources 

Key Points: 

The Council uses resources other than borrowing temporarily to finance capital 
expenditure. This allows the Council to remain “under borrowed” - meaning that 
we have not externally borrowed to fund fully the CFR. 

 

A consequence of being under borrowed is that the Council has less cash 
available to invest. However as we receive lower interest on our investments 
than we pay on borrowing, this approach is financially advantageous. 

 

6.1 

 

The application of resources (capital receipts, grants, revenue reserves) to 

finance capital expenditure will have an associated impact on investment 

balances, unless resources are supplemented each year from new sources 

such as asset sales or the receipt of other grants.  This is simply because as 

receipts, reserves, and grants are spent, there is less cash available to place 

on deposit.  

Detailed below are estimates of the year end balances for each resource and 

anticipated cash balances. 

Draf
t

Page 120
Page 182



Appendix 7 

 

 
*The vast majority of these reserves are earmarked for future spend, and do not represent 
available surplus for revenue budget purposes 

 

6.2 The above table shows that the Council plans to remain ‘under-borrowed’ 

throughout the period.  This means that we have not yet taken loans to finance 

all our borrowing needs.  Instead, the Council has used its own cash balances 

that it doesn’t need immediately.  These balances include grants received in 

advance, reserves and provisions being held over for future spend, and capital 

receipts that have yet to be deployed. 

 

6.3 Operating in this manner is a good-fit for our wider operating environment.  

Low interest-rates mean that investment returns from cash held on deposit are 

poor.  This does not provide us with an incentive to hold cash on deposit.  

Conversely, whilst borrowing costs are still very low in historical terms, these 

costs are still higher than investment returns.  So, where possible, it is 

cheaper to use our own cash balances than use external loans at more 

expensive rates. 

This approach also minimises our counterparty risks, as it reduce the amount 

of cash we invest in counterparties (i.e. banks and pension funds) Following 

the financial crash in 2008, we remain cautious about where we invest.   

 

6.4 Whilst an under-borrowed position has yielded significant savings over the 

past few years, it does expose us to a level of risk around interest rates 

changes. Should interest rates increase markedly from the current, historically 

low, levels, then we might regret not taking out fixed interest borrowing now. 

As a counter-incentive, increasing our borrowing before we would use the 

resulting cash would incur significant interest costs. Ultimately this is a 

judgement call. 

Accordingly, it is important that we continue to manage this risk, and retain 

exposure at a level we think is appropriate. To provide a balanced approach to  

this risk, and to keep the under borrowing position at a sustainable level, the 

Council intends to take sufficient additional loans over the forecast period to 

31/03/19 31/03/20 31/03/21 31/03/22 31/03/23 31/03/24

Actual Forecast Budget Estimate Estimate Estimate

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Year End Resources:

Cash backed reserves* 312.7        324.8        305.7        249.4        241.5        235.0

Capital Receipts 136.5        136.5        130.0        124.0        118.0        112.0

Provisions 30.4           25.0 20.0 20.0 20.0 20.0

Total Core Funds 479.6        486.3        455.7        393.4        379.5        367.0

Working Capital -50.4 -45.2 -35.3 -25.4 -15.4 -5.4 

(Under)/over Borrowing -325.5 -326.1 -314.6 -265.7 -263.6 -265.7 

Expected Investments 103.7 115.1 105.8 102.3 100.5 95.9

Core Funds and Expected 

Investment Balances

Draf
t

Page 121
Page 183



Appendix 7 

 

bring enough cash into the Council to offset the outflows principally associated 

with our programme of capital investments including, in particular, the HotC II 

scheme. 

 

6.5 Treasury officers will continue to monitor the financial markets to ensure our 

cash management plans are properly aligned to the Council’s investment 

decisions and the ongoing risks in the wider economy. 

 

Section 7 - Current Debt Portfolio 

Key Points: 

The new borrowing forecast to be taken is based on funding expenditure in the 
Capital Programme whilst broadly maintaining a sustainable under-borrowed 
position.  

 

In addition to external borrowing we are forecasting PFI Liabilities to fall over 
the forecast period as payments are made, and in 2020/21 we see the final 
payment on the transferred debt relating to the old South Yorkshire County 
Council. 

 
 

7.1 

 

The Council’s debt portfolio position is outlined below.  The table below shows 

actual external debt against the CFR which represents the Council’s need to 

borrow for capital purposes.  

Comparing actual debt to the CFR highlights any under or over borrowing.   

7.2 

 
 

Draf
t

Page 122
Page 184



Appendix 7 

 

7.3 

 

In order to avoid any increases to the under-borrowed position, new external 

debt is expected to be needed over the forecast period. The majority of this 

debt is expected to be needed by 2021/22. 

7.4 This analysis shows that the Council complies with the requirement to ensure 

that its gross debt does not, except in the short term, exceed the total of the 

CFR in the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional CFR for 

2020/21 and the following two financial years. This allows some flexibility for 

limited early borrowing for future years, but ensures that borrowing is not 

undertaken for revenue or speculative purposes.       

 

Section 8 - Treasury Indicators 

Key Points: 

The Treasury Indicators assess the affordability of planned capital expenditure 

and it effect on the Council’s overall finances.  

 

This section details the indicators for: 

 Revenue cost as a proportion of net revenue 

 Limits to Borrowing activity 
 
Members are asked to approve the Treasury indicators below.  
  

 

8.1 

 
Revenue cost as a proportion of net revenue is monitored both with and 
without PFI cost and revenue included.  
 
The net revenue stream consists of the money we have available from grant, 
Council Tax, and other sources that is without restriction and can be spent as 
the Council sees fit. 
 
General fund costs forecast a modest rise proportionally until 2022/23 when 
disposals in the Heart of the City development are set to reduce MRP and 
interest costs.  
 
HRA cost also rises over the forecast period due to significant capital 
expenditure following the lifting of the debt cap. The obvious exception is 
2020/21 where accounting adjustments for historic early repayment of debt 
ends.  
 

 Excluding PFI 

 

Draf
t

Page 123
Page 185



Appendix 7 

 

Including PFI 

 

 

8.2 This reflects three prominent issues: 

1. Fluctuations in income and costs arising from PFI arrangements make a 

significant difference to the above ratios. 

2. We anticipate incurring more borrowing costs (interest and MRP costs) in 

the future than we do now; and, 

3. The revenue income streams used for this calculation  increase very 

modestly. 

At a very high and unsophisticated level, this means that we are spending more 

on capital financing, and the rate at which income increases is not keeping pace 

with it. However, these ratios should not be viewed entirely in isolation from 

other sources of information; such as the balanced Revenue Budget. 

 

8.3 The increase in General Fund financing costs primarily relates to the Council’s 
investment in the HotC II scheme. These investments will not only help to 
deliver a revived retail area, to enable the city centre to compete with out-of-
town alternatives and regional competition, but will also keep businesses in the 
city and attract new business rate payers. 

 

8.4 Despite this indicator showing borrowing costs increasing as a proportion of net 

revenue, the forecast levels of borrowing remain affordable and are indicative of 

sound long-term strategic decisions taken by the Authority.    

 

8.5 Limits to Borrowing Activity 

The operational boundary is the limit beyond which external debt is not 

normally expected to exceed.  In most cases, this would be a similar figure to 

the CFR but may be higher or lower depending on the levels of actual debt and 

the ability to fund under borrowing by other cash resources. 

 

8.6 

 

The following table shows the Council’s estimates for its operational boundary; 

which in future years builds in both planned (i.e. known schemes) and makes 

some allowance for future capital expenditure and an estimate of the likely 

impact arising from the change to lease accounting due to IFRS 16: 

Draf
t

Page 124
Page 186



Appendix 7 

 

 

8.7 The authorised limit on external debt represents a control on the maximum 

amount of debt the Council can legally hold. Under Section 3 of the Local 

Government Act 2003 this limit is agreed by full Council and cannot be revised 

without that body’s agreement.   

 

The Council is required to ensure that total capital investment remains within 

sustainable limits and, in particular, that the impact upon its future council tax 

and council rent levels is acceptable. 

 

The authorised limit reflects the level of external debt which is still affordable 

though not desirable due to the impact on revenue budgets. External Debt will 

not rise above this limit without Cabinet approval.  

 
 

8.8 The government removed the HRA debt cap in the October 2018 budget giving 

the Council more freedom to borrow to help address the city’s housing needs. 

However, as the HRA is self-financed, any additional borrowing must remain 

prudent, affordable and sustainable. Consequently the operational and 

authorised limits below have been established which also forms part of the 

overall limits above. 

 

The HRA’s ambition is to add 3,100 new housing units over the next 10 years, 

500 of which have already been provided. The limits established below provide 

headroom to borrow should other sources of income fall short of target.    

 

Draf
t

Page 125
Page 187



Appendix 7 

 

 
 

8.9 The above limits, the capital financing requirement (CFR) and the underlying 

gross debt can be compared on the graph below. 

 

 

8.10 The authorised limit is higher than the gross debt to all allow us to deal with 

both planned capital expenditure, future capital expenditure over and above the 

current planned capital expenditure and any opportunities that may arise in-year 

to restructure contracts.  However, the projected CFR and gross debt figures 

represent current planned expenditure only and not potential pipeline projects 

that have yet to be approved.  

 

Section 9  - Borrowing Strategy 

Key Points: 

Increased borrowing rates and the Councils relatively strong cash balances 

support continuing the council’s under-borrowed position around current levels.  

The large capital programme will require new borrowing to be taken to achieve 

this aim. 

It is expected the Increased margin on PWLB borrowing will make lending to 

locals more attractive to banks and Treasury will seek advice as necessary to 

assess the value of these sources of borrowing.   

2018.19 2019.20 2020.21 2021.22 2022.23 2023.24

Actual Actual Proposed Proposed Proposed Proposed

£'m £'m £'m £'m £'m £'m

HRA Authorised Limit £388.3 £384.2 £384.2 £426.3 £479.2 £499.7

HRA Operational Limit * £388.3 £365.2 £365.2 £403.4 £449.5 £470.6

HRA CFR £345.9 £345.9 £345.9 £360.8 £372.8 £380.8

HRA Headroom ** £42.4 £38.3 £38.3 £65.5 £106.4 £119.0

HRA Debt Limit

Draf
t

Page 126
Page 188



Appendix 7 

 

9.1 The Council is currently maintaining an under-borrowed position and plans to 

do so while it remains prudent.  This means that the capital borrowing need (the 

Capital Financing Requirement) has not been fully funded with loans and other 

credit arrangements (such as PFI arrangements). Instead cash supporting the 

Council’s reserves, balances and working capital has been used as a temporary 

measure. However, these balances are expected to fall gradually, which in turn 

increases our exposure to interest rate risk. 

9.2 However, in accordance with the view taken in previous years, the Council 

recognises the inherent risk in operating to this strategy.  Where there is an 

extension to the current low borrowing rate period, then the Council’s plans for 

its level of the internal borrowing position would be reviewed, with consideration 

being given to maintaining the position at its current levels, or modestly 

increasing it.   

9.3 Conversely, if it was felt that there was a significant risk that the cost of 

borrowing was likely to increase beyond that currently, then the Director of 

Finance & Commercial Services will give consideration to taking on more fixed-

rate loans whilst interest rates are still lower than they would be in future years. 

9.4 The Borrowing strategy may be impacted by changes in the economic 

environment. For example borrowing may be taken earlier if the chance of  

interest rates increasing rises. A detailed economic review can be seen in athe 

end of this appendix in Note 1. Additionally, the risks impcating on interest rates 

can be seen in Note 2 alongside the forward forcast for a number of relevant 

interest rates. 

9.5 The Municipal Bond Agency is aiming to issue bonds for local authorities in the 

near future and borrowing rates shoud be lower than those offered by the Public 

Works Loan Board.  The Council may consider making use of this new source 

of borrowing; as and when appropriate. 

Section 10 - Treasury Limits on Activity 

Key points: 

This section highlights the boundaries and limits imposed in relation to variable 
rate exposure and maturity profiles. 

 

10.1 

 

There are three debt related treasury activity limits.  The purpose of these are to 

restrain the activity of the treasury function within certain limits, thereby 

managing risk and reducing the impact of any adverse movement in interest 

rates.  However, if these are set to be too restrictive they will impair the 

opportunities to reduce costs / improve performance.  The indicators are: 

 Upper limits on variable interest rate exposure.  This identifies a maximum 

limit for variable interest rates based upon the debt position net of 

Draf
t

Page 127
Page 189



Appendix 7 

 

investments; 

 Upper limits on fixed interest rate exposure.  This is similar to the previous 

indicator and covers a maximum limit on fixed interest rates; 

 Maturity structure of borrowing.  These gross limits are set to reduce the 

Council’s exposure to large fixed rate sums falling due for refinancing, and 

are required for upper and lower limits.   

 

The Council is asked to approve the following treasury indicators and 
limits: 

10.2 

 
 
The above table indicates our desire not to increase the number of variable rate 
loans we have beyond our current floating-rate lender option buyer option 
(LOBO) bank loans. The increases in variable rate limits above are exclusively 
from existing LOBO loans that are entering their call period. 

 

10.3 
Maturity structure of fixed 

interest rate borrowing: 
2020.21 

Lower Upper 

Under 12 months 1% 5% 

12 months to 2 years 3% 5% 

2 years to 5 years 5% 8% 

5 years to 10 years 13% 15% 

10 years to 20 years 13% 20% 

20 years to 30 years 13% 20% 

30 years to 40 years 24% 30% 

40 years to 50 years 16% 20% 

Over 50 years 9% 15% 

 

The above table shows the Council’s desire to avoid having too many loans 

maturing in any one period; but retain flexibility over the term of any new 

borrowing to take advantage of the yield curve.  The Council currently expects 

the majority of its loans to mature in the medium term, supporting the HRA 

business plan and aligning maturities to our CFR profiles to avoid over-

borrowing situations. 

 

Draf
t

Page 128
Page 190



Appendix 7 

 

10.4 

 
 

The above table is reflective of our floating-rate LOBO bank loans. The bank 

has the option to re-set the interest rate on these loans, typically every six 

months.  As the Council then has the option to accept the rate or repay these 

loans, we are required to show them as maturing within 12 months for the 

purposes of this indicator. 

 

 

10.5 

 
The Council will not borrow more than, or in advance of, its needs purely in 
order to profit from the investment of the extra sums borrowed.  Any decision to 
borrow in advance will be within forward approved Capital Financing 
Requirement estimates, and will be considered carefully to ensure that value for 
money can be demonstrated and that the Council can ensure the security of 
such funds.  

 

10.6 Risks associated with any borrowing in advance activity will be subject to prior 
appraisal and subsequent reporting through the mid-year or annual reporting 
mechanism. 

 

Section 11 - Debt Rescheduling 

Key Points: 

During 2019/20, no rescheduling of the Council’s debt was undertaken and none 
is expected in the foreseeable future 

 

11.1 

 
Rescheduling of current borrowing in our debt portfolio is unlikely to occur 
during 2020/21 due to the 100 bps increase in PWLB rates applies to new 
borrowing. Consequently any principal and premiums paid to repay existing 
loans would have to be refinanced at higher rates.  
 
Approval of the Head of Service would be sought prior to any rescheduling. 

 

Section 12 Annual Ethical Investment Strategy 

Key points: 

This Strategy ensures investment decisions comply with its investment 
priorities (Security, Liquidity and Yield) and do not contradict the Council ethical 
values. 

  

Draf
t

Page 129
Page 191



Appendix 7 

 

12.1 The Council’s investment policy has regard to the government’s Guidance on 

Local Government Investments (“the Guidance”) and the CIPFA Treasury 

Management in Public Services Code of Practice and Cross Sectoral Guidance 

Notes 2017 (“the CIPFA TM Code”).   

 

The Council’s investment priorities will be security first, portfolio liquidity second 

and then return (yield).  This ensures we do not chase yield at the expense of 

the security of our investment.  

 

12.2 The Council only invests in a limited number of financial institutions, and does 

not hold equities (shares) or other forms of investments in listed companies. 

Investment of the Council’s pension contributions to the Local Government 

Pensions Scheme is carried out by South Yorkshire Pensions Authority in 

accordance with its own rules for investing, and the Council has no direct 

control over these decisions. In any event the Council will not knowingly invest 

in businesses whose activities and practices are inconsistent with the Council’s 

values. To that end, the Council commits not to hold any direct investments in 

fossil fuels, tobacco or arms companies or to the best of our knowledge 

companies involved in tax evasion or grave misconduct. 

 

12.3 In accordance with the above guidance from Central Government and CIPFA, 

and in order to minimise the risk to investments, the Council applies minimum 

acceptable credit criteria in order to generate a list of highly creditworthy 

counterparties for inclusion on the lending list.  The Criteria applied can be seen 

in Appendix 4.This approach also enables diversification of counterparties and 

thus avoidance of concentration risk.  The key ratings used to monitor 

counterparties are the Short Term and Long Term ratings.   

 

Ratings will not be the sole determinant of the quality of an institution; it is 

important to continually assess and monitor the financial sector on both a micro 

and macro basis and in relation to the economic and political environments in 

which institutions operate.  The assessment will also take account of 

information that reflects the opinion of the markets.  

 

The Council has determined that it will only use approved counterparties from 

the UK and from countries with a minimum sovereign credit rating of AA- from 

Fitch (or Equivalent).  These are included in Note 5 at the end of this appendix. 

 

12.4 The creditworthiness methodology (see section 16 below) used to create the 

counterparty list fully accounts for the ratings, watches, and outlooks, published 

by all three ratings agencies with a full understanding of what these reflect in 

the eyes of each agency.  Using these ratings services, potential counterparty 

ratings are monitored on a real time basis with knowledge of any changes 

Draf
t

Page 130
Page 192



Appendix 7 

 

notified electronically. 

12.5 The intention of the strategy is to provide security of investment and 

minimisation of risk. The strategy also enables the Council to operate a 

diversified investment portfolio to avoid an over concentration of risk. 

 

Investment instruments identified for use in the financial year are listed under 

the ‘specified’ and ‘non-specified’ investments categories.  Counterparty limits 

will be as set through the Council’s treasury management practices.  

 

 
Section 13 - Investment Strategy 
Key Points: 

Highlights the distinction between Treasury and other  investments,  the 
considerations in making short and long term decisions as well as limits for 
investment over 12 months. 

 

13.1 

 

The MHCLG and CIPFA have extended the meaning of ‘investments’ to include 

both financial and non-financial investments.  This report deals solely with 

financial investments, (as managed by the treasury management team).  Non-

financial investments, essentially the purchase of income yielding assets, are 

covered in the Capital Strategy. 

13.2 When considering its investments the Council will consider: 

 Its longer term cash balances.  This is cash available for use in the 

medium to long term, and comes from reserves, grants and receipts that 

are yet to be spent; 

 Short term cash flow requirements that arise on a daily or weekly basis; 

and, 

 Expectations on interest rates.  Important when determining a required 

rate of return on the Council’s investments.  

Bank Rate is forecast to increase steadily but slowly over the next few years to 

reach 1.25% by quarter 1 2022. Base rate forecasts can be see above in 

section 10.1. 

 

13.3 

 

The suggested budgeted investment earnings rates for returns on investments 

placed for periods up to 100 days during each financial year for the next few 

years are as follows 

 

Draf
t

Page 131
Page 193



Appendix 7 

 

 

13.4 The Council does not typically place deposits with maturity dates in excess of 

12 months, but should it do so the monetary value of those deposits will not 

exceed: 

 
 

13.5 

 

The Council is asked to approved the above treasury indicator and limits 

 

13.6 The Coucil will continue to use the uncompounded 3 month LIBID rate as a 

benchmark for its investment returns. 

13.7 At the end of the financial year, the Council will report on its investment activity 
as part of its Annual Treasury Outturn Report. 

 
 

  

Draf
t

Page 132
Page 194



Appendix 7 

 

Note1 – Economic Backdrop 

UK.  Brexit. 2019 has been a year of upheaval on the political front as Theresa May 

resigned as Prime Minister to be replaced by Boris Johnson on a platform of the UK leaving 

the EU on 31 October 2019, with or without a deal.  However, MPs blocked leaving on that 

date and the EU agreed an extension to 31 January 2020. In late October, MPs approved an 

outline of a Brexit deal to enable the UK to leave the EU on 31 January. Now that the 

Conservative Government has gained a large overall majority in the general election on 12 

December, this outline deal will be passed by Parliament by that date.  However, there will 

still be much uncertainty as the detail of a trade deal will need to be negotiated by the 

current end of the transition period in December 2020, which the Prime Minister has pledged 

he will not extend. This could prove to be an unrealistically short timetable for such major 

negotiations that leaves open two possibilities; one, the need for an extension of 

negotiations, probably two years, or, a no deal Brexit in December 2020.  

GDP growth has taken a hit from Brexit uncertainty during 2019; quarter three 2019 

surprised on the upside by coming in at +0.4% q/q, +1.1% y/y.  However, the peak of Brexit 

uncertainty during the final quarter appears to have suppressed quarterly growth to probably 

around zero. The economy is likely to tread water in 2020, with tepid growth around about 

1% until there is more certainty after the trade deal deadline is passed. 

While the Bank of England went through the routine of producing another quarterly Inflation 

Report, (now renamed the Monetary Policy Report), on 7 November, it is very questionable 

how much all the writing and numbers were worth when faced with the uncertainties of 

where the UK will be after the general election. The Bank made a change in their Brexit 

assumptions to now include a deal being eventually passed.  Possibly the biggest message 

that was worth taking note of from the Monetary Policy Report, was an increase in concerns 

among MPC members around weak global economic growth and the potential for Brexit 

uncertainties to become entrenched and so delay UK economic recovery.  Consequently, 

the MPC voted 7-2 to maintain Bank Rate at 0.75% but two members were sufficiently 

concerned to vote for an immediate Bank Rate cut to 0.5%. The MPC warned that if global 

growth does not pick up or Brexit uncertainties intensify, then a rate cut was now more likely. 

Conversely, if risks do recede, then a more rapid recovery of growth will require gradual and 

limited rate rises. The speed of recovery will depend on the extent to which uncertainty 

dissipates over the final terms for trade between the UK and EU and by how much global 

growth rates pick up. The Bank revised its inflation forecasts down – to 1.25% in 2019, 1.5% 

in 2020, and 2.0% in 2021; hence, the MPC views inflation as causing little concern in the 

near future. 

The MPC meeting of 19 December repeated the previous month’s vote of 7-2 to keep Bank 

Rate on hold. Their key view was that there was currently ‘no evidence about the extent to 

which policy uncertainties among companies and households had declined’ i.e. they were 

going to sit on their hands and see how the economy goes in the next few months. The two 

members who voted for a cut were concerned that the labour market was faltering. On the 

other hand, there was a clear warning in the minutes that the MPC were concerned that  

domestic “unit labour costs have continued to grow at rates above those consistent with 

meeting the inflation target in the medium term”. 

 

Draf
t

Page 133
Page 195



Appendix 7 

 

If economic growth were to weaken considerably, the MPC has relatively little room to make 

a big impact with Bank Rate still only at 0.75%.  It would therefore, probably suggest that it 

would be up to the Chancellor to provide help to support growth by way of a fiscal boost by 

e.g. tax cuts, increases in the annual expenditure budgets of government departments and 

services and expenditure on infrastructure projects, to boost the economy. The Government 

has already made moves in this direction and it made significant promises in its election 

manifesto to increase government spending by up to £20bn p.a., (this would add about 1% 

to GDP growth rates), by investing primarily in infrastructure. This is likely to be announced 

in the next Budget, probably in February 2020. The Chancellor has also amended the fiscal 

rules in November to allow for an increase in government expenditure.  

 As for inflation itself, CPI has been hovering around the Bank of England’s target of 2% 

during 2019, but fell again in both October and November to a three-year low of 1.5%. It is 

likely to remain close to or under 2% over the next two years and so it does not pose any 

immediate concern to the MPC at the current time. However, if there was a hard or no deal 

Brexit, inflation could rise towards 4%, primarily because of imported inflation on the back of 

a weakening pound. 

With regard to the labour market, growth in numbers employed has been quite resilient 

through 2019 until the three months to September where it fell by 58,000.  However, there 

was an encouraging pick up again in the three months to October to growth of 24,000 which 

showed that the labour market was not about to head into a major downturn.   The 

unemployment rate held steady at a 44 year low of 3.8% on the Independent Labour 

Organisation measure in October.  Wage inflation has been steadily falling from a high point 

of 3.9% in July to 3.5% in October (3 month average regular pay, excluding bonuses).  This 

meant that in real terms, (i.e. wage rates higher than CPI inflation), earnings grew by about 

2.0%. As the UK economy is very much services sector driven, an increase in household 

spending power is likely to feed through into providing some support to the overall rate of 

economic growth in the coming months. The other message from the fall in wage growth is 

that employers are beginning to find it easier to hire suitable staff, indicating that supply 

pressure in the labour market is easing. 

USA.  President Trump’s massive easing of fiscal policy in 2018 fuelled a temporary boost in 

consumption in that year which generated an upturn in the rate of growth to a robust 2.9% 

y/y.  Growth in 2019 has been falling after a strong start in quarter 1 at 3.1%, (annualised 

rate), to 2.0% in quarter 2 and then 2.1% in quarter 3.  The economy looks likely to have 

maintained a growth rate similar to quarter 3 into quarter 4; fears of a recession have largely 

dissipated. The strong growth in employment numbers during 2018 has weakened during 

2019, indicating that the economy had been cooling, while inflationary pressures were also 

weakening.  However; CPI inflation rose from 1.8% to 2.1% in November, a one year high, 

but this was singularly caused by a rise in gasoline prices.  

The Fed finished its series of increases in rates to 2.25 – 2.50% in December 2018.  In July 

2019, it cut rates by 0.25% as a ‘midterm adjustment’ but flagged up that this was not 

intended  to be seen as the start of a series of cuts to ward off a downturn in growth. It also 

ended its programme of quantitative tightening in August, (reducing its holdings of treasuries 

etc.).  It then cut rates by 0.25% again in September and by another 0.25% in its October 

meeting to 1.50 – 1.75%. At its September meeting it also said it was going to start buying 

Treasuries again, although this was not to be seen as a resumption of quantitative easing 

Draf
t

Page 134
Page 196



Appendix 7 

 

but rather an exercise to relieve liquidity pressures in the repo market. Despite those 

protestations, this still means that the Fed is again expanding its balance sheet holdings of 

government debt. In the first month, it will buy $60bn, whereas it had been reducing its 

balance sheet by $50bn per month during 2019. As it will be buying only short-term (less 

than 12 months) Treasury bills, it is technically correct that this is not quantitative easing 

(which is purchase of long term debt). The Fed left rates unchanged in December.  However, 

the accompanying statement was more optimistic about the future course of the economy so 

this would indicate that further cuts are unlikely. 

Investor confidence has been badly rattled by the progressive ramping up of increases in 

tariffs President Trump has made on Chinese imports and China has responded with 

increases in tariffs on American imports.  This trade war is seen as depressing US, Chinese 

and world growth.  In the EU, it is also particularly impacting Germany as exports of goods 

and services are equivalent to 46% of total GDP. It will also impact developing countries 

dependent on exporting commodities to China.  

However, in November / December, progress has been made on agreeing a phase one deal 

between the US and China to roll back some of the tariffs; this gives some hope of resolving 

this dispute. 

EUROZONE.  Growth has been slowing from +1.8 % during 2018 to around half of that in 

2019.  Growth was +0.4% q/q (+1.2% y/y) in quarter 1, +0.2% q/q (+1.2% y/y) in quarter 2 

and then +0.2% q/q, +1.1% in quarter 3; there appears to be little upside potential in the 

near future. German GDP growth has been struggling to stay in positive territory in 2019 and 

fell by -0.1% in quarter 2; industrial production was down 4% y/y in June with car production 

down 10% y/y.  Germany would be particularly vulnerable to a no deal Brexit depressing 

exports further and if President Trump imposes tariffs on EU produced cars.   

The European Central Bank (ECB) ended its programme of quantitative easing purchases 

of debt in December 2018, which then meant that the central banks in the US, UK and EU 

had all ended the phase of post financial crisis expansion of liquidity supporting world 

financial markets by quantitative easing purchases of debt.  However, the downturn in EZ 

growth in the second half of 2018 and into 2019, together with inflation falling well under the 

upper limit of its target range of 0 to 2%, (but it aims to keep it near to 2%), has prompted the 

ECB to take new measures to stimulate growth.  At its March meeting it said that it expected 

to leave interest rates at their present levels “at least through the end of 2019”, but that was 

of little help to boosting growth in the near term. Consequently, it announced a third round 

of TLTROs; this provides banks with cheap borrowing every three months from September 

2019 until March 2021 that means that, although they will have only a two-year maturity, the 

Bank was making funds available until 2023, two years later than under its previous policy. 

As with the last round, the new TLTROs will include an incentive to encourage bank lending, 

and they will be capped at 30% of a bank’s eligible loans. However, since then, the downturn 

in EZ and world growth has gathered momentum; at its meeting on 12 September, it cut its 

deposit rate further into negative territory, from -0.4% to -0.5%, and announced a 

resumption of quantitative easing purchases of debt for an unlimited period; (at its 

October meeting it said this would start in November at €20bn per month - a relatively small 

amount compared to the previous buying programme).   It also increased the maturity of the 

third round of TLTROs from two to three years. However, it is doubtful whether this 

Draf
t

Page 135
Page 197



Appendix 7 

 

loosening of monetary policy will have much impact on growth and, unsurprisingly, the ECB 

stated that governments will need to help stimulate growth by ‘growth friendly’ fiscal policy.  

There were no policy changes in the December meeting which was chaired for the first time 

by the new President of the ECB, Christine Lagarde. However, the outlook continued to be 

down beat about the economy; this makes it likely there will be further monetary policy 

stimulus to come in 2020. She did also announce a thorough review of how the ECB 

conducts monetary policy, including the price stability target. This review is likely to take all 

of 2020. 

On the political front, Austria, Spain and Italy have been in the throes of forming coalition 

governments with some unlikely combinations of parties i.e. this raises questions around 

their likely endurance. The latest results of German state elections has put further pressure 

on the frail German CDU/SDP coalition government and on the current leadership of the 

CDU. The results of the Spanish general election in November have not helped the 

prospects of forming a stable coalition. 

CHINA. Economic growth has been weakening over successive years, despite repeated 

rounds of central bank stimulus; medium term risks are increasing. Major progress still 

needs to be made to eliminate excess industrial capacity and the stock of unsold property, 

and to address the level of non-performing loans in the banking and shadow banking 

systems. In addition, there still needs to be a greater switch from investment in industrial 

capacity, property construction and infrastructure to consumer goods production. 

JAPAN - has been struggling to stimulate consistent significant GDP growth and to get 

inflation up to its target of 2%, despite huge monetary and fiscal stimulus. It is also making 

little progress on fundamental reform of the economy.  

WORLD GROWTH - Until recent years, world growth has been boosted by increasing 

globalisation i.e. countries specialising in producing goods and commodities in which they 

have an economic advantage and which they then trade with the rest of the world.  This has 

boosted worldwide productivity and growth, and, by lowering costs, has also depressed 

inflation. However, the rise of China as an economic superpower over the last thirty years, 

which now accounts for nearly 20% of total world GDP, has unbalanced the world economy. 

The Chinese government has targeted achieving major world positions in specific key 

sectors and products, especially high tech areas and production of rare earth minerals used 

in high tech products.  It is achieving this by massive financial support, (i.e. subsidies), to 

state owned firms, government directions to other firms, technology theft, restrictions on 

market access by foreign firms and informal targets for the domestic market share of 

Chinese producers in the selected sectors. This is regarded as being unfair competition that 

is putting western firms at an unfair disadvantage or even putting some out of business. It is 

also regarded with suspicion on the political front as China is an authoritarian country that is 

not averse to using economic and military power for political advantage. The current trade 

war between the US and China therefore needs to be seen against that backdrop.  It is, 

therefore, likely that we are heading into a period where there will be a reversal of world 

globalisation and a decoupling of western countries from dependence on China to 

supply products.  This is likely to produce a backdrop in the coming years of weak global 

growth and so weak inflation.  Central banks are, therefore, likely to come under more 

Draf
t

Page 136
Page 198



Appendix 7 

 

pressure to support growth by looser monetary policy measures and this will militate 

against central banks increasing interest rates.  

The trade war between the US and China is a major concern to financial markets due to 

the synchronised general weakening of growth in the major economies of the world, 

compounded by fears that there could even be a recession looming up in the US, though this 

is probably overblown. These concerns resulted in government bond yields in the 

developed world falling significantly during 2019. If there were a major worldwide downturn 

in growth, central banks in most of the major economies will have limited ammunition 

available, in terms of monetary policy measures, when rates are already very low in most 

countries, (apart from the US).  There are also concerns about how much distortion of 

financial markets has already occurred with the current levels of quantitative easing 

purchases of debt by central banks and the use of negative central bank rates in some 

countries. The latest PMI survey statistics of economic health for the US, UK, EU and China 

have all been predicting a downturn in growth; this confirms investor sentiment that the 

outlook for growth during the year ahead is weak. 

 

INTEREST RATE FORECASTS 

 

The interest rate forecasts provided by Link Asset Services are predicated on an 

assumption of an agreement being reached on Brexit between the UK and the EU.  On 

this basis, while GDP growth is likely to be subdued in 2019 and 2020 due to all the 

uncertainties around Brexit depressing consumer and business confidence, an agreement 

on the detailed terms of a trade deal is likely to lead to a boost to the rate of growth in 

subsequent years which could, in turn, increase inflationary pressures in the economy and 

so cause the Bank of England to resume a series of gentle increases in Bank Rate.  Just 

how fast, and how far, those increases will occur and rise to, will be data dependent. The 

forecasts in this report assume a modest recovery in the rate and timing of stronger growth 

and in the corresponding response by the Bank in raising rates. 

 In the event of an orderly non-agreement exit in December 2020, it is likely that 

the Bank of England would take action to cut Bank Rate from 0.75% in order to help 

Draf
t

Page 137
Page 199



Appendix 7 

 

economic growth deal with the adverse effects of this situation. This is also likely to 

cause short to medium term gilt yields to fall.  

 

 If there was a disorderly Brexit, then any cut in Bank Rate would be likely to last for 

a longer period and also depress short and medium gilt yields correspondingly. 

Quantitative easing could also be restarted by the Bank of England. It is also possible 

that the government could act to protect economic growth by implementing fiscal 

stimulus.  

  

Draf
t

Page 138
Page 200



Appendix 7 

 

Note 2 - The balance of risks to the UK 

 The overall balance of risks to economic growth in the UK is probably even, but 
dependent on a successful outcome of negotiations on a trade deal. 

 The balance of risks to increases in Bank Rate and shorter term PWLB rates are 
broadly similarly to the downside.  

 In the event that a Brexit deal was agreed with the EU and approved by Parliament, 
the balance of risks to economic growth and to increases in Bank Rate is likely to 
change to the upside. 

 

One risk that is both an upside and downside risk, is that all central banks are now working 

in very different economic conditions than before the 2008 financial crash as  there has been 

a major increase in consumer and other debt due to the exceptionally low levels of borrowing 

rates that have prevailed since 2008. This means that the neutral rate of interest in an 

economy, (i.e. the rate that is neither expansionary nor deflationary), is difficult to determine 

definitively in this new environment, although central banks have made statements that they 

expect it to be much lower than before 2008. Central banks could therefore either over or 

under do increases in central interest rates. 

Downside risks to current forecasts for UK gilt yields and PWLB rates currently 

include:  

 Brexit – if it were to cause significant economic disruption and a major downturn in 

the rate of growth. 

 Bank of England takes action too quickly, or too far, over the next three years to 

raise Bank Rate and causes UK economic growth, and increases in inflation, to be 

weaker than we currently anticipate.  

 A resurgence of the Eurozone sovereign debt crisis. In 2018, Italy was a major 

concern due to having a populist coalition government which made a lot of anti-

austerity and anti-EU noise.  However, in September 2019 there was a major change 

in the coalition governing Italy which has brought to power a much more EU friendly 

government; this has eased the pressure on Italian bonds. Only time will tell whether 

this new coalition based on an unlikely alliance of two very different parties will 

endure.  

 Weak capitalisation of some European banks, particularly Italian banks. 

 German minority government. In the German general election of September 2017, 

Angela Merkel’s CDU party was left in a vulnerable minority position dependent on 

the fractious support of the SPD party, as a result of the rise in popularity of the anti-

immigration AfD party. The CDU has done badly in recent state elections but the 

SPD has done particularly badly and this has raised a major question mark over 

continuing to support the CDU. Angela Merkel has stepped down from being the 

CDU party leader but she intends to remain as Chancellor until 2021. 

 Other minority EU governments. Austria, Finland, Sweden, Spain, Portugal, 

Netherlands and Belgium also have vulnerable minority governments dependent on 

coalitions which could prove fragile.  

 Austria, the Czech Republic, Poland and Hungary now form a strongly anti-

immigration bloc within the EU.  There has also been rising anti-immigration 

sentiment in Germany and France. 

Draf
t

Page 139
Page 201



Appendix 7 

 

 In October 2019, the IMF issued a report on the World Economic Outlook which 
flagged up a synchronised slowdown in world growth.  However, it also flagged up 
that there was potential for a rerun of the 2008 financial crisis, but his time 
centred on the huge debt binge accumulated by corporations during the decade of 
low interest rates.  This now means that there are corporates who would be unable to 
cover basic interest costs on some $19trn of corporate debt in major western 
economies, if world growth was to dip further than just a minor cooling.  This debt is 
mainly held by the shadow banking sector i.e. pension funds, insurers, hedge funds, 
asset managers etc., who, when there is $15trn of corporate and government debt 
now yielding negative interest rates, have been searching for higher returns in riskier 
assets. Much of this debt is only marginally above investment grade so any rating 
downgrade could force some holders into a fire sale, which would then depress 
prices further and so set off a spiral down. The IMF’s answer is to suggest imposing 
higher capital charges on lending to corporates and for central banks to regulate the 
investment operations of the shadow banking sector. In October 2019, the deputy 
Governor of the Bank of England also flagged up the dangers of banks and the 
shadow banking sector lending to corporates, especially highly leveraged corporates, 
which had risen back up to near pre-2008 levels.     

 Geopolitical risks, for example in North Korea, but also in Europe and the Middle 
East, which could lead to increasing safe haven flows.  

 

Upside risks to current forecasts for UK gilt yields and PWLB rates 

 Brexit – if agreement was reached all round that removed all threats of economic 
and political disruption between the EU and the UK.  

 The Bank of England is too slow in its pace and strength of increases in Bank Rate 
and, therefore, allows inflationary pressures to build up too strongly within the UK 
economy, which then necessitates a later rapid series of increases in Bank Rate 
faster than we currently expect.  

 UK inflation, whether domestically generated or imported, returning to sustained 
significantly higher levels causing an increase in the inflation premium inherent to gilt 
yields.  

  Draf
t

Page 140
Page 202



Appendix 7 

 

Note 3 - Treasury Management Practice (TMP1) – Credit and Counterparty Risk 

Management 

 

SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS: 

All such investments will be sterling denominated, with maturities up to a 

maximum of 1 year, meeting the minimum ‘high’ quality criteria where applicable. 

 

The following specified investment instruments, along with their minimum credit 

rating, have been outlined below: 

 

 
* Minimum credit 

criteria / colour band 

** Max % of total 

investments / £ limit 

per institution 

Max 

Maturity 

Period 

DMADF – UK Government UK sovereign rating 100% 
 

6 months 

UK Government Gilt UK sovereign rating 100% 
 

12 months 

UK Government Treasury 

Bills 
UK sovereign rating 

  

12 months 

Bonds issued by 

multilateral development 

banks 

AAA 

 

100% 

 

6 months 

Money market funds 

CNAV 
AAA 100% 

 

Liquid 

Money market funds 

LVNAV 
AAA 100% 

 

Liquid 

Money market funds 

VNAV 
AAA £30m  

 

Liquid 

Ultra-Short Dated Bond 

funds with a credit score of 

1.25 

AAA 100% 

 

Liquid 

Ultra-Short Dated Bond 

funds with a credit score of 

1.5 

AAA 100% 

 

Liquid 

Local authorities N/A 100% 
 

5 years 

Term deposits with banks 

and building societies 

Blue 

Orange 

Red 

Green 

No Colour 

  

 

12 months  

12 months  

 6 months 

100 days 

Not for use 

Draf
t

Page 141
Page 203



Appendix 7 

 

 
* Minimum credit 

criteria / colour band 

** Max % of total 

investments / £ limit 

per institution 

Max 

Maturity 

Period 

CDs or corporate bonds  

with banks and building 

societies 

Blue 

Orange 

Red 

Green 

No Colour 

  

 

12 months  

12 months  

 6 months 

100 days 

Not for use 

 

 

NON-SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS:  

 

These are any investments which do not meet the specified investment criteria.  

Non-specified investments are typically viewed as being riskier than specified 

investments.  A maximum of £30m will be held in aggregate in non-specified 

investment 

 

A variety of investment instruments are outlined below.  The Council has selected 

these instruments based on their high credit quality. 

 

The criteria, time limits and monetary limits applying to institutions or investment 

vehicles are: 

 

 

* Minimum 

credit criteria / 

colour band 

** Max % of total 

investments/ £ limit 

per institution 

Max. maturity period 

UK Government gilts 
UK sovereign 

rating 

 

100% 5 years 

UK Government 

Treasury blls 

UK sovereign 

rating 

100% 

5 years 

Local authorities N/A 100% 5 years 

Gilt funds  
UK sovereign 

rating 
100% 5 years 

Banks 
Purple 

Yellow 

100% 

100% 

2 years 

5 years 

 

Accounting Treatment of Investments 

The accounting treatment may differ from the underlying cash transactions arising 

from investment decisions made by the Council. To ensure the Council is protected 

from any adverse revenue impact, which may arise from these differences, we will 

review the accounting implications of new transactions before they are undertaken. 

Draf
t

Page 142
Page 204



Appendix 7 

 

Y Pi1 Pi2 P B O R G N/C

1 1.25 1.5 2 3 4 5 6 7

Up to 5yrs Up to 5yrs Up to 5yrs Up to 2yrs Up to 1yr Up to 1yr Up to 6mths Up to 100days No Colour

Note 4 - Creditworthiness approach 

This Council applies the creditworthiness service provided by Link Asset Services.  

This service employs a sophisticated modelling approach utilising credit ratings from 

the three main credit rating agencies - Fitch, Moody’s and Standard and Poor’s.  The 

credit ratings of counterparties are supplemented with the following overlays:  

 

 credit watches and credit outlooks from credit rating agencies; 

 CDS spreads to give early warning of likely changes in credit ratings; 

 sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most creditworthy 

countries. 

 

This modelling approach combines credit ratings, credit watches and credit outlooks in 

a weighted scoring system which is then combined with an overlay of CDS spreads.  

The end product is a series of colour coded bands which indicate the relative 

creditworthiness of counterparties.  These colour codes are used by the Council to 

determine the suggested duration for investments.  The Council will therefore use 

counterparties within the following durational bands: 

 

Colour 
Band 

Duration  

Yellow 5 years * 

Dark pink 5 years for Ultra-Short Dated Bond Funds, credit score of 1.25 

Light pink 5 years for Ultra-Short Dated Bond Funds , credit score of 1.5 

Purple  2 years 

Blue  1 year (applies to nationalised or semi-nationalised UK Banks) 

Orange 1 year 

Red  6 months 

Green  100 days   

No colour  not to be used  
 

 

 

Whilst the above gives the council scope to invest for periods in excess of 12 months, 

the Council does not expect to do so during 2019/20.  Should it choose to do so, the 

action will be reported to the Cabinet Member for Finance at the earliest available 

opportunity. 

Link Asset Services’ creditworthiness service uses a wide array of information other 

than just primary ratings. Furthermore, by using a risk weighted scoring system, it 

Draf
t

Page 143
Page 205



Appendix 7 

 

does not give undue significance to just one agency’s ratings. 

Typically the minimum credit ratings criteria the Council use will be a short term rating 

(Fitch or equivalents) of short term rating F1, and a long term rating A.  There may be 

occasions when the counterparty ratings from one rating agency are marginally lower 

than these ratings but may still be used.  In these instances consideration will be given 

to the whole range of ratings available, or other topical market information, to support 

their use. 

 

 Colour (and long 

term rating where 

applicable) 

Money 

and / or 

% Limit 

Time 

Limit 

Banks * Yellow 100% 5 years 

Banks  Purple £30m 2 years 

Banks  Orange £30m 1 year 

Banks – part nationalised** Blue £50m 1 year 

Banks – UK only Red £20m 6 months 

Banks – non UK Red £15m 6 months 

Banks  Green £10m 100 days 

Banks  
No colour 

Not to be 
used 

 

Council’s banker in the event  
of the bank being ‘no colour’ 

- 100 % 5 days *** 

DMADF UK Sovereign 
Rating 

100% 6 months 

Local authorities n/a £30m 5yrs 

Money market funds CNAV**** AAA 100 % liquid 

Money market funds 
LVNAV***** 

AAA 100 % liquid 

Money market funds 
VNAV****** 

AAA £30m liquid 

Ultra-Short Dated Bond Funds 
with  a credit score of 1.25 

Dark pink / AAA 100 % liquid 

Ultra-Short Dated Bond Funds 
with  a credit score of 1.5 

Light pink / AAA 100 % liquid 

 

 
* Please note: the yellow colour category is for UK Government debt, or its equivalent, constant net asset value 
money market funds and collateralised deposits where the collateral is UK Government debt. 
 

Draf
t

Page 144
Page 206



Appendix 7 

 

** When placing deposits with part nationalised banks the Council will take care to review when it expects the UK 
Government to divest its interest in the institution, and the impact this move would have on the Council’s view of the 
institutions security. 

 
*** to cover period to next working day allowing for weekends and bank holidays e.g. Easter 
 
**** CNAV refers to Constant Net Asset Value Money Market Funds when investors will be able to purchase and 
redeem at a constant Net Asset Value(£1 in / £1 out) 
***** LVNAV refers to Low Volatility Net Asset Value Money Market Funds when investors will be able to purchase 
and redeem at a stableNet Asset Value to two decimal places, provided the fund is managed to 
certain restrictions 
 
****** VNAV refers to Variable Net Asset Value Money Market Funds where the price may vary 
All credit ratings will be monitored weekly.  The Council is alerted to changes to ratings 

of all three agencies through its use of the Link Asset Services creditworthiness 

service.  

 if a downgrade results in the counterparty / investment scheme no longer 

meeting the Council’s minimum criteria, its further use as a new investment will 

be withdrawn immediately. 

 in addition to the use of credit ratings, the Council will be advised of information 

in movements in credit default swap spreads against the iTraxx benchmark and 

other market data on a weekly basis.  Extreme market movements may result in 

downgrade of an institution or removal from the Council’s lending list. 

Sole reliance will not be placed on the use of this external service.  The Council will 

also use market data and market information, information on government support for 

banks, and the credit ratings of that supporting government. 

 

The Council has determined that it will only use approved counterparties from the UK 

and from countries with a minimum sovereign credit rating of AA- from Fitch (or 

Equivalent).   

 

  
Draf

t

Page 145
Page 207



Appendix 7 

 

 

Note 5 - Approved countries for investments: 

This list is based on the lowest available sovereign rating from the three main rating 

agencies: Fitch, Moody’s and Standard & Poors. 

AAA                      

 Australia 

 Canada 

 Denmark 

 Germany 

 Luxembourg 

 Netherlands  

 Norway 

 Singapore 

 Sweden 

 Switzerland 

 U.S.A 

 

AA+ 

 Finland 

 Hong Kong 

 Austria 

 

AA 

 Abu Dhabi (UAE) 

 France 

 U.K. 

 New Zealand 

 

AA- 

 Belgium      

 Qatar 

 

Draf
t

Page 146
Page 208



  Appendix 8 

 

Pay Policy Statement 
 

Background 

1. Sheffield City Council is required under Sections 38–43 of the Localism Act 2011 

to publish its pay policy. Sheffield City Council has routinely, on an annual basis, 

published data on all posts which have remuneration above £50,000. 

2. The Council continues to monitor closely its senior management posts and 

keeps the structure under review to ensure it continues to be fit for purpose. 

3. This policy statement does not cover or include staff employed by schools and is 

not required to do so. 

4. This policy statement is required to be considered and approved by full Council 

at the Council meeting. 

Definition of Officers Covered by this Policy Statement 

5. This policy statement covers the following posts, full details of these posts is 

attached at Annex 1. 

a) Head of the Paid Service, which in Sheffield City Council is the post of the 

Chief Executive (required by Local Government & Housing Act 1988). 

b) Statutory Chief Officers, which in Sheffield City Council are the posts of: 

i) Director of Adult Services (under Local Authority Social Services Act 

1970)  

ii) Executive Director of People (Director of Children's Services under 

Children's Act) 

iii) Director of Legal and Governance (Monitoring Officer, required by Local 

Government & Housing Act 1988) 

iv) Executive Director of Resources (Chief Finance Officer under Section 

151 of Local Government Act 1972) 

v) Director of Public Health (required by National Health Service Act 2006). 

c) Non-statutory Chief Officers (those who report to the Head of Paid Service or 

Statutory Officer) 

d) Chief Officers (those who report to Non Statutory Chief Officers)  

Draf
t

Page 147
Page 209



  Appendix 8 

 

Pay Policy Statement 

6. Sheffield City Council’s aim on matters of remuneration is to have in place an 

approach that enables the authority to: 

 Recruit and retain people with the skills and expertise to deliver high quality 

services to the citizens of Sheffield City Council; 

 Manage employee remuneration in a manner that is fair, transparent and 

reasonable; 

 Take account of national and regional pay policy and market trends in the 

context of local government; 

 Have a framework for managing the range of pay across the Council’s 

workforce, this is known as pay ratios; 

 Have simple uniform packages across all employment groups and to 

manage pay matters within national guidelines and agreements; 

 Protect and remunerate low paid employees at appropriate levels and this 

includes the Council’s commitment to the Living Wage, and; 

 Protect jobs and services for as long as reasonably possible and this 

includes a prudent, affordable and fair approach to pay.  

Policy on Remunerating Chief Officers 

7. Sheffield City Council’s policy is to pay Chief Officers’ basic annual salary; Chief 

Officers’ salaries do not attract enhancements or bonus of any kind. There are 

no additional enhancements to redundancy payments, pension contributions or 

pension payments outside of the Council’s normal arrangements for all Sheffield 

City Council employees. Travel and other expenses are paid through the normal 

authority procedures. 

8. It is the policy of this authority to establish a remuneration package for each 

Chief Officer post that is sufficient to attract and retain staff of the appropriate 

skills, knowledge, experience, abilities and qualities that is consistent with the 

authority’s requirements of the post in question at the relevant time. Grading 

decisions are determined through a process of Job Evaluation which assesses 

the key factors of each role. The Chief Officer Grading Structure is attached as 

Annex 2. 

9. Recruitment to a Chief Officer post is undertaken by the Senior Officers 

Employment Committee which is a sub-committee of the Council; membership is 

agreed by Council on an annual basis. All recommendations for appointment at 

this level are ratified by Cabinet. 

10. All posts will be advertised and appointed to at the appropriate approved salary 

for the post in question, unless there is good evidence that a successful 

Draf
t

Page 148
Page 210



  Appendix 8 

 

appointment of a person with the required skills, knowledge, experience, abilities 

and qualities cannot be made without varying the remuneration package. In such 

circumstances a variation to the remuneration package may be appropriate 

under the authority’s policy and any variation will be approved through the 

appropriate authority decision making process. 

11. The authority will apply any pay increases that are agreed by relevant national 

negotiating bodies and/or any pay increases that are agreed through local 

negotiations. The authority will also apply any pay increases that are as a result 

of authority decisions to significantly increase the duties and responsibilities of 

the post in question beyond the normal flexing of duties and responsibilities that 

are expected in senior posts. 

12. The authority will not make additional payments beyond those specified in the 

contract of employment unless varied by the appropriate authority decision 

making process 

13. The Council sets and makes payment to the Returning Officer for the 

management and administration of local elections. The Returning Officer will 

make payments to those officers who undertake specific duties in relation to the 

elections (including Chief Officers) dependent on their role.  

14. It should be noted that any fees payable for duties in connection with 

Parliamentary and European elections, election for Police Commissioners or 

referenda are recouped from Central Government subject to a prescribed 

aggregate maximum amount, and are not funded by the Council. 

15. The authority does not operate a performance related pay system as it believes 

that it has sufficiently strong performance management arrangements in place to 

ensure high performance from its senior officers. Any areas of under-

performance are addressed rigorously. 

16. The authority does not operate an earn-back pay system as it believes that it has 

sufficiently strong performance management arrangements in place to ensure 

high performance from its senior officers. Any areas of under-performance are 

addressed rigorously. 

Policy on Remunerating the Lowest Paid in the Workforce 

17. The authority applies terms and conditions of employment that have been 

negotiated and agreed through appropriate collective bargaining mechanisms 

(national or local) or as a consequence of authority decisions, and these are 

incorporated into contracts of employment. The lowest pay point in this authority 

is Grade 1, point 1. This relates to an annual salary of £17,346 and can be 

expressed as an hourly rate of pay of £9.00 (April 2019 to March 2020). 

Draf
t

Page 149
Page 211



  Appendix 8 

 

18. A decision was taken at Cabinet on 16 January 2013 to uplift the pay of 

employees earning less than the nationally recognised Living Wage and align 

this with the Living Wage Foundation rate.  

19. From April 2020 this will increase to £9.30 per hour. The payment will be made 

as a supplement which will be reviewed on an annual basis.  

20. Pay rates are increased in accordance with any pay settlements which are 

reached through the National Joint Council for Local Government Services. 

Remuneration ratios 

21. The requirement for the Policy also reflects the concerns over low pay 

highlighted in Will Hutton’s 2011 Review of Fair Pay in the Public Sector. This 

stated that the ratio between the highest paid salary and the median average, 

should provide a pay multiple of no more than 20:1. It is not a requirement to 

publish this ratio as part of the Council’s Pay Policy Statement, but is a 

requirement of the Local Government Transparency Code 2014. Currently in this 

authority the ratio between the highest salary (£195,905) and the median 

average salary (£25,801) is 7.59:1. This demonstrates the authority’s 

commitment to a fair approach to pay.   

Approval of Salary Packages in Excess of £100k 

22. The authority will ensure that, at the latest before an offer of appointment is 

made, any salary package for any post (not including schools) that is in excess 

of £100k will be considered by full Council. The salary package will be defined as 

base salary plus any fees, routinely payable allowances and benefits in kind that 

are due under the contract. 

Flexibility to Address Recruitment Issues for Vacant Posts 

23. In the vast majority of circumstances the provisions of this policy will enable the 

authority to ensure that it can recruit effectively to any vacant post. There may be 

exceptional circumstances when there are recruitment difficulties for a particular 

post and where there is evidence that an element or elements of the 

remuneration package are not sufficient to secure an effective appointment. This 

policy statement recognises that this situation may arise in exceptional 

circumstances and therefore a departure from this policy can be implemented 

without having to seek full Council approval for a change of the policy statement. 

Such a departure from this policy will be expressly justified in each case and will 

be approved through an appropriate authority decision making route. 

Amendments to the Policy 

24. As the policy covers the period April 2020 to the end of March 2021, 

amendments may need to be made to the policy throughout the relevant period. 

As the Localism Act 2011 requires that any amendments are approved by the 

Draf
t

Page 150
Page 212



  Appendix 8 

 

Council by resolution, proposed amendments will be reported to the Cabinet 

Member for Finance and Resources for recommendation to the Council. 

Policy for Future Years 

25. This policy statement will be reviewed each year and will be presented to full 

Council each year for consideration in order to ensure that a policy is in place for 

the authority prior to the start of each financial year. 

 
Mark Bennett 
Director of Human Resources & Customer Services 
January 2020 
 

Draf
t

Page 151
Page 213



  Appendix 8 Annex 1 

 

Annex 1 – Chief Officer Posts 
 
None of the Post holders listed below receives an honorarium payment for increased 
duties and responsibilities. Nor do any receive a payment related to joint authority 
duties.  The following table sets out pay as of 1/4/20 using the Chief Officer pay scale 
as of 1/4/20. Any pay award during 20/21 would be applied as agreed. 

 

Status Post (relevant statute, if 
any, given at paragraph 
5, above) 

Base 
Salary 
(£) 

Other relevant 
payments, and 
notes 

Head of Paid 
Service 

Chief Executive 195,905  

Statutory Chief 
Officers which in 
Sheffield City 
council are the 
posts of: 

Executive Director of 
People (Director of 
Children’s Services) 
 

150,192  

Director of Adult Services  
 

102,165  

Director of Legal and 
Governance (Monitoring 
Officer) 
 

88,384 Election duty fees are in 
accordance with normal 
authority procedures. 

Executive Director of 
Resources (Chief 
Financial Officer) 
 

150,192  

Director of Public Health 
 

123,247  

Non Statutory 
Chief Officers 
(those who report 
to the Head of the 
Paid Service or a 
Statutory Officer) 
which in Sheffield 
City Council are 
the posts of: 
 

Executive Director of 
Place 
 

150,192  

Director of Policy and 
Performance 
 

88,384 The Returning Officer’s fee 
is based upon that 
payable at a national 
election and is variable 
dependent upon the type 
of election taking place. 

Director of Children and 
Families (People) 
 

107,338  

Director of Business 
Strategy (People) 
 

88,384  

Director Libraries Learning 
Skills & Communities 
(People) 
 

88,384  

Director of Culture (Place) 85,258 The post is 
currently vacant 

Director of Commissioning 
Inclusion & Learning  
(People) 
 

88,384  

Annex A 
 

Draf
t

Page 152
Page 214



 

 

Director of Human 
Resources & Customer 
Services (Resources) 
 

88,384  

Director of Finance & 
Commercial Services 
(Resources) 
 

97,245  

Director of Business 
Change and Information 
Solutions (Resources) 
 

97,245  

Director of Transport and 
Facilities Management 
(Resources) 
 

88,384  

Chief Officers 
(those who report 
to Non Statutory 
Chief Officers) 
which in Sheffield 
City Council are 
the posts of: 

Director of Housing 
Services (Place) 
 

97,245  

Director of City Growth 
(Place) 
 

97,245  

Director of Business 
Strategy (Place) 
 

88,384  

Director of Capital & Major 
Projects (Place) 
 

97,245  

Assistant Director of Legal 
& Governance x2 (Deputy 
Monitoring Officer) 
(Resources) 

60,166 & 
63,032  

Directors in same 
post - only one of 
these acts as 
Deputy 
Monitoring Officer Draf
t

Page 153
Page 215



  Appendix 8 Annex 2 

 

Annex 2 - Chief Officer Grading Structure 
 

Grade Desc Spinal Pt 01/04/2019 

DG 7 

1 58,729 

2 60,166 

3 61,599 

4 63,032 

DG 6 

1 69,091 

2 70,772 

3 72,452 

4 74,137 

DG 5 

1 79,295 

2 81,284 

3 83,271 

DG4 

1 85,258 

2 87,242 

3 88,384 

DG3 

1 90,597 

2 92,814 

3 95,029 

4 97,245 

DG2 

1 99,673 

2 102,165 

3 104,720 

4 107,338 

DG 1 

1 111,963 

2 114,597 

3 117,535 

4 120,359 

5 123,247 

Executive Director        

1 124,070 

2 130,612 

3 137,139 

4 143,668 

5 150,192 

  
  

Chief Executive   195,905 
 

Draf
t

Page 154
Page 216



 

Appendix 9 

 

Budget 2020-21 

Equality Impact Assessment  
 
Purpose 

1. The purpose of the Revenue Budget report is to: 

 Approve the City Council’s revenue budget for 2020/21, including 

the position on reserves and balances; 

 Approve a 2020/21 Council Tax for the City Council, and; 

 Note the levies and precepts made on the City Council by 

other authorities. 

 

Background 

2. Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010, the Public Sector Equality Duty 

states that a Public Authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have 

due regard to: 

 Eliminating discrimination, harassment, and victimisation. 

 Advancing equality of opportunity. 

 Fostering good relations. 

3. Having due regard to these involves: 

 Removing or minimising disadvantage suffered by persons. 

 Taking steps to meet the needs of persons with different characteristics. 

 Encouraging people to participate in public life. 

 Tackling prejudice and promote understanding. 

 Taking steps to take account of a person’s disabilities. 

4. This is with regard both to people who share Protected Characteristics 

under the Act and those who don’t. The Duty means we need to 

understand the effect of our policies and practices have on inequality. To 

do this we will examine the available evidence and work with staff and 

people who use services to consider the impact of Council activity and 

actions on the people who share protected characteristics. One of the 

ways we do this is through conducting Equality Impact Assessments 

(EIAs). 

Draf
t

Page 155
Page 217



 

Appendix 9 

 

5. The Council-wide EIA and the individual service EIAs on budget 

proposals that underpin it are focused on the impact on the protected 

characteristics in the Equality Act 2010. These are age, disability, race, 

marriage and civil partnership, sex, sexual orientation, religion/belief, 

gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity. 

6. In Sheffield, we have decided to go beyond our statutory duty under the 

Equality Act 2010. We also assess the impact on health and wellbeing, the 

Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS), poverty and financial exclusion, 

carers, armed forces and cohesion. We believe that this gives us a wider 

understanding than the statutory framework would without these additions.  

7. This Equality Impact Assessment is based upon the EIAs completed by 

services for each budget proposal. The individual EIA is not however a one-

off task; instead it is an ongoing process that develops as the budget saving 

proposal develops and evolves over time. So, for example, an EIA may 

identify the need to consult with a particular section of the community and 

the outcome of this may mean the EIA needs to be updated and change the 

way the proposal is to be implemented. The EIA should be a record of the 

process not just the ultimate outcome. Through our ‘live’ EIA process we 

will be monitoring closely any adverse equality impacts as reductions and 

changes in provision occur during the next year. 

8. As a consequence, not all EIAs are currently complete and therefore this 

assessment should be seen as a reflection of our current understanding of 

the impact but not necessarily how the impact may look in three or nine 

months’ time. Therefore, it’s important to ensure that all equality impacts 

are fully considered when services report on the specific implementation 

plans for their Budget Saving Proposals. 

9. All reports outlining a budget reduction proposal include an outline of the 

key findings of the EIA undertaken for that Budget Saving Proposal. This 

should describe: 

 The main impacts anticipated if any; 

 How this has been assessed and the evidence used; 

 How the views of those impacted have been sought; 

 What options for mitigation should be considered as part of the 

proposal; and 

 How the actual impact will be reviewed after implementation. 

10. A list of EIAs available is attached and can be requested individually or 

as a group. 

Draf
t

Page 156
Page 218



 

Appendix 9 

 

11. It is possible that some decisions will have a disproportionate impact on 

some groups in comparison to others. The impact assessments help us 

identify, and avoid or mitigate, these impacts. There could, for example, 

be disproportionate impacts on certain geographic locations or different 

parts of the population, such as younger or older people, women or men, 

disabled people, Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic (BAME) communities 

or lesbian, gay, bisexual, and transgender (LGBT) communities etc. It’s 

also important that we consider the cumulative effect of any decisions 

made on these groups. This could be cumulative, year on year or 

different proposals on the same group. EIAs also help us identify and 

make positive changes wherever possible. 

12. A commitment to tackling inequality, ensuring fairness and increasing 

social justice is at the heart of the Council’s values. We have a Corporate 

Plan for 2015-18 which includes tackling inequalities as one of the 

Council’s five key priorities. We have also supported the Fairness and 

Tackling Poverty and Social Exclusion Partnership and the Making 

Sheffield Fairer Campaign. The Fairness and Tackling Poverty 

Partnership, of which the Council is a part of, has produced a Sheffield 

wide Tackling Poverty Strategy. The Fairness Framework and campaign, 

as well as our Corporate Plan and Tackling Poverty Strategy, have 

influenced our priorities and decision making across the Council. 

13. In the last year, we have launched our new Equality Objectives 2019-23 

which demonstrate our commitment to challenging inequality and 

promoting a fair and inclusive Sheffield. Our Equality Objectives are based 

on evidence and feedback that we collect from residents, customers and 

our staff.  They also reflect and help address areas of persistent 

inequality, as outlined in our Annual Equality Report 2017-18.  The four 

Objectives are: 

 Strengthen knowledge and understanding of our communities 

 Ensure our workforce reflects the people that we serve 

 Lead the city in celebrating diversity and promoting inclusion 

 Break the cycle of inequality and improve life chances 

14. The total amount of Portfolio savings we are required to make in 2020/21 

amount to £14.7m, mainly focusing on service effectiveness, cost 

reductions and staff savings.  

Draf
t

Page 157
Page 219

http://www.sheffield.gov.uk/content/sheffield/home/your-city-council/corporate-plan.html
http://www.sheffield.gov.uk/content/sheffield/home/your-city-council/corporate-plan.html
http://makingsheffieldfairer.co.uk/
http://makingsheffieldfairer.co.uk/
http://www.sheffield.gov.uk/content/sheffield/home/your-city-council/tackling-poverty.html
http://www.sheffield.gov.uk/content/sheffield/home/your-city-council/tackling-poverty.html
http://www.sheffield.gov.uk/home/campaigns/equality-objectives.html
https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/content/sheffield/home/your-city-council/our-equality-duty.html


 

Appendix 9 

 

 

15. As set out in the full Revenue Budget report, the Government’s Spending 

Review in September 2019 allocated a small increase in local 

government funding for 2020/21 which addresses the in-year cost 

pressures that the Council faces but does not reverse the reductions in 

funding we have seen over the last nine years.  

16. In addition to the budget reductions that we have seen, all of the Council’s 

services are affected by demand, pay or price inflation, as well as by 

legislative changes. One of our biggest cost pressures arises from the need 

to continue to provide key services for the growing and ageing population of 

Sheffield, particularly in social care and children’s social care.  

17. In line with the priorities of citizens in our budget engagement, the Council 

has prioritised support for social care with a proposed (subject to Council 

approval) investment of £17.9m, the third successive year of investment 

totalling approximately £53m. This has been funded by in the Social Care 

Grant of £12.2m and the increase in council tax, including the Adult Social 

Care precept.  This demonstrates the focus on protecting the most 

vulnerable in the city but again does not compensate for the reductions in 

funding from Government over previous years. 

18. As shown elsewhere in the report, inequality is widening,(see below?) and 

growing numbers of people are experiencing financial insecurity following a 

decade of austerity. We are also aware of our need to meet the needs of 

an increasingly diverse population, in a context of public services austerity 

and a continuing to attract and retain diversity. Our approach aims to 

ensure that different groups of people get services that are appropriate and 

meet their needs, such as older people accessing timely care and support 

and also that groups, including disabled people, people from BAME 

backgrounds, young people and women are more able to access better 

quality employment.  

Draf
t

Page 158
Page 220



 

Appendix 9 

 

19. The issue of inequality is fundamental to the Council and is considered 

throughout our proposals. One of the strongest mitigations is that we 

continue to prioritise those in greatest and complex need, targeted 

solutions, prevention and an inclusive economy. 

20. Our work to tackle inequality will prioritise supporting those at risk or in 

need, and will focus on ensuring we do not slide backwards or lose ground 

in tackling existing persistent areas of inequality. However, it is inevitable 

when funding levels have been cut year on year that there is an impact on 

the services we deliver, including some of the work we do with people who 

are most vulnerable. As far as practically possible within the confines of a 

cumulatively reduced financial settlement, we have tried to minimise the 

impact on those in greatest need and most at risk. However, these are 

extremely challenging choices and difficult decisions have to be made. 

21. Impact analysis is started early in the process of considering service 

changes, to ensure we involve all relevant individuals and groups, such as 

those who use the services. This also gives us time to understand and 

consider any evidence we have about the potential impact of any proposal. 

The action plans for individual EIAs are designed to ensure that the 

services concerned implement changes with as little negative impact as 

possible. There will be careful management control of each proposal. The 

impact analysis process helps to shape both proposals which are not 

included in the budget and those that are. 

22. We have tried as far as possible to achieve any savings through changes to 

the way we work, including by working with other partners, by redesigning 

and restructuring our services and support teams, and by restructuring our 

contracts, but it is inevitable that there will be some negative impact on 

service delivery for those in greatest need and on those who share 

protected characteristics under the Equality Act. 

23. The size and pace of the financial challenge over the last decade means 

that a number of the reductions or changes in service provision began in 

previous years will continue although in 2020/21, reductions are smaller 

and we are again seeing more investment in social care. The impacts on 

individuals and groups will be monitored to ensure that any potential 

negative impact is reduced as far as possible.  

24. Elected Members have ensured that they are familiar with the equality 

implications of proposals and consider the aggregated impact on different 

communities. Impact assessments are made available to all Council 

Members in advance of any decision being taken at Cabinet or Full Council. 

Draf
t

Page 159
Page 221



 

Appendix 9 

 

Cabinet Members have been briefed on impact assessments related to 

proposals in their area of responsibility. 

25. We are confident that our budget proposals mean that services for those 

that most need our help and support will be prioritised. However this may 

mean reductions and changes in universal provision could impact on 

those households who, although not in the greatest need, are still 

struggling financially and may not be able to pay for alternative provision. 

 

Evidence: what we already know – Sheffield demographics 

26. As well as evidence from consultations, we have used monitoring 

information we already hold to help us identify possible impacts and to help 

shape and inform the EIA process. To help us identify possible impacts 

requires an understanding of how the city is made up and the issues 

people face and we have used 2011 Census, Sheffield Facts and Figures, 

State of Sheffield, and Community Knowledge Profiles to support our EIA. In 

summary, these show: 

 Sheffield’s population has grown at the same rate as the national 

average and above that of the City Region, rising from 513,100 in 2001, 

to 552,700 at the time of the 2011 census, and 582,500 by 2018. This 

has resulted from increases in births, net inward migration, and longer 

life expectancy. 

 Sheffield is a diverse city and the ethnic profile continues to change. The 

proportion of residents classifying themselves as BAME (Black, Asian 

and Minority Ethnic includes everyone except for those who classify 

themselves as White British) has grown from 11% in 2001 to 21% in 

2017. BAME adults make up 18% of the population and BAME children 

36% (based on reception to Year 11 pupils, Feb 2020). 

 The Pakistani community, at 4%, is the second largest ethnic group in 

Sheffield after the White British category. Sheffield’s BAME population is 

increasingly dispersed across the city, although there remain 

geographical areas with high proportions of BAME people. These areas 

tend to correlate with the areas of the city which are also the most 

economically deprived. More than a third of the BAME population live in 

areas that are amongst the 10% most deprived in the country and for 

some groups this is higher. This is above the citywide average of 23.8%. 

 Sheffield has a higher proportion of its population aged 65 years or over 

(16%, or 93,600 people) than the other English Core Cities. This is 

projected to increase to 19.2% by 2034, with the largest increase in the 

Draf
t

Page 160
Page 222

https://www.ons.gov.uk/census/2011census/2011ukcensuses
http://www.sheffield.gov.uk/content/sheffield/home/your-city-council/population-in-sheffield.html
https://www.sheffieldcitypartnership.org/scp-reports/2017/3/24/state-of-sheffield-2017
https://www.sheffieldcitypartnership.org/scp-reports/2017/3/24/state-of-sheffield-2017
http://www.sheffield.gov.uk/content/sheffield/home/your-city-council/community-knowledge-profiles.html


 

Appendix 9 

 

number of people aged over 85. 

 The age group that has increased the most from 2011 to 2018 is 25-34 

year olds, with 15.5% of our population being in this group. 18.1% of the 

population is under 16. The factors which are having the most impact on 

this changing city profile are increasing numbers of university students 

and the inward migration of households with young families. 

 Sheffield has a geographical pattern of communities that experience 

differing levels of deprivation and affluence. Generally, the most deprived 

communities are concentrated in the north and east of the city whilst the 

most affluent are located in the south and west. 

 There are currently approximately 46,600 households who receive 

Council Tax Support, and of these approximately 27,900 are of working 

age. 

 Sheffield has around 25,522 households (10.7%) in fuel poverty, which is 

slightly lower than the percentage for all England (10.9%). Nationally, 

there is a large difference in the proportion of households that are fuel 

poor between those that are working, full-time or part-time, or are retired 

(8%, 17.3% and 7.6%, respectively) compared to  those that are 

unemployed or in full-time education (31.9% and 24.4% respectively). 

 Sheffield is the seventh least deprived of England’s eight core cities, 

however almost a quarter (23.8%) of Sheffield LSOAs (lower-layer super 

output areas are in the most deprived decile nationally, with 9.9% being 

in the least deprived decile. 

 The broad pattern of deprivation in Sheffield has changed relatively little 

between 2015 and 2019; there is one more LSOA in the most deprived 

decile, and one fewer in the least deprived decile. There were larger 

changes in the second most deprived decile (three fewer) and the 

second least deprived decile (four more). 

 In 2019, median gross weekly earnings of full time workers were £572.70 

for males, and £485.10 for females. For all males, median annual pay 

was £27,922 compared with £18,865 for all females, a pay gap of 

£9,057. 

 For all males, median annual pay was £27,922, compared with £18,865 

for all females; a pay gap of £9,057. 

 Single female pensioners tend to have a lower income than male 

pensioners. Other issues which cannot be separated from experiences of 

financial exclusion and poverty include age, ethnicity, sexuality, disability 

Draf
t

Page 161
Page 223



 

Appendix 9 

 

and domestic abuse etc. 

 People within some groups can be disproportionally affected by 

disadvantage and inequality. For example, children are more likely to live 

in poverty if they are from a BME background; 40.4% of Somali, 44.5% of 

Yemeni and 56.1% of Roma children in Sheffield are eligible for Free 

School Meals compared to 22.7% of all children in Sheffield. Children 

with SEN are also more likely to live in poverty; 38.4% of children with 

SEN Support, EHC Plan or Statement in Sheffield are eligible for Free 

School Meals compared with 19.7% of those without support (SCC, 

January School Census 2019) 

 There are 100,000 people with a long term limiting illness, equivalent to 

19% of the population, with 9% saying this limits their activity a lot. This 

is the closest estimate it’s possible to reach of disabled people living in 

the city. 

 Although the city is becoming healthier for most people, health 

inequalities across the city remain, and are in some cases are widening 

in particular for those living in areas of higher deprivation and those with 

learning disabilities and mental illness. 

 Life expectancy for men in Sheffield is 79.4 years (slightly above the 

national average of 79.3 years) and 82.3 years for women (below the 

national average of 82.9 years). However, healthy life expectancy for 

women in Sheffield is lower, at 60.2 years, than it is for men, at 61.8 

years. This compares with national healthy life expectancies of 63.6 

years for women and 63.1 for men. 

 

Evidence: what we already know – Welfare Reform and poverty 

27. Although not within the scope of our budget proposals, the impacts of the 

UK government’s programme of welfare reform, including the roll-out of 

Universal Credit (UC), are having a profound impact on financial insecurity, 

over-indebtedness and poverty in the city.. 

28. Universal Credit represents one of the biggest changes to the welfare 

system since the 1940s. UC ‘Full Service’ started rolling out in Sheffield 

from November 2018. Most new claims for – or certain changes to – 

‘legacy’ benefits, now require an application instead for UC.  Eventually 

Universal Credit will replace all working age income-related benefits. The 

default position with UC is one monthly payment to a household, 

including housing costs, paid in arrears. People then pay their rent, bills 

and other costs from that payment. UC is applied for and managed 

Draf
t

Page 162
Page 224



 

Appendix 9 

 

online. Different arrangements can be made for vulnerable people, 

including disabled people, although evidence suggests that these do not 

always work smoothly. 

29. Sheffield City Council and its partners are measuring the impact of UC on 

the city, both through quantitative measures and the collection of case 

studies. We know for example that, in common with many other parts of 

the country where it has been rolled out, rent arrears for people on UC 

has increased. We also have anecdotal evidence that loan sharks are 

increasingly active in the city. Whilst many people find UC 

straightforward, our anecdotal evidence shows that there are still people 

struggling on UC in Sheffield. This is particularly those whose lives are 

more complex or who have vulnerabilities that make managing the 

system harder.  We have found that this is more likely to include people 

from BAMER communities, care leavers, people experiencing domestic 

abuse, tenants in private-rented accommodation, people with disabilities 

or health conditions, and carers. 

30. It should be noted that UC has been introduced within the context of 

wider welfare reform changes that have had a significant impact on the 

city. These changes include Over-occupancy rules, Benefit Cap, 

Personal Independence Payments and Council Tax Support changes. 

Sheffield Hallam University1 has estimated that, once completed, the 

government’s programme of welfare reforms will lead to the city losing 

nearly £170m a year in benefits and tax credits. This is the equivalent to 

£460 a year for every adult of working age in the city, but some 

communities will see five times the level of reductions than others. 

31. Indices of Deprivation, a relative measure of deprivation in small areas of 

England (known as Lower Super Output Areas or LSOAs) ranks nearly a 

quarter of Sheffield’s LSOAs as within the most deprived 10% nationally. 

Five LSOAs in Sheffield are within the 1% most deprived in England, an 

increase from three in 2015. 

32. Sheffield’s Child Poverty report in 2017 shows the proportion of children 

living in families in receipt of out of work benefits, or in receipt of tax credits 

where their reported income is less than 60% of UK median, has increased. 

In line with other Core City and national trends, the most up-to-date data 

shows 31.31% or 35,820 children, after housing costs (AHC) of children in 

Sheffield are living in poverty in Sheffield. However, the figure masks the 

wide and well- documented variation between different parts of Sheffield. In 

                                                 
1 https://www4.shu.ac.uk/research/cresr/impact-welfare-reform-communities-and-households-sheffield-pdf-
273-mb  

Draf
t

Page 163
Page 225

https://www4.shu.ac.uk/research/cresr/impact-welfare-reform-communities-and-households-sheffield-pdf-273-mb
https://www4.shu.ac.uk/research/cresr/impact-welfare-reform-communities-and-households-sheffield-pdf-273-mb


 

Appendix 9 

 

Ecclesall Ward, 7.8% (AHC) of children were living in poverty, whilst in 

Burngreave the figure was much higher at 51.19% and Central and Firth 

Park at 49% in poverty. 

33. In 2017, 17 of the Sheffield’s 28 wards had more than 20% of children living 

in relative poverty (AHC). There are clearly multiple causes of child poverty; 

however, it is likely that national welfare reforms are a significant driver of 

changes seen. 

 

Managing impact – mitigation 

34. A commitment to tackling inequality, ensuring fairness and increasing 

social justice is at the heart of the Council’s values. We have considered 

the Fairness Commission and the resultant Fair City Campaign. We have 

also considered the Tackling Poverty Strategy, 2019-23 Equality 

Objectives, and our Corporate Plan. These have influenced our priorities 

and decision making across the Council. The five priorities of our 

corporate plan are: 

 An in-touch organisation: This means listening; being connected 

and being responsive to a range of people. Better understanding the 

increasingly diverse needs of individuals in Sheffield, so the services 

we and our partners provide are designed to meet these needs. Also 

to empower individuals to help themselves, so they and their 

communities are increasingly independent and resilient. 

 Strong economy: This means creating the conditions for local 

businesses to grow. We want local people to have the skills they need 

to get jobs and benefit from inclusive economic growth. 

 Thriving neighbourhoods and communities: This means 

neighbourhoods where people are proud to live, with communities that 

support each other and get on well together. It means places with 

access to great, inclusive schools. We want people living in Sheffield to feel 

safe. We will work with communities to support them and to celebrate the 

diversity of the city. 

 Better health and wellbeing: This means helping people to be 

healthy and well, by promoting and enabling good health whilst 

preventing and tackling ill-health because health and wellbeing 

matters to everyone. We will provide early help and look to do this 

earlier in life, to give every child the opportunity to have a great start in 

life. 

 Tackling inequalities: This means making it easier for individuals 

Draf
t

Page 164
Page 226



 

Appendix 9 

 

to overcome obstacles and achieve their potential. We will invest in 

the most deprived communities; supporting individuals and 

communities to help themselves and each other, so the changes 

they make are long- lasting. We will work, with our partners, to 

enable fair treatment for individuals and groups, taking account of 

disadvantages and obstacles that people face 

35. As throughout austerity, our overall approach has been to protect services 

for those in greatest need, develop preventive solutions for the longer 

term, and to make savings by changing how we manage and deliver 

services. This will have an impact on what the Council can continue to 

deliver, and especially on the Council’s universal offer. 

36. The year on year reductions over the last nine years have impacted on the 

people of Sheffield, including those in greatest need and groups that share 

equality characteristics. Most impacts relate to age, both younger and 

older people, disabled people and their carers, women and 

households on lower incomes. In all of these areas mitigating actions 

have been identified and will be implemented as part of EIA action plans. 

37. We are: 

 Investing in social care, reflecting the scale of the challenge facing 

social care services and our commitment to protect the most 

vulnerable in Sheffield 

 Continuing to invest in prevention, early intervention and delivering 

targeted support for those most vulnerable. 

 Working to increase our income through fees and charges, debt 

collection, full cost recovery, and increased trading of our services. 

 Assessing all proposals in line with the Fairness Framework and the 

cities Tackling Poverty Strategy. 

 Working with the private sector to encourage the support of activities/ 

events to promote Sheffield. 

 Improving the conversations we have with people when they first contact 

adult social care to help them find the right support. 

 Continuing to encourage people to be independent, safe and well 

through both children’s and adult social care, and continuing to reduce 

reliance on institutional or restrictive care in Sheffield and expensive 

provision outside of the city. 

 Reviewing care and support arrangements, focusing on the outcomes 

Draf
t

Page 165
Page 227



 

Appendix 9 

 

people want to achieve, and re-tendering services where applicable to 

ensure fair contributions and value for money. 

 Working in partnership with the NHS to deliver better health to 

strengthen our preventative and community based services to provide 

the best outcomes we can for the people of Sheffield 

 Restructuring management and services to increase efficiencies and 

create simpler routes of access. 

 Continuing to invest in public health, but shifting the focus to address the 

root causes of ill health, to help reduce health inequalities. 

 Supporting the Voluntary and Community Sector through Grant Aid, 

although at a reduced level, by recognising the value of frontline 

organisations that help tackle inequality. 

 Continuing to support those at risk of financial hardship through a 

Council Tax Support Scheme and Hardship Fund, Local Assistance 

Scheme and Local Independence Grants. 

38. Although there are very difficult choices to make, our impact assessments 

illustrate our commitment to fairness principles and to mitigate negative 

impacts where possible. Through our ‘live’ EIA process we will monitor 

closely for any adverse equality impacts as reductions and changes in 

provision occur during the next year. 

 

Consultation and evidence to support EIAs 

39. Notwithstanding our legal responsibilities under the Equality Act, we 

believe that it is critically important that we understand how the difficult 

decisions taken by the Council impact on different groups and 

communities within the city, and that we take action to mitigate any 

negative impacts that might be highlighted. 

40. Tackling inequality is crucial to increasing fairness and social cohesion, 

reducing health problems, improving wellbeing and helping people to 

have independence and control over their lives. It underpins all that we 

do. The Fairness Framework has guided the approach we have taken in 

developing these proposals such as: 

 Those in greatest need should take priority. 

 Those with the most resources should make the biggest contributions. 

 The commitment to fairness must be a long-term one. 

 The commitment to fairness must be city-wide. 

Draf
t

Page 166
Page 228

https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/fairnesscommission


 

Appendix 9 

 

 Prevention is better than cure. 

 Be seen to act in a fair way as well as acting fairly. 

 Civic responsibilities among residents contribute to the maximum of 

their abilities and ensuring all citizens have a voice. 

 Open a continuous campaign for fairness in the city. 

 Fairness must be a matter of balance between different 

groups, communities and generations. 

 The city’s commitment to fairness must be both demonstrated 

and monitored. 

41. To inform, develop and enable citizens to have their say on options for the 

2020/21 budget, the Council ran a budget survey between 20 December 2019 

and 24 January 2020, in addition to wider engagement with citizens, and 

partner organisations over the last year. 

42. This has helped us to ensure that our budget proposals have been shaped by 

people who may be affected by decisions taken as part of the budget, and that 

they have had an opportunity to put forward ideas for consideration. 

43. To inform longer term thinking and Equality Impact Assessments our budget 

consultation consisted of two main strands: 

 An online survey supported by social media promotion activity that 

looked at the financial position and the Council-wide approach. This 

provided opportunities for residents to have their say on priorities, 

investment in services and capital projects, our proposals for Council 

Tax, and provide suggestions on areas for further savings or 

generating income. 

 On-going conversations on particular topics and specific 

proposals, including meetings with the VCF and Businesses and 

key partner agencies. 

44. Over a 5 week period during December and January we ran an online 

survey that received 313 responses through the Council’s Citizen Space 

consultation portal (https://sheffield.citizenspace.com). 

45. In addition, the consultation on our 2020/21 budget proposals has taken 

place alongside the Big City Conversation. This has been a citywide 

consultation exercise, talking to citizens from across the city’s 

neighbourhoods about the issues that matter most to them, what they 

would like to see change in Sheffield and how they want to get involved in 

the decisions that affect their communities and their city.  There is a clear 

Draf
t

Page 167
Page 229

https://sheffield.citizenspace.com/
http://www.sheffield.gov.uk/bigcityconversation


 

Appendix 9 

 

link between how the City Council invests its budget and the issues and 

priorities that Sheffielders have talked to us about in the Big City 

Conversation. 

46. The findings from the budget consultation are set out in the Revenue 

Budget report Key findings include: 

 As in the consultation on our 2019/20 budget, Adult Social Care, 

Children’s Social Care and Public Health/Education were highlighted 

as the top three priorities that the Council should fund more 

 Respondents cited leisure and culture, Environmental Health/Waste 

and Recycling, and Housing as areas where spending levels should 

stay the same. Respondents were more likely to say that the Sheffield 

City Council should spend less on the cost of borrowing, central costs 

and housing benefits. The majority of respondents supported raising 

Council Tax. Of those that gave a reason as to why they felt that 

Council Tax should be raised, the most common reason given was 

that a slight increase would be worth it to have improved public 

services 

 Over half of respondents said that they did not want to see an 

increase in fees and charges and that the levels should stay the same. 

Many thought that fees and charges are high enough, that increases 

would be deemed unacceptable and likely to have most impact on 

poorer residents of the city 

 Respondents mainly suggested that it was important for the Council to 

invest in transport, green and open spaces and quality of life.  When 

asked why, people tended to suggest that investment is important to 

promote regeneration and the need for a fair and improved transport 

infrastructure to support both business and leisure. 

 Transport was seen as a very important area for investment, and noted 

that we need a far more accessible service which can run on an 

upgraded infrastructure. Comments also noted that currently people 

who do not live in the city centre find it very difficult to travel across the 

city.  A proportion of people felt much more investment was needed to 

support more environmentally friendly travel for bikes and pedestrians. 

A good transport network was commented on as essential for the city’s 

regeneration along with regular and clean public transport. 

 We received an extensive range of comments and suggestions on how 

the Council could increase income, reduce costs or make savings to 

support the budget. In terms of raising income these included collecting 

Draf
t

Page 168
Page 230



 

Appendix 9 

 

owed Council Tax and raising Council Tax; increasing car parking 

charges and business rates; and lobbying central Government for more 

money. 

47. Alongside our corporate budget consultation, we consulted people about 

proposals in particular areas. This consultation has taken different forms, 

depending on both the nature of the proposals and which providers, 

service users and communities are likely to be affected. This has 

included consultation with employees where proposals have implications 

for employees. 

48. In People Services, proposals are based on a range of approaches, 

including: investments in Children’s Social Care and Inclusion; risk and 

benefit sharing through integration with health partners; negotiation with 

fundholders and service-providers; individual support and casework; and 

general efficiencies. Some proposals have been informed by consultation 

feedback relating to dementia services; drugs and alcohol services; Adult 

Social Care payment processes; and Grant Aid to voluntary, community 

and faith sector organisations. Changes to fees and charges have been 

communicated. Other proposals will require communication with 

individuals and forms of co-production to develop ideas further. 

Consultation has been, or will be, carried out where proposals affect 

employees.   

49. In Place Portfolio, the 2020/21 proposals are a mix of internal change and 

efficiencies, renegotiation of contract arrangements with partners and 

inflationary increase in charges/fees. A range of data has been used to help 

inform if there are any potential differential equality impacts and these will be 

considered as part of the decision making process for the proposals. 

50. Across the Council, consultation on proposals will not stop once the budget 

has been agreed with Members. Further consultation with those affected 

individuals, groups, organisations and staff will take place throughout the 

forthcoming year as decisions are taken through the Council’s governance 

process. Where appropriate, equality impact assessments on specific 

budget proposals include details about our approach to consulting people 

and further work that may be required. 

51. This information has been considered by officers and members in 

developing and refining the budget proposals, and in looking forward to 

how future engagement around the budget will take place. Reports on the 

consultation activity will be made available on the Council’s consultation 

hub and the Council’s budget webpages. 

 

Draf
t

Page 169
Page 231



 

Appendix 9 

 

Overall impact analysis 

52. Inevitably, funding reductions at the scale and pace that we have 

experienced over the last nine years does have implications for the front-

line services we deliver, on those in greatest need and on some of the work 

we do with groups who share equality characteristics under the Equality Act 

2010.  

53. We have tried to minimise the impact on the most vulnerable and those in 

greatest financial hardship as far as possible, however we have to make 

some really difficult choices. This year the savings and demand pressures 

that are required mean that we are less able to protect frontline services 

than before. 

54. The substantial reductions in funding over the last nine years mean that 

progress on work to tackle inequality is much more focused on ensuring 

fairness and that we do not slide backwards and lose ground in tackling 

persistent areas of inequality. 

55. We have tried to minimise the impact on front line services to customers as 

far as possible by finding more efficient ways to deliver services, including 

by reducing costs of: 

 Management, offices and corporate services such as legal services. 

 Renegotiating contracts, and increased partnership working. 

 Focusing on prevention and early intervention. 

 Transformational projects/creative and innovative change. 

 We know that working with people to help them avoid a crisis in their 

life (such as going into hospital), or intervening early when we spot an 

issue is better for the individual and costs us less. 

56. To do this means continuing to shape and redesign public services to work 

in a more integrated and preventative way. However this takes time and we 

have had to make some really difficult choices. We are being guided in 

these choices by our values, commitment to fairness, and by our priorities 

as outlined in the Corporate Plan such as tackling inequality. 

57. Our approach to the budget is in Portfolio Areas which correspond to the 

way Council is structured: 

 People 

 Place 

 Resources and 

Draf
t

Page 170
Page 232



 

Appendix 9 

 

 Chief Executive’s (Policy, Performance and Communications, or PPC). 

58. People Services is the largest portfolio and has had a £17.9m increase in 

budget. The portfolio covers Children, Young People and families; social 

care, youth scheme, Education Lifelong and Community Learning Skills 

and employment; care and support for Adults; Housing & Neighbourhood 

services and Libraries & Community Services. The majority of funding is 

spent on social care. 

59. Place has had a £1.2m in 2020/21 budget increase including £1.3m of 

planned savings. Work to address this affects the following services: 

sports & culture; highways maintenance; growth & investment; Place Hub 

and facilities management. 

60. Resources is the second smallest Portfolio and together with PPC, has 

seen a £80k budget reduction. Resources covers: information technology; 

finance and commercial services; customer services; human resources 

and legal & governance. 

61. Policy, Performance and Communications (inc Public Health, 

hereinafter PPC) has less than 100 staff and covers the corporate services 

of Policy; Research; Communications; Public Health Intelligence; 

Elections, Equalities and Involvement and Scrutiny. Public Health is 

distributed across the Council with the addition of a Director and small 

central team in PPC. 

62. In line with their longer term plans Portfolios have undertaken an initial 

impact analysis on all budget proposals. Where the risk of disproportionate 

impact has been identified an in-depth impact assessment has been 

undertaken and mitigations sought. The impact analysis shapes proposals 

which do not make it forward into the budget proposals as well as those 

that do. See the website for more detail on the Council budget and how we 

spend it. 

 

Place Portfolio 

63. The Place Portfolio has completed 11 Budget EIAs on savings totalling 

£1.3m for 2020/21. Overall, the proposals are a mix of: 

 Savings achieved through internal reorganisation of some services 

and by ensuring they operate within the principles of the Place 

Change Programme: better, quicker, easier and more affordable. 

 Working with our delivery partners to ensure we achieve maximum 

value for money through renegotiating our contractual agreements 

Draf
t

Page 171
Page 233

http://www.sheffield.gov.uk/content/sheffield/home/your-city-council/budget-spending.html
http://www.sheffield.gov.uk/content/sheffield/home/your-city-council/budget-spending.html
http://www.sheffield.gov.uk/content/sheffield/home/your-city-council/budget-spending.html


 

Appendix 9 

 

e.g. Streets Ahead. 

 Inflationary increase on fees and charges 

 Reduction in subsidy for sports and culture partners 

64. A range of data and consultation through pilot schemes where 

appropriate, will be used to identify if there are any differential impacts 

of the proposals. 

65. Two of the proposals will result in a reduction in posts in the Portfolio and 

the usual Council employee consultation framework will apply.  Support and 

guidance through the process will be in accordance with agreed SCC 

policies and procedures.   

Equalities impacts 

66. As identified in previous years, the year on year key equalities impacts 

remain in relation to financial inclusion/poverty. 

 
 

People Services 

67. In the People Portfolio, 44 Equality Impact Assessments have been 

carried out in relation to the business planning savings proposals, including 

public health. 

68. Some EIAs cover more than one proposal where there are close links. 

EIAs may also describe a larger project of work that contributes to 

business planning (savings). EIA titles therefore may not precisely match 

the names of proposals but reference is made between them. 

Supporting children, young people and families 

69. Through our Strengthening Families programme, we aim to reduce the 

number of children entering the care system and to help reunite families 

where it is safe to do so. We will also work with survivors and perpetrators 

of domestic and sexual abuse regardless of gender, with a focus on early 

intervention and prevention.  

70. Our Fresh Start Project continues to work with those most at risk of having 

a child removed – including women with substance misuse issues and 

mental health problems, and teenage mothers. Our Parenting Project 

provides specific help to fathers and families in need of support.  

71. We are working to increase more local foster carers. We will also consider 

ways that we can use resources differently to enable more children to live 

locally. 

Draf
t

Page 172
Page 234



 

Appendix 9 

 

72. We are developing an ‘all age disability’ approach to ensure services work 

together to support children and young people at key transition points in 

their lives – including in preparation for adulthood. 

Inclusive education 

73. To increase the inclusion of children and young people with additional 

needs, the Strengthening Inclusion Programme is working to give Sheffield 

sufficient quality placements in mainstream settings that meet the needs of 

the majority of children and young people with special educational needs 

and disabilities (SEND) aged 0-25. 

74. For children with the most complex needs, we are working to ensure there 

is the right amount of quality specialist provision as close to home as 

possible. As part of these investments, two new special schools will be 

built in Sheffield. 

Making Conversations Count 

75. Our social care teams are working to the principle that ‘Conversations 

Count’ – an approach that focuses on the goals, strengths and needs of 

people rather than an assessment form or process based on ‘deficits’. The 

First Contact team will continue its successful work helping people to find 

the right opportunities and support when they get in touch. By having 

conversations with people that explore personal interests and goals, First 

Contact is introducing more (and quicker) options for people.  

76. The major focus for our Home First team will continue to be prompt 

support for people who are: at risk of being admitted to hospital 

unnecessarily; in hospital but need things sorting at home before they can 

leave; or have already been discharged from hospital and need some 

short-term help to avoid longer-term care. 

77. Our locality teams are benefiting from being based in the communities they 

serve, helping people to connect to the opportunities around them. This will 

help us to keep people independent, safe and well; and address the 

financial pressure on Adult Social Care.  

Helping people to live in their home and community 

78. We will take forward our plans for people to live in new, purpose-built 

supported living schemes. In 2020-21, we expect a new site at Wordsworth 

Avenue to become available and we hope to receive planning permission 

for another scheme elsewhere. Supported living in Sheffield offers a more 

progressive option than other types of care and services that are out of the 

Draf
t

Page 173
Page 235



 

Appendix 9 

 

city. 

79. We will continue to focus on making use of more effective night time 

support and assistive technology for people with learning disabilities in 

supported living. Our Future Options Service (FOPS) will offer 

‘enablement’ support to help people develop domestic and financial skills, 

and increase their confidence to live more independently. 

80. This support will be extended into our day services to help people to gain 

more confidence and new skills – with a focus on work readiness and 

experience. FOPS will also be available for people using our short breaks 

services to develop their personal skills while carers are able to have a 

break.   

81. At the same time, we will encourage more people to sign-up to Shared 

Lives as hosts/carers and as people who could benefit from this positive 

option for family-based support. 

Supporting health and wellbeing 

82. Through working closely with our health partners in Sheffield on the Mental 

Health Transformation Programme, we will continue to address the care 

people receive after leaving hospital and promote supported living where 

this is a positive alternative to residential care for people.  

83. We are committed to helping more people to receive care closer to home 

and away from restrictive care settings under the Transforming Care 

programme. In 2020-21, we will work closely with NHS England and local 

health partners to secure a share of funding that enables us to achieve 

this. We will prioritise the mental health of children and young people, 

including focusing on eating disorders. 

84. Our Public Health commitments will continue to address root causes of ill 

health by supporting community groups that help improve people’s health 

and wellbeing. Additional Public Health Grant funding will help the recently 

redesigned Sexual Health contract to meet the needs of people with 

different protected characteristics, some of whom may be under-

represented and others over-represented in accessing sexual health 

services. 

Making our processes less complicated 

85. We know the processes that must be navigated by people who need care 

and support can be too complex and we are determined to tackle this in 

2020-21. We will further develop our joint ways of working with NHS 

Draf
t

Page 174
Page 236



 

Appendix 9 

 

Sheffield Clinical Commissioning Group so that more people are able to 

benefit from Continuing Healthcare funding. We have listened to what 

people have told us to make improvements to the information and advice 

available to people who need to pay for their care and support.  

Supporting the voluntary, community and faith sectors and libraries 

86. We will extend Grant Aid contracts for most organisations for a further year 

so we can carry out a wider review. We recognise the essential support 

that our partners in the voluntary sector provide to diverse communities, 

and the role Grant Aid plays in this. The contract extensions allow us to 

continue prioritising frontline service delivery, particularly acknowledging 

work with vulnerable people living rough and work which addresses 

poverty and the impact of welfare reform.  

87. We will achieve savings to library services that do not affect frontline 

delivery. 

Looking for value for money 

88. We are focused on achieving even better value for money in 2020-21. We 

will talk to organisations who provide care, and people who receive it, to 

make sure the support that is in place is right and proportionate. We will 

continue our aim to negotiate a fair cost of care on behalf of people with 

complex needs living in care homes and people accessing day services. 

89. We will establish a new service to see how Direct Payments can most 

effectively benefit the people who need them and want them, and where 

administrative costs can be reduced.  

90. When contracts come to an end we will check to see if less has been spent 

than planned and if this means new contracts can be issued at different 

rates. This would allow us more efficiently to maintain support for 

vulnerable people – for example, young people with substance misuse 

issues. 

91. Several of the proposals within People Services will see changes to fees 

and charges as well as generating increased income. This will include 

increasing income from schools and local authority partners for data and 

information services. In addition, we are expecting increased income from 

schools for demand-led services such as the Physical Education, 

Swimming and Outdoor Learning (PESOL) and English as an Additional 

Language (EAL). 

 

Draf
t

Page 175
Page 237



 

Appendix 9 

 

Our workforce 

92. Where Managed Employee Reductions are required or we look to take 

advantage of opportunities to reduce premises costs, we will work to 

minimise the impact on direct provision. Appropriate support and 

mitigations will be provided for all employees affected by any proposal 

involving staffing change. We will aim to ensure there is not have a 

disproportionate impact on any group already under-represented within the 

staffing profile. 

Equalities impact 

93. Across People Services, many of our proposals relate to working with 

vulnerable people, young people, women, people with disabilities, older 

people and people with other protected characteristics. With any planned 

savings, there is a risk of a potential impact. We have sought to ensure, as 

far as possible, that our proposals are either for improvements that will 

benefit people or do not have adverse consequences. Full EIAs have been 

carried out and will continue to be developed and monitored throughout the 

year ahead.   

94. We are also aware of the cumulative impact of changes in services and 

broader public policy. We will continue to work across the Council and with 

our partners to develop a shared understanding of the impact of these 

changes on groups with protected characteristics. 

 

Public Health 

95. There are a number of EIAs which relate to Public Health spending, which 

is approximately £32 million and is integrated throughout the Portfolios. 

More detail on the use of our Public Health grant is given in the portfolio 

sections. We continue to carefully monitor the national allocation of the 

Public Health grant and the impact that this has. We have limited 

reductions where possible and await further national guidance on the 

national public health grant allocation. In order to ensure that we are robust 

in our planning we are reviewing how and where the funding is spent to 

ensure that it is targeted to tackle the root causes of ill health and to have 

the maximum impact on reducing inequalities. This may mean that we will 

need to save on existing activities in order to reinvest in other areas which 

have been prioritised. 

 

 

Draf
t

Page 176
Page 238



 

Appendix 9 

 

Equality Impacts 

96. The proposals which involve more cost effective delivery, the retendering 

of contracts, earlier intervention leading to prevention, internal 

restructuring, and staff reductions will have fewer equality impacts. We will 

continue to support advice and information and where possible the delivery 

of front line services (particularly for vulnerable and at risk groups), so the 

impact of the overall investment will remain positive on the groups 

identified to be most in need within the EIAs. 

97. The outcomes expected of the Public Health Grant will continue to be 

assessed under the Public Health Outcomes Framework (PHOF), and 

broadly fall into the following categories: 

 Health and wellbeing is built into all that we do. 

 To protect people from preventable infections and 

environmental hazards to health. 

 To reduce health inequalities. 

 To support people to live healthier lives. 

98. As we target the households in most need there will be an inevitable 

impact on those who are still struggling financially but are not on the 

lowest incomes and who will be not eligible for targeted programmes. The 

biggest impact is likely to be on families with dependent children. 

 
Resources 

99. In the Resources Portfolio there are 14 EIAs which cover all budget 

proposals for 2020/21. These proposals are predominantly around staff 

savings through vacancy management or through Managing Employee 

Reduction (MER) processes. Most services are meeting all or part of its 

savings target through a staff saving and this covers Business Change 

and Information Solutions (BCIS), Finance and Commercial Service 

(FCS), Customer Service and Human Resources. 

100. Alongside the staff savings there are few additional savings being offered: 

 Increasing external income in Customer Services 

 Efficiencies within services that will allow for vacant posts to be deleted. 

 To keep the same Council Tax Support (CTS) system this year. 

 An increase in Council Tax of 1.99%. There is also a 2.0% increase 

attributable to the social care precept for 2020/21. 

Draf
t

Page 177
Page 239



 

Appendix 9 

 

101. It is not anticipated that there will be any disproportionate impacts on staff 

or customers however the impacts will continue to be monitored through 

the EIA process and action plans will be developed to mitigate impacts 

where appropriate. 

Workforce 

102. Some of the proposals will result in a reduction in posts across the 

Portfolio. However, there is no identified disproportionate impact on a 

specific group. 

103. A number of Voluntary Severance/Voluntary Early Retirement schemes 

across Resources will result in voluntary staff reductions and changes. 

There are also some ongoing Managing Employee Reduction processes 

to achieve non-voluntary staff reductions. In both instances, there is a 

possibility of wider workforce impact through increased workload and the 

impact on health and wellbeing of staff. 

Equalities impact 

104. The greatest impact will be in relation to the increase in Council Tax.  

See detail later in the report and mitigation through the increased 

Hardship Scheme. 

 

Policy, Performance and Communications 

105. In Policy, Performance and Communications (PPC) there are less than 100 

staff overall and only one EIA.  The proposal concerns increasing external 

income within the Communications service.  These changes will not have 

any workforce or customer impacts.  

 

Key Themes 

106. In summary there are a number of key themes that run through the 
proposals: 

 The restructuring and integrating of services and teams to 

increase efficiency and effectiveness. 

 Developing solutions for the longer term. 

 Taking preventative action and intervening earlier. 

 Stopping some functions or activities and working with partners so 

they can be delivered by others where possible. 

 ‘Managing Employee Reductions’ processes to reduce the number 

of staff employed, especially in non -front line roles. 

Draf
t

Page 178
Page 240



 

Appendix 9 

 

 Targeting of resources and prioritising support to those who need it 

most and those at risk. 

 Helping people to be independent, safe and well and to make their 

own choices. 

 Better value for money in the services we commission or 

purchase, including joint funding. 

 Working with other partners to avoid duplication, so people get 

co- ordinated help and support. 

 Fairer contributions and charges to ensure full cost recovery and 

as a way to maintain services. 

 More commercial approaches and traded services (eg with schools). 

 Supporting the Voluntary Community Sector, with a renewed focus 

on frontline services that directly work with people who face 

financial hardship and /or with protected equality characteristics. 

 Focusing to address the root causes of ill health. 

 Spending more time with those in contact with Adult Social Care to 

see how we can enable people to find the right support to lead 

better lives, and to manage demand on services. 

 Continuing with changes made in the past year to have full year effect. 

 Continuing to monitor the impact of changes over the coming year. 

107. We will continue to fund a Local Assistance Scheme and to have a Council 

Tax Support Scheme which limits support to 77% of the Council Tax liability 

for working age applicants despite Government funding cuts in these areas. 

We will also mitigate the impact of the 3.99% increase (80p per week on the 

majority of households) in Council Tax, by increasing the Council Tax 

Hardship Scheme in 2020/21 by £200k. There are currently approximately 

46,600 households who receive Council Tax Support, and of these 

approximately 27,900 are of working age. 

108. In 2013/14, the Council made awards from the Council Tax Hardship 

Scheme totalling £410,000. The hardship fund has increased steadily each 

year and was £1.4m in 2019/20. Due to the increase in 2020/21 of Council 

Tax (1.99%) and Adult Social Care (2%), it is proposed that the budget for 

the Council Tax Hardship Scheme is increased to £1.4m.The under 

occupancy rules were introduced in April 2013 in Sheffield; approximately 

4,000 households are currently affected by the changes, with approximately 

3,300 of these being subject to the 14% reduction, and approximately 700 

Draf
t

Page 179
Page 241



 

Appendix 9 

 

subject to the 25% reduction. The numbers of those affected in the city are 

staying quite steady over time. 

109. Many of the people affected by under-occupancy rules are supported by 

Discretionary Housing Payments (DHP), funded by a grant we receive 

from the Department of Work and Pensions (DWP). However, the 

introduction of the revised benefit cap has placed additional demands on 

the DHP budget.  

110. In Sheffield, 294 households are having their Housing Benefit reduced as a 

result of the benefit cap. The split by tenure is: Council tenants 41%; 

Housing Association 25%; and private-rented tenants 34%. In total, those 

households who are affected by the reduced benefit cap contain 1,100 

children. The total annual reduction in Housing Benefit for those households 

is around £680,000 (£13,076 per week). This amounts to an average 

weekly reduction of £44.48 per household.  

111. Sheffield City Council also provides grant funding to several organisations 

which support the financial resilience of people in the city, including Sheffield 

Citizens Advice. Much of the work of the Council also impacts on financial 

inclusion, including that of social work, Housing+ (support for Council 

Housing tenants), the People Keeping Well Programme and Trading 

Standards work with the regional Illegal Money Lending Team. 

112. Overall, this year the proposals do have the potential to impact negatively in 

some areas and service EIAs have sought to mitigate this, however there 

are also positive impacts which have been identified. Further details of the 

impacts are contained in individual service EIAs. 

113. Our impact assessments identify and provide mitigations for any potential 

impacts in services for younger people, older people, disabled people, 

BAME, women and men, religion and belief, sexual orientation, voluntary 

community and faith sector, cohesion and financial inclusion/ poverty. There 

is over representation within this last group of people financially excluded or 

in poverty of disabled people, carers, young people, some women and some 

BAME communities. Further details of the impacts are contained in 

individual service EIAs which are listed at the end. 
 

Age – older people 

114. In 2011 Sheffield had a higher proportion of its population aged 65 years 

or over (16.7 % or 85,700 people) than the other English Core Cities. The 

proportion of Sheffield’s population aged over 65 is also projected to increase, 

with the largest increases in the number of people aged over 85. 

Draf
t

Page 180
Page 242



 

Appendix 9 

 

115. Across all Portfolios impacts on age have been identified; however for 

older people the impacts are largely in People Services. 

116. The Home First programme will continue to provide timely interventions and 

support to help to prevent or shorten lengthy and avoidable hospital stays. 

The focus remains on sorting out the home environment, community links 

and access, short-term support and other practical measures to help people 

recover and regain their independence.   

117. When older people need care and support, we will aim to make sure it is right 

for them and promotes their wellbeing and independence. Through improved 

information and support, we will do more to make sure paying personal 

contributions to the cost of care is easier and clearer. As every year, we will 

raise contributions to reflect increases in national pension and benefit rates 

for older age people which, over recent years, have risen at a higher rate 

than benefits for working age adults. 

118. When people get in touch for support, our First Contact team will give the 

time needed to explore the help they need. The service will continue to find 

people information and better connections to the community where they live. 

This is in line with our Conversations Count approach in Adult Social Care, 

which is focusing on people’s personal goals and strengths rather than rigidly 

following an assessment process. 

119. We will aim to work with providers to achieve fair cost of care for people who 

live in care homes. We are also responding to pressures in the Sexual Health 

contract which has identified meeting the specific needs of older people.  

120. We have worked with our partners to develop the Dementia Strategy for 

Sheffield; in 2020-21, we will take this forward by procuring dementia-

appropriate types of support. Our new All Age Disability project will aim to 

improve support for people at key transition points in their lives, including in 

preparation for adulthood.  

121. Age is considered across the Mental Health Transformation Programme. It 

aims to commission ‘all age’ (lifespan) mental health services that focus on 

emotional wellbeing throughout people’s lives. For young people, this 

includes improving the transition pathways to Adults' Mental Health Services 

and to/from CAMHS; a specific focus on Eating Disorder Services; and 

developing Mental Health Support Teams work in schools and colleges. 

122. Many of the above proposals aims to create changes that enhance people’s 

wellbeing, support and experience. However, there will be an inevitable 

impact from such changes and, where possible, we will mitigate any negative 

consequences of these proposals. The EIA process provides critical 

Draf
t

Page 181
Page 243



 

Appendix 9 

 

information to enable us to target our approach carefully. 

123. Resources and PPC have few proposals which impact directly on older 

people.  

124. In Resources, the changes to the Council Tax Support Scheme are likely to 

have a low impact in this area as regulations prescribe that current claimants 

of a pensionable age continue to receive at least the same level of support as 

they would under the former Council Tax Benefit regulations. This means that 

if they are eligible for support, the amount of support that they receive is 

based on 100% of their net Council Tax liability. Those who receive Pension 

Guarantee Tax Credit will currently have their full Council Tax charge 

covered by CTS (less any non- dependent deductions), and this will still be 

the case if Council Tax increases.  
 

Age – young people 

125. The age group that has increased the most from 2001 to 2011 is the 16–24 

groups. We now have 16.7% of our population in this group and a further 

18.2% of the city’s population is under 16. 28% of BAME residents are 

aged Under 16. Around 20% of people in Sheffield will live in relative 

poverty at any one time. In 2012 this included 23% of all Sheffield children 

and almost a third of all children under 10. 

126. In People Services, the proposals that identify impacts are summarised 

below: 

 We are working through projects which aim to reduce the number of 

children entering the care system and also to facilitate the 

reunification of families where it is safe to do so. 

 We are working to increase the number and range of suitable places 

available within the city. This will help lead to vulnerable young 

people having a better chance of placement suitability and stability 

which would lead to better outcomes for the young persons and 

enhance a sense of belonging and engagement with society. 

 Through the Strengthening Inclusion Programme we are working to 

ensure that there will be sufficient, quality placements in inclusive 

mainstream settings (age 0-25) to meet the needs of the majority of 

children and young people with SEND. For the most complex 

children we will have a range of sufficient, quality specialist provision 

as close to home as possible. As part of these investments, two new 

special schools will be built in Sheffield.  

 We are responding to pressures in the Sexual Health contract which 

Draf
t

Page 182
Page 244



 

Appendix 9 

 

has identified specific needs including those of younger people due 

to Sheffield’s sizable student population.  

 We continue to commission a service to provide support to Children 

and Young People who are vulnerable to the impact of substance 

misuse on their neurological development, physical and mental 

health.   

 

127. In Resources and PPC, there are mainly none to low impacts, as most of the 

EIAs relate to internal restructuring. The main areas of customer impact are 

Council Tax. In relation to Council Tax, it is clear from the collection rates that 

under the CTS scheme some working age households have found (and will 

continue to find) it harder to meet their Council Tax liability than others, 

though the overall collection rate amongst Council Tax Support recipients 

has increased.  

128. We are proposing this year to continue to keep the same Council Tax 

Support (CTS) scheme. The CTS scheme continues to be based on the 

principles of the old Council Tax Benefit (CTB) regulations and provides for 

the maximum financial support being made available to those with the 

greatest financial need. They protect some of the income of the disabled and 

of families whilst providing assistance to those people who move off benefits 

into paid employment. The Council recognises, however, that requiring all 

working age customers to pay a minimum of 23% of their Council Tax has 

caused financial hardship amongst some households. There are currently 

approximately 46,600 households who receive Council Tax Support, and of 

these approximately 27,900 are of working age. 

129. As a result, we have a Council Tax Hardship Scheme (CTHS) to offer 

additional support to those in severe financial need. Analysis of the awards 

made under the CTHS scheme show that over 90% of awards have been 

made to working age taxpayers, the group most adversely affected by the 

introduction of CTS. We introduced the hardship scheme  in 2013/14, and the 

Council made awards totaling £410,000. The hardship fund has increased 

steadily each year and was £1.4m in 2019/20. Due to the increase in 

2012021 of Council Tax (1.99%), and Adult Social Care precept 2% it is 

proposed that the budget for the Council Tax Hardship Scheme is increased 

to £1.6m.  

130. In Place, we have worked closely with Cultural Trusts to identify a level of 

subsidy reduction that is manageable and has minimal impact on visitors. 

This includes continuing with a pricing policy that encourages participation 

Draf
t

Page 183
Page 245



 

Appendix 9 

 

from the widest possible range of audiences e.g. work with schools across 

the city & the Peoples Theatre and free entry for students of Drama. 
 

 
Disability 

131. There are over 110,000 adults with a long term limiting illness or disability in 

Sheffield, equivalent to around 20% of the population, with 9% saying this 

limits their activity a great deal. Service EIAs have identified a potential risk 

of negative impact on disabled people, both directly and indirectly, through 

impacts on people on a low income and noted mitigations to be put in place. 

Over a third of disabled people in Sheffield live in areas which are in the 

10% of the most deprived areas in the country, which is 10% higher 

compared to 23% which is the overall average in Sheffield. For further 

information, please see Community Knowledge Profiles. 

132. When the extra costs of disability are partially accounted for, half of all 

people in poverty are either disabled, or in a household with a disabled 

person. 

133. In People Services, our work in relation to people with disabilities will be 

taken forward within some major programmes of work.   

134. We have worked with partner organisations to develop the Dementia 

Strategy for Sheffield. In 2020-21, we will focus attention on procuring the 

right support, including: dementia-appropriate day care; a specialist advice 

service; a pilot project to test the need for short term early help; community-

based activities, information/advice and peer support; improved access to 

short term reablement.  

135. The Mental Health Transformation Programme (MHTP) is jointly developed 

and delivered by Sheffield City Council (SCC), NHS Sheffield CCG (SCCG) 

and Sheffield Health and Social Care NHS Foundation Trust (SHSC). Its 

areas of work include Crisis Care, Physical Health, Primary Care, Children’s 

and Young People’s Mental Health, Transforming Care and employment. 

136. We will also develop an All Age Disability project, focusing on transition 

points at different stages in people’s lives and the need for integrated 

support services. We will aim to work with providers to ensure fair cost of 

care in day services and care homes.  

137. When people with a disability come into contact with Adult Social Care, our 

teams, including First Contact, will continue to use a more personalised 

conversation-based approach, focusing on personal goals and strengths to 

help people find the right support and opportunities.  

Draf
t

Page 184
Page 246

https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/content/sheffield/home/your-city-council/community-knowledge-profiles.html
https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/content/sheffield/home/your-city-council/community-knowledge-profiles.html


 

Appendix 9 

 

138. When people need to pay contributions to their care, they will be offered 

improved information and support to help make payments and manage their 

finances. We will continue to take account of the actual inflationary cost of 

people’s disability related expenditure. 

139. We will continue to promote supported living for people with learning 

disabilities, looking for assistive technology options where appropriate to 

support people at night. Purpose-built supported living accommodation will 

become available to support people with complex needs to move into from 

more restrictive care settings. It will provide self-contained homes with 

opportunities for peer support and shared staff support. 

140. More help will be offered for people using Council-delivered supported living 

and day care services to maximise their skills and independence as they 

work towards independent living, social inclusion, education and/or 

employment.  

141. Our proposal to extend Grant Aid contracts by a further year to enable a 

wider review to be carried out recognises in part that a significant minority of 

people who benefit from support from voluntary sector organisations as a 

result of Grant Aid funding describes themselves as disabled. In 2020-21, 

pending the review, we are applying a small equitable reduction in funding. 

Although, following consultation with the organisations, we believe this is 

manageable with minimal impact on services, we will monitor the position 

closely throughout the year ahead.   

142. Through the Strengthening Inclusion Programme we are working to ensure 

that there will be sufficient, quality placements in inclusive mainstream 

settings (age 0-25) to meet the needs of the majority of children and young 

people with SEND. For the most complex children we will have a range of 

sufficient, quality specialist provision as close to home as possible. As part of 

these investments, two new special schools will be built in Sheffield.  

143. We are responding to pressures in the Sexual Health contract and identified 

the need to promote improved access to sexual health services for disabled 

people. 

144. There are low impacts on disabled people in Resources. Most changes are 

internal restructures or relate to contracts, which will not impact directly on 

customers except for Council Tax. The Council recognises that changes to 

Council Tax may cause hardship for some customers in this group as there 

are there are in excess of 10,000 taxpayers, (working age and pensioners), 

with a disability who are in receipt of CTS. However, by continuing to closely 

align our CTS scheme with the principles of the old National Government 

Draf
t

Page 185
Page 247



 

Appendix 9 

 

CTB scheme customers working age in receipt of disability benefits will 

continue to receive the highest possible level of CTS. Pensioners with a 

disability will continue to be protected under the CTS scheme.  

145. To continue to offer the highest possible support to all disabled customers, 

the Council intends to continue to disregard as income for calculating 

eligibility for CTS, Attendance Allowance (AA), Personal Independence 

payment (PIP) & Disability Living Allowance (DLA), and War Disablement 

Pensions/Armed Forces Compensation Scheme. 

146. In recognition of the impact that the change to CTS has on disabled 

taxpayers the Council introduced, and in 2020/21 proposes to maintain with 

increased funding, a Council Tax Hardship Scheme (CTHS) to offer 

additional support to those in severe financial need. This will increase by 

£200k this year. 

147. Analysis of the CTHS shows that approximately 55% of all awards are 

made to customers in receipt of Employment and Support Allowance. 

148. This underlines a key aim of the CTHS, which is to prioritise support to 

those in financial need who are least able to change their circumstances. It 

also supports the council's original understanding, when setting up the 

CTHS scheme, that hardship is not linear within customers with a shared 

protected characteristic, nor is it uniform across different customer groups 

and that targeted assistance, as opposed to blanket exemption, is an 

effective way of providing assistance to those taxpayers in most financial 

need. Under our CTHS, we do not take account of DLA (care or mobility 

components) or PIP (daily living element or mobility component) as income 

when calculating entitlement to assistance. 

 

Race  

149. Sheffield is a diverse city and the ethnic profile continues to change, with the 

proportion of residents of working age classifying themselves as BAME 

(Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic which includes everyone except for those 

who classify themselves as White British) growing from 11% in 2001 to 19.2 

% in 2011. BAME adults make up 16% of the population and BAME children 

make up 29% of the BAME population as a whole. The largest group is the 

Pakistani community and the biggest proportional increases are occurring in 

the Arabic, East European, Indian and Chinese communities. Sheffield’s 

BAME population is increasingly dispersed across the city, although there 

remain geographical areas of the city with high proportions of BAME people, 

these tend to correlate with areas of higher deprivation. For further details, 

we refer to the Community Knowledge Profiles. 

Draf
t

Page 186
Page 248

https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/content/sheffield/home/your-city-council/community-knowledge-profiles.html


 

Appendix 9 

 

150. There were very few impact assessments which highlighted a direct 

medium/high impact on race. There are more indirect impacts identified; this 

is mainly in the areas of impacts on young people and people on low 

incomes. Mitigation strategies have been identified and put in place in 

individual service EIAs. 

151. In People Services, almost half of Grant Aid beneficiaries describe 

themselves as Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic (BAME). After consulting 

with organisations receiving Grant Aid we propose to extend contracts by a 

further year with a small equitable reduction to enable a wider review to be 

carried out. We will monitor the position closely throughout the year ahead. 

152. Work on the Strengthening Families projects will engage with wider families 

and the community by delivering restorative practice techniques (Family 

Group Conferences, Multi Systemic Therapy) for young people to stay with 

their families wherever possible instead of entering into the care system. 

This will positively impact on BAME backgrounds where a gradual increase 

in all children in care has been noted, though there has been an increase in 

BAME children in the general population as well. 

153. The Strengthening Inclusion Programme will mean that children, young 

people and families from BAME groups will be able to access a range of 

local and flexible support to meet their needs. 

154. There is ongoing progress to recruit more diverse foster carers. 

155. We are responding to pressures in the Sexual Health contract and will 

promote improved access to sexual health services for BAME groups. Some 

BAME communities can be harder to engage with on sexual health services, 

this includes some of the overseas student population in Sheffield. 

156. In Resources, the proposal to increase Council Tax will affect all working 

age taxpayers. It is clear from analysing overall collection rates that some 

households from across the City have found it more difficult to meet their 

Council Tax liability. As the CTS caseload is representative of the City's 

differing ethnic make- up, it is reasonable to assume households from 

different ethnic backgrounds will form part of the overall group of CTS 

taxpayers who are struggling financially. Also BAME communities are more 

likely to be working age taxpayers rather than of pension age. However, there 

is no evidence available which would suggest that taxpayers from differing 

ethnic backgrounds will be disproportionately affected by an increase. . 

157. In recognition of the potential impact that the change to CTS will have on 

taxpayers we propose to maintain, with increased funding a Council Tax 

Hardship Scheme (CTHS) to offer additional support to those taxpayers 

Draf
t

Page 187
Page 249



 

Appendix 9 

 

from differing ethnic backgrounds who are in severe financial need. 

158. Access to the scheme is open to all taxpayers in receipt of CTS. Analysis 

of our CTS caseload shows that 25% of all applicants are from a BAME 

background whilst 26% of all awards made under the CTHS are made to 

BAME households. 

 

Religion/Belief 

159. According to the 2011 Census the largest religion/belief held in the city 

is Christian (52.5%), followed by no religion (31%), Muslim (7.7%) and 

no religion stated (6.8%). Few service impact assessments have 

detailed any disproportionate impacts in this area. 

160. There are no identified disproportionate impacts in People Services 

(Children, Young People and Families or Adults), Place Services, 

Resources, or PPC. 

 

Sex – including men, women, pregnancy and maternity 

161. Sheffield has a population overall which is approximately 51% female and 

49% male with some variations at different ages. Women account for 58% 

of carers and 89% of lone parents. While the pay gap between men and 

women has been reducing, there is still evidence that, in general, men are 

paid more than women; the gender pay gap in Sheffield is 17.5%. 55% of 

women are economically active compared to 65% of men. See Community 

Knowledge Profile for more information on this. 

162. Few impact assessments have noted clear direct disproportionate impacts 

on gender. However, as women have lower incomes overall, are a larger 

proportion of adult social care service users, carers and lone parents, there 

will therefore be an indirect impact from multiple proposals such as 

increasing in charging, changes in Adult Social Care, and Council Tax. See 

the sections on older people, disability and carers for the potential of 

indirect impact due to multiple disadvantages in the People Portfolio. 

163. In People Services, the Strengthening Families projects continue to work 

with survivors and perpetrators of abuse regardless of gender, with a focus 

on early intervention and prevention. However as most victims of domestic 

and sexual abuse are female this will have a disproportionate impact. The 

Fresh Start Project continues to work with those most at risk of having a 

child removed and this will include women with substance misuse issues, 

mental health problems and teenage mothers. The project primarily works 

Draf
t

Page 188
Page 250

https://www.ons.gov.uk/census/2011census/2011ukcensuses
https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/content/sheffield/home/your-city-council/community-knowledge-profiles.html
https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/content/sheffield/home/your-city-council/community-knowledge-profiles.html
https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/content/sheffield/home/your-city-council/community-knowledge-profiles.html


 

Appendix 9 

 

with women however where they are with a partner we will work with them 

as a couple wherever we can and link to the Domestic Abuse Project if 

needed. 

164. The Parenting Project highlights increasing areas of support specific to 

fathers and works with those families in need of support. 

165. The Strengthening Inclusion Programme is supporting more boys and girls. 

Boys are disproportionately represented in SEN and EHCP plans.  

166. We are responding to pressures in the Sexual Health contract and will 

promote improved access to sexual health services. We will work to 

engage with difficult to reach service users who often have particular needs 

and service requirements. 

167. In People Services there may be indirect impacts on women, who are in 

the majority of older people, carers and those who either use, or work in 

Adult Social Care services. Higher proportions of women also volunteer 

and work in the VCF sector. 

168. There are no identified direct impacts on gender in PPC or Place. However, 

across Portfolios, women are more likely to be unemployed and have lower 

incomes. Any changes impacting on people on a low income, will indirectly 

impact on women. 

169. In Resources, pregnant customers claiming CTS have their award based 

on 77% rather than 100% of their Council Tax Liability. By continuing to 

closely align our CTS scheme with the principles of the revoked CTB 

scheme, once these customers give birth their change in circumstances will 

be positively reflected in the level of CTS that they will receive. The Council 

will also continue to disregard child benefits as income when assessing a 

customer's eligibility to CTS. In recognition of the impact that the CTS has 

on pregnant taxpayers or new parents the Council proposes to maintain 

with increased funding of £200k, the Council Tax Hardship Scheme (CTHS) 

to offer additional support to those in severe financial need. By maintaining 

the scheme in its present format, it will continue to include in calculating 

entitlement to support, the family premium for working age customers, 

which the Government removed from Housing Benefit entitlement decisions 

in 2016. 

170. Further, the Government proposed to reduce Housing Benefit entitlement 

for families or single parents who have a third child after April 2017. We 

could also have incorporated this change into our CTS scheme and reduce 

support for working age customers , but by choosing not to do so we will 

continue to be able to offer the maximum possible support to families with 

Draf
t

Page 189
Page 251



 

Appendix 9 

 

more than 2 children. This is particularly relevant given that the second 

phase of the Government's "Benefit Cap" was introduced in 2017. Unlike 

the first phase, which predominantly affected families with 4+ children, the 

reduced benefit income allowed under this phase of the cap will affect 

households with 3 children and some with 2 children. 

171. In Sheffield, there are currently just over 400 households who are affected 

by the benefit cap. The benefit cap, until a household moves on to 

Universal Credit, reduces the weekly Housing Benefit received, thus 

increasing the amount of rent these households have to pay. The average 

Housing Benefit reduction in Sheffield is £47.05 per week. By increasing 

the funding available for the CTHS we will increase our ability to offer, 

where appropriate, priority financial assistance to these families, as 

demand for assistance from this group of customers increases. 

172. It is recognised that lone parents in receipt of CTS, the majority of whom 

tend to be female, are likely to be affected not just by the advent of CTS but 

by other welfare reforms, such as the removal of the family premium in 

Housing Benefit calculations, which we are proposing not to replicate for 

working age CTS customers, and the benefit cap. As such, by maintaining 

the CTS scheme in its present format and proposing to maintain and 

increase the funding for the CTHS, the Council will continue to offer 

financial assistance to single parents. 

 

Sexual orientation 

173. The Community Knowledge Profiles note that approximately 5 to 7% of 

people identify nationally as LGB (lesbian, gay or bi-sexual), although we do 

not have more local information. We estimate though that Sheffield is likely 

to have a similar proportion of people who identify as LGB+ as the national 

average, so approximately 28,000 to 38,000 people. The proportion of 

younger people Identifying as LGB+ is usually higher than the national 

average. 

174. In People Portfolio the Strengthening Families projects on domestic 

abuse have a positive impact on people who are in a same sex 

relationship and who need support.  

175. We are responding to pressures in the Sexual Health Contract and we will 
work to engage with difficult to reach service users who often have particular 
needs and service requirements. 

176. Overall, across the Council, in Place, Resources or PPC we do not think 

there will be a negative disproportionate impact for LGB+ people, but 

information on our service users in this area is limited. In the past year we 

Draf
t

Page 190
Page 252

https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/content/sheffield/home/your-city-council/community-knowledge-profiles.html


 

Appendix 9 

 

have integrated appropriate monitoring into key areas like social care. 

Further monitoring will be undertaken as part of individual EIAs to assess 

this as appropriate. 

177. In Resources there is no evidence to suggest that assessing CTS based 

on 77% of Council Tax liability has had a greater or lesser impact on 

customers purely as a result of their sexual orientation. It is clear from 

analysing overall collection rates that some households from across the City 

have found (and will continue to find) it more difficult to meet their Council 

Tax liability. As the CTS caseload is representative of the City's differing 

make up, it is reasonable to assume taxpayers of different sexual 

orientation will form part of the overall group of CTS taxpayers who are 

struggling financially. Therefore the CTHS will help to mitigate the impact of 

CTS amongst the most financially vulnerable regardless of sexual 

orientation. 
 

Trans 

178. There are nationally approximately 0.6% of the population that are trans, 

and so we would expect there to similar numbers in Sheffield, which 

equates to 3,300 people. 

179. Service impact assessments have not  detailed any impacts in this area 

except in the People Services The Strengthening Families projects on 

domestic abuse has a positive impact and recognises that trans people 

also face domestic abuse within a relationship.  

180. We are responding to pressures in the Sexual Health contract and will 

continue to support those individuals who are difficult to reach or have 

particular needs, for example, transgender people or those identifying as 

non-binary. 

181. Overall, across the Council in Place, Resources or PPC we do not think 

there will be negative disproportionate impact on trans people. However we 

do not have a sufficient amount of monitoring information about our service 

users in a lot of services, so further monitoring will be undertaken as part of 

individual EIAs to assess impact as relevant and appropriate. 

 
Financial exclusion and poverty 

182. The Indices of Deprivation, a relative measure of deprivation in small areas 

of England (known as Lower Super Output Areas or LSOAs) ranks nearly 

a quarter of Sheffield’s LSOAs as within the most deprived 10% nationally. 

Five LSOAs in Sheffield are within the 1% most deprived in England, an 

Draf
t

Page 191
Page 253



 

Appendix 9 

 

increase from three in 2015. 

183. Sheffield’s Child Poverty report in 2017 shows the proportion of children 

living in families in receipt of out of work benefits, or in receipt of tax credits 

where their reported income is less than 60% of UK median, has 

increased. In line with other Core Cities and national trends, the most up-

to-date data shows 31.3% (35,820) children are living in poverty in 

Sheffield after housing costs (AHC). However, the figure masks the wide 

and well-documented variation between different parts of Sheffield. In 

Ecclesall ward, 7.8% (AHC) of children were living in poverty, whilst in 

Burngreave the figure was much higher at 51.19% and Central and Firth 

Park at 49% in poverty. 

184. In 2017, 17 of the Sheffield’s 28 wards had more than 20% of children living 

in relative poverty (AHC). There are clearly multiple causes of child poverty; 

however, it is likely that national welfare reforms are a significant driver of 

changes seen. 

185. Joseph Roundtree Foundation (JRF) research (Monitoring poverty and 

social exclusion 2016 report) notes ‘While overall levels of poverty have 

remained fairly static over the last 25 years, risks for particular groups have 

changed. Income poverty among pensioners fell from 40% to 13%, while 

child poverty rates remain high at 29%, and poverty among working-age 

adults without dependent children has risen from 14% to around 20%. The 

number of people in poverty in a working family is 55%. Four-fifths of the 

adults in these families are themselves working, some 3.8 million workers. 

Those adults that are not working are predominantly looking after children. 

186. Between 2008 and 2014 the cost of essentials went up three times faster 

than average earnings and the cost of essentials went up twice as fast as 

general inflation. At the same time, average earnings were stagnant and 

benefits that low-income households rely on (both in and out of work) were 

cut in real terms. The face of poverty has also changed in other ways: 

 Pensioners are now less likely to be in poverty than previously, but 

other groups (see below) are more likely to be in poverty. Poverty 

amongst pensioners is directly linked to their experience in earlier life. 

 Nationally, poverty rates for disabled people have reversed, with 

poverty increasing. 

 When the extra costs of disability are partially accounted for, half of 

all people in poverty are either disabled, or in a household with a 

disabled person. 

Draf
t

Page 192
Page 254

https://www.jrf.org.uk/report/monitoring-poverty-and-social-exclusion-2016
https://www.jrf.org.uk/report/monitoring-poverty-and-social-exclusion-2016
https://www.jrf.org.uk/report/monitoring-poverty-and-social-exclusion-2016
https://www.jrf.org.uk/report/monitoring-poverty-and-social-exclusion-2016


 

Appendix 9 

 

 People from minority ethnic backgrounds are more likely to be in 
poverty. 

 People in poverty face reduced and falling financial resilience. 

For example, 69% of the poorest fifth have no savings 

whatsoever, an increase from 58% in 2005/06. 

 Care leavers, and carers (both young carers and adult carers) 

are at increased risk of poverty. 

 Children in large or single parent families are at greater risk of 

poverty. Almost two thirds of children living in single parent families 

live in poverty; they are also one of the groups hardest hit by the 

new benefit changes. 

187. As stated above, Government’s rollout of Universal Credit (UC) is having 

significant implications for communities in Sheffield, particularly people with 

more complex lives or who have vulnerabilities that make managing the 

system harder.  This is more likely to include people from BAMER 

communities, care leavers, people experiencing domestic abuse, tenants in 

private-rented accommodation, people with disabilities or health conditions, 

and carers. 

188. UC has been introduced within the context of wider welfare reform changes 

which, once completed, may lead to the city losing nearly £170m a year in 

benefits and tax credits. This is the equivalent to £460 a year for every adult 

of working age in the city, but some communities will see five times the level 

of reductions than others (research by Sheffield Hallam University2). 

189. Sheffield City Council’s budget reductions, coupled with issues above 

like welfare reform, mean that preventing inequality from worsening or 

not widening is one of the main aims of the assessments. 

190. Across all Portfolios we have tried to minimise the impact as far as possible, 

especially on those that are in greatest need or at risk, such as those that 

face financial exclusion and poverty. We have also aimed to ensure the 

budget proposals are in line with the Fairness Commission Principles and our 

priorities outlined in our Corporate Plan such as tackling inequality. 

191. We have considered the key drivers of poverty and its effects (short, medium, 

and long term). Our proposals therefore reflect the Council’s intention to 

tackle poverty and reduce inequality, as outlined in the Tackling Poverty 

Strategy 2015. The strategy notes three ways we will make an impact: 

                                                 
2 https://www4.shu.ac.uk/research/cresr/impact-welfare-reform-communities-and-households-sheffield-pdf-
273-mb  

Draf
t

Page 193
Page 255

http://www.sheffield.gov.uk/content/sheffield/home/your-city-council/corporate-plan.html
http://www.sheffield.gov.uk/content/sheffield/home/your-city-council/corporate-plan.html
http://www.sheffield.gov.uk/content/sheffield/home/your-city-council/tackling-poverty.html
http://www.sheffield.gov.uk/content/sheffield/home/your-city-council/tackling-poverty.html
https://www4.shu.ac.uk/research/cresr/impact-welfare-reform-communities-and-households-sheffield-pdf-273-mb
https://www4.shu.ac.uk/research/cresr/impact-welfare-reform-communities-and-households-sheffield-pdf-273-mb


 

Appendix 9 

 

 Changing the way we do things so that tackling poverty is always 

a priority. 

 Taking action to make things better for children and adults who are 

struggling and in poverty now (including providing advice, reducing 

the cost of essentials and reducing crime). 

 Tackling some of the root causes of poverty and giving our children 

the best chance of a poverty-free future (including improving skills 

and employability, increasing the supply of good quality jobs, giving 

children a great start in life and a good education, improving health 

and tackling health inequalities and providing more affordable, decent 

homes). 

192. In People Services, our Grant Aid funding arrangements for 2020-21 

prioritise support that helps to alleviate poverty, manage debt and maximise 

income. In particular, our funding proposals respond to ongoing concerns 

about the impact on people in Sheffield of the introduction of Universal 

Credit and wider welfare reform. 

193. Our Income and Payments Programme aims to improve the information, 

financial advice and support available to people making contributions to the 

cost of their Adult Social Care. The goal is to help people to maximize their 

income, minimize and manage debts and find it easier to keep on top of 

their contributions. 

194. A new service to be set up will support people to get the most out of their 

Direct Payments, reduce administrative costs and consider other options. 

195. Various proposals in People Services are based on the principle of 

promoting greater independence – for example, through supported living 

and the development of work-related skills – and the potential for higher 

disposable income. 

196. Improving rates of pay to foster carers, will over a period of time will bring 

them in line with the rate paid in the local region. 

197. More foster carers in the city will lead to greater placement choice for 

children in care, improved placement stability and better long term 

outcomes for children in care. 

198. Our Strengthening Families Programme continues to work with children, 

young people and families to prevent the flow of children and young people 

into care through a range of funded initiatives such as Edge of Care 

Adolescents, Growing Futures, Parental Development, Integrated Front 

Door, Fresh Start and Fostering. Going into care impacts on the outcomes 

Draf
t

Page 194
Page 256



 

Appendix 9 

 

for children and young people, one of which is increased poverty and 

financial exclusion.  

199. These projects also work with those most at risk of having a child removed, 

this includes teenage mothers. In addition, projects work with care leavers 

and young parents who are amongst those most vulnerable to poverty. 

200. By having the right support at the right time and in the right place for 

children and young people, we are preparing the young person for 

transition into independence and employment. By preparing the young 

person for independence and employment, we are mitigating against one of 

the key determinants of financial exclusion and poverty. 

201. We are responding to pressures in the Sexual Health contract as sexual 

health inequalities are the starkest for people who are financially excluded 

and will contribute in meeting the needs of this vulnerable group. 

202. In Place there are a couple of proposals with a potential impact on financial 

inclusion and poverty: 

 

 The inflationary increase in fees and charges for services provided 

by the Place portfolio.  These services are wide-ranging with a 

daily and citywide impact on the lives of most people and 

businesses in Sheffield. This includes a number of statutory 

obligations for managing and maintaining the development, safety, 

and cleanliness of the city, as well as some discretionary activities 

that we choose to provide because of the benefits for the city. By 

keeping overheads as low as possible and providing services more 

efficiently, Place strives to mitigate inflation. 

 

 We have worked with our Sports and Culture trusts partners, to 

identify ongoing subsidy reductions that are manageable. This 

involves a minimal impact on visitors, which includes a pricing 

policy that encourages participation from the widest possible range 

of audiences e.g. reduced prices for particular groups, work with 

schools across the city & the Peoples Theatre, free entry for 

students of Drama etc. 

 

203. The Council administers the following schemes which have an impact 

on financial inclusion, including: 

 Local Assistance Scheme (LAS) provides grants for those in greatest 

need as a result of an emergency or crisis, or in order to establish 

Draf
t

Page 195
Page 257



 

Appendix 9 

 

themselves in the community (after, for example, a lengthy hospital 

stay). 

 Council Tax Support Scheme (CTS) – this was established in April 

2013, when the Government abolished Council Tax Benefit. It provides 

some support for people to pay their Council Tax who are eligible due 

to low income or being in receipt of particular benefits. 

 Council Tax Hardship Scheme (CTHS) – this scheme helps people 

who receive Council Tax Support and who are in severe hardship. 

 Discretionary Housing Payments – funded by the DWP these payments 

provide assistance to households who are receiving Housing Benefit 

and who are experiencing financial hardship as a result of a shortfall 

between their Housing Benefit and Rent. 

204. In Resources it is intended that the CTS scheme continues to be closely 

aligned with the principles of the revoked CTB regulations. These regulations 

provide for the maximum financial support being made available to those 

with the greatest financial need. They protect some of the income of the 

disabled and of families whilst providing assistance to those people who 

move off benefits into paid employment. However, the Government in 

pursuing its Welfare Reform agenda has made changes to the Housing 

Benefit scheme which reduces support to certain working age customer 

groups. If we replicate those changes in our CTS scheme we will also reduce 

support under our scheme to those customers. It is proposed not to 

incorporate those changes into our CTS scheme. By taking this decision we 

will continue to provide the maximum available support under our scheme. 

205. The Council recognises however that requiring all working age customers to 

pay a minimum of 23% of their Council Tax may cause financial hardship 

amongst these households. Therefore the Council is proposing to continue to 

operate the Council Tax Hardship Scheme (CTHS) in 2019/20 and to 

increase the assistance available under the scheme by £200k, in order to 

continue to offer assistance to the most financially vulnerable households. By 

doing so we will be able to target assistance to those customers in the 

greatest financial need. Further the Council also maintains a Local 

Assistance Scheme which can provide additional financial support to certain 

CTS taxpayers in financial difficulties. 

206. However we will increase Council Tax by 2.99% (approx. 58p per week 

for most households) to enable us to continue to protect services to those 

who are in greatest need and at risk. 

207. The Local Assistance Scheme (LAS) is run by the Council and replaces the 

Draf
t

Page 196
Page 258



 

Appendix 9 

 

Crisis Loans and Community Care Grants that were previously available from 

the DWP. The LAS provides grants to help people as a result of an 

emergency or crisis, or to help them establish themselves in the community 

or to ease exceptional pressure, and can be awarded for household furniture 

and other essentials. 

208. The LAS was reviewed in 2017 and the following changes have been made 

to the scheme: 

 Instead of providing crisis loans via Sheffield Credit Union, LAS now 

provides Sheffield Crisis Grants, which follow the same criteria as 

the Local Assistance Loans except that they do not have to be 

repaid. 

 Local Assistance Grants have been renamed Sheffield Independence 

Grants. Individuals under exceptional pressure are now considered in 

addition to families for these grants. Applications from customers who 

are assessed to have insufficient income, including those not in receipt 

of a qualifying benefit, are now considered (previously customers had 

to be receiving certain benefits to qualify). 

209. The Council provides funding to Sheffield Citizens Advice as well as 

providing other organisations with grants to support people who are living in 

poverty or who are at the risk of poverty. The Revenues and Benefits service 

also has close links with this sector, particularly with advice agencies and 

supported housing providers. The service will continue to engage with them 

where appropriate to review and refine the scheme in order to ensure that it 

continues to be fit for purpose. By proposing to maintain the scheme in its 

current format and therefore not making it less generous, the Council is 

ensuring that during a challenging period of change for many low income 

households, it will provide continuity for those already claiming CTS. 

 

Carers 

210. According to the Carers Community Profile (see Community Knowledge 

Profiles) and 2011 Census there are 57,373 residents who provide unpaid 

care, including 4,559 young people under age 25. 58% of carers are 

women. Few impact assessments have noted clear direct negative 

impacts on carers. However, as carers overall have lower incomes and, by 

definition, care for a large proportion of adult social care service users, 

there will be an indirect impact from multiple proposals. 

211. In the sections on older people and disability, some proposals put forward 

by People Services could have an indirect impact on carers due to multiple 

Draf
t

Page 197
Page 259

http://www.sheffield.gov.uk/content/sheffield/home/your-city-council/community-knowledge-profiles.html
http://www.sheffield.gov.uk/content/sheffield/home/your-city-council/community-knowledge-profiles.html
https://www.ons.gov.uk/census/2011census/2011ukcensuses


 

Appendix 9 

 

disadvantages this group faces. The portfolio is taking forward plans to 

review the best use of its in-house short break facilities – potentially, to help 

more when there is an emergency or carers face a crisis. A minority of 

carers may be negatively impacted as we look for more consistency in the 

take-up of short break services; but there will be wider benefits for the 

majority of carers. We will also continue to develop both short-term and 

long-term use of our Shared Lives service, enabling people to live ordinary 

lives in the community, with benefits for them and their host. 

212. The Better Care Fund partnership with the NHS CCG will continue, with 

the aim to deliver better joint commissioning, to ensure people get the 

right care when and where they need it. This should also lead to more 

effective and efficient services which will lead to positive impacts for 

disabled people and their carers. However the Better Care Fund is not 

enough to support both adult social care and the NHS to work differently. 

There is still a need to deliver significant change in how services are 

planned, commissioned and delivered in Sheffield. 

213. In People Services, various proposals aim to have an indirect benefit for 

carers: the procurement of dementia-friendly support; work with health 

partners throughout the Mental Health Transformation Programme; 

improvements to Adult Social Care payment processes, support and 

information; the development of Council-delivered services; Home First 

support provided to people to prevent or end an avoidable hospital 

admission. 

214. Recruitment of Foster Carers by Sheffield City Council may impact on 

other organisations ability to recruit as potential carers will come from the 

same or similar cohort.  

215. The Strengthening Inclusion programme positively impacts on carers as 

children, young people and families will be able to access a range of 

local, flexible support at the right time and in the right place, that meets 

their needs and enables them to be prepared for transition to 

independence, employment, to access the community and manage their 

health needs.  

216. In People Services, there are also some proposals which were 

implemented following last year’s budget, where the reductions did not 

fully take effect until this year. We have reviewed and updated EIAs from 

last year to make sure that we have implemented EIA action plans and 

identified next steps. 

217. In Place there are no impacts identified. 

Draf
t

Page 198
Page 260



 

Appendix 9 

 

218. In PPC there are few impacts on carers highlighted. 

219. In Resources there is no evidence to suggest that assessing CTS based 

on 77% of Council Tax liability has had a greater or lesser impact on 

carers. The revoked CTB scheme provided maximised financial assistance 

to eligible carers. By basing the current scheme on the revoked CTB 

scheme we will ensure that the CTS scheme continues to offer carers the 

maximum support they are entitled to. In addition carers may apply for 

support from the CTHS scheme. As carers are often amongst those who 

are least likely to be able to change their financial situation, through for 

example increasing income via employment, they are one group to whom 

support under the CTHS is, where appropriate, prioritised. 

 

Voluntary and Community and Faith Sector 

220. When considering the impact on the VCFS, the importance of ‘social value’ 

is recognised by the ‘Best Value’ guidance, which was published by the 

previous Government in September 2011. This states that authorities have a 

duty to consider the impact of budget reductions on VCF or other 

organisations that have a ‘social value’. The Public Services (Social Value) 

Act requires us to take social value into consideration when we commission 

services. In order to do this effectively we will continue to monitor the impact 

of changes over the next year on service changes as well as the knock on 

effects of reductions on other providers, and continue detailed consultation 

with customers and other stakeholders as specific activities are 

implemented. 

221. In People Services, we will extend Grant Aid contracts for most 

organisations for a further year so we can carry out a wider review. The 

contract extensions allow us to continue prioritising frontline service 

delivery, particularly acknowledging work with vulnerable people living 

rough and work which addresses poverty and the impact of welfare reform. 

222. After consulting with each organisation receiving Grant Aid, a small equitable 

reduction is being applied. We recognise the important role the organisations 

have and the potential impact of any funding reduction. Although we believe 

the contract value will be manageable for each organisation with minimal 

impact on services and staffing, we will monitor this closely in the year 

ahead.  People with protected characteristics – including disability (and 

mental illness), race, age and sex – are heavily represented amongst people 

who use these services. Our proposals also consider alternative sources of 

funding that organisations have in place. 

Draf
t

Page 199
Page 261



 

Appendix 9 

 

223. Recruitment of Foster Carers by Sheffield City Council may impact on other 

organisations ability to recruit as potential carers will come from the same or 

similar cohort and there are a limited number of individuals interested in 

becoming Foster Carers. 

224. It is possible that the combination of cumulative budget reductions over 

the last few years may have the unintended effect of destabilising some 

organisations that the Council and communities value. As stated above, 

we are introducing a small equitable reduction in Grant Aid this year but, 

having consulted with the organisations concerned, we believe the impact 

will be manageable. We will continue to monitor the impact over the 

coming year. 

225. There are no identified disproportionate impacts in Place or PPC. 

226. The Council provides funding to Sheffield Citizens Advice as well as 

providers to support people who are living in poverty or who are at risk of 

poverty. The Revenues and Benefits service in Resources has close links 

with this sector, particularly with advice agencies and housing providers. The 

service will continue to engage with them where appropriate to review and 

refine the Council Tax and Hardship Schemes in order to ensure that it 

continues to be fit for purpose. By proposing to maintain the scheme in its 

current format and therefore not making it less generous, the Council is 

ensuring that during a challenging period of change for many low income 

households, it will provide continuity for those already claiming CTS and 

ensure that no additional confusion or disruption is brought about which 

otherwise may result in significant additional pressures being put on the 

Voluntary, Community and Faith sectors as customers seek advice and 

assistance in order to deal with changing financial circumstances. 

227. Spending in Public Health is integrated throughout the Portfolios, so 

more detail on the use of our Public Health grant is given in the specific 

EIAs. We are continuing to review 

228.  how and where the funding is spent to ensure that it is targeted to tackle 

the root causes of ill health and to have the maximum impact on reducing 

inequalities. This may mean that we will save on some activities in order 

to reinvest in other areas which have been prioritised. 

229. The outcomes expected of the Public Health Grant will continue to be 

assessed under the Public Health Outcomes Framework (PHOF), and 

broadly fall into the following categories: 

 Health and wellbeing is built into all that we do 

Draf
t

Page 200
Page 262



 

Appendix 9 

 

 To protect people from preventable infections and 

environmental hazards to health 

 To reduce health inequalities 

 To support people to live healthier lives 

230. Overall however as we target the households in most need there will be an 

inevitable impact on those who are still struggling financially but are not on 

the lowest incomes and who will be not eligible for targeted programmes. 

The biggest impact is likely to be on families with dependent children. 

 

Council staffing implications, including workforce diversity 

231. In all Portfolios the budget proposals include some reduction on staffing 

budgets. The reductions arise from proposals to manage or deliver 

services in a different way. In all cases we will seek to manage employee 

reductions through voluntary early retirement, voluntary severance and by 

actively supporting staff that are vulnerable to redundancy to find 

alternative employment. The Council has also taken measures to minimise 

the impact on frontline staff where possible and appropriate. 

232. Additionally we have introduced a stronger emphasis on workforce planning 

to ensure that our resourcing models and choices, including agency 

arrangements, are well planned and cost effective. As a consequence of 

this year’s budget planning process managers have put a greater emphasis 

on delivering services in a different way which has meant that anticipated 

number of employee reductions is low however unfortunately, despite all 

our efforts and mitigations, there may be the need for compulsory 

redundancies, although this has been limited to five in the last 12 months. 

233. There were a further 69 employees left on voluntary redundancy schemes 

(including Voluntary Early Retirement). 

234. We continue to promote employee led measures such as voluntary 

reductions in hours, career breaks and annual leave purchase 

schemes to further contribute to savings on staffing budgets and we 

have seen an increase in the popularity of these options each year. 

We are committed to continue to pay a ‘Living Wage’ to Council 

employees and to extend this to our contracted providers where 

possible. We are also now a member of the Living Wage 

Foundation. 

235. The Council believes that the composition, skills and commitment of 

the workforce are vital factors in our ability to deliver effective, 

Draf
t

Page 201
Page 263



 

Appendix 9 

 

efficient responsive and personalised services. We continue to 

monitor workforce issues within Portfolios and across the Council, 

and are aware of the need to address:  

 The degree of occupational segregation within the workforce, such 

as a high proportion of women in the People workforce and a 

slightly higher proportion of men in the Place portfolio. 

 That there is still an under-representation of disabled, BAME and 

lesbian, gay, bisexual (LGB+) people in the workforce compared to 

the city average.   

 There is also an under-representation of disabled, women, LGB+ 

and BAME staff at Chief Officer grades 

 

 

236. Given the amount of internal restructuring as a result of the budget 

proposals and other significant drivers, for example the change 

programmes linked to SCC2020, and possible staff reductions of up to a 

further 34 FTE positions 2020/21, a significant number of workforce EIAs 

within Portfolios have been completed. 

237. The monitoring of the MER and VER/VS schemes in 2018/19 period 

shows that there are no negative disproportionate impact on BAME, 

3.33% of VER/VS leavers compared to SCC Workforce of 15.02%, or on 

LGB 0% of VER/VS leavers compared to SCC Workforce of 

4.13%.  However it shows a disproportionate impact on employees with a 

disability who left the organisation, 14.81% VER/VS leavers compared to 

We will continue to work within our Recruitment and Selection policy and 

associated procedures to promote workforce diversity to reflect the 

demographics of the city. We currently hold Disability Confident at Level 2 

with a view to apply and be successful for Level 3 Disability Confident this 

Draf
t

Page 202
Page 264



 

Appendix 9 

 

year. We are a Stonewall Diversity Champion. 

238. We are also working with managers, staff and trade unions to ensure the 

workforce is viable and appropriate to the council’s future operating and 

service needs, with a balance of skills and experience. This has included 

the implementation of the Organisational Workforce and OD Strategy that 

acts as one of the enablers to ensure the programme delivery for 

SCC2020 SCC Workforce of 15.02%. 

239. For the year 2018/19, monitoring shows that for 44.93% of VER/VS 

Leavers were female. The majority being people who volunteered to leave 

on enhanced schemes. We will continue to measure this. Workforce 

diversity has decreased this year in all areas but some more than others. 

However overall trend over 5 years is still positive. The gender split has 

remained relatively same as last year, with BAME, Disability and LGB 

increasing again continuing the long term trend. 

 

Cumulative impact 

240. As in previous years, we have regard to the cumulative impact of 

changes over recent years to inform our decision making this year. 

Whilst there are fewer implications this year and important investments in 

key services like social care, we should recognise the impact that almost 

a decade of austerity has had on communities and public services. We 

have found that service transformation, including staff reductions and 

joined up services, and the prioritisation of those in most need have been 

the most effective ways to mitigate the negative impact of budget 

reductions and increased cost pressures. 

241. The groups which are impacted across EIAs and portfolios are disabled 

people, older and young people, women, carers and people on low 

incomes. Disabled people, some women such as lone parents and female 

pensioners, carers, young people tend to have lower incomes and some 

BAME groups (who are more likely to be unemployed) and are more likely to be 

cumulatively impacted. See Community Knowledge Profiles for details. 

242. Some people who previously received a service will receive a changed, 

reduced or no service, as we focus services on those most in need. The 

reduction in universal provision is likely to impact on those who are not in 

the greatest need, but who are struggling financially and may find it difficult 

to pay for alternative provision. 

243. We are continuing to work with partners, such as the NHS, to deliver better, 

joined up services for people in Sheffield. We are also continuing to work 

Draf
t

Page 203
Page 265

https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/content/sheffield/home/your-city-council/community-knowledge-profiles.html


 

Appendix 9 

 

across the region where appropriate to help save costs and to enable better 

joined up services. 

244. A further impact across a range of proposals will be the transition from 

one provider to another, which may include moving from one location to 

another. These changes have the potential for significant impact on those 

individuals affected by the change. We will take this into account in any 

changes, undertake risk assessments where necessary and provide 

support for users and carers. 

245. There has been a significant impact on the Council’s workforce over the last 

decade due to restructuring and reductions but this is likely to be more 

limited this year (possible staff reductions of up to a further 34 posts in 

2020/21).  

246. It is difficult to quantify the cumulative level of impact as mitigations have 

been highlighted in all EIAs. External factors, such as welfare reform, are 

also impacting negatively on some of the same groups. 

 
 
 
 

  

Draf
t

Page 204
Page 266



 

Appendix 9 

 

EIA Action Plan 
 
 

Area of impact Action and mitigation Lead, timescale and how it will 
be monitored/reviewed 

Overall and for Individual proposals have had detailed Service Managers within 
specific issues EIAs and specific mitigation has been Portfolios as noted in EIAs. 
relating to devised wherever possible. These will  

communities contain the detail of the actions required be  

sharing monitored as appropriate.  

characteristics   

under the Equality In some cases as proposals are developed Performance monitoring 
Act 2010 further and implemented alongside within Portfolios - Directors of 

 consultation, some impact assessments will Business Strategy. 
 be revisited or updated.  

 
Continued focus on applying corporate Strategic Equality and 

 priorities, the Fairness Framework Inclusion Board to examine in 
  more detail the cumulative 
 Randomly sample 10% of EIAs in the year impact of the budget cuts 
 across portfolios to assess progress and made on Sheffield over the 
 effectiveness. 

 
( 

last 9 years. 

Poverty and Analyse, assess and monitor: 

 The impact and effectiveness of 
the Fairness Principles and 
poverty proofing as part of the 
EIA budget process. 

 The impact of the reduction 
in universal provision 
especially in culture, leisure, 
sport and young people. 

 The use and impact of the 
Council Tax Hardship Scheme. 

The Tackling Poverty Group 
financial exclusion to 

 develop further monitoring 
 and analysis arrangements 
 within the year which seek to 
 assess the issues 
 highlighted. 

Workforce 
The corporate workforce EIAs will 
be monitored annually. 

Director of HR, annually at 
the Strategic Equality and 
Inclusion Board. 

 

Approved (Lead Officer):  
James Henderson, Director of Policy, 
Performance and Communications   
6th February 2020  

 

Approved (EIA Lead Officer):  
Laurie Brennan, Head of Policy and 
Partnerships 
6th February 2020  

 

  

Draf
t

Page 205
Page 267



 

Appendix 9 

 

Equality Impact Assessment List 2020-21 
www.sheffield.gov.uk/equality 

 
 

 

EIA No. 

 

Title 

 

Portfolio 
 People – 44 EIA’s   

119 Strengthening Families  Placement Mix People Services 

187 First Contact (covering First Contact Approach to Prevention in Adult Social Care) People Services 

194 Strengthening Families: Managing Growth in Demand People Services 

223 Collaborative Approach to Continuing Healthcare (CHC) People Services 

381 Strengthening Inclusion People Services 

403 
Conversations Count (covering Improved Social Work Practice through Strengths-

Based Reviews) 
People Services 

411 Home First (part of ASC Health and Social Care System Change) People Services 

501 RFID (Radio Frequency Identification Device) end of lease People Services 

506 Strengthening Families -Fieldwork Non-staffing People Services 

510 New Builds to Support People to Live Independently at Home People Services 

514 Residential rehab (drug and alcohol) People Services 

559 Substance Misuse Services re-tender People Services 

589 
Young People Substance Misuse Services re-tender in Sheffield (covering Drug 

and Substance Misuse Budget Realignment) 
People Services 

617 
Procurement of support for people with dementia (part of ASC Health and Social 

Care System Change) 
People Services 

632 Reduction in Premises Costs People Services 

635 Tackling inequalities through Grant Aid People Services 

643 
Income and Payments Change Programme (includes Business Strategy - Review  

in Social Care and Payments Team) 
People Services 

665 Service Review of Libraries, Archives and Information Management People Services 

668 Adult Social Care Direct Payments support service People Services 

671 Operational Commissioning Approaches People Services 

675 Mental Health Transformation Programme People Services 

679 Business Strategy - Resources and Strategy People Services 

684 Additional DSG Income People Services 

685 Council-Delivered Services Development Programme People Services 

687 Commissioning Inclusion and Learning Service- Teachers Pension Grant People Services 

Draf
t

Page 206
Page 268

https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/equality


 

Appendix 9 

 

688 Business Strategy- Increased income from Regional Partners People Services 

693 PH- Additional Public Health People Services 

696 Commissioning and Inclusion Learning Service - Increased Income People Services 

699 Commissioning Inclusion and Learning Service- Youth Re commission People Services 

704 Business Strategy - Business Support Staff  Savings People Services 

706 Joint working with NHS England and Sheffield CCG People Services 

710 Business Strategy- Joint Web Platform Project with Corporate Digital Services People Services 

713 PH - Early Years Contract Realignment People Services 

714 Commissioning Inclusion and Learning Service - Commissioning Support People Services 

715 Business Strategy- Reduced Management Costs in Information Systems People Services 

716 Business Strategy- Increased Income in Information Systems from Schools People Services 

717 Business Strategy- Reduction in Insurance Premiums People Services 

719 Strengthening Families -  Gibson House People Services 

721 All Age Disability (covering ASC Preparation for Adulthood) People Services 

724 
Commissioning Inclusion and Learning Services- Schools and Learning Increased 

Income 
People Services 

728 
SF- Strengthening Families- Field Work Staffing-Delivery of an Integrated Social 

Work Model 
People Services 

730 Community Services Review People Services 

731 Business Strategy - Review of structure in Planning Strategy and Improvement People Services 

735 Business Strategy - Business Architecture & Infrastructure Mitigations People Services 

 Place – 11 EIA’s   

200 (continuous 

from 18/19) 

Cultural Trusts - Reduction in subsidy Place 

202 (continuous 

from 18/19) 
Reduction in subsidy to Upperthorpe Healthy Living Centre (UHLC) Place 

437 (continuous 

from 19/20) 
Streets Ahead Contract – Customer Experience performance 

requirements 

Place 

439 (continuous 

from 19/20) 
Streets Ahead Contract – Urgent Defects and Category 1 Defects Place 

443 (continuous 

from 19/20) 
Streets Ahead Contract - Review Management Information System (MIS) 

requirements 

Place 

462 (continuous 

from 19/20) 

Traded Return - Electric Works Place 

463 (continuous 

from 19/20) 
Traded Return – Marketing Sheffield 
 
 
 

Place 
 

Draf
t

Page 207
Page 269



 

Appendix 9 

 

507 (continuous 

from 19/20) 
Traded Return - Facilities Management Place 

523 (continuous 

from 19/20) 
Inflation on existing charges 
 

Place 
 

725 (continuous 

from 2019/20) 

Streets Ahead Contract – Street lighting – Distribution Network Operator Place 

742 Place Hub Place 

 PPC & Resources – 14 EIA’s   

626 FCS MER  

646 Increased Registry Office Income  

647 Savings in out of hours Contact Centre  

649 Improved on-line and web chat offer staffing efficiencies  

676 Members Allowances  

681 Increased out of Hours income generation   

690 Register Office  - additional income  

692 Repairs Changes – staffing efficiencies  

695 HR Contracts   

697 HR Operational Structure   

698 Learning & Development Service Delivery Model   

707 BCIS – Non Staffing Savings   

708 BCIS – Staffing Savings   

740 Council Tax and Adult Social Care Precept  

 

 
 
 

Draf
t

Page 208
Page 270



  Appendix 10 
 

 

Glossary 

 

Term 
 

Definition 

Abbreviations 
 

The symbol ‘k’ following a figure represents £thousand. 
The symbol ‘m’ following a figure represents £million. 
The symbol ‘bn’ following a figure represents £billion. 
 

Capital 
Expenditure 
 

Expenditure that is incurred to acquire, create or add value to a 
non-current asset. 
 

Capital Financing 
Requirement 
 

It measures an authority’s underlying need to borrow or finance 
by other long-term liabilities for a capital purpose. 
  
It represents the amount of capital expenditure that has not yet 
been resourced absolutely, whether at the point of spend or 
over the longer term. Alternatively, it means capital expenditure 
incurred but not yet paid for.  
 

Capital Receipts 
 

The proceeds from the sale of capital assets which, subject to 
various limitations (e.g. Pooling Arrangements introduced in the 
Local Government Act 2003) can be used to finance capital 
expenditure, invested, or to repay outstanding debt on assets 
originally financed through borrowing. 
 

Collection Fund 
 

A fund administered by the Council recording receipts from 
Council Tax, National Non-Domestic Rates and payments to the 
General Fund. 
All billing authorities (including the Council), are required by law 
to estimate the year-end balanced on the Collection Fund by 15 
January, taking account of various factors, including  reliefs and 
discounts awarded to date, payments received to date, the likely 
level of arrears and provision for bad debts. 
Any estimated surplus on the Fund must be distributed to the 
billing authority (the Council) and all major precepting authorities 
(Police, Fire and MHCLG) in the following financial year. 
Conversely, any estimated deficit on the Fund must be 
reclaimed from the aforementioned parties. 
 

Contingency 
 

A condition which exists at the Balance Sheet date, where the 
outcome will be confirmed only on the occurrence of one or 
more uncertain future events not wholly within the Council’s 
control. 
 

Council Tax 
 

A banded property tax that is levied on domestic properties. The 
banding is based on assessed property values at 1 April 1991, 
and ranges from Band A to Band H. Around 60% of domestic 
properties in Sheffield fall into Band A. 
 
Band D has historically been used as the standard for 

Draf
t

Page 209
Page 271



  Appendix 10 

 

comparing council tax levels between and across local 
authorities, as this measure is not affected by the varying 
distribution of properties in bands that can be found across 
authorities. 
 

Council Tax 
Support 
 

Support given by local authorities to low income households as 
a discount on the amount of Council Tax they have to pay, often 
to nothing. Each local authority is responsible for devising its 
own scheme designed to protect the vulnerable. CTS replaced 
the nationally administered Council Tax Benefit. 
 

Credit Risk 
 

The possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to 
meet their contractual obligations, causing a loss to the other 
party. 
 

Designated Areas These are specific parts of the city referred to as the New 
Development Deal and Enterprise Zone.  They are significant 
because any growth in business rates above the “baseline” 
established in 2013/14 can be retained in full locally, rather than 
half being repaid to Government. 
 

Equality Impact 
Assessment (EIA) 
 

A process designed to ensure that a policy, project or scheme 
does not discriminate against people who are categorised as 
being disadvantaged or vulnerable within society. 
 

General Fund 
 

The total services of the Council except for the Housing 
Revenue Account and the Collection Fund, the net cost of which 
is met by Council Tax, Government grants and National non-
domestic rates. 
 

Hereditament A non-domestic property occupied by a business that is liable 
for business rates. 
 

HR1 Each local authority is required to submit an HR1 form to inform 
the Government of potential redundancies in the organisation. 
The Redundancy Payments Service then collects the 
information and distributes it to the appropriate government 
departments and agencies who offer job brokering services 
and/or training services. This happens so that the government 
can discharge its obligation to these employees. 
 

LAC Looked After Children 
 

Least risk basis 
calculation 

The relevant discount rate used for valuing the present value of 
liabilities is consistent with that used under the most recent 
valuation but removing the allowance for asset out-performance. 
In addition, the basis contains a full allowance for the market 
implied rate of inflation. 
 

Mazars The Mazar’s ruling otherwise known as “Staircase Tax”, refers 

Draf
t

Page 210
Page 272



  Appendix 10 

 

to the separating of hereditaments down to smaller 
hereditaments if they are connected by communal areas to 
move between floors or offices. The Mazar’s ruling is currently 
under review by the Government. 
 

MHCLG 
 
 
 

The Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government.  
This is the new name for what was the Department for 
Communities and Local Government, prior to January 2018. 

Minimum 
Revenue 
Provision (MRP) 

The minimum amount which must be charged to an Authority’s 
revenue account each year and set aside as provision for credit 
liabilities, as required by the Local Government and Housing Act 
1989. 
 

National Non-
Domestic Rates 
(NNDR) 
 

These are often referred to as Business Rates, and are a levy 
on business properties based on a national rate in the pound 
applied to the ‘rateable value’ of the property. The Government 
determines the national rate multiplier and the Valuation Office 
Agency determine the rateable value of each business property. 
Business Rates are collected by the Local Authority and paid 
into their collection fund, this amount is then distributed 49% to 
the Local Authorities general fund, 1% to the South Yorkshire 
Fire and Rescue Authority and 50% to Central Government. The 
Central Government share is then redistributed nationally, partly 
back to Local Authorities through Revenue Support Grant. 
 

Precepts 
 

The amount levied by another body such as the South Yorkshire 
Police Authority that is collected by the Council on their behalf. 
 

Private Finance 
Initiative (PFI) 
 

A contract in which the private sector is responsible for 
supplying services that are linked to the provision of a major 
asset and which traditionally have been provided by the Council. 
The Council will pay for the provision of this service, which is 
linked to availability, performance and levels of usage. 
 

Provisions 
 

Amounts charged to revenue during the year for costs with 
uncertain timing, though a reliable estimate of the cost involved 
can be made.  
 

Public Works 
Loan Board 
(PWLB) 
 

A government agency, which provides loans to authorities at 
favourable rates. 

Remuneration 
 

All sums paid to or receivable by an employee and sums due by 
way of expenses allowances (as far as those sums are 
chargeable to UK income tax) and the money value of any other 
benefits received other than in cash. Pension contributions 
payable by either employer or employee are excluded. 
 

Reserves Result from events that have allowed monies to be set aside, 

Draf
t

Page 211
Page 273



  Appendix 10 

 

 surpluses, decisions causing anticipated expenditure to have 
been postponed or cancelled, or by capital accounting 
arrangements. 
 

Revenue 
Expenditure 
 

Expenditure incurred on the day-to-day running of the Council, 
for example, staffing costs, supplies and transport. 
 

Revenue Support 
Grant (RSG) 
 

This is a Government grant paid to the Council to finance the 
Council’s general expenditure. It is based on the Government’s 
assessment of how much a Council needs to spend in order to 
provide a standard level of service. 
 

Specific 
Government 
Grants 
 

These are designed to aid particular services and may be 
revenue or capital in nature. They typically have specified 
conditions attached to them such that they may only be used to 
fund expenditure which is incurred in pursuit of defined 
objectives. 
 

Spending power MHCLG measures the impact of government funding reductions 
against local authorities’ combined income from both 
government funding and council tax. This combined measure of 
income is called revenue spending power.  
 
NB: in a press release from the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance & Accountancy (CIPFA) following the Local 
Government Finance Settlement, CIPFA made the following 
notable comment: 
“CIPFA’s measure of funding used in this analysis is "unfenced 
spending power". This is funding that councils have available to 
meet their priorities and fund existing staff and commitments 
and which is not already ring-fenced for other use. This includes 
Revenue Support Grant (RSG), retained business rates, council 
tax and a number of special grants that authorities are free to 
spend as they wish. In contrast DCLG's measure also includes 
Public Health Grant (which can only be spent on public health 
matters) and the Better Care Fund (which is largely NHS money 
or budgets that local authorities have pooled with the NHS, and 
can only be spent on priorities agreed with local NHS 
managers).” 
 

Under-borrowed The Council’s use of its own cash surpluses rather than external 
debt, resulting in a level of external debt below the authorised 
limit. 
 

Unsupported 
(Prudential) 
Borrowing 

Borrowing for which no financial support is provided by Central 
Government. The borrowing costs are to be met from current 
revenue budgets. 
 

VCF Voluntary, Community and Faith Sector 

 

Draf
t

Page 212
Page 274



 

 

 

 
 
 

 

CAPITAL STRATEGY  
and  

BUDGET BOOK 
 

2020/21 - 2024/25  
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

P
age 275



 

  1 | P a g e  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

- This page has been left intentionally blank - 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 276



 

  2 | P a g e  

 

 

 CONTENTS  
 

1 Executive summary and recommendations                                                     Page 3 

   

2 Background and key facts                                                                                  Page 8 

   

3 Economic growth priority                                                                                   Page 27 

   

4 Transport priority                                                                                       Page 31 

   

5 Housing growth priority                                                                                      Page 36 

   

6 Housing investment priority Page 39 

   

7 Love where you live priority                                                                                           Page 43 

   

8 Green and open spaces priority                                                                Page 46 

   

9 People:  capital and growth priority Page 50 

   

10 Heart of the City II priority Page 54 

   

11 Essential compliance and maintenance priority                                                                            Page 59 

   

12 Appendices      Page 63 

P
age 277



 

  3 | P a g e  

 

 

 1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

A succinct summary of priority areas and recommendations for approval 

 

1.1   Headline summary of priorities 

 
Capital spending pays for buildings, roads and council housing and for major repairs to them. It does not pay for the day-to-day running costs of 
council services. We strive to use our capital monies to make the biggest possible positive impacts upon Sheffield people. This Capital Strategy 
provides a high-level, longer term view of the Council’s ambitions for capital investment.  
 
Capital Programme strategic priorities: 2020/21 
 
The size of the proposed capital programme in 2020/21 is £176.4m: 
 
 
 
  

Economic growth £4.9m  

Transport £7,2m  

Housing growth £38.9m  

Housing investment £44.1m  

Love where you live £19.2m  

Green and open spaces £0.9m  

People: capital and growth £5.4m  

Heart of the city II £53m  

Essential compliance and maintenance £1.4m  

ICT £1.4m  

P
age 278



 

  4 | P a g e  

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Capital Programme strategic priorities: 2020/25 
 

Economic growth £6.1m 

Transport £7.5m 

Housing growth £241.7m 

Housing investment £272.2m 

Love where you live £72.4m 

Green and open spaces £1.2m 

People: capital and growth £9.9m 

Heart of the city II £112.3m 

Essential compliance and maintenance £1.4m 

ICT £1.4m 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Strategic priorities 2019/25 

 

ESSENTIAL 
COMPLIANC
E & MAINT, 

£1.4m 

TRANSPORT, 
£7.2m 

ECONOMIC 
GROWTH, 

£4.9m 

HOUSING 
GROWTH, 

£38.9m HEART OF 
THE CITY II, 

£53.0m 

LOVE 
WHERE YOU 
LIVE, £19.2m 

GREEN & 
OPEN 

SPACES, 
£0.9m 

PEOPLE 
CAPITAL & 
GROWTH, 

£5.4m 

HOUSING 
INVESTMENT 

£44.1m 

ICT, £1.4m 

 

ESSENTIAL 
COMP'NCE & 
MAINT, £1.4m 

TRANSPORT, 
£7.5m 

ECONOMIC 
GROWTH, 

£6.1m 

HOUSING 
GROWTH, 
£241.7m 

HEART OF 
THE CITY II, 

£112.3m 

LOVE 
WHERE YOU 
LIVE, £72.4m 

GREEN & 
OPEN 

SPACES, 
£1.2m 

PEOPLE 
CAPITAL & 
GROWTH, 

£9.9m 

HOUSING 
INVESTMENT 

£272.2m 

P
age 279



 

  5 | P a g e  

 

The size of the proposed 5-year capital programme for 2020/21 to 2024/25 is £726.1m.  These amounts represent headline figures for existing 
commitments within the Capital Programme and those currently within the approvals process. They do not, however, include allocations for 
potential pipeline projects which have not yet received approval. 
 

1.2   How this document is structured 

 
This document is split into twelve sections: 
 
Section 2: sets out the background to the Capital Programme, including its size, shape and how it is funded.  
Sections 3 – 11: set out the key investment priority principles for each of the priority areas, together with the highest value existing projects 

and potential pipeline projects – some of which may be brought forward for approval following feasibility and consultation. 
These sections also set out the key challenges faced by each priority area, together with how we are proposing to tackle 
these challenges. 

Appendix 1:  provides background information relating to Corporate Investment Fund, together with our investment proposals. 
Appendix 2: sets out a full list of approved projects in the Capital Programme 
 

1.3   The priority areas in more detail 

 
This section takes each of the priority areas (contained at sections 3-11) in turn, for the period 2020-2025  
 
1.3.1 Economic Growth: £6.1m  
 
This priority is about getting more people into good jobs, helping them to earn more and live healthy lives, using and building their skills and 
knowledge. We want to see more businesses setting up, growing, innovating and creating good jobs; a connected city with the transport and 
digital infrastructure to support the city’s growth and help everyone to connect to economic opportunities.  
 
1.3.2 Transport: £7.5m  

 
Our Transport priority aims to deliver safe, well maintained streets which enable the city’s ongoing development and helps every resident 
access things like jobs and local services. We want to see an attractive public transport offer and infrastructure which encourages other means 
of transport than the car. We also want to improve the City’s air quality to improve the quality of life for our residents. To this end, we are 
delivering projects which support Sheffield’s existing Transport Policy.  
 
1.3.3 Housing Growth: £241.7m 

 
Sheffield needs a housing market that delivers choice, quality and affordability in every part of the city. The Council has set out its commitment 
to build between 2,000 and 2,300 new homes each year by 2022. 725 of these must be affordable.  We must work in partnership across the city 
to deliver this objective, using a wide mix of measures to increase development.  

P
age 280



 

  6 | P a g e  

 

  
The Council will also increase its own social housing stock, both through the delivery of new Council homes, acquiring existing homes to bring 
into the Council’s rental portfolio and bringing empty properties back into use.  
 
We also want to increase the amount of quality housing provision for older people and people with learning difficulties and have progressed 
projects to facilitate this. These projects should also release other housing stock throughout the city, thus relieving some pressures on other 
residents who are seeking accommodation.  
 
1.3.4  Housing Investment: £272.2m 
 
Our tenants should live in warm, dry, safe and secure properties which are as efficient to run as possible. To deliver this, the Council will 
continue to renovate and refurbish the Council’s housing stock.   
 
1.3.5 Love Where You Live: £72.4m  
 
The Love Where You Live priority is about creating places and spaces where people enjoy being, contributing to the quality of life for our 
citizens. It’s about ensuring access to high quality facilities – whether libraries or sport and leisure facilities – which underpin our communities 
and support their mental and physical wellbeing. It’s also about providing well maintained green and open spaces, creating environments which 
people are proud of and help them to thrive.  
 
1.3.6 Green and Open Spaces: £1.2m 
 
This priority focuses on a dedicated strand of works from the ‘Love Where You Live’ priority. Funded primarily from either s.106 contributions 
from developers (which are required to be spent in green spaces), Public Health monies, (with the aim of reduce health inequalities in the city) 
or from external funding grants (such as Sport England or Lottery Heritage Fund), this priority aims to restore and enhance civic pride in our 
parks, playgrounds and green spaces. Far from being left to slide into decline, we are ambitious for these precious assets and are investing as 
much as we can to ensure they remain relevant and well-used. 

 
1.3.7  People – Capital and Growth: £9.9m  

 
The People Portfolio supports children, young people and their families, and adults and communities. It has three key areas of focus: 
 

 Improved demand for services by shifting from crisis response to a greater focus on early intervention and prevention, ensuring we listen 
to the people who use our services and work with our partners to do the right thing at the right time.  

 Ensuring that there is high-quality, diverse and robust care and support for our customers, providing good value for money for the 
Council.  

 Developing our workforce, making sure we have the right-sized staff groups, enabled by effective systems and supported to develop 
their skills.  
 

P
age 281



 

  7 | P a g e  

 

Underpinning this is an ‘all age’ approach to disability-related services across the portfolio which supports individuals from childhood through to 
old age in a consistent and seamless way, without barriers or difficult transition points.  
 
We use capital monies to embed these principles in the way we work for Sheffield people. 
 
1.3.8  Heart of the City II: £112.3m 
 
Heart of the City II is one of Sheffield’s key economic projects. Backed by Sheffield City Council alongside its strategic delivery partner 
Queensbury, the scheme will provide contribute positively in social and economic terms making the city centre a more dynamic place to live and 
work. 
 
The scheme will bring together the old and the new, maintaining the existing street patterns and balancing heritage with striking new 
architecture and unique outdoor squares and spaces. Rooted in the city’s unique character, it will help knit together The Moor, the Devonshire 
Quarter and Fargate, providing a new home for Sheffield’s cultural, commercial and creative trailblazers. 

 
 
 
 
 
1.3.9  Essential Compliance and Maintenance: £1.4m 
 
The size and age of the Council’s estate produces a significant demand on the Council’s funds. In particular, the Council is the owner and 
custodian of a number of key civic city centre buildings, and has costs to fund for essential compliance and maintenance works across its estate 
and public facilities (such as Central Library).  
 
This work is essential to keep Council buildings and facilities running and to keep both staff and the public safe. 
 
1.3.10 ICT 
 
This represents a one-off, county-wide investment into broadband infrastructure which has been co-ordinated by Barnsley Council.  

 

1.4   Key Notes 

 
The purpose of this report is to:  
 

 Set out the Council’s key priority areas for capital investment;  

 Provide an overview of specific projects included in the years 2020 to 2025; 

P
age 282



 

  8 | P a g e  

 

 Set out the overall shape of the current Capital Programme for the 5 years to 2025 (at Appendix 2). Block allocations are included within 
the programme for noting at this stage and detailed proposals will be brought back for separate approval as part of the monthly approval 
cycle;  

 Set out our principles for how we invest in non-cash assets; and 

 Provide background to our Corporate Investment Fund Policy at Appendix 1. 
 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Councillor Terry Fox 
Deputy Leader / Cabinet Member for Finance 
February 2020 

  

P
age 283



 

  9 | P a g e  

 

 2 BACKGROUND AND KEY FACTS  
 

The policy environment, how the programme is funded and how it is governed 

 

2.1   The policy environment: external 

 
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Prudential Code governs how the Council manages its finances. Recent 
guidance requires that Councils produce a Capital Strategy which should: 
 

 set out a high-level view of how capital investment, capital financing and treasury management activities contribute to the provision of 
services; and 

 provide an overview of how the associated risks are managed. 
 

Sheffield City Council has published a Capital Strategy for a number of years, in the form of the annual Budget Book. This has historically 
considered a five year window for investment.  
 
This year, we are producing a dedicated Capital Strategy which meets the new requirements of the CIPFA Code, together with supplementary 
guidance from the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MCHLG). Whilst the focus of this Strategy remains at five years, 
work is ongoing to increase this to a fifteen year window, enabling us to take a more strategic approach to investment. However, this must be 
balanced against the increasingly speculative assumptions associated with longer-term financial forecasts. 
 
Our Capital Strategy is shaped by a number of central government policies: 
 
2.1.1 Devolving of capital spending allocations 
 
Over recent years, many capital spending decisions have been devolved to City Region authorities and Local Enterprise Partnerships (LEP). 
The Council anticipates that the trend to devolve capital allocations to regional and sub-regional bodies will be maintained. 
 
2.1.2 Creation of revolving investment funds 
 
The Council has seen a shift towards capital funding to economic regeneration projects which generate a financial return to repay the initial 
investment and create a revolving investment fund. For example, the Council has intervened to ensure regeneration schemes like ‘New Era’ 
(the £66m development at St Mary’s Gate) take place successfully, where the benefits of increased business rates and Council tax repay the 
cost of that intervention many times over.  

 
 

P
age 284



 

  10 | P a g e  

 

 
2.1.3 Rewarding economic development 
 
As revenue support grant from Government continues to be reduced, places are increasingly reliant on their local tax base alone. This means 
that Sheffield needs a growing, resilient local economy that provides the income streams which can be re-invested – in things that promote new 
growth and in wider social and environmental goals.  New funding streams that reward economic development - such as Community 
Infrastructure Levy and New Homes Bonus – have been created. Furthermore, we expect to see the creation of UK funds which focus upon 
investment, job creation and economic growth (including improving transport links), at the expense of the ‘place-making’ and regeneration focus 
of recent years. We anticipate that Sheffield City Region will remain the principal body to seek and allocate this funding across the South 
Yorkshire authorities. We await further developments arising from the ‘Northern Powerhouse’ initiative. 
 
2.1.4 Austerity and the wider economy 
 
The ongoing austerity programme has reduced resources by over 50% since 2010. The impact of the Government’s austerity programme on the 
rest of the non-housing programme has not only led to less capital funding, but is also reducing Revenue Budget funding. This has limited the 
scope for additional contributions to the Capital Budget and to fund the revenue implications of capital decisions (such as Minimum Revenue 
Provision and Interest costs). Uncertainty surrounding the wider economy – including the potential impacts of rising inflation and interest rates – 
means we must plan to continue to deliver more, to more people, with ever-decreasing resources. 
 
2.1.5 Self-financing Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
 
The self-financing regime for the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) has provided for a relatively well-funded programme of investment in 
existing and new Council housing stock. However, the recently announced reductions in the permitted level of annual increases will put 
pressure on this source of funding. The HRA ‘debt cap’ has been removed, which allows more freedom. However, we must still apply the 
principles of prudence, affordability and sustainability from the Prudential Code – see overleaf for further details. 
 
2.1.6 The push to build new homes 
 
Central Government has announced new powers for Councils to borrow money to build a new generation of Council houses. Sheffield is already 
building new Council properties and a Housing Growth Strategy is now in place. The Council will be considering how best to use these new 
powers to increase the supply of housing in the City. 
 
2.1.7 The drive towards academies 
 
Education policy now mandates that all new schools should be academies. This transfers maintenance responsibilities away from the Council’s 
Local Education Authority (LEA) role. It will also subsequently reduce central grant funding (which is formula-driven based on pupil numbers). 
 
2.1.8 Climate Emergency 
 

P
age 285



 

  11 | P a g e  

 

Sheffield City Council has declared a Climate Emergency and made a commitment to work towards Sheffield becoming ‘zero carbon’ by 2030. 
The scale of this challenge is considerable and we must actively consider the sustainability implications of all our projects. We will continue to 
work with stakeholders throughout the City to best tackle not only our carbon emissions, but also improve our resilience to the effects of climate 
change. 
 
2.1.9 Streets Ahead 
 
The Streets Ahead programme is providing massive investment in the City’s roads and street lighting, funded via a Private Finance Initiative 
(PFI) and Council investment. This expenditure now sits outside the capital programme – the final capital contribution to the initial core 
investment period was made in 2017/18. 
 

2.2   The policy environment: internal 

 
A number of current or anticipated locally-developed policies will impact upon our Capital Strategy over the coming years. At the time of writing, 
these include the Council’s Corporate Plan, Local Plan, Treasury Management Strategy, Corporate Asset Management Strategy, Tech2020 
Strategy, Infrastructure Delivery Plan, Infrastructure Funding Statement and Medium Term Financial Strategy.  
 
This Capital Strategy will be regularly reviewed to ensure it supports the aims and objectives set out in those documents. 
 
Further details on specific capital financing policies are provided at section 2.7 below. 

 

2.3   Working in partnership 

 
We will work proactively and in partnership with other public, third sector and private organisations - both locally and nationally - to deliver the 
best possible outcomes for the citizens of Sheffield, whilst ensuring that we remain accountable and responsible for the activities we deliver. 
The Council must build effective partnerships in order to deliver its ambitions for the City, including: 
 

 Sheffield City Region – we work closely with the Combined Authority to push for greater control over the things that matter to Sheffield 
and the wider City Region, with a particular focus on skills, transport and jobs. The recent signature of the devolution deal will unlock 
further investment monies for our region, and we will continue to lobby hard to get the best possible deals for Sheffield from the funding 
allocations.  

 Core cities throughout the North – we are working with other northern cities with the hope of unlocking additional funding to drive 
economic growth. We are focussing particularly on opportunities for investment in transport to make Sheffield a more attractive place to 
live, work and invest. 

 Health and social care - we are working closely with our partners in this area to take advantage of joint investment opportunities, co-
location and more efficient working. 

P
age 286



 

  12 | P a g e  

 

 Other public sector partners – we participate in a Strategic Estates Group which brings together the Clinical Commissioning Group 
(CCG), NHS Property Services and both Universities to consider the establishment of integrated public sector hubs, mapping existing 
estates and developing proposals to improve utilisation to deliver ever-increasing value to the public purse. 

 Other private sector partners – to be ambitious for Sheffield, we must all work together to drive our City forward. An example of this is 
our work to improve the City’s sustainability through our Green City Strategy, which requires both public and private sectors to work 
together to create an environment where sustainable development can thrive and the threats from Climate Emergency can be tackled. 

 

2.4   Our key capital planning and investment principles 

 
2.4.1 Capital planning principles 
 
Our capital spending will be used support the delivery of the Council’s aims and objectives. We must also ensure we comply with all the rules 
and regulations which govern how local authorities can spend public money. To this end, we will always ensure that: 
 

 Capital planning is integrated into the Council’s overall strategic planning, ensuring capital activities are considered in relation to the 
Council’s overall corporate plans, its budget, its financial strategies and the Priorities set out in this Capital Strategy; 

 We maximise the external funding of capital investments wherever possible to maximise the availability of the Council’s scarce funds 
to support agreed activity, using our funds as ‘match’ funding to lever in external investment as much as we can; 

 Our capital investments are affordable, sustainable and prudent (ensuring compliance with the CIPFA Prudential Code); 

 Our capital projects deliver value for money, by ensuring that our governance processes for the appraisal and approval of capital 
projects are robust and challenging; and 

 We ensure effective risk management through our governance, in accordance with best professional practice set out in the Treasury 
Management Code of Practice. 

 
2.4.2 Investment principles for Non-Cash investments (including Land and Property, Loans to third parties and Equity Investments)  
 
Land and property  
 
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) define investment property as property held solely to earn rentals or for 
capital appreciation or both. Returns from property ownership can be both income driven (through the receipt of rent) and by way of 
appreciation of the underlying asset value (capital growth).  The combination of these is a consideration in assessing the attractiveness of a 
property for acquisition.   
 
Some local authorities are speculatively investing monies in land and commercial property outside of their local areas to purely generate a 
return. Sheffield City Council has made no such investments to date and currently has no intention to do so in the future. We will only acquire 
investment property when there is an ongoing service objective (such as the regeneration of our City).  
 

P
age 287



 

  13 | P a g e  

 

Loans to third parties and equity investments 
 
The Council has the discretion to make loans and equity investments for a number of reasons, primarily for service delivery, economic 
development or regeneration. However, such investments are limited and only granted in exceptional circumstances.    
 
In making loans, the Council is exposing itself to the risk that the borrower defaults on repayments.  Therefore, in making these loans, the 
Council must therefore ensure they are prudent and has fully considered the risk implications of not only the individual loan, but also that the 
cumulative exposure of the Council is proportionate and prudent. 
 
The Council will ensure that a full due diligence exercise is undertaken and, where appropriate, adequate security is in place.  The business 
case will balance the benefits and risks.   
 
Risk appetite 
 
The Council’s risk appetite to any such investments is very low. Risk taken to date and going forward on such investments has been at the 
amount of risk that the Council is prepared to accept, tolerate, or be exposed to at any point in time.  It is important to note that risk will always 
exist in some measure and cannot be removed in its entirety. 
 
A risk review is embedded within the investment strategy principles and will be considered in line with the risk management strategies we have 
in place. This risk review is commensurate with the Council’s low risk appetite.  
 
Investment strategy principles 
 
Sheffield City Council will invest in Land and Property and provide loan/equity investments to third parties when: 
 

 The primary purpose of the investment is to benefit the people of Sheffield – for example through regeneration or redevelopment – 
rather than income generation for its own sake; 

 The investment supports the delivery of an existing Council policy or strategy;  

 The investment will take place within Sheffield City Council’s boundary (or immediate environs);  

 The investment adheres to clear criteria set for investment decisions and risk management both individually and cumulatively; 

 A full risk and return analysis of the investment has been completed and Members and senior officers are content that any risks are 
appropriate for the Council to take and proportionate to the potential benefit being delivered; 

 The investment has been taken through Sheffield City Council robust and transparent governance procedures and been subject to 
enhanced decision making and scrutiny prior to approval;  

 The investment would be subject to ongoing monitoring and management with reporting by exception to Full Council when 
necessary; and 

 The loan to a third party/equity investment is state aid compliant. 

P
age 288



 

  14 | P a g e  

 

 
More work will be undertaken on these principles and their implementation to specific schemes over the coming year.  

 
 
 
 
CIPFA guidance 
 
CIPFA have recently issued new guidance which introduces a new requirement that every local authority sets a limit that cannot be exceeded 
for commercial income as a percentage of net service expenditure.  
 
As set out above, our Heart of the City II investments are for regeneration purposes (as opposed to commercial activity), and are therefore not 
within the scope of this requirement. However, we do have some commercial income generated from advertising hoardings and ‘incidental’ 
commercial property rents.  
 
We will therefore set a limit of commercial income not exceeding 3% of net budget. This is linked to the level of un-earmarked reserves 
maintained by the Council, and enables us to subsume any shortfall in income in-year without affecting service delivery. We can then amend 
budget plans for the following year to account for the anticipated reductions in income, but also ensure the un-earmarked reserves are repaid to 
the required level, as determined by the Section 151 Officer. 

 

2.5   Size and shape of the capital programme 

 
The capital programme over the 5 years (2020-25) shows a broadly balanced position, with proposed expenditure totalling £726.1m. The full 
programme is set out at Appendix 2.  
 
Wherever possible, attempts are made to match the timing of the receipt of resources and the incurrence of expenditure to protect the Council’s 
cash flow position.  Where the levels of expenditure are significant, individual management arrangements are put in place to mitigate the impact 
as far as possible.  These are overseen by the Director of Finance and Commercial Services (in conjunction with the respective Head of 
Service). 
 
The funding of the programme comes from a diverse range of resources, such as government grants, other grants and contributions from other 
public bodies or third parties, capital receipts, prudential borrowing and revenue contributions to capital – section 2.6 below contains further 
detail. The majority falls within either prudential borrowing or contributions from the revenue account to the capital programme, which together 
represents £543m (74.8 %) of the overall programme value.  
 
The 2019-20 programme was set on 06 March 2019, and at the time totalled £136.2m. This has been revised in-year. The effect of outturn 
slippage from 2018/19, in-year additions, variations slippage and re-profiles result in a current approved programme for 2019/20 of £240m (as at 
31 December 2018).  

 

P
age 289



 

  15 | P a g e  

 

The Council’s current anticipated capital investment profile for existing commitments (excluding potential pipeline projects) is set out overleaf: 
 
 
  
 

 Priority 2020/21 (£m) 2021/22 (£m) 2022/23 (£m) 2023/25 (£m) TOTAL (£m) 

1 Economic Growth 4.9 1.2 0.0 0.0 6.1 

2 Transport 7.2 0.3 0.0 0.0 7.5 

3 Housing Growth 38.9 76.3 75.6 51.0 241.7 

4 Housing Investment 44.1 56.8 57.7 113.5 272.2 

5 Love Where You Live 19.2 17.6 17.7 17.9 72.4 

6 Green and Open Spaces 0.9 0.2 0.0 0.0 1.2 

7 People: Capital and Growth 5.4 2.4 2.2 0.0 9.9 

8 Heart of the City II 53.0 30.3 22.3 6.7 112.3 

9 Essential Compliance and Maintenance 1.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.4 

10 Information and Communication Technology 1.4 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.4 

 TOTAL 176.4 185.1 175.4 189.1 726.1 

 
 

2.6   How the capital programme is funded 

 
The funding of the programme comes from a diverse range of resources. The table below gives a breakdown of how the overall Capital 
Programme is currently funded: 

 

 Source of funding 20120/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/25 Total 

  £m % £m % £m % £m % £m % 

P
age 290



 

  16 | P a g e  

 

1 HRA contribution to capital -47.7 27.0 -73.0 39.5 -97.7 55.7 -110.9 58.6 -329.3 45.4 

2 Prudential Borrowing -71.4 40.5 -45.9 24.8 -55.4 31.6 -41.0 21.7 -213.7 29.4 

3 Government Grants -26.8 15.2 -33.2 17.9 -12.0 6.8 -18.6 9.9 -90.7 12.5 

4 Capital receipts -11.8 6.7 -2.6 1.4 -2.0 1.1 0.0 0.0 -16.4 2.3 

5 Other grants and contributions -18.6 10.6 -30.4 16.4 -8.3 4.7 -18.6 9.8 -75.9 10.5 

6 C.I.L. 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 

7 Overall total -176.4 100.0 -185.1 100.0 -175.4 100.0 -189.1 100.0 -726.1 100.0 

 
A further breakdown of each of these funding sources is set out below. 
 
2.6.1 Revenue budget contributions to Capital 
 
The Council can use revenue resources to fund capital projects on a direct basis. However, ever-increasing pressures on the Council’s revenue 
budget have reduced the scope of this. Revenue contributions to capital now largely reflect the contribution to the Housing Capital Programme 
of 329.3m. In addition, £1.4m has been allocated from revenue budgets to support non-housing projects relating mostly to the implementation of 
Parking Pay and Display Schemes (£0.6m) and the Superfast broadband scheme (£0.5m). 
 
2.6.2 Prudential borrowing  
 
Prudential borrowing is used where no external funding is available to fund schemes which will generate a Revenue Budget saving. This saving 
then repays the principal and interest. The Council can often borrow funds cheaper than its commercial sector partners because of its perceived 
higher credit rating. It therefore makes sense to inject such capital where there is a potential economic benefit.   
 
Under the rules of the Prudential Code 2004 (revised in 2017), the Council has the power to finance capital schemes using prudential borrowing 
(borrowing that does not attract financial support from the Government, which is also known as ‘unsupported borrowing’).  The principles for 
entering into such borrowing were approved by Cabinet on 22 September 2004, and generally relate to ‘invest to save’ schemes (including land 
assembly and funding for major capital projects). These principles remain in accordance with the Prudential Code for Capital Expenditure for 
Local Authorities, namely that they adhere to the principles of affordability, sustainability and prudence. 
 
It remains the Council’s current view that it’s best overall financial interest is generally served by substituting prudential borrowing for leasing.  It 
is considered that borrowing in lieu of leasing can be undertaken as an element of ‘invest to save’ (where it is considered to be more cost 
effective over the whole life of the asset when compared to leasing), and can be contained within an overall annual limit established for such 

P
age 291



 

  17 | P a g e  

 

borrowing. However, this type of borrowing does have revenue implications for the Council in the form of financing costs, which include interest 
payable and an allocation for repayment of debt (Minimum Revenue Provision) as a result of the borrowing. 
 
Included within the 2020/21 Capital Programme are the following amounts of prudential borrowing for projects funded in whole or part from 
prudential borrowing (last year’s figures shown in (bracketed italics)):  
 
 
 
 

Project Total Project Value £m Project Total Project Value £m 

Heart of the City II   £53.030 (£33.767) Major sporting facilities financing £14.641  (£13.767) 

New Cremators £2.427 (£0) Superfast Broadband £0.990 (£0) 

Capital Grant (Green Estates) £0.330 (£0)  

TOTAL £71.417 (£47.535) 

The Heart of the City II figure has increased, representing the current expected delivery profile of the scheme.  

The increase in major sporting facilities reflects the changing profile of the relevant bond payments.  

New Cremators, Superfast Broadband and the Capital Grant represent new planned investment, for which revenue provision has been made to cover the costs of borrowing. 

 
Any amendments to these limits will be approved by Full Council and undertaken in line with the Prudential Code.  There are other 
commitments outside of the capital programme and these are described in the Revenue Budget report.  

 
Tax Increment Financing (TIF) was announced in September 2010. The principle is to allow the authority to borrow funds to undertake capital 
improvements in a geographic area. The money would be repaid from increased tax revenues (i.e. business rates) in the area as land values 
rise as a result of the capital investment.  This scheme has been used successfully in the United States over the last fifty years, often for major 
transport, infrastructure or regeneration projects. 
 
A scheme to develop infrastructure required for Heart of the City II is partially complete and further enabling works are underway. Some of the 
borrowing will be repaid out of the anticipated additional rates revenue generated by the redevelopment of the city centre. 
   
Prudential borrowing does not receive any government support. If the Council enters into any prudential borrowing, it will incur additional capital 
financing costs. Prudential borrowing will only be entered into where it can be demonstrated that funding is available within the overall Council 
budget to meet the ongoing borrowing costs. 
 
2.6.3 Government Grants  

P
age 292



 

  18 | P a g e  

 

 
The largest proportion of external grant funding comes as grant allocations from Government departments. Although many of these grants are 
to support specific areas of investment, the Government removed capital ring-fencing in 2010. This enabled local authorities to prioritise grants 
to support local needs, pressures and statutory responsibilities.  
 
Capital Grant funding falls into two main categories: recurring annual allocations and project specific grants:  
 

 The major recurring allocations relate to funding for schools places and maintenance, Disabled Facilities Grants and Local Transport. 
Programmes of work are developed to obtain maximum impact from the funding received.  
 
The New Homes Bonus (NHB) grant has also been created out of two government incentive payments for building new homes and 
reducing the number of long term empty properties. Council policy is to make this available for projects which improve the local housing 
or neighbourhood environment or assist in regeneration. This grant is now included within the Corporate Investment Fund (see Appendix 
1). It is being used to provide infrastructure or clear derelict buildings to kick start developments at sites which have been unattractive to 
developers.  Often this improves the neighbourhood through removing opportunities for anti-social behaviour as well meeting the 
Council’s priority of providing new homes. However, recent developments have indicated that the future of the NHB grant may be in 
question with no payments now expected for any net increase in new homes from October 2019. 

  

 In relation to project specific grants, officers usually bid against advertised funding streams following consideration of the terms by the 
Council’s External Funding Team and its legal advisers. Requests to enter into funding agreements are considered by Cabinet prior to 
acceptance of the grant. 

 
Sources of grant funding continue to evolve, with increased roles for: 
 

 Local Enterprise Partnerships – working as part of Sheffield City Region, these are local, business-led partnerships between local 
authorities and businesses which play a role in determining local economic priorities and undertaking activities to drive economic growth 
and the creation of local jobs; and 
 

 Education and Skills Funding Agency – this body provides direct support and grants to specific free school and academy build 
projects, as well funding education and skills projects for children, young people and adults. 
 

2.6.4  Capital receipts  
 
Capital receipts also fall into two broad categories: 
 

P
age 293



 

  19 | P a g e  

 

1) Those generated from the sale of land and buildings falling within the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) and Council Houses under Right to 
Buy schemes. There are legislative provisions in place governing the use of these receipts restricting it to investment in housing. 

 
2) Those generated from the sale of general (non-HRA) Council assets. These funds are those over which the Council has full discretion over 

how to utilise and are incorporated into the Corporate Investment Fund. 
 
These capital receipts can be reinvested in the Capital Programme or be used to reduce the Council’s borrowing liability. Any projects in the 
Capital Programme funded by capital receipts can only be undertaken if the receipts are realised. 
 
The receipts from the sale of surplus assets are used to fund the Corporate Investment Fund (CIF) – see Appendix 1. This allows Members at 
their discretion to undertake projects for which there is no external funding. It is also used by the authority as a strategic reserve to cover to 
emergencies such as the total loss of a key piece of infrastructure e.g. as occurred in the 2007 Floods.  
 
As external funding sources are reduced because of austerity cut backs, the CIF assumes an even greater significance in funding the Capital 
Programme. 
  
Proposals are currently being developed with Cabinet Members to ensure the CIF is deployed to deliver maximum advantage to the Council. 
This requires a balance of allowances for both risks and opportunities. The Council must maintain a prudent level of reserves to mitigate 
infrastructure failures, grant claw back or project overspends. That said, there is the potential opportunity to invest in growth (in accordance with 
our Capital Planning and Investment Principles set out at 2.4 above), which could potentially create new revenue streams for the Council. 
Furthermore, we must ensure our statutory obligations are met. We will therefore take a balanced approach, ensuring adequate investment and 
reserves levels to mitigate risk and ensure our infrastructure remains fit for purpose. In addition, an assessment of the Council’s dependence on 
profit generating investments (and the borrowing capacity allocated to funding these activities) to achieve a balanced revenue budget will be 
disclosed over the life-cycle of the Medium Term Financial Plan.  
 
2.6.5 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) / Section 106 (s.106) contributions  
 
Elements of the Capital Programme are funded by contributions from private sector developments and partners. CIL supplements the current 
s.106 (Town & Country Planning Act 1990) arrangements which fund many of the local neighbourhood facility improvements. 
 
CIL allows local authorities in England and Wales to raise funds from developers undertaking new building projects in their area.  The money 
can be used to fund a wide range of infrastructure that is needed as a result of development.  This includes new or safer road schemes, flood 
defences, schools, hospitals and other health and social care facilities, park improvements, green spaces and leisure centres. 
 
The Council has used CIL to develop strategic infrastructure projects such as roads and schools (such as the development of the Bus Rapid 
Transit North link and the Lower Don Valley Flood Defence Scheme). Further commitments will be considered and included in the Integrated 
Infrastructure Delivery Plan which will feed into the Local Plan. Historically, we have used this fund creatively to cash flow new schools’ funding 
prior to these monies being repaid. We will always seek to use our funds most effectively to drive best value and reduce costs to taxpayers.  
 

P
age 294



 

  20 | P a g e  

 

The Council has developed its rating tariff and introduced the scheme from July 2015.  Current estimates predict annual revenues of 
approximately £6m in 2019/20 with expectations of an upward trend as Housing Growth continues. 
 
New CIL Regulations have recently been introduced. They encourage more use of S.106, and introduce the ability to use both CIL and S.106 in 
delivering infrastructure priorities.  Previously, the Regulations restricted this.  Further details on the implications of this are given at Appendix 1. 
However, broadly speaking, this is good news which enables us to pursue S.106 agreements on sites that will also be making a CIL 
contribution.  
 
CIL and s.106 contributions are held in the Corporate Investment Fund (see Appendix 1). 
 
 
2.6.6  Private Finance Initiative (PFI) / Public Private Partnership (PPP) funding 
 
Like many other Councils, Sheffield has historically made use of government funding through the above schemes when this was often the only 
source of funding available. This includes some schools, waste management facilities, office buildings and, most recently, the Streets Ahead 
programme. Both main national political parties have signalled that new PFI / PPP initiatives are to end, and no further new funding will be 
allocated through this route.  
 
Sheffield currently does not fund any PFI payments out of capital. 
 

2.7   Capital financing strategies and associated policies 

 
A number of strategies and policies relate directly to capital financing: 
 
2.7.1 Treasury Management Strategy 
 
Treasury management is defined by CIPFA as: “The management of the organisations’ borrowing, investments and cash flow; its banking, 
money market and capital transactions; the effective control of the risk associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance 
consistent with those risks.” 
 
The nature and scale of the Council’s capital programme means that it is a key factor in the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy. This 
includes the need to borrow to fund capital works. 
 
The Council has operated within the CIPFA Prudential and Treasury Management Codes since their inception. The Codes contain a 
requirement for the Council to agree an annual Treasury Management Strategy, which is approved by the Executive and Council as part of the 
budget process. This defines the types of investments the Council will make during the year, together with the framework for decision-making 
around new debt. Treasury management decision making and monitoring is devolved to various bodies and officers, with responsibility for the 
delivery of the treasury management function delegated to the Director of Finance and Commercial Services.   
 

P
age 295



 

  21 | P a g e  

 

We also have regard to the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MCHLG) Investment Guidance and are aware of the 
importance of security, liquidity and yield in treasury management investment decisions. 
 
Interim and outturn monitoring reports are provided to the Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources throughout the year. 
 
2.7.2  Asset sales and capital receipts 
 
All land and buildings which are surplus to existing use will be reviewed by the Head of Property before any Executive decision is made. This 
will be in accordance with the forthcoming Corporate Asset Management Plan. Any reuse or disposal must provide best value in supporting the 
Council’s objectives. Any exceptions to this must be agreed by Cabinet. 
 
As a general principle, land no longer required for its existing use should be declared surplus so that options for its future use or sale can be 
considered by the Head of Property and relevant Members prior to proceeding for formal decision. Ongoing surveys of our corporate estate 
(which cover a number of different facets) have been commissioned to support and evidence this process. In the context of ever-increasing 
budget pressures, difficult decisions may need to be made which balance the budget challenges and the needs of local communities. 
 
The Council also encourages community involvement in the delivery of local public services using the Council’s assets. The Council may 
therefore be prepared to sell or lease Council assets at less than best value to third sector organisations which have the capabilities to use the 
assets to provide agreed services in accordance with the arrangements set out for Community Asset Transfers of property. This will however 
reduce the capital receipts available to fund other Council needs and priorities, and therefore robust governance is in place to identify proposals 
which have a strong strategic alignment to the Council’s priorities and a good chance of success. 
 
Capital receipts will be used to finance capital expenditure, including capitalised revenue costs under the Government’s capital receipts 
initiative. They are also used for debt redemption in accordance with the Council’s Minimum Revenue Provision Policy. They form part of the 
Corporate Investment Fund and are therefore subject to the governance for that Fund (see Appendix 1). 
 
2.7.3 Prudential borrowing and debt; revenue budget implications 
 
Local authorities may borrow to finance capital expenditure. The affordability of debt is the key constraint. The Council has used its prudential 
borrowing freedoms actively and successfully to deliver key outcomes (such as regeneration – for example, by its work to regenerate the city 
centre as part of the Heart of the City II project). It continues to be an important way of funding our priorities where external funding cannot be 
obtained. The cost of borrowing is usually recharged to the borrowing service, thus recognising that borrowing is not a key asset, but has a 
revenue cost. 
 
In approving the inclusion of schemes and projects within the Capital Programme, the Council ensures all of the capital and investment plans 
are affordable, prudent and sustainable. In doing so, the Council will take into account the arrangements for the repayment of debt, through a 
prudent MRP policy in line with MRP guidance produced by the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government. 
 
The Council sets and monitors prudential indicators to manage its debt exposures. Borrowing costs (including interest and repayment charges) 
in 2018/19 represented 17.8% of the net revenue budget and are expected to drop slightly in 2019/20. Borrowing costs as a proportion of the 

P
age 296



 

  22 | P a g e  

 

net revenue budget are then expected to rise in the coming years as a result of continued investment in the City and further reductions in 
funding. 
 
The Treasury Management Strategy (TMS) sets out how the Council’s borrowing will meet the prudential code and good practice to ensure 
borrowing does not exceed permitted limits. However, an overarching consideration of affordability of these costs must be addressed (given the 
Council’s immediate and medium term budget constraints).  This assessment of affordability in relation to the total cost of borrowing for capital 
projects forms part of the Section 151 Officer’s review of the sustainability of budgets and level of reserves.   Details of both the TMS and the 
Section 25 review of the sustainability of budgets and level of reserves can be found in the 2020/21 Revenue Budget report. 

 
The Council will ensure the most cost-effective financing arrangements for the Capital Programme as a whole. Where possible, the Council 
aims to maximise the use of balance sheet assets so we can utilise cash balances derived from working capital and reserves, rather than 
borrowing externally.   
 
We will also calculate the financing costs and interest payable for every individual scheme which is funded this way before any borrowing is 
sanctioned. This forms an integral part of the business case for each project.  
 
The capital financing charges and any additional running costs arising from capital investment decisions are incorporated within the annual 
budget and medium term financial plans. This enables Members to consider the consequences of capital investment alongside other competing 
priorities for revenue funding. As part of the appraisal process, the financing costs of prudential borrowing may be charged to portfolio budgets. 
 
Different arrangements apply to Housing Revenue Account (HRA) borrowing. We have a self-financing HRA over a 30-year investment period. 
The HRA plans new prudential borrowing of £16.6m in the next 3 years (20/21 to 22/23) in accordance with our approved HRA Business Plan. 
HRA resources can only be applied for HRA purposes, and HRA receipts may only be applied to affordable housing, regeneration or housing-
related debt redemption. This is not the same as external borrowing, as they are under-borrowed. The Council will need to externalise some of 
this debt over the next few years.  
 
We assume the Public Works Loan Board will be our primary source of borrowed funds, although we will maintain a watching brief over other 
sources of funding to ensure we deliver best value for money for local people. 
 
2.7.4 Debt repayment 
 
The Prudential Code requires the Council to make an annual Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) for the repayment of debt. This revenue 
provision spreads the cost of repaying the debt for an asset over the useful economic life of the asset (in accordance with Ministry of Housing, 
Communities and Local Government guidance). This is done in accordance with the annual MRP Policy Statement which is approved by 
Council each year as part of the budget process. 
 
MRP replaces other capital charges (such as depreciation) in the statement of accounts. It has an impact on the Council’s revenue outturn. It 
will increase and decrease throughout the capital programme and is sensitive to both expenditure and funding changes. Careful consideration is 
therefore given to this when considering prudential borrowing as a funding source – it bears a real cost. 
 

P
age 297



 

  23 | P a g e  

 

2.8   Programme governance 

 
We maintain assurance of our capital investment priorities and projects through effective governance which runs throughout the organisation: 
 
2.8.1 Ensuring Members’ leadership and engagement 
 
Elected Members are responsible for setting the strategic direction for the Council. Therefore, in addition to setting the Council’s approach 
through key strategies and policies, they are also responsible for signing off capital projects at key checkpoints: 
 

 Individual consultation with the relevant Members at ‘project mandate’ stage; 

 Individual consultation and endorsement of relevant Executive Member at ‘outline business case’ stage; 

 Formal approval at Cabinet 
 
The ability for Members to inform – and be kept informed – of the capital programme is vitally important. They need to ‘own’ the capital 
programme, understanding the risks and opportunities facing the City and setting the priorities so money is invested in the right areas. 
 
2.8.2  Delivering real value  
 
Value for money (VFM) is a key component of all capital projects. All projects must evidence a level of economy, efficiency and effectiveness in 
order to be approved. Projects must therefore demonstrate that there is a valid need to be addressed, that all potential options to address the 
need have been considered and that the option selected is the most efficient and effective way of achieving the Council’s aims. We have 
therefore built this into our core operating model and ensure VFM in four key ways: 
 

2.8.2.1 The Capital Approval Process 
 

During 2015-16 the Council introduced a number of “checkpoints” at which the validity of the project is tested by the Programme Groups 
and then the Capital Programme Group.  These include:  
 

 Approval of a mandate to ensure that all projects are linked to the Council’s priorities so scarce resource is not wasted on 
irrelevant projects; 

 Approval of an initial business case to set potential parameters to the project and to test assumptions; 

 Approval of an outline business case which will set out the benefits of the project against our strategic objectives. It also sets 
out the delivery and procurement options for the project.  The Programme Groups will test if the proposal is value for money; and 

 Approval of a final business case once the preferred option has been selected and procurement completed, showing all the 
anticipated project costs, benefits and savings. 

 

P
age 298



 

  24 | P a g e  

 

The Council’s Capital Delivery Service (CDS) and Finance and Commercial Services (F&CS) functions advise on the financial, 
procurement and operational deliverability of the proposed project plan and procurement route at every stage. They participate in each 
Programme Group to provide effective challenge throughout the process. 
 
Embedding a capital governance process ensures that we use our scarce resources in the most effective way – on the projects that 
make the most difference, are funded and procured cost-effectively and deliver the greatest benefits for Sheffield people.  
 
2.8.2.2 Effective financing 

 
Funding options are constantly reviewed to ensure the most effective use of the Council’s resources.  

 
2.8.2.3 Effective procurement 

 
Robust options appraisals are carried out at outline business case stage to determine the most efficient and effective procurement route. 
We have introduced new measures to prioritise local contractors whenever we can (within the constraints set down within procurement 
legislation) to keep the Sheffield pound within Sheffield. We also use regional frameworks whenever we can to maximise the benefits of 
our spend to the Sheffield City and Yorkshire regions.  
 
As well as procurement routes, we also work with colleagues in the Capital Delivery Service and Legal Service to ensure the most 
appropriate forms of contract are used which will deliver the best VFM for local people, protect the Council’s interests and enable the 
market to respond with cost-effective tender submissions. 
 
2.8.2.4 Effective project management 

 
The Programme Management Office within the Capital Delivery Service provides information and guidance to continually strengthen 
project management skills within the Council. They ensure that lessons learned are fed back across the wider Council so we can 
continually improve our performance. 

 
2.8.3  Leadership and Strategy Group  
 
Leadership and Strategy Group (LSG) is a new group attended by Cabinet Members and Executive Directors. It is chaired by the Leader of the 
Council. Its remit is wider than capital, but one of its functions is overseeing the relative shape of the capital programme, developing policy and 
endorsing overarching priorities for officers to deliver within. All formal capital funding decisions are taken by Cabinet in public in the usual way.   
 
2.8.4  Cabinet 
 
Each and every capital project will be brought to Cabinet (or delegated processes) for consideration and approval. Officers will consult with 
Cabinet Members (and Ward Councillors where appropriate) to ensure that projects have broad support, prior to investing time in developing 
them further.  
 

P
age 299



 

  25 | P a g e  

 

2.9   Slippage 

 
Historically, there has always been an underspend against the approved capital programme. The risk of slippage is present in all capital 
programmes, bearing in mind the size and complexity of the schemes. Subject to Cabinet approval, funds are rolled forward into the next year in 
order to complete projects.  Slippage reflects re-profiling of funding or delays in physical progress of a project. In most cases the work is 
delivered in the next financial year.   

 
However, our current reporting system has provided greater transparency and identified instances where money appears to be repeatedly 
carried forward from earlier years.  This allows Members to test if the funding is really needed and could be reallocated to other priorities. It also 
shows the delivery performance on the capital programme. 
 
As at 31 December 2019, the value of net slippage approved to date is £2.1m. This relates to largely to delays in bus operators drawing down 

grant funding to deliver cleaner vehicles. This is offset by a net acceleration of £2.5m against schemes in delivery relating to the Council 

Housing Kitchen and Bathrooms renewal programme.  

£25.2m of allocations have been re-profiled - i.e. moved from current year into future years for schemes not yet in the delivery phase. £13.3m of 

this relates to the Heart of The City II project, and reflects of the policy decision to pursue a phased (rather than “Big Bang”) approach to this 

development to mitigate project risks and safeguard taxpayers’ money. A further £8.5m relates to the delay in the award of the contract for 

Phase 4 of the Council Housing New Build Scheme. This was due to additional work required to ensure best value for money was achieved. 

This contract has now been awarded and works will soon be on site. 

2.10   Effective risk management 

 
Major capital projects require careful management to mitigate the potential risks which can arise. The effective monitoring, management and 
mitigation of these risks is a key part of managing the Capital Strategy. 
 
2.10.1 General Risks – Identification and Mitigation 
 
General risks are those which are faced as a consequence of the nature of the major projects being undertaken. Most of these risks are outside 
of the Council’s control but mitigations have been developed as part of the business planning and governance process. These risks are set out 
below along with key mitigations:  
 

Interest Rate Risk – the Council is planning to externally borrow £211m as set out in this Capital Strategy over the next three years. 

This will cover new capital investment and ensure internal borrowing is maintained at a sustainable level. Whilst the Council tends to 

borrow at fixed rates, interest rates in themselves are variable and a rate rise could mean that there would be an increase on the cost of 

servicing future debt to a level which is not affordable. To mitigate this, the Council has used interest rate forecasts which include a 

P
age 300



 

  26 | P a g e  

 

prudent provision against interest rate rises. However in the event that interest rates rose beyond this forecast the revenue cost to the 

Council would increase. A rise of an extra 1% in the interest rate would cost an extra £2.11m by the end of the 3 year period.  

 

Inflation Risk – construction inflation over and above that budgeted by the Council’s professionals and advisors and built into project 

budgets could impact on the affordability of the capital programme. A 1% rise in the cost of the programme would increase the cost of 

the programme. This is mitigated through the provision of contingencies, updating estimates regularly as they change and monitoring 

the impact through governance processes. This is also mitigated post the signature of contracts with construction companies and 

developers through fixed price contracts. 

 

Change in Law Risk – Capital schemes need to comply with the latest law and regulations which can change leading to an impact on 

construction costs. This is mitigated by awareness of pipeline legislative changes and through contingencies. 

 

Market Health / Commercial Values – the Council’s Capital Programme relies on commercial activity as a key supporting strategy. 

This involves generation of income from property letting, generation of capital receipts from property sales (in some cases post 

development), attracting developers to projects based on a potential share of profits and other revenue/capital financial flows.  

 

In some cases it is likely that the Council will commit to large projects, property acquisitions or other forms of expenditure on the basis of 

further business case assumptions about the market value of future asset or economic values. Should market movements mean that 

these assumptions are inaccurate, then the Council may suffer financially. This risk can be mitigated through carefully testing 

assumptions and allowing for contingencies in projects where necessary. 

 
2.10.2  Management of Project Risks 
 
Project risks are those which relate to the delivery of capital projects which in many cases can be controlled, influenced or directly mitigated in 

ways other than making contingencies available. These risks would mostly be related to unforeseen project delays and cost increases which 

could arise from a range of circumstances. The effective management of these risks is primarily linked to the following strategies: 

 

Supplier Financial Stability – construction companies and developers contracting with the Council would, if they experience financial 

instability, pose a significant risk. They may not be able to raise finance to cash flow operations, any potential insolvency process could lead to a 

costly process of changing suppliers without any guarantee of remaining within overall budget, the Council could suffer direct financial loss and 

any defects or other issues may not be resolvable as anticipated. To mitigate this, the Council carefully considers the financial robustness of any 

contractor and requests appropriate financial standing assurance and support wherever possible. Furthermore, the Council only pays 

contractors in arrears, minimising its exposure to this risk. 

 

Effective Business Case Development – as set out at section 2.8.2.1 above. 

P
age 301



 

  27 | P a g e  

 

 

Risk Management - Projects are required to maintain a risk register. Risk registers are aligned with general guidance on risk review. We have 

now introduced costed risk registers on projects managed by the Capital Delivery Service. This enables us to maintain appropriate levels of 

contingency. 

 

Highlight reporting – monthly highlight reports are created for all projects to flag progress and risks of projects to Programme Groups and 

Project Sponsors. 

 

Appointment of professional team - to ensure timely delivery of projects and robust planning and review, the Capital Delivery Service has a 

team of professionally-trained project managers. Qualified roles are in place for key surveying and financial planning roles to give assurance on  

quality of work and project assumptions. 

 

2.11   Skills and knowledge 

 

Those involved in decision-making must have the appropriate skills and knowledge to take those decisions. The Council has many years’ 
experience of delivering capital programmes and uses this experience to evaluate new proposals, monitor on-going capital investment and 
manage any risks that may arise.  
 
Capital investments are reviewed under a robust approval process that receives input from appropriately qualified and skilled finance 
professionals and receives scrutiny from Elected Members. Information, advice and guidance on these processes are made available for 
Officers and Elected Members. 
 
If additional skills and knowledge requirements are identified, the Council will source appropriate specialist skills and knowledge to supplement 
and, where possible, upskill Members and in-house staff. 

  

P
age 302



 

  28 | P a g e  

 

 

 

1 Background and context 

 
We want Sheffield to be known as an inclusive, inventive, vibrant city.  A city where young people have the best training and job opportunities, 
businesses are thriving and we have more skilled workers in quality jobs, earning more. A city whose economy nurtures independents, start-ups 
and existing businesses of all sizes, in all parts of the city. A city that is developing, building new spaces and places for a growing community of 
businesses and entrepreneurs. 
 
We have identified four pillars that will form our city’s approach to economic development: the economy, transport, housing and sustainability. A 
strategic plan for each of these pillars will guide priority investments in this area. Projects from each of the areas will form part of the capital 
programme to make appropriate investments that: 
 

 Connect people to jobs and training, particularly young people and disadvantaged groups 

 Support business growth and investment to create more good jobs for Sheffield people 

 Champion the city’s key sectors, including advanced manufacturing, creative and digital industries, and energy and the environment 

 Prioritise the development of skills at all levels, to not only enable people to access and progress in work, but also to drive productivity 
benefits for Sheffield businesses 

 Develop the city’s business districts and economic hubs, strategic neighbourhoods and sites, and cultural assets 

 Provide transport infrastructure that enables and sustains growth in jobs and visitors. 
 
Our decisions about where to invest locally need to align with national priorities for economic growth. This will improve our chances of securing 
external funding to match our own financial contribution to capital projects.  
 

2 Projects completed in 2019/20 

 

  Project and value Impact 

1 Knowledge Gateway                  The strategic rationale for the Knowledge Gateway is to unlock and connect key development sites in order to 

 3 ECONOMIC GROWTH  
 

An inclusive economy that creates more good jobs for Sheffield people, attracts investors and visitors to the city, and improves 
people’s lives so that they can live well and contribute to the life of the city 

P
age 303



 

  29 | P a g e  

 

generate additional economic growth. The corridor links the Cultural Industries Quarter, Hallam’s Central Campus, 
the Digital Campus and the emerging innovation zone of Castlegate. 

2 Sanderson’s Fish Pass         1. Improved diversity of fish and associated / companion species present in the river Don 
2. Improved water quality and river ecology associated with the return of salmon and other fish to the river 
3. Increased  awareness and appreciation of the river environment by stakeholders 

 
 
  

3 Current projects already in delivery 

   
 

  Project Budget (£) 

(all years) 

Year(s) Invest 
to 
save? 

Funding source(s) Outputs Outcomes for Sheffield people 

1 Culvert Renewal 
Programme 

3,067,500 18/19-
20/21 

No Department of 
Environment, Food 
and Rural Affairs  
(DEFRA) 

Regional Flood Levy 

Potential Council 
contribution 

Strengthening and 
renewal of 9 
culverted 
watercourses 

Homes, businesses, development sites, educational 
facilities, medical, emergency and rescue facilities and 
utility sub-stations protected from flooding 

Major roads resilient to flooding 

Prevention of future serious injury/fatality 

Prevention of third party damages  

2 Digital Incubator 3,450,000 Sep 16-
Mar 24 

No Department for 
Digital, Culture, 
Media and Sport 

High quality 
workspaces for 
digital SMEs 

More good jobs 

Development of digital skills at all levels 

3 Grey to Green Phase 
2 

5,830,865 17/18 – 
20/21 

No Corporate 
Investment Fund 
(CIF) 

S106 

Sheffield City Region 
Investment Fund 
(SCRIF) 

European Regional 
Development Fund 
(ERDF) 

Clean Air Fund 

New highway, 
cycleway,  footpath 
and sustainable 
urban drainage 

New urban meadow 
planning, trees  

Three public art 
commissions  

Reduced carbon 
and harmful 
pollutant emissions   

Improved air quality  

Safer and more sustainable transport through segregated 
cycleways and footpaths 

 

P
age 304



 

  30 | P a g e  

 

  Project Budget (£) 

(all years) 

Year(s) Invest 
to 
save? 

Funding source(s) Outputs Outcomes for Sheffield people 

Third party 
contributions  

 

4 Inner Relief Road 
Junction Schemes 

4,540,490 17/18 – 
20/21 

No Sheffield City Region 
Investment Fund 
(SCRIF) 

Local Transport Plan 

New Homes Bonus 

Additional 2,000 m2 
of new highway 
traffic lanes will be 
constructed. 

A segregated 
pedestrian and cycle 
crossing facility 
encouraging the 
choice of quieter 
routes between 
Alma Street and 
Bridge Street in both 
directions will be 
constructed 

Improved junction operation on the Inner Relief Road 

Reduced journey times for all traffic modes 

Reduced traffic congestion and its attendant contribution to 
air quality 

Increased connectivity for cycling and walking to and 
through the City Centre and the existing and new job 
opportunities created 

 

5 Upper Don Valley 
Flood Scheme 

Anticipated 
9,250,000 
subject to 
Cabinet 
approval 

18/19-
21-22 

No Sheffield City Region 
Investment Fund 
(SCRIF) 

Environment Agency  

The Scheme will 
provide a 
comprehensive 
linear flood defence 
to three discrete 
flood ‘cells’ within an 
area at high risk of 
flooding on the River 
Loxley (a tributary of 
the River Don) and 
at the confluence of 
the Loxley and the 
River Don. 

63 homes and 152 commercial properties will have much 
reduced likelihood of flooding 

£30.179 million of damages avoided 

£8.657 million in Gross Value Added (GVA) that would 
otherwise be lost to the local economy over a 10-year 
appraisal period due to flood risk disruption to businesses 
(estimated using the Frontier Methodology) 

At least £18.1 million GVA in potential growth due to the 
removal of one of the key constraints to business 
development and job creation in the flood risk area 

Potential generation of 98 Full Time Equivalent jobs to the 
local economy 

12.5 Full Time Equivalent construction job years 

1,900 jobs in the area will benefit from reduced flood risk 
(calculated using the Frontier Methodology) 

2 A roads protected (A61 and A 6101) 

2 Tram routes protected – city centre routes through to 
Malin Bridge and Middlewood 

 
 

P
age 305



 

  31 | P a g e  

 

 
  

4 Potential priority areas / projects under consideration 

  
These are initiatives which we are currently considering before we develop business cases and bring them forward for consideration for 
approval. They will be subject of separate Cabinet reports if, as and when they are brought forward. 

  

  Project Value Year(s) Funding source(s) Outputs Outcomes for Sheffield people 

1 Parkwood Springs – 
Sheffield Ski Village Site 
(Feasibility)  

c£4.8m 19/20 TBC New & upgraded 
highway  

Remediation of 
brownfield land 

Increase in visitors to the city  

Increase in housing growth adjacent to site 

Supply chain opportunities for local businesses 
associated with the development and its ongoing 
operations 

  

5 Key challenges and how we are addressing them 

  

  Challenge Actions to address 

1 Lack of revenue funding for early development and feasibility works for 
capital projects 

Corporate Investment Fund to ensure investment in development of projects that are best 
aligned to Member priorities and strategic objectives for the city 

2 Availability of match funding for capital investments As above - and continue to explore and identify options for external funding  

3 Uncertainty about future availability of European funding Work with European funding partners to maximise current opportunities for funding, 
minimising risk of clawback and keep implications of Brexit under scrutiny 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

P
age 306



 

  32 | P a g e  

 

 

 
The key principles which underpin our investment strategies are set out in Sheffield’s Transport Strategy: 
             
A city that’s easier to get around 
 

 Faster, better integrated and simpler bus services 

 Securing the future of Supertram and supporting its expansion 

 New mass transit routes and services creating more public transport capacity for a growing city 

 An inner ring road that has more capacity and is easier to cross into the city centre 
 
A better connected Sheffield 
 

 Faster, longer and more frequent train services to other cities and to the rest of the city region 

 A transformed Sheffield Station bringing High Speed rail services into the heart of the City 

 Improved major road network, keeping Sheffield connected to motorways, airports, and other cities 
 
A safer and more sustainable Sheffield 
 

 Sustainable safety, safe walking and cycling as standard 

 Improved air quality and working to manage congestion 

 Improving poor health and poor access to jobs and services 
 
All of our projects are focused upon delivering these priorities for the city. 
 

 4 TRANSPORT 
 

Safe, well maintained streets which do not restrict the city’s ongoing development. An attractive public transport offer and 
infrastructure which encourages other means of transport than the car. Promoting improvements in air quality to improve the 
quality of life for our citizens. 

  

 1 Background and context 

P
age 307



 

  33 | P a g e  

 

It is the Council’s ambition that public transport, cycling and walking are all natural choices for making journeys within our City. We believe that 
by working closely with our communities, the third sector, and the wider public and private sector, a strong basis for achieving our sustainable 
transport ambition can be developed, and ultimately delivered. 
 
The Council wants to support the transformation of local areas through this ambition to promote sustainable forms of transport. Making the 
change away from private car ownership will tackle congestion, improve physical and mental health through mobility and support local 
economies.  Specifically, capital delivery of improved active travel will see employers benefit from a healthier workforce, whilst at the same time 
creating more opportunities by delivering thriving streets which are made more accessible with reduced severance caused by car movements.  
 
As this ambition is bold and will require a significant change in behaviour, the Council has undertaken a number of recent public consultations. 
Specific questions were asked about people’s perceptions of active travel, the barriers of use and associated expected outcomes and benefits.   
 
The Big City Conversation survey covers a wide range of Council functions to help understand from the public’s perspective what the Council 
should be prioritising and investing in.  Although not complete, initial findings from this survey identify that traffic congestion, poor air quality and 
the need to improve local streets are all key areas of public concern.  This further outlines the importance of the investment associated with the 
forthcoming Transforming Cities Fund (if Sheffield’s bid is successful) and the Clean Air Zone mandate. Investment in active travel and public 
transport should be positively received. 
 
Realising the Council’s ambition to create an environment without reliance on the private car will take sustained investment in supporting 
infrastructure.  It will take long-term transport planning and will require a change in attitudes – amongst, businesses, communities and 
individuals.   
 

2 Projects completed in 2019/20 

 

  Project and total value Impact 

1 Parking Pay and Display Replacement 
(£1.1m) 

 

Upgrade of parking pay and display machines across city, generating operational savings and providing more ways for 
people to pay 

2 Blackburn Valley cycle route 
(£1.4m) 

New cycle link to complete route from Chapeltown to City Centre 

3 City Centre West Cycle Route 

(£0.9m) 

Construction of interventions on Wellington Street, Fitzwilliam Street, Broom Green and Hanover Way.  This will improve 
junctions and crossing points, provide segregated cycle tracks and include minor improvements to public realm. 

4 Cycle Crossing Portobello 

(£0.3m) 

Delivering two new cycle crossings at the junctions of West Street / Holly street and Mappin Street.   

 

P
age 308



 

  34 | P a g e  

 

5 Various 20mph Schemes 20mph speed limit to reduce traffic speeds within the city to improve road safety and the environment for walking and 

cycling 

6 School Keep Clear Review 

(£0.7m) 

Improvements to waiting restrictions outside schools to improve safety 

7 Bramall Lane / Cherry Street road safety 
scheme  

(£0.3m) 

Changes to the road junction to simply traffic movements and reduce conflict. Improvements to road safety. 

8 Sheaf Valley Riverside Route 

(£0.2m)  

Development of a cycle track through Hutcliffe Wood, widening and resurfacing an existing footpath.  Improving facilities 

for current users, enabling cyclists to use a path that is currently a footpath. 

 

3 Current projects already in delivery 

  

   Project Budget (£) 

(all years) 

Year(s) Invest 
to 
save? 

Funding source(s) Outputs Outcomes for Sheffield people 

1 Broadfield Road 
junction 

£3,442,000 2018/19 
– 
2020/21 

No NPIF 

LTP 

Remodelled 
junction to improve 
bus journey times 
and reliability 

Bus journey time improvements; bus journey time reliability 

2 Clean Bus Technology £4,947,000 2019/20 
– 
2020/21 

No Clean Bus 
Technology Fund 

Catalytic Reduction 
Technology 
Retrofitted to Bus 
fleet 

Improved Air Quality 

3 Clean Air Zone 
Implementation 

£3,800,000 2019/20 
– 
2020/21 

No NO2 Plan 
Implementation 
Fund  

Infrastructure to 
implement Clean 
Air Zone Charging 

Improved Air Quality 

Delivery subject to Government approval of Outline and 
Final Business cases; additional funding required. 

4 City Centre Cycle 
Routes 

£1,502,000 2019/20 
– 
2020/21 

No Transforming Cities 
Fund 

Improved Cycle 
Connectivity across 
city centre 

Improved infrastructure, reduced congestion. 

5 Ultra Low Emission 
Vehicle Chargers 

£1,252,096 2019-20-
2020-21 

No NO2 Plan 
Implementation 
Fund / ULEV 

Infrastructure to 
support electric 
vehicles 

Improved Air Quality 

P
age 309



 

  35 | P a g e  

 

   Project Budget (£) 

(all years) 

Year(s) Invest 
to 
save? 

Funding source(s) Outputs Outcomes for Sheffield people 

Funding  

 
 
 
 

4 Potential priority areas / projects under consideration 

 

 Priority  Impacts 

1 Managing the existing highway network  Improve journey time reliability and improving access from growing neighbourhoods to jobs, education and 
training as well as improving conditions for business through effective network management 

2 Reducing the number of accidents Improved road safety through a range of interventions city-wide 

3 Increasing active travel (cycling and walking) To be inclusive and open up the city’s opportunities to all and improve health outcomes 

4 Improving the public transport offer Helping to underpin sustainable growth and promote a city that is open for business  

5 Infrastructure investment Ensuring the benefits of investment in transport infrastructure continue year after year; including supporting the 
introduction of alternative fuel technologies where appropriate  

6 Improving Air Quality and supporting the 
decarbonisation of the transport system 

To reduce levels of air pollution across Sheffield to improve the health of people in Sheffield and the move to 
zero carbon transport through a range of interventions  

 
 

5 Key challenges and how we are addressing them 

 

 Challenge Actions to address 

1 Lack of appropriate funding to develop  ‘pipeline’ 

schemes identified in the Sheffield Transport Strategy 

The lack of revenue funding for this activity has been escalated within the Council and is being considered for 

funding from the Corporate Investment Fund. Without development funding we will not be able to develop a 

business case for projects to effectively secure external funding to assist in delivering our Transport Strategy 

adopted in 2019. In particular, this has the potential impact on the Council’s ability to develop significant 

infrastructure projects that are required to support the City’s Housing and Economic ambitions.  

P
age 310



 

  36 | P a g e  

 

2 Ongoing maintenance of the highway infrastructure 

(commuted sums) 

Agreement on way forward required to provide confidence in our ability to address infrastructure required to 

support economic growth. There are constraints on the majority of Sheffield City Region (SCR) funds and 

Government funds that mean these cannot be used to fund the commuted sums associated with projects. This 

acts as a constraint, as either Local Transport Plan (LTP) funding or local revenue funding needs to be 

identified to pay the commuted sum. Wherever possible, we seek to reduce the upfront cost of the commuted 

sum through design and aligning projects to Amey’s programmed maintenance work, but these opportunities 

are limited following the Core Investment Period.  A review of commuted sum liabilities will be undertaken for all 

projects at an early stage of project development to inform implications on future programmes. 

3 

 

 

Constrained timescales to meet the Government 

direction for Air Quality and associated Clean Air Zone 

(CAZ) development and delivery 

 

Transforming Cities Fund (TCF) constrained timescales 

– still subject to decision 

Funding from Government is available to resource the associated Clean Air Zone Feasibility Study, business 

case development and (subject to approval) implementation, but the scale and required speed of delivery is a 

significant challenge. Resources from across the Council have been brought into a virtual team during 2019/20 

and this will be kept under review. 

Early engagement with key stakeholders and the public to clearly articulate the programme of work and its 

benefits.  There has also been discussion around design and build contracts to ensure that the programme of 

works is delivered on time and within budget.  Each scheme has been designed to be scalable, therefore 

opposition and scope creep can be managed within the programme. 

 

 

 

 

 

  

P
age 311



 

  37 | P a g e  

 

 5 HOUSING GROWTH  
 

Increasing the city’s stock of new housing – for both sale and rent - through delivery by the Council, Registered Providers or 
private developers 

 

1 Background and context 

 
Cabinet has set out a commitment to build between 2,000 and 2,300 new homes each year by 2022 as part of its new Homes Delivery 
Programme (approved by Cabinet November 2018) to meet the growing need for more new homes. This commitment is set out in the Council’s 
Housing Strategy 2013-2023, which is due to be updated in 2020. 
 
The 2013 Strategic Housing Market Assessment that informs this strategy and programme advised that 725 of new homes built each year 
should be affordable to meet the shortfall of affordable homes for rent and sale in the city. The draft 2019 SHMA is recommending that 
affordability has worsened since 2013, and advises that this figure should increase to an additional 902 affordable homes a year (70% social or 
affordable rent) to address this shortfall. The Council will work in partnership across the city to deliver this objective, using a wide mix of 
measures and utilising Government Grant Funding Programmes to increase the supply of new homes. 
 
The Council will also increase its own social housing stock through its Stock Increase Programme. This will increase the number of new 
affordable homes for rent over the next 10 years to 3,100 by 2029. It is aiming to add 1,600 new properties up to 2023, funded from our Housing 
Revenue Account. We will deliver this through building new Council homes, acquiring existing homes to bring into the Council’s rental portfolio 
and bringing empty properties back into use. 

 

2 Projects Completed in 2019/20 

 

  Project Impacts 

1 Older Persons’ Independent Living (OPIL) and Learning 
Disability (LD) Accommodation Phase 3 (Wordsworth) 

8 units of learning/disabilities accommodation delivered,  increasing quality Learning Disability  and Older 
Persons Independent Living stock, reducing care costs and releasing stock to wider market  

2 Council Housing Stock Acquisitions Acquisition of approximately 75 existing properties into Council Housing Stock, increasing supply of homes at 
affordable rent.  

  
 
 
 

P
age 312



 

  38 | P a g e  

 

3 Current Projects In Delivery 

  
These are existing projects which have already received Council approval. Their delivery spans a number of years. 

  

  Project Budget  Year(s) Invest 
to save? 

Funding source(s) Outputs Outcomes for Sheffield people 

1 Council existing housing 
acquisitions programme 

£32.9m 2021-25 N Housing Revenue Account TBC in programme Increased Council housing stock to 
address housing register demand 

2 Council New Build acquisition 
programme  

£15.6m 2015/21 N Housing Revenue Account  156 in programme  Increased Council housing stock to 
address housing register demand 

3 Older Persons’ Independent 
Living Phase 4a (Adlington)  

£20.9m 2017-22 Y Housing Revenue Account 132 units of OPIL 
accommodation delivered 

Increase quality OPIL stock, reduce 
care costs and enable homes to be 
brought back into use for young 
people and families 

4 New Council Housing Phase 
2 (Weakland) 

£65.7m 2015-20 N Housing Revenue Account 36 units of 
accommodation delivered 

Increased Council housing stock to 
address housing register demand 

5 Learning Disabilities 
Accommodation Phase 4b 
(Adlington) 

£1.4m 2017-20 Y Capital receipts and 
Housing Revenue Account 

8 units of 
learning/disabilities 
accommodation delivered 

Increase quality LD stock, reduce care 
costs and enable homes to be brought 
back into use of young people and 
families 

6 New Build Council Housing 
Phase 10 

£13.8m 2019-22 N Capital receipts, Housing 
Revenue Account, Homes 
England Grant 

92 new affordable homes Increased Council housing stock to 
address housing register demand 

  
 

4 Top priority areas for consideration 

  
These are initiatives which we are currently considering before we develop business cases and bring them forward for consideration for 
approval. They will be subject of separate Cabinet reports if, as and when they are brought forward. 

  

  Project Value Year(s) Funding source(s) Outputs Outcomes for Sheffield people 

1 Land acquisition to increase £7.0m 2018-2023 Growth & Investment Fund Ha of brownfield land 
acquired to increase 

Increased council housing stock to 

P
age 313



 

  39 | P a g e  

 

pipeline of affordable housing  pipeline  address waiting list 

2 Strategic Site Assembly in 
Priority investment areas  

£10.0m 2018-2023 Growth & Investment Fund Ha of brownfield land 
acquired to increase 
pipeline 

Increase number of housing of all 
tenures to meet identified needs  

3 Asset Enhancement fund to 
de-risk SCC owned land  

£5.0m 2018-2023 Growth & Investment Fund Ha of brownfield land 
acquired to increase 
pipeline 

Increase number of housing of all 
tenures to meet identified needs 

4 SCC shared ownership model 
to retain SCC equity in land 
and to provide affordable 
housing for home ownership 

TBC 2019- Growth & Investment Fund Model formulated for an off 
plan shared ownership 
model that is self-financing 
or can access external 
grants such as HRA. 

Increase number of family dwellings  

5 Newstead (Phase 5) £25.0m 2021-23 Housing Revenue Account 207 unit scheme of OPIL, 
general needs 
accommodation  

Increase quality LD and OPIL stock, 
reduce care costs and release stock to 
wider market 

6 Temporary Accommodation  £7.2m 2021-23 Housing Revenue Account 60 units to provide 
temporary accommodation 
for families and single 
people 

Accommodation provided funded by 
SCC to support vulnerable people.  

 

5 Key challenges and how we are addressing them 

  

  Challenge Actions to address 

1 Reductions in nationally-funded programmes and capital receipts (caused by economic climate 
and changes to Right to Buy legislation) have limited our ability to invest 

Our introduction of the self-funded business model has created 
greater freedom for the Council to invest in its housing stock through 
contributions from the Housing Revenue account.   

2 Identifying and releasing sites for private sector development in a timely manner, balancing 
delivery against commercial risks of flooding the market 

Identification of priority sites pipeline and introduction of Key 
Account Holder Role. 

3 Potential declining land values / capital receipts (linked to 2 above) limit our ability to invest New project to support investment in sites to de-risk them.  

4 Private sector development does not provide the required breadth of housing needed for Sheffield 
people  

SCC to support private sector to develop housing to meet identified 
needs in Housing Market Areas. 

5 Welfare budget reforms – impact on SCC rent Work underway within the housing service to support tenants to 
ensure they can continue to pay rent, without evicting any tenants 

P
age 314



 

  40 | P a g e  

 

due purely to delays in receipt of Universal Credit 

 
This priority covers investment and asset management priorities for our Council-owned properties within the context of the wider business plan. 
The Council wants to deliver well-maintained homes, investing in priorities which improve the quality of our existing homes and tenants’ quality 
of life. We also want to minimise the volume of (comparatively expensive) responsive repairs.  
 
Council tenants should live in warm, dry, safe and secure properties which are as efficient to run as possible. These overarching principles 
inform our investment priorities. We will also continue to invest in keeping our residents safe, putting in place a number of fire prevention and 
fire safety measures for high rise blocks and high risk properties (including sheltered schemes) which we will be consulting on this year. We are 
minded to close remaining waste chutes in tower blocks and install a sprinkler system if appropriate.  
 
This year we will also continue existing planned work programmes already identified as priorities with tenants. We will also continue to increase 
the number of homes in the Council’s stock, and develop a clear plan for environmental improvements across the city. We will continue to work 
with tenants and residents to consider options for improving Gleadless Valley as part of this master-planning work. This may result in the need 
to bring forward capital investment from later years to begin delivering priority housing improvements in this area. 
 

2 Projects completed in 2019/20 

 

  Project and value (all years) Impact 

1 Hanover recladding (£3.7m)  Replacement cladding to tower block 

2 External Wall Insulation Package 1 (£3.2m) Improved energy efficient to 174 homes  

3 Garage Improvements (£3m) Approx. 3200 garages brought to appropriate standard. 

4 Adaptations  (£2.7m – in year)  Approx. 700 properties adapted to meet accessibility requirements 

  
 
 

 6 HOUSING INVESTMENT  
 

Quality Council-owned housing stock for our tenants on well-managed estates 

  

 1 Background and context 

P
age 315



 

  41 | P a g e  

 

 
 

3 Current projects already in delivery (over £1.000m) 

  

   Project Budget 
(all 
years) 

(£m) 

Year(s) Invest 
to 
save? 

Funding source(s) Outputs Outcomes for Sheffield people 

1 Roofing Replacements 
Programme 

£38.6m 2019-25 Yes HRA New roofing to approx. 
6,400 properties. 

Safe, water tight, structurally sound properties. 

2 Electrical Strategy £22.0 18-21 Yes HRA 22,500 properties 
included for electrical 
rewiring 

Safe homes which are compliant with electrical 
safety regulations and meet modern day 
standards 

3 Adaptations (ongoing 
programme) 

£10 20-25 Yes HRA 2,400 properties 
anticipated to receive 
adaptation works 

Accessible and fit for purpose homes 

4 Obsolete Heating £5.7 20-24 Yes HRA 3,100 replacement 
boilers and / or heating 
systems installed 

Warm and energy efficient homes 

5 Heating Breakdowns £3.7 18-24 Yes HRA 3,924 appliances Warm and energy efficient homes 

6 Lift Maintenance £2.2 18-24 Yes HRA 25 new lifts fitted Reliable and safe access to properties 

  

4 Potential priority areas / projects under consideration (over £1m) 

  
These are initiatives which we are currently considering before we develop business cases and bring them forward for consideration for 
approval. They will be subject of separate Cabinet reports if, as and when they are brought forward.  

  

  Project Value 
£m 

Year(s) Funding source(s) Outputs Outcomes for Sheffield people 

1 Roofing and Roofline £44.1 19-24 HRA New roofs, pointing, 
render and rain water 

Water tight, warm homes 

P
age 316



 

  42 | P a g e  

 

goods. 

2 Communal Areas £21.2 19-24 HRA Improved communal 
areas to maisonette 
blocks  

Attractive and safe environment to live 

3 Walls, Pointing, Render £18 19-24 HRA Render, improved 
cladding and rain water 
goods. 

Water tight, warm homes 

4 Health & Safety 
Environmental Works 

£17 19-24 HRA Improved communal 
spaces, walls / steps 
path ways  

Contribute to a safe environment, improved access. 

5 Electrical Strategy (Future 
Phases) 

£16.1 21-24 HRA Electrical rewiring Safe homes which are compliant with electrical 
safety regulations and meet modern day standards  

6 Kitchens & Bathrooms £15.5 19-24 HRA Replacement of 
Kitchens and 
bathrooms 

Modern Homes 

7 Sprinklers £15 19-24 HRA New sprinkler and fire 
suppression systems 

Safe homes which are compliant with fire safety 
assessments 

8 External Wall Insulation 
Packages 2-4 

£12.6 19-23 HRA Council Dwellings Warm and energy efficient homes 

9 Gleadless Valley 
Regeneration 

£12.3 19-24 HRA Regenerated homes 
and attractive 
neighbourhood 

Attractive environment and sustainable homes. 

10 Boundary Walls, Fencing £8.6 21-24 HRA Property boundary 
treatments. 

Attractive and safe environment to live. 

11 Community (District) 
Heating 

£6.3 19-24 HRA Council Dwellings Warm and energy efficient homes 

12 Plastering £6.3 18-24 HRA Re-plastering works Modern homes 

13 Windows & Doors (inc. 
Deer Park) 

£3.8 19-24 HRA Council Dwellings Warm and energy efficient homes 

14 Waste Management £2.5 19-22 HRA Communal Spaces Contribute to the city’s environmental strategy  and 
improved environment for residents 

P
age 317



 

  43 | P a g e  

 

15 Non Traditional Structural £2.4 20-21 HRA Council dwellings Structural repairs combined with external wall 
insulation 

  
 

5 Key challenges and how we are addressing them 

  

  Challenge Actions to address 

1 Inflation and increase in interest rates Modelling inflation / interest rates through the Housing Revenue Account 

(HRA) Business Plan and the effect of changes on the programme 

2 The implementation of Welfare Reform and Universal Credit in late 2018 Work will continue to support tenants who are affected by changes to welfare 

reform changes and Universal Credit to ensure they can afford to manage 

their home, continue to pay rent and other charges, without evicting any 

tenants due purely to delays in receipt of Universal Credit 

3 Any future impact of changes to national policies Working directly with Government to address any future policy changes and, 

impacts on the HRA Business Plan 

4 Increase in the number of ‘right to buys’ which reduces the levels of Council-owned 

stock 

Modelling within business planning to mitigate funding pressures; build and 

acquire new Council houses (see ‘Housing Growth’ section) and maximising 

grant from the Government to reduce costs for the HRA Business Plan 

 

  

P
age 318



 

  44 | P a g e  

 

7 LOVE WHERE YOU LIVE 
 

Making our neighbourhoods good places to live and ensuring that all of our communities are treated with respect 

 
 
 

 

1 Background and context 

 
We care about making Sheffield’s neighbourhoods good places to live.  We are committed to listening to our citizens about the things that 
matter to them, making improvements and getting the basics right.  Every part of our city should have a clean physical environment with well-
maintained roads, green and open spaces, and sports, leisure and play facilities that are open to all.  We want people to feel secure in their local 
area and, working with residents and local groups, we want to build communities that are safe and sociable, and where people are protected 
from the dangers of things like rogue traders, environmental or housing hazards, and neighbour nuisance.   
 
A major proportion of the Council’s revenue spending is invested in maintaining the city’s neighbourhoods on a day-to-day basis including 
services like waste management, licensing, parking services, pest control, trading standards, health and environmental protection, parks and 
green estates, public health, neighbourhood housing management, tenant support and housing repairs and maintenance.  
 
Our decisions about where to invest capital funding need to enhance the significant investment that the Council already makes to support our 
love where you live ambition.  We can achieve this by putting investment into activities that: 

 

 Improve public health by ensuring that people live in neighbourhoods that are safe, clean and sustainable; 

 Deliver green and open spaces which are well-managed and maintained; 

 Provide people with access to quality sports, leisure and play facilities; 

 Support people to influence and shape where they live so that our neighbourhoods are safe and sociable. 
  

2 Projects completed in 2019/20 

 
 

  Project and value Impact 

1 Brown Bin Implementation 

£4,488,500 

Improved recycling offer to residents 

2 Pipworth Rec Sustainable Drainage 

£535,000 

Improved drainage facilities to facilitate new housing development 

P
age 319



 

  45 | P a g e  

 

 
  

 

  Project Value Year(s) Funding source(s) Outputs Outcomes for Sheffield people 

1 Replacement Cremators 
City Road 

2,478,000 2019/20 
– 20/21 

Prudential Borrowing Renewed Infrastructure 
at Crematorium 

 

Improved infrastructure / reduced environmental 
impacts 

 

2 General Cemetery Phase 
2 

3,881,420 2019/20 
– 23/24 

Heritage Lottery Fund, S106, 
Revenue Contribution, Capital 
Receipts 

Address structural / 
infrastructure repair 
issues. 

Conserve and interpret 
the heritage 

Create a safe and 
more accessible public 
park 

Provision of improved public space. 

 

  
In addition to the projects that are already being delivered, a programme of new projects for 20/21 is being developed in response to our Love 
Where You Live priorities and matters that are of most concern to our citizens.   
 
This will involve developing business cases and Cabinet reports as required for specific initiatives, setting out the benefits of investment and 
bringing these forward for approval.  The current 5-year allocation covers the capitalisation of bond payments regarding our major sporting 
facilities. 
  

  Project Value Year(s) Funding source(s) Outputs Outcomes for Sheffield people 

1 Leisure review TBC TBC TBC A review of Sport, 
activity, Leisure Centre, 
swimming and 
entertainment assets to 
ascertain investment 
need and funding 
strategies. 

A fit-for-purpose, well maintained and accessible 
leisure centre and entertainment offer. 

 

3 Current projects already in delivery 

4 Potential priority areas / projects under consideration 

P
age 320



 

  46 | P a g e  

 

 

  
 

5 Key challenges and how we are addressing them 

  
 

  Challenge Actions to address 

1 Limited revenue funding for initial project development and feasibility work to assess 

things like return on investment and likelihood of achieving benefits 

Review of governance of the Corporate Investment Fund to ensure 

investment in development of projects that best fit with strategic priorities and 

that are most likely to deliver financial and non-financial benefits 

2 Identifying and securing match funding for capital investments and complying with 

match funding requirements 

Explore and identify options for external funding working with finance and 

legal services to ensure that the match funding requirements are understood 

and can be complied with  

3 Ensuring alignment with delivery partner priorities where this is relevant Collaborative working with delivery partners at strategic and operational 

levels  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 321



 

  47 | P a g e  

 

 

 

  

 
 
 

This priority focuses on a dedicated strand of works from the ‘Love Where You Live’ priority. Funded primarily from either s.106 contributions 
from developers which are required to be spent on green spaces - or from Public Health monies committed to reduce health inequalities in green 
spaces - this priority aims to restore and enhance civic pride in our parks, playgrounds and green spaces. Far from being left to slide into decline, 
we are ambitious for these precious assets and are investing as much as we can to ensure they remain accessible, safe and well-used.  
 
The Council undertakes a wide range of improvements, including replacing worn and dated playground equipment, restoring green spaces, 
enhancing biodiversity and promoting accessibility for all our citizens – by repairing footpaths, replacing stiles, aiding interpretation and reducing 
vandalism and fear of crime.  
 
Local authorities have a statutory duty to improve the health of the people who live in their areas under the 2012 Health and Social Care Act. The 
importance and significance of well designed, safe and accessible green space in achieving this duty should not be underestimated. Sheffield 
has a proud tradition of well-maintained parks and green spaces, and this priority demonstrates our commitment to ensuring this high quality is 
maintained and improved upon, even in challenging financial circumstances. Indeed, this priority is taking on greater importance with the 
emerging ‘wellness’ agenda.  Evidence of the positive impacts of good quality green spaces on physical and mental health and wellbeing has 
seen an increase in GPs prescribing outdoor activities in nature to promote as an alternative to traditional medicines. This priority is key to 
supporting this shift in practice. 
 

2 Projects completed in 2019/20 

 

  Project and value Impact 

 Burngreave Green Space improvements (Wensley St, Play improvements, Access improvements, Sight-line 

 8 GREEN AND OPEN SPACES  
 

Parks, playgrounds and green spaces which are well-used and our residents are proud of.  

1 Background and context 

P
age 322



 

  48 | P a g e  

 

Nottingham Cliff and Denholme Close) 

2 Colley Park improvements Phase 2 

 

Landscape improvements -Improved sight-lines 

Play provision 

3 Environmental Improvements Project Works to Grange Road, Birley Spa, Silkstone Ravine and Bowman Drive. Access improvements 

Habitat improvements 

4 Parson Cross Park – access improvements. New Path creation 

5 Weston Park – band stand refurbishment Improved heritage facility – refurbished bandstand 

  

3 Current projects already in delivery 

 

  Project Budget 
(£) 

(all 
years) 

Year(s) Invest 
to 
save? 

Funding source(s) Outputs Outcomes for Sheffield people 

1 Play improvement 
projects (phases 3 and 
4) 

 

£180k 2019 & 
2020 

No S106 & Public 
Health Funding 

Improved play & 
recreational 
opportunities 

Green Space 
Quality 

Play Value 

Works to Broadfield Road Open Space, Batemoor Road 
Open Space, Darnall Community and Phillimore Parks, 
Mortomley Park, Upper Hanover Playground, Ruskin Park, 
Lydgate Lane  

Improved Health and Wellbeing for children and families 

Increase in community pride and value  

2 Norton Woodseats 
Cricket Pavillion 

£421k 2019/20 
– 20/21 

No S106 & Sport 
England 

Improved Sporting 
Facilities 

Increased number of users of site. 

Improved health & wellbeing 

3 Sheffield Lakeland 
Partnership 

£196k 2019/20 
– 21/22 

No Heritage Lottery 
Fund & Timber  Sale 
Income 

Improve access, 
biodiversity and 
resilience to trees in 
North West Sheffield 
Generate new 
timber income for 
SCC  

Move from 
commercial forestry 
toward a sustainable 
woodland 

A more connected and resilient landscape 

A better landscape for all to learn about, value, experience, 
and enjoy 

More joined up natural environment for people and wildlife  

 

P
age 323



 

  49 | P a g e  

 

  Project Budget 
(£) 

(all 
years) 

Year(s) Invest 
to 
save? 

Funding source(s) Outputs Outcomes for Sheffield people 

4 Ponderosa Active Play 
Improvements 

£187k 2019/20  No S106, Public Health 
Funding / parks 
Improvement Fund 

Improved play and 
recreational facilities 

Increased usage of site. 

Improvements to health & wellbeing 

5 Parson Cross Park – 
Skate Park. 

£70k 2019/20 
– 20/21 

No S106 Skate Park 
Provision 

Improved Health and Wellbeing for local communities  

6 Shirebrook Valley 
Visitor Centre – 
renewal 

£180k 2019/20 
– 20/21 

 Public Health 
Funding 

Re-configuration 
and modernisation 
of internal space of 
the visitor centre – 
to make fit for 
purpose. 

Educational opportunities 

Community cohesion 

7 Southey Ward Green 
Space improvements 
(Cookson Park, Foxhill 
Rec and Wolf Road 
Park) 

£61k 2019/20 
– 20/21 

 S106 and Public 
Health 

Play improvements 

Access 
improvements 

Sight-line 
improvements 

Informal Recreation 
improvements 

Reduced ASB 

Improved Health & Wellbeing for children and families 

Increase in community pride and value 

Improved biodiversity 

8 Ecclesall Woods – 
access and habitat 
improvements  

£16.2k 2019/20 
– 20/21 

 S106 Access 
improvements 

Habitat 
improvements and 
associated access 
controls 

Improved biodiversity 

Improved Health and Wellbeing 

Improved woodland accessibility 

 

 4 Potential priority areas / projects under consideration 

  
These are initiatives which we are currently considering before we develop business cases and bring them forward for consideration for 
approval. They will be subject of separate Cabinet reports if, as and when they are brought forward. A number of additional potential projects 
are also currently being considered by Members. However, funding will need to be sought for any agreed projects, and this will be discussed 
over the coming months. 

P
age 324



 

  50 | P a g e  

 

  

  Project Value Year(s) Funding source(s) Outputs Outcomes for Sheffield people 

1 Masterplan 
implementation projects 

£1m + 2019/20 s.106, external funding including 
HLF 

 

. 

A ‘whole site’ approach 
taken to a number of 
sites, including 
Ponderosa Park, 
Bannerdale Green 
Spaces, Mather Road 
Recreation Ground, 
Ecclesfield Park, 
Parkwood Springs and 
Hillsborough Park, 
Parson Cross Park 

Sites which, following consultation with local people, 
are well used by all sections of the local community. 

2 Access and environmental 
improvements 

c. £150k 2019/20 s.106 Delivering safe, clean, 
welcoming and 
accessible sites at Sky 
Edge, Arbourthorne 
Playing Fields, Corker 
Bottom / Manor Playing 
Fields, plus small-scale 
environmental 
improvements 

Sites which, following consultation with local people, 
are well used by all sections of the local community. 

  

5 Key challenges and how we are addressing them 

  

  Challenge Actions to address 

 Section 106 monies will become depleted and are likely to be exhausted 
by 2020. 

Proactively seek alternative funding sources to replace section 106; ensure we can evidence 
benefits to maximise our chances of success. Progress the ‘Better Parks’ initiative to 
selectively seek out and secure appropriate increases in income (such as more and better 
catering opportunities, increased social value initiatives and new franchises and 
activities/events) on appropriate sites. We must however ensure we maintain the balance 
between peace and tranquillity and income generating activity. 

 Quantifying the outcomes for our communities. This is required in order to evidence benefit to current (e.g. Public Health) and future 
funders. A project is underway to scope measurable metrics, such as activity levels and 
usage. 

 Prolonging asset life in challenging financial circumstances. Engagement of and consultation with local communities at planning stage pays dividends in 
reducing vandalism when the works are complete. We also often undertake improvements to 

P
age 325



 

  51 | P a g e  

 

sight-lines and boundaries as part of our works, minimising vandalism and ensuring people 
feel safer using the facilities. We allocate funds for maintenance (currently five years) as part 
of our project approvals. And we are currently developing an asset management strategy for 
our play equipment to strike the right balance between efficient and effective asset 
management whilst ensuring that the equipment choices of funders (such as local ‘Friends 
Of’ groups) can be accommodated as much as possible. 

 
The People Services Portfolio supports children, young people and their families, adults and communities. It has three key areas of focus: 
 

 Improving demand for services by shifting from crisis response to a greater focus on early intervention and prevention, ensuring we listen 
to the people who use our services and work with our partners to do the right thing at the right time.  

 Ensuring that there is high-quality, diverse and robust care and support for our customers, providing good value for money for the 
Council.  

 Developing our workforce, making sure we have the right-sized staff groups, enabled by effective systems and supported to develop 
their skills.  

 
Underpinning this is an ‘all age’ approach to disability-related services across the portfolio. This supports individuals from childhood through to 
old age in a consistent and seamless way, without barriers or difficult transition points.  
 
The quality of children’s school experiences is fundamental to their later life chances. Children who experience high quality teaching and 
learning are much more likely to experience positive outcomes, such as sustained employment, good mental and physical health, and 
avoidance of poverty and increase social mobility.  
 
A significant element of the People: Capital and Growth Programme has been prioritised around ensuring the Council meets its statutory duty to 
provide sufficient quality school places in environments that are fit for purpose.  This has resulted in a £100m programme of new schools and 

8 PEOPLE: CAPITAL AND GROWTH 
 

Improving and maintaining the quality of provision and services for all our citizens, ensuring we are meeting the needs of our 
diverse communities; improving the quality of life for our citizens for the whole of their life.  

  

 1 Background and context 

P
age 326



 

  52 | P a g e  

 

refurbishment projects. Oasis Don Valley, Astrea Academy, Mercia Academy and Ecclesall Primary are shining examples of the new state of the 
art education facilities available to Sheffield children. 
 
The Council has a responsibility to ensure the People estate is fit for purpose and supports effective service delivery. There is a significant 
backlog of outstanding maintenance, which it is making headway in tackling against an extremely challenging financial context. 
 
Clearly it is important to maximise all capital grant funding available to the Council. Existing strategies and policies around investment 
opportunities such as Disabled Facilities Grants (DFG) are being reviewed to ensure the impact is improving the quality of life for residents of all 
ages. 
 
 
 

2 Projects completed in 2019/20 

 

  Project and value Impact 

1 Astrea Academy 

£28.6m 

New school delivering 2 form entry primary, 5 form entry secondary and 6
th
 form provision 

2 Don Valley Academy Sports Provision 

£1.3m 

Reconfiguration of EISS facilities to accommodate school indoor sports facilities 

3 Whole Family Case Management  

£2.9m 

Capital costs of implementation of new social care IT system 

4 Fire Risk Assessment Works 

£3m 

Fire Risk Assessment at various school sites 

 
 

3 Current projects already in delivery 

  
 

   Project Budget (£) 

(all years) 

Year(s) Invest 
to 
save? 

Funding source(s) Outputs Outcomes for Sheffield people 

P
age 327



 

  53 | P a g e  

 

1 Disabled Facilities 
Grants 

Approx 
£2.8m p.a. 

On going No Department of Health Adapted properties Suitably adapted properties which meet 
people’s needs 

2 Minor Works Grants  Approx. 
£150k p.a. 

Ongoing No Department of Health Improvements to 
private homes 

Improved homes for local people 

3 Aldine House 2 Bed 
Extension and MUGA 

£2.5m 2019/20 – 
20/21 

No Department For 
Education 

Increased beds and 
facilities for looked 
after children 

Improved facilities for looked after children 

4 Shooters Grove Primary 
Electrical Works 

£687k 2019/20 – 
20/21 

No Department For 
Education 

Full electric rewire of 
school 

School facilities fit for purpose. 

 

 

 
4 Potential priority areas / projects under consideration 

  
These are initiatives which we are currently considering before we develop business cases and bring them forward for consideration for 
approval. They will be subject of separate Cabinet reports if, as and when they are brought forward. 

  

  Project Value Year(s) Funding source(s) Outputs Outcomes for Sheffield people 

1 Specialist provision £1.8m 2019-21 Capital Grant – Education & 
Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) 

TBC Supporting the increasing needs of children and 
young people with special educational needs and 
disabilities (SEND). 

2 Early years’ provision  TBC 2019-20 Capital Grants – allocated to 
individual providers – Education 
& Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) 

TBC Ensuring Sheffield’s children have the best 
possible start in life through supporting schools to 
deliver quality provision. 

3 Children’s Social Care 
Capital Investment 

c.£3.5m 2020 
onwards 

Strengthening Families – Invest 
to Save 

Appropriate Residential 
Care for young adults 
and children on the 
edge of care. 

Improved ability to accommodate young adults 
and children on the edge of care within the city.  

4 Building condition TBC 2020 
onwards 

Capital Grant – Education & 
Skills Funding Agency 

Programme of repairs 
and upgrades to a 
range of schools 

Well-maintained schools buildings which ensure 
our children are educated in fit-for-purpose 
learning environments. 

5 People’s estate and 
infrastructure 

TBC 2020 
onwards 

TBC TBC Fit-for-purpose property and infrastructure which 
supports an integrated services delivery model. 

 

 

P
age 328



 

  54 | P a g e  

 

 

5 Key challenges and how we are addressing them 
 

 

 

  

 Challenge Actions to address 

1 School Places: 

Risk that advance investment in new or expanded schools (£11m) is not repaid from 
future government funding allocations.   

No commissioning of new school places that requires significant capital 
investment from Basic Need.  New school places/capital opportunities from 
other Department for Education programmes to be maximised.   

 Specialist Provision: 

Significant growth in need an complexity of special education provision. 

SCC has been successfully included in the Specialist Provision Free School 
Programme which will result in 2 new schools (160 places) funded and 
delivered by the DfE by 2022. 

A modest capital grant to support the delivery of specialist education 
provision has been allocated to SCC by DfE. The challenge will be to 
manage all of the emerging requirement within the budget allocated. 

2 Building Condition: 

Backlog maintenance is currently estimated at £95m.  Existing resources of around 
£2.7m annually are largely absorbed by reactive maintenance and certain elements 
require urgent renewal.   

Annual reduction to the Building Condition Grant allocated to Local Authorities as more 
schools transfer to Academy Status. Demands on the capital budget will also decrease 
proportionately. However, significant challenges relating to the condition of the primary 
estate remain. The reduction in Building Condition funding leaves a disproportionate 
number of schools in a worse condition within the council’s control 

Prioritise repairs on a ‘worst first’ basis, whilst aggregating requirements 
wherever possible to maximise efficiency of delivery. Continue to lobby DfES 
for additional funding. Consider making funding requests to the Corporate 
Investment Fund to tackle this backlog, prioritising schools which will remain 
in the City’s control. Opportunities for SCC Schools to be included in DfE 
funded significant refurbishment and rebuild programmes will be maximised. 

 

3 Children’s Social Care: 

Increase in demand for Children’s services with higher referrals into social care system. 
There is a clear strategy to manage demand, improve supply of provision and 
performance.  This may involve more innovative and different delivery methods which 
could require capital investment to implement. 

A clear business case approach to capital investment will focus on ensuring 
the impact of any changes is effectively monitored and achieving the 
outcomes set out. 

4 Adult Social Care: 

Keeping people out of hospital and accessing the right care in their own homes and 
communities. 

Increasing the independence of adults of working age 

Work closely with colleagues in Health and Social Care and Housing to 
enable people to remain in their homes as long as possible and avoid 
unnecessary hospital admissions. 

Work closely with colleagues in Health, Social Care and Housing to ensure 
the right type of accommodation is available in the right areas. 

   

P
age 329



 

  55 | P a g e  

 

  

1 Background and context 

 
Heart of the City II is one of Sheffield’s key economic projects. Backed by Sheffield City Council alongside its strategic delivery partner 
Queensbury, the scheme will contribute positively in social and economic terms, making the city centre a more dynamic place to live and work. 
 
In addition to encouraging new retailers to the city centre, the scheme will provide Grade A office space, two 4 or 5 star hotels, residential 
developments, restaurants and cafes, leisure destinations, parking and stunning public realm – all creating the type of high quality central 
quarter that helps attract jobs and investment. 
 
The scheme will bring together the old and the new, maintaining the existing street patterns and balancing heritage with striking new 
architecture and unique outdoor squares and spaces. Rooted in the city’s unique character, it will help knit together The Moor, the Devonshire 
Quarter and Fargate, providing a new home for Sheffield’s cultural, commercial and creative trailblazers. 
 

2 Projects completed in 2019/20 

 

  Project and value Impact 

1 HOC2 Phase 1 occupation   With the occupation by HSBC of its new office space, further letting has been secured with retailers Monki and Weekday 
opening and with legal firm CMS Taking the remaining 25,000 office space. The block is now more than 90% occupied 
with further interest for the remaining units.   

2  HoC2 Block F Trafalgar Works Following a competitive tender process the site has been secured by developer Angelo Gordon who will build circa 300 
residential properties of varying size. This will increase the residential offer in the city centre and provide a link with HoC2 
and the Division Street/ Devonshire Green areas.   

3  HoC2 Block G1 38 Carver Street Following a competitive tender process the block has been secured by operator Staton Young and will be refurbished to 
provide co-working and business start-up accommodation. This will bring back into life a key office building currently 
vacant and subject to vandalism 

 
 

 10 HEART OF THE CITY II  
 

A vibrant and attractive ‘destination’ City Centre which creates more good jobs for Sheffield people, attracting new investors, 
visitors and residents to the city centre.  

P
age 330



 

  56 | P a g e  

 

3 Current projects already in delivery 

  

   Project Budget (£) 

 

Year(s) Invest 
to 
save? 

Funding source(s) Outputs Outcomes for Sheffield people 

1 HOC2 Land Acquisitions 
and Feasibility work 

£2.9m  
remaining 
expenditure 

Oct 13 - 
Mar 22 

No  Prudential Borrowing All land interests secured 
and final payments 
settled. 

The HoC2 projects are collectively providing a 
high class mixed use development in the heart of 
Sheffield City Centre, enabling Sheffield to have 
an improved retail and leisure offer and 
increased vibrancy through the creation of Office 
and Residential accommodation.  

This very first stage of the project was to bring 
the land ownership into the Council’s hands so 
that it can control the quality and pace of 
development and to carry out initial feasibility 
work to develop a viable delivery masterplan.  

The £2.9m is the remaining forecast expenditure 
of a £66.4m total budget. 

2 HoC2 Block A Palatine £3.0m 

Remaining 
expenditure 
of a £4.3m 
budget 

Sep 18 - 
May 20 

No Prudential Borrowing Pre- construction phase 
of development of mix of 
Hotel, Office and retail 
units with pre-conditions 
satisfied to move the 
project into the 
construction phase with 
necessary budget 
approval 

Bringing increased vibrancy to the buildings in 
key corridor in the city centre attracting visitors, 
jobs and residents.  

3 HoC2 Block B Laycock £14.6m 

Remaining 
expenditure 
of a £17m 
budget 

Sep 18 – 
Mar 22 

No Prudential Borrowing Circa 60 residential units, 
small office and ground 
floor retail 

Increased residential offer in the city centre 
helping to make the city centre a 24 hour 
economy.  

4 HoC2 Block C Pepperpot £15.7m 

Remaining 
expenditure 
of a 
£18.1m 
budget 

Sep 18 – 
Dec 21 

No Prudential Borrowing Office accommodation  
and ground floor retail 

Increased office capacity in the city centre 
attracting inward investment. 

P
age 331



 

  57 | P a g e  

 

   Project Budget (£) 

 

Year(s) Invest 
to 
save? 

Funding source(s) Outputs Outcomes for Sheffield people 

5 HoC2 Block E Telephone 
House Retail 

£2.4m 

Remaining 
expenditure 
of a 
£2.85m 
budget 

Sep 18 – 
Mar 21 

No Prudential Borrowing Asbestos removal and 
refurbishment   of retail 
units and car park 
refurbishment  

Bringing back into life a number of previously 
vacant properties and improved exterior of the 
multi-story car park.    

6 HoC2 Block G Wellington 
Street  

£4.9m 

Remaining 
expenditure 
of a £5.2m 
budget 

Sep 18 – 
Dec 21 

No Prudential Borrowing Pre- construction phase 
of development of mix of 
Hotel, Office, Car parking  
and retail with pre-
conditions satisfied to 
move the project into the 
construction phase with 
necessary budget 
approval 

Increased high quality office capacity in the city 
centre attracting inward investment, increased 
car parking capacity serving the city centre offer. 

7 HoC2 Block H Henrys £1.6m 

Remaining 
expenditure 
of a £4m 
budget 

Sep 18 – 
Sep 20 

No Prudential Borrowing Pre- construction phase 
of development of mix 
Leisure, Food, Office  
and retail with pre-
conditions satisfied to 
move the project into the 
construction phase with 
necessary budget 
approval 

Increased leisure offer in the city in a cutting 
edge food hall concept  combined with further 
grade A office space 

8 HoC2 Block H1 Leah’s 
Yard 

£4.0m 

Remaining 
expenditure 
of a £4.5m 
budget 

Sep 18 – 
Mar 21 

No Prudential Borrowing Pre- construction and 
stabilisation phase of 
development of Listed 
building with pre-
conditions satisfied to 
move the project into the 
construction phase with 
necessary budget 
approval 

Bringing back into life iconic heritage building.   

9 HoC2 Infrastructure & 
Public Realm 

£7.3 

Remaining 
expenditure 
of a £7.5m 

Oct 18 – 
Mar 22 

No Prudential Borrowing Development wide  
planning and delivery 
programme for the 
infrastructure and public 
realm  

Improved street grid and high quality public 
spaces.  

P
age 332



 

  58 | P a g e  

 

   Project Budget (£) 

 

Year(s) Invest 
to 
save? 

Funding source(s) Outputs Outcomes for Sheffield people 

budget 

 

4 Future phases 

  
These specific projects form an integral part of future phases of the Heart of the City II project. Further work will be required to develop these 
individual business cases in order to finalise the design and ascertain the cost of these elements.  Once that work is complete they will be the 
subject of separate Cabinet reports to formally add them to the Capital Programme in the years indicated in the table below.  
 

  Project Value* Year(s) Funding source(s) Outputs Outcomes for Sheffield people 

1 HoC2 Block A Palatine £56.7m 

 

May 20-
Aug 22 

Prudential Borrowing Construction phase of 
development of mix of 
Hotel, Office and retail 
units subject to meeting  
pre-conditions and  
necessary budget approval 

Bringing increased vibrancy to the buildings in 
key corridor in the city centre attracting visitors, 
jobs and residents. 

2 HoC2 Block E Telephone 
House Retail 

£3m 

 

Apr 21-
Mar 22 

Prudential Borrowing Final unit fits outs for retail 
/ leisure spaces . 

Bringing back into life a number of previously 
vacant properties and improved exterior of the 
multi-story car park.    

3 HoC2 Block G Wellington 
Street  

£89m 

 

Dec 21-
May 23 

Prudential Borrowing Construction phase of 
development of mix of 
Hotel, Office, Car parking  
and retail subject to 
meeting pre-conditions and 
obtaining necessary 
budget approval 

Increased high quality office capacity in the city 
centre attracting inward investment, increased 
car parking capacity serving the city centre 
offer. This site may be offered to the market to 
be delivered by third party developer(s).  

4 HoC2 Block H Henrys £52m 

 

Jul 20-
Dec 22 

Prudential Borrowing Construction phase of 
development of mix 
Leisure, Food, Office  and 
retail subject to meeting 
pre-conditions and 
obtaining necessary 
budget approval 

Increased leisure offer in the city in a cutting 
edge food hall concept, combined with further 
grade A office space. This block may be 
developed in separate phases.  

5 HoC2 Block H1 Leahs £3m Jan 20 – Prudential Borrowing Fit-out  phase of Bringing back into life iconic heritage building.   

P
age 333



 

  59 | P a g e  

 

  

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

* N.B. all values in this column show the remaining expenditure for infrastructure relating to the construction phase of each block in addition to 
pre-construction budget above 
 

5 Key challenges and how we are addressing them 

  

Yard  Dec 21 development of Listed 
building subject to meeting 
pre-conditions and 
obtaining necessary 
budget approval 

P
age 334



 

  60 | P a g e  

 

  Challenge Actions to address 

1 Managing costs within budget and keeping to programme in an 
increasingly challenged construction sector with inflationary pressures   

Review and manage procurement routes to secure most competitive appointments. Pass 
risk on the contractors when/where appropriate. Strong project management. 

2 Changing UK retail market leading to lack of demand for retail and/or 
more aggressive commercial terms being demanded.  

Ongoing review and consideration for finalised design of each of blocks to maximise market 
appeal. Proposed pre-letting hurdles before moving to construction phase. 

3 Lack of demand for increased office space leading to empty properties or 
displacement elsewhere in the city.   

Analysis and review of office market demand. Consideration for finalised design of each of 
blocks to maximise market appeal. Consider pace of development to ensure there isn’t 
oversupply. 

4 Changing investment yields caused by increased uncertainty over Brexit 
leading to lower than expected exit values. 

Ongoing review of exit strategies. Consider holding properties for a period until properties 
are successfully trading and yields increase.   

  

P
age 335



 

  61 | P a g e  

 

1 Background and context 

  
Sheffield City Council has a portfolio of over 900 built assets - many of which are buildings - from which it delivers services to the community. 
These buildings are physical assets which need to be properly maintained to ensure that they continue to function as efficiently and effectively 
as possible – and comply with our statutory obligations - to support our delivery of a wide range of services. 
 
The deterioration of buildings due to the lack of maintenance can lead to future financial burdens, pose health and safety risks, create legal 
liabilities and a range of other issues that affect the delivery of services. The maintenance of buildings is critical to the proper management of 
physical assets, ensuring we provide an appropriate environment for customers, staff and other users of our buildings. 
 
A programme for the management of maintenance is required to provide a consistent approach to the planning, management and reporting of 
building maintenance within the current challenging financial environment.  
 
Linking into the “Sheffield Land and Property Plan”, the aim of the Essential Compliance and Maintenance Programme is to set out what short, 
medium and long term investments are needed to co-align with the outcomes signposted in that Plan. We must ensure we prioritise our spend 
effectively and have already rationalised our corporate estate. Further work is ongoing in this regard. Rather than trying to spread money across 
the entire corporate estate – which would leave no money for other priorities – we must ensure we invest according to our new mantra: “Right 
asset, right place, right time, right decision”. An Asset Management Strategy has been developed and a rolling programme of condition surveys 
is underway to support this activity. 
 
The Council’s Strategic Objectives are all supported by services that deliver them - working from the council’s Operational Estate. If parts of that 
estate are no longer able to remain open due to failures in the fabric or infrastructure of a building, it will impact directly on the ability of those 
services to deliver these objectives.  
 
 
 
 
 

 

11 ESSENTIAL COMPLIANCE AND MAINTENANCE 
 

Ensuring legal and regulatory compliance for our corporate accommodation estate, improving its fitness for purpose for the 
customers we serve and our workforce when budgets allow. Spending on essential maintenance works to avoid further 
deterioration in the building fabric which will then cost more to repair. Improving the energy efficiency of our estate to reduce 
our carbon footprint and save money on energy bills 

  

P
age 336



 

  62 | P a g e  

 

2 Projects completed in 2018/19 

 

  Project  Value Impact 

1 Fire Risk Assessment 
Mitigation 

£585,000 Delivery of suitable fire precautions to meet statutory compliance across the estate 

2 Electrical Works £69,000 Re-wiring/replacement of distribution boards to maintain electrical installation in safe condition 

3 Roofing £69,000 Replacement of failed flat roofing 

4 Windows and Doors £143,000 Replacement of fenestration in danger of failure 

6 Moorfoot Lifts £1,896,000 Refurbishment of lifts in civic buildings 

7 Paths and Surfacing £173,000 Maintenance of paths and hard surfacing in Parks and Cemeteries, mitigating potential injuries and claims from slips, trips 
and falls 

8 Dams and Water Courses £225,000 Maintenance of dams and watercourses to prevent potential breaches and subsequent flood risk 

9. Mechanical Works £464,000 Planned replacement of failing mechanical installations 

 
 

3 Current projects already in delivery 

   

  Project Budget 
(Future 
years) 

Year(s) Invest 
to 
save? 

Funding source(s) Outputs Outcomes for Sheffield people 

1 Fire Risk Assessment 
red tape Studio 

£493,000 2019/20 
– 20/21 

No Growth and 
Investment Fund 

Delivery of suitable fire 
precautions to meet statutory 
compliance 

Safe premises for our customers and staff. 

2 Dams & Water 
Courses 

£60,000 2019/20 
– 20/21 

No Growth and 
Investment Fund 

Maintenance of dams and 
watercourses to prevent 
potential breaches and 
subsequent flood risk 

Protecting property and livelihoods from flood 
risk. 

3 Structural Surveys £220,000 2019/20 
– 20/21 

No Growth and 
Investment Fund 

Robust Reliable and more efficient heating for our 
customers and staff. 

P
age 337



 

  63 | P a g e  

 

 
 
  

4 Potential priority areas / projects under consideration 

  
These are initiatives which we are currently considering before we develop business cases and bring them forward for consideration for 
approval. They will be subject of separate Cabinet reports if, as and when they are brought forward and represent those minimum essential 
elements of building maintenance required to keep the Council’s estate compliant. 

  

  Project Value Year(s) Funding source(s) Outputs Outcomes for Sheffield people 

1 Fire Risk Assessment 
Mitigation 

£2.7m  Corporate Investment Fund Delivery of suitable fire 
precautions to meet 
statutory compliance 

Safe premises for our customers and staff. 

2 Electrical Works £0.4m  Corporate Investment Fund Re-wiring/replacement 
of distribution boards to 
maintain electrical 
installation in safe 
condition 

Safe premises for our customers and staff. 

3 Roofing £1.2m  Corporate Investment Fund Replacement of failed 
flat roofing 

Weathertight premises for our customers and 
staff, safeguarding the fabric of the building; 
improved energy efficiency. 

4 Windows and Doors £1m  Corporate Investment Fund Replacement of 
fenestration in danger 
of failure 

Weathertight premises for our customers and 
staff, safeguarding the fabric of the building; 
improved energy efficiency. 

5 Structural Repairs £1.4m  Corporate Investment Fund Repair of major 
structural elements to 
prevent deterioration of 
building fabric 

Safe premises for our customers and staff; 
avoiding deterioration to the building fabric to 
mitigate against further expensive repairs. 

6 Lift Refurbishment £0.3m  Corporate Investment Fund Refurbishment of lifts in 
civic buildings 

Reliable, accessible lifts for our customers and 
staff. 

7 Paths/Surfacing £1m  Corporate Investment Fund Maintenance of paths 
and hard surfacing in 
Parks and Cemeteries, 
mitigating potential 
claims from slips, trips 

Safer paths to minimise injuries to our customers 
and staff. 

P
age 338



 

  64 | P a g e  

 

and falls 

8 Dams & Water Courses £1m  Corporate Investment Fund Maintenance of dams 
and watercourses to 
prevent potential 
breaches and 
subsequent flood risk 

Protecting property and livelihoods from flood 
risk. 

9 Mechanical Works £2.5m  Corporate Investment Fund Planned replacement 
of failing mechanical 
installations 

Reliable and more efficient heating for our 
customers and staff. 

10 Town Hall £5.9m  Corporate Investment Fund Fire precautions, 
electrical installation, 
mechanical installation 

Safe premises for our customers and staff. 

11 Central Library £9m  Corporate Investment Fund Structural Repairs, fire 
precautions, 
mechanical installation 

Safe premises for our customers and staff. 

12 Moorfoot £5.6m  Corporate Investment Fund Mechanical installation, 
thermal performance 

More efficient premises to minimise our 
environmental impacts. 

13 Howden House £0.8m  Corporate Investment Fund Fitness for purpose Safe and efficient premises for our customers 
and staff. 

14 Millennium Gallery £1.1m  Corporate Investment Fund Lifecycle maintenance Proper lifecycle maintenance for a city centre 
asset. 

  

5 Key challenges and how we are addressing them 

  

  Challenge Actions to address 

1 Obtaining granular data on the Condition, Utilisation, Suitability and Quality of buildings that make 
up the council’s estate 

We have established a rolling programme of Condition Surveys 
and are  currently undertaking Condition Surveys to gather this 
data. This will however take some time to cover all properties. 

2 Strategic review of the core council estate, to concentrate maintenance investment in viable 
buildings and divest those buildings that are surplus to core delivery 

Working with Members and officers in Property and the wider 
Council to understand and implement the Corporate Asset 
Management Strategy. 

3 Insufficient funding to adequately maintain the existing corporate estate in a satisfactory condition Identify available funding and judiciously invest it to maintain the 
core estate in a satisfactory condition. Accept that lack of funding 

P
age 339



 

  65 | P a g e  

 

will lead to the closure of non-core property due to lack of 
maintenance investment. 

 
 

A1 CORPORATE INVESTMENT FUND (CIF) POLICY 
 

This appendix 1 sets out our proposed policy for the Corporate Investment Fund (CIF).  

 
1     Background 
 
The Corporate Investment Fund (CIF) was created in 2017/18 in order to provide a single coordinated fund to prime economic and housing growth 
activity in the city.  It is comprised of a range of individual funding streams – New Homes Bonus, Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL), section 106 
and elements of the Corporate Resource Pool (CRP).  It is the Council’s structure for managing discretionary capital funding. 

 
Historically, the CRP had been made up largely of capital receipts from the sale of surplus council land and assets. It was used to fund investment 
needs not met by Government funding, such as backlog maintenance demands / core repairs and unplanned failures of large critical assets or 
other property losses caused by natural disasters (such as the floods in 2007). 
 
CRP was also used to demolish empty properties to redevelop land for sale. This brought benefits to the Revenue Budget by reducing the costs of 
safeguarding vacant properties, as well as replenishing the CRP. 
 
With the advent of the New Homes Bonus and Community Infrastructure Levy as further “unrestricted” funds available for investment at the 
discretion of the authority, it was decided to combine the income from these new funding streams with those previously included in the CRP (i.e. 
Capital Receipts). Together, these create the Corporate Investment Fund (CIF). It is therefore a blend of restricted and unrestricted funds. 
 
The national programme of expenditure reductions has increased the importance of this facility as central government support has decreased. We 
may be required to use our own resources to fund essential infrastructure. And we also need to maintain sufficient funds to match - often at short 
notice - those available from external funders like the European Union, Heritage Lottery Fund, Sport England etc. in order to lever in funding to 
replace that lost from Central Government. 
 
2 Purpose of the Corporate Investment Fund (CIF) 
 
The GIF is intended to fund investment projects which cannot attract other sources of funding. This may include maintenance of our corporate 
buildings, or projects which have attracted external funding but require an element of matched funding in order to proceed. It may also provide 
funding for growth projects – whether as core funding or feasibility funding – which generate sustainable growth for everyone in the city. 
 
3 Risks and demands on the CIF 

P
age 340



 

  66 | P a g e  

 

 
Key risk factors on the ability to allocate the CIF relate to the uncertainty surrounding the income flows from the key components of capital 
receipts, New Homes Bonus and Community Infrastructure Levy. 
 
Payment of Capital Receipts will continue to be subject to the inherent risk in all property and land transactions, such as local / national economic 
factors and the housing market. Furthermore, the application of the Affordable Housing Policy, to address the citywide affordable housing shortfall, 
will affect the level of capital receipts generated, although potential reductions may be partially offset by future Council Tax and New Homes 
Bonus. The Council will also receive s106 commuted sum (on and off site) contributions for the provision of new affordable housing and this 
income will be used to increase the number of affordable homes in the Affordable Housing Programme. 
 
Community Infrastructure Levy income will be dependent on the level of development taking place in the city which is subject to the levy. While 
estimations can be made of potential receipts, again, wider economic factors can quickly impact on the level of development in the city.  
 
New Homes Bonus income is dependent not only on the number of new homes delivered in the city but also, on an ongoing basis, a continued 
commitment from central government to maintain the scheme at its current levels. However, recent developments have indicated that the future of 
the NHB grant may be in question with no payments now expected for any net increase in new homes from October 2019. 

 
4 CIF Allocation Policy 
 
Our previous policy was that Members approved capital expenditure commitments no more than one year in advance. Lower levels of capital 
receipts put considerable constraints on the CIF. However, in the current difficult financial circumstances, the Council must be ambitious and 
bolder in its vision to progress the city’s development. We will therefore agree allocations up to a ten-year lifespan. Anything beyond this would be 
on an exceptional basis.  
 
Consideration of the granting of CIF funds will only be given to projects which meet the following criteria:  
 

A Funding 
 
Projects requesting CIF funding will: 
 

 Have no other available funding sources from central government, internal investment funds (e.g. Housing Revenue Account) or other 
grant funding bodies; or 

 Already be in receipt of external funding and require an element of match funding to proceed; or 

 Are strategic projects which require cash flow support until a funding package can be arranged.    
 

B Suitability 
 

Projects requesting CIF funding will: 
 

 Be in line with corporate priorities; and  

P
age 341



 

  67 | P a g e  

 

 Have a robust business case; and 

 Where applicable, be necessary to make an asset compliant with legislation; or 

 Where applicable, be an emergency requirement not capable of prior notification and a failure to undertake the project as an emergency 
will result in a threat to life and limb. 

 

Non-cash investments (such as in land or property) will comply with the Investment Strategy Principles set out at section 2.4.2 of this Capital 
Strategy. 
 
Outcomes and benefits will, as ever, be robustly assessed. And if any project does not proceed, abortive project costs will have to be financed 
from the sponsoring portfolio’s Revenue Budget. 
 
Alongside the funding of key development and investment priorities, a suitable reserve level will be maintained within the CIF to allow swift 
response to emergency situations such as the floods of 2007 and also to provide match funding at short notice to lever in additional grant funding 
from central government and others.   
 
Cabinet Members are currently engaged in a strategic commissioning process, whereby they are reviewing all potential capital projects and 
deciding where best to invest the Council’s resources. A number of these projects will require CIF funding. We anticipate that the first stage of this 
process will be completed early in the new financial year. 
 
5 Future developments – s.106, CIL and the Local Plan 
 
New CIL Regulations that impact on the operation of CIL and S.106 came into force in September 2019. 
 
The Council will have to publish an Infrastructure Funding Statement (IFS) covering the current financial year.  This will require us to be much 
more open in terms of CIL and S.106 receipts and spending.  It will also require us to set out a list of priorities for projects to be funded by 
CIL.  This replaces the previous ‘Regulation 123 List’ and will have to be updated at least annually.   
 
When determining what the priorities will be, we will have to have regard to the Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) – which is being prepared to 
support the Local Plan- together with the Corporate Integrated Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IIDP) which will set out the Council’s infrastructure 
priorities. This may also need to dovetail with the Corporate Investment Fund (CIF) priorities for funding. All of these Plans will be considered as 
part of the ongoing development of the Council’s overarching Capital Strategy. 
 
The new CIL Regulations encourage more use of S.106, and introduce the ability to use both CIL and S.106 in delivering infrastructure 
priorities.  Previously, the Regulations restricted the ability to ask for both S.106 and CIL for the same project and also restricted how many S.106s 
could be used for the same item of infrastructure.  These restrictions have now been removed.  The viability assessments that underpinned the 
setting of the CIL rates always allowed for S.106 contributions, so the Council should now be able to pursue S.106 agreements on sites that will 
also be making a CIL contribution, where a S.106 is required to make an application acceptable in planning terms. 
 
The Local Plan 
 

P
age 342



 

  68 | P a g e  

 

The Local Development Scheme sets out the timetable for producing the new Local Plan (the ‘Sheffield Plan’). A revised Local Development 
Scheme, setting out the steps involved in producing the plan, came into effect on 20 November 2019.   
 
A new ‘Issues and Options’ consultation (under Regulation 18 of the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) Regulations (2012)), is 
proposed to take place from July to September 2020.  An IDP will be required for the Publication Draft Plan (Regulation 19) consultation, due to 
take place a year later between July and September 2021.    

P
age 343

https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/home/planning-development/emerging-sheffield-plan-draft


 

  69 | P a g e  

 

A2 PROJECT LIST SPLIT BY PRIORITY 
 

This appendix 2 sets out the full list of projects, which have either been approved or approval has been requested, split by 
priority area.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ECONOMIC GROWTH
Expenditure Expenditure

Values in £'000s Project Project Approval Status 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-25 Total

Start End

94024, DIGITAL INCUBATOR  (NAQNO) SEP 2016 MAR 2024 Approved - Active 58 10 10 22 100

94014, UDV FLOOD SCHEME PHASE 1  (NAQNO) MAR 2019 AUG 2022 Approved - Active 3,449 1,219 4,668

94032, CULVERT RENEWAL PROGRAMME  (NAQNO) OCT 2018 MAR 2021 Approved - Active 1,251 1,251

93374, IRR JUNCTION SCHEMES  (NAQNO) NOV 2016 MAR 2020 Approved - Active 104 104

Total 4,864 1,229 10 22 6,124

P
age 344



 

  70 | P a g e  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TRANSPORT
Expenditure Expenditure

Values in £'000s Project Project Approval Status 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-25 Total

Start End

92637, ANTI IDLING : AIR QUALITY  (NAQNO) APR 2018 MAR 2021 Approval Requested 17 17

92644, OUGHTIBRIDGE RS SCHEME  (NAQNO) APR 2018 MAR 2020 Approved - Active 23 23

92890, FOX HILL 20 MPH ZONE  (NAQNO) APR 2019 MAR 2021 Approval Requested 35 35

92891, SHARROWVALE 20 MPH ZONE  (NAQNO) APR 2019 MAR 2021 Approval Requested 65 65

92892, HILLSBOROUGH 20 MPH ZONE  (NAQNO) MAR 2019 APR 2021 Approval Requested 85 85

93079, CAZ BACK OFFICE  (NAQNO) JAN 2009 DEC 2009 Approved - Active 140 140

93080, CAZ COMMS  (NAQNO) NOV 2019 MAR 2022 Approved - Active 67 67

93081, CAZ SIGNAGE  (NAQNO) JAN 2018 MAR 2021 Approved - Active 309 309

93082, CAZ ANPR INFRA  (NAQNO) JAN 2008 JAN 2009 Approved - Active 2,592 2,592

93121, CLEAN BUS TECHNOLOGY  (NAQNO) APR 2018 SEP 2020 Approved - Active 1,800 1,800

93132, KELHAM NEEPSEND PARKING  (NAQNO) APR 2019 JUN 2020 Approval Requested 580 580

93134, EFFINGHAM PARKING SCHEME  (NAQNO) APR 2020 MAR 2021 Approved - Active 18 18

93376, BROADFIELD ROAD JUNCTION  (NAQNO) JAN 2018 MAR 2021 Approval Requested 1,312 308 1,620

92942, PROW 19-20  (NAQNO) SEP 2019 MAR 2021 Approved - Active 51 51

92945, BARKBY ROAD STEPS  (NAQNO) APR 2019 MAR 2021 Approved - Active 62 62

Total 7,155 308 - - 7,464

P
age 345



 

  71 | P a g e  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

HOUSING GROWTH
Expenditure Expenditure

Values in £'000s Project Project Approval Status 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-25 Total

Start End

94030, BROWNFIELD SITE  (NAQNO) APR 2018 MAR 2021 Approved - Active 991 991

97551, COUNCIL HSG ACQUISITIONS PROG  (Q0067) APR 2014 MAR 2025 Approval Requested 7,028 7,028 7,028 14,056 35,139

97553, NEW BUILD COUNCIL HSG PHASE 2  (Q0067) APR 2015 MAR 2021 Approval Requested 912 912

97555, NEW BUILD COUN HSG PH 4A  (NAQNO) MAR 2017 OCT 2022 Approval Requested 12,955 7,932 20,886

97556, NEW BUILD COUN HSG PH 4B  (NAQNO) APR 2016 MAR 2022 Approval Requested 622 527 1,148

97557, ON SITE ACQUISITIONS  (NAQNO) APR 2018 MAR 2021 Approval Requested 462 462

97564, NEW BUILD COUN HSG PH10  (NAQNO) APR 2019 MAR 2023 Approval Requested 8,054 5,710 13,764

97566, NEW BUILD COUN HSG PH11  (NAQNO) DEC 2019 MAR 2025 Approval Requested 187 187

00140591Q0087 STOCK INCREASE (CHS) APR 2014 MAR 2025 Approval Requested 6,465 53,858 67,355 34,545 162,223

97444, GENERAL/RTB ACQUISITIONS CHS  (Q0069) APR 2015 MAR 2025 Approval Requested 1,199 1,199 1,199 2,398 5,994

Total 38,873 76,253 75,582 50,998 241,706

P
age 346



 

  72 | P a g e  

 

 

 

 

P
age 347



 

  73 | P a g e  

 

 

HOUSING INVESTMENT
Expenditure Expenditure

Values in £'000s Project Project Approval Status 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-25 Total

Start End

00100000Q0094 HRA REGENERATION APR 2019 MAR 2024 Approval Requested 1,000 5,000 5,000 10,000 21,000

00100000Q0095 IT UPGRADE (HSG) APR 2019 MAR 2022 Approval Requested 500 1,500 750 2,750

90136, CHAUCER SQUARE MAINTENANCE  (NAQNO) JAN 2009 DEC 2030 Approval Requested 18 18 18 36 90

97222, PSH EMPTY PROPERTIES  (NAQNO) JAN 2008 MAR 2024 Approval Requested 120 120 120 240 600

97390, PHS ACTIVITY  (NAQNO) APR 2010 MAR 2024 Approval Requested 130 130 130 260 650

97150, RHB LOANS HAL  (NAQNO) JAN 2008 MAR 2022 Approval Requested 215 220 435

97394, HULL - HUMBER SUB REGION HAL  (NAQNO) JAN 2008 MAR 2021 Approval Requested 250 250

97451, REGIONAL ENERGY HAL  (NAQNO) APR 2016 MAR 2021 Approval Requested 180 180

97452, REGIONAL ERL  (NAQNO) APR 2016 MAR 2021 Approval Requested 150 150

97507, SHEFFIELD REPAYMENT LOANS  (NAQNO) APR 2018 MAR 2021 Approval Requested 97 97

97520, KIRKLEES RF FUNDS HAL(2)  (NAQNO) APR 2014 MAR 2021 Approval Requested 169 169

97453, EMPTY PROPERTY LOANS  (NAQNO) APR 2019 MAR 2021 Approval Requested 219 219

97321, PROGRAMME MANAGEMENT COSTS GF  (NAQNO) JAN 2008 MAR 2021 Approval Requested 2,710 2,710

97338, PROGRAMME MANAGEMENT COSTS RTB  (NAQNO) JAN 2008 MAR 2025 Approval Requested 416 416 416 832 2,080

97348, HRA PROGRAMME MANAGEMENT  (NAQNO) JAN 2008 MAR 2024 Approval Requested 250 250 250 500 1,250

97127, OBSOLETE HEATING  (NAQNO) APR 2010 MAR 2024 Approval Requested 1,847 1,615 1,662 578 5,702

97131, ASBESTOS SURVEYS  (NAQNO) APR 2010 MAR 2024 Approved - Active 180 180 360

97147, ADAPTATIONS  (NAQNO) APR 2010 MAR 2024 Approval Requested 2,500 2,550 2,550 5,100 12,700

97148, S H MGMT FEES COMMISSIONED  (NAQNO) APR 2011 MAR 2024 Approval Requested 2,505 2,530 2,555 5,213 12,804

97264, H & S ELECTRICAL REWIRES  (NAQNO) APR 2010 MAR 2024 Approval Requested 45 45 45 135

97269, EMERGENCY DEMOLITIONS  (NAQNO) JAN 2008 MAR 2024 Approval Requested 40 40 40 120

97404, HEATING BREAKDOWNS  (Q0069) APR 2012 MAR 2024 Approval Requested 600 600 600 1,800

97463, SUNDRIES - 250 BARNSLEY ROAD  (NAQNO) MAR 2019 MAR 2021 Approval Requested 252 252

97464, ROOFING REPLACEMENTS PROG  (NAQNO) MAY 2019 MAR 2025 Approval Requested 4,940 7,000 8,848 17,696 38,484

97466, CAPITALISED REPAIRS  (NAQNO) AUG 2019 MAR 2021 Approved - Active 500 500

97471, EWI NON-TRADITIONAL1  (NAQNO) JAN 2018 MAR 2021 Approved - Active 159 159

97968, LIFT REPLACEMENTS  (NAQNO) APR 2011 MAR 2024 Approval Requested 450 450 900

98002, ELECTRICAL STRATEGY  (NAQNO) AUG 2016 MAR 2021 Approved - Active 6,000 6,000

00140653Q0079 HEATING, ENERGY EFFIC & CARBON RED APR 2014 MAR 2024 Approval Requested 4,805 5,100 5,100 14,145 29,150

P
age 348



 

  74 | P a g e  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

00140653Q0080 ENVELOPING & EXTERNAL WORK APR 2014 MAR 2024 Approval Requested 1,800 3,837 3,837 7,673 17,146

00140653Q0083 WASTE MGT & ESTATE ENVIRONMENTALS APR 2014 MAR 2024 Approval Requested 1,000 4,250 4,250 8,500 18,000

00140653Q0084 H & S ESSENTIAL WORK APR 2015 MAR 2024 Approval Requested 6,721 11,815 11,968 24,956 55,460

00140653Q0085 COMMUNAL AREAS INVESTMENT APR 2014 MAR 2024 Approval Requested 2,500 4,500 4,500 9,000 20,500

00140653Q0086 INTERNAL WORKS APR 2014 MAR 2024 Approval Requested 1,000 3,150 3,150 6,300 13,600

00140653Q0089 OTHER ESSENTIAL WORK APR 2014 MAR 2024 Approval Requested 291 1,250 1,250 2,500 5,291

00140653Q0090 GARAGES & OUTHOUSES JAN 2008 MAR 2023 Approved - Active 230 229 459

Total 44,109 56,796 57,718 113,530 272,153

P
age 349



 

  75 | P a g e  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

LOVE WHERE YOU LIVE
Expenditure Expenditure

Values in £'000s Project Project Approval Status 2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2025 Total

Start End

94090, CITY CENTRE SAFETY  (NAQNO) DEC 2018 JUN 2021 Approval Requested 1,371 1,371

94122, NEW CREMATORS CITY ROAD  (NAQNO) SEP 2019 MAR 2021 Approved - Active 2,427 2,427

94531, GENERAL CEMETERY HLF PH2  (NAQNO) JAN 2008 MAR 2024 Approved - Active 377 1,995 1,153 279 3,804

94119, MSF FINANCE  (NAQNO) FEB 2017 MAR 2023 Approval Requested 14,641 15,570 16,559 17,608 64,378

94544, GREEN ESTATE CAPITAL GRANT  (NAQNO) NOV 2019 MAR 2021 Approved - Active 330 330

94545, UPPERTHORPE HL CENTRE  (NAQNO) APR 2019 MAR 2021 Approved - Active 88 88

Total 19,234 17,565 17,711 17,887 72,398

P
age 350



 

  76 | P a g e  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

GREEN & OPEN SPACES
Expenditure Expenditure

Values in £'000s Project Project Approval Status 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-25 Total

Start End

94528, SHIREBROOK VISITOR CENTRE  (NAQNO) APR 2018 MAR 2021 Approved - Active 51 51

94529, SHEFFIELD LAKELAND LANDSCAPE  (NAQNO) JAN 2008 MAR 2022 Approved - Active 51 0 51

94541, MATTHEWS LA. CRICKET PAVILION  (NAQNO) APR 2019 MAR 2021 Approved - Active 389 389

00120461Q0093 GREEN AND OPEN SPACES S106 STRATEGY APR 2016 MAR 2021 Approved - Active 455 213 668

Total 945 214 - - 1,159

P
age 351



 

  77 | P a g e  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PEOPLE CAPITAL & GROWTH
Expenditure Expenditure

Values in £'000s Project Project Approval Status 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-25 Total

Start End

90761, DON VALLEY SCHOOL  (Q0061) JAN 2014 MAR 2022 Approval Requested 34 245 278

90797, MERCIA SCHOOL  (Q0061) AUG 2015 APR 2022 Approved - Active 52 9 6 67

90889, PEOPLE -BEIGHTON STRUCT WORKS  (NAQNO) MAR 2018 MAR 2021 Approval Requested 32 32

90894, ASTREA - SPORTS PITCH  (NAQNO) JAN 2019 MAR 2021 Approved - Active 3 3

90896, PIPWORTH PMY STRUCTURAL WORKS  (NAQNO) APR 2018 MAR 2021 Approval Requested 21 21

90916, RIVELIN PMY SCHOOL ROOF  (NAQNO) JAN 2009 MAR 2021 Approval Requested 74 74

90919, SHOOTERS GROVE - ELECTRICAL  (NAQNO) OCT 2019 MAR 2021 Approved - Active 642 642

95601, DOBCROFT INF MOBILE REPLACE  (NAQNO) JAN 2009 MAR 2021 Approval Requested 63 63

90906, ALDINE HSE- 2 BED EXTN & MUGA  (NAQNO) JAN 2008 MAR 2021 Approval Requested 2,282 2,282

97333, MINOR WORK GRANTS  (NAQNO) JAN 2008 MAR 2023 Approved - Active 150 150 150 450

97334, DISABLED GRANTS  (NAQNO) JAN 2008 MAR 2023 Approved - Active 2,000 2,000 2,000 6,000

Total 5,351 2,404 2,156 - 9,911

P
age 352



 

  78 | P a g e  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 HEART OF THE CITY II
Expenditure Expenditure

Values in £'000s Project Project Approval Status 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-25 Total

Start End

00100000Q0097 SRQ 2 JAN 2008 JAN 2009 Approved - Active 11,106 21,960 22,265 6,708 62,039

94050, SHEFFIELD RETAIL QUARTER 2  (NAQNO) OCT 2013 MAR 2022 Approved - Active 842 1,740 2,582

94055, SRQ - STRATEGIC DEV PARTNER  (Q0078) JAN 2008 MAR 2022 Approved - Active 761 517 1,278

94057, A PALATINE CHAMBERS BLOCK  (NAQNO) APR 2018 MAR 2022 Approved - Active 2,000 2,000

94058, B LAYCOCK HOUSE NEW BUILD  (NAQNO) APR 2018 MAR 2022 Approved - Active 10,922 1,579 12,501

94060, C PEPPER POT BUILDING  (NAQNO) APR 2018 MAR 2022 Approved - Active 12,802 1,253 14,055

94061, E TELE.HSE RETAIL & CAR PARK  (NAQNO) JAN 2008 SEP 2020 Approved - Active 2,050 2,050

94063, G WELLINGTON ST CAR PARK  (NAQNO) SEP 2018 DEC 2024 Approved - Active 2,981 1,830 4,811

94064, G1 38 CARVER STREET  (NAQNO) APR 2018 MAR 2022 Approved - Active 1,454 1 0 1,455

94065, H HENRYS BLOCK  (NAQNO) APR 2018 MAR 2024 Approved - Active 544 544

94066, H1 LEAHS YARD  (NAQNO) APR 2018 MAR 2021 Approved - Active 3,638 3,638

94067, HOC II INFRASTRUCTURE & PR  (NAQNO) APR 2018 MAR 2022 Approved - Active 3,930 1,431 5,361

Total 53,030 30,311 22,265 6,708 112,314

P
age 353



 

  79 | P a g e  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ESSENTIAL COMPLIANCE & MAINT
Expenditure Expenditure

Values in £'000s Project Project Approval Status 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-25 Total

Start End

90084, FRA RED TAPE STUDIOS  (NAQNO) JAN 2008 MAR 2021 Approved - Active 492 492

90187, NORTON NURSERY FRA AND REDEV'T  (Q0073) JAN 2008 MAR 2021 Approval Requested 6 6

90188, BOLEHILL REINSTATEMENT  (Q0073) APR 2017 MAR 2021 Approved - Active 205 205

93487, CBER-CONDITION SURVEYS 17-19  (NAQNO) JUL 2017 MAR 2021 Approval Requested 394 394

93531, DAMS & WATERCOURSES PHASE 5  (NAQNO) NOV 2018 MAR 2021 Approved - Active 59 59

95621, MANOR LANE FLAT ROOF  (NAQNO) OCT 2019 JUN 2021 Approved - Active 32 32

95623, GRAVES PARK FARM WELFARE  (NAQNO) JAN 2008 MAR 2021 Approved - Active 242 242

Total 1,431 - - - 1,431

P
age 354



 

  80 | P a g e  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ICT
Expenditure Expenditure

Values in £'000s Project Project Approval Status 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-25 Total

Start End

96000, SUPERFAST SY PHASE 2  (NAQNO) APR 2019 MAR 2022 Approved - Active 1,447 1,447

Total 1,447 - - - 1,447

P
age 355



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
Report of: Policy and Improvement Officer  
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Subject: Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee: Scrutiny Two 

Year Progress Report 2018-20 and issues for drafting Work 
Programme 2020-21 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
Author of Report: Deborah Glen, Policy and Improvement Officer 

deborah.glen@sheffield.gov.uk  
0114 273 5065 

______________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:  
This report provides the Committee with a summary of its activities over the current 
and previous municipal year for inclusion in the Scrutiny Progress Report 2018-20.  
The Committee is asked to consider and comment on this document (Appendix A).  
 
This report is unusual, in that it covers two municipal years. This has been achieved by 
bringing forward the publication timeline for the 2019/20 Annual Report and merging it 
with the previous year, 2018/19. The report also includes a list of topics which it is 
recommended be considered for carry forward into the 2020/21 Work Programme for 
this committee. This can then be considered by newly formed committee in 2020/21.  
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Type of item:  The report author should tick the appropriate box  
 

Reviewing of existing policy  

Informing the development of new policy  

Statutory consultation  

Performance / budget monitoring report  

Cabinet request for scrutiny  

Full Council request for scrutiny  

Community Assembly request for scrutiny  

Call-in of Cabinet decision   

Briefing paper for the Scrutiny Committee  

Other X 

 
 
The Scrutiny Committee is being asked to: 

 Scrutiny Progress Report 2018/20: OSMC Draft Content: Consider and comment 
on the draft content – Section 1.0 and Appendix A. 
 

 Work Programme 2020/21: Agree that the list of topics outlined in section 2.0 be 
put forward for consideration as part of the 2020/21 Work Programme for this 
committee; and provide any further comment – Section 2.0  

 

 
Background Papers:  None    
Category of Report:  OPEN 

Report to Overview and Scrutiny Management 
Committee 

Friday 14th February 2020 

Page 357

Agenda Item 8

mailto:deborah.glen@sheffield.gov.uk


 
 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee  
Friday 14th February 2020 

 
1.0 Scrutiny Progress Report 2018-20 

 

 Each Scrutiny Committee will produce a summary of their activities and outcomes, 
over the past two municipal years, for inclusion in the Scrutiny Progress Report 
2018/20. A draft summary of this Committees activity and outcomes is attached - 
please see Appendix A.  

 

 The full list of topics considered by this Committee during 2018/19 and 2019/20 is 
as follows: 

 
 

2018/19 2019/20 

SCC 2020 Statutory Guidance on Overview and 

Scrutiny in Local and Combined 

Authorities 

Effectiveness of local authority 
overview and scrutiny committees; 
report of the Communities and Local 
Government Committee, published 15 
December 2017 
 

Corporate Performance Framework 

How Sheffield Would Like to do 
Business (Ethical Procurement) 
 

Budget Setting and Consultation Process 
for 2020/21 

2019/20 Revenue Budget 

Reviewing Decision Making in Sheffield 
City Council 
 

Budget 2019/20 - Health and Social 
Care Update 
 

Ethical Procurement 

The Role of the Lord Mayor Sheffield City Council's Equality Duties 

Capital Programme 2019/20 Governance Review 

Work-based Development and 
Wellbeing 
 

Revenue Budget 2020/21 

Customer Experience Programme – 
Update 
 

Work-based Development and Wellbeing 

 

Customer Experience Programme – 
Update 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 358



 
2.0 Work Programme 2020-21 

 

 The list below outlines topics which it is recommended are put forward for 
consideration as part of the Work Programme for the 2018-19 municipal year, by 
the new committee when it is formed.  This includes annual items, topics that the 
Committee have considered and recommended there be a future update on and 
also items that were identified, but not considered in 2019-20.  

 
o Budget setting and consultation (Capital and Revenue) 2021/22 
o Equalities Hub Network 
o Equalities Annual Report 
o Ethical Procurement 
o Work based development and wellbeing 
o Customer Experience Programme 
o Task and Finish Group on Communications 

 
3.0 The Scrutiny Committee is being asked to: 
 

 Scrutiny Progress Report 2018/20: OSMC Draft Content: Consider and comment 
on the draft content – Section 1.0 and Appendix A. 
 

 Work Programme 2020/21: Agree that the list of topics outlined in section 2.0 be 
put forward for consideration as part of the 2020/21 Work Programme for this 
committee; and provide any further comment – Section 2.0

Page 359



 

 

Page 360



Overview & Scrutiny Management Committee (OSMC)

Chair: Cllr Mick Rooney (2019-20) and Cllr Denise Fox (2018-19)

In May 2020, the people of Sheffield will be asked in a referendum, whether they want the Council to keep a leader and 

cabinet model of decision making, or move to a committee system. In March, the Council will publish proposals on how both 

of the referendum options will work. As part of the process of developing the referendum options, we were asked by Full 

Council to work with the Deputy Leader to develop a set of principles that to underpin both of the options that are put to the 

referendum, and present these to Full Council in January 2020. We took a ‘Select Committee’ approach to this work, 

gathering evidence from a range of witnesses: experts in local government, local groups with an interest in democracy, the 

VCF and Business community,  Youth Cabinet & Young Advisers, members of the public and Councils who operate different 

governance arrangements. The key finding to come out of this process was that there is no ‘perfect’ governance structure –

there are advantages and disadvantages to all models – it is how we operate within those structures that will determine how 

successful they are. We identified 5 ambitions for Sheffield City Council and governance principles and ways of working that 

will deliver these ambitions. The five ambitions are:

• Strengthening Sheffield City Council’s approach to Scrutiny

• A commitment to the highest ethical standards and ensuring that the Code of Conduct reflects this

• Improving Sheffield City Council’s approach to communicating about how decision making works

• Ensuring that a commitment to meaningful community engagement, involvement and consultation runs through the 

organisation

• Improving the information that we provide about how decision making happens across the city as a whole, and how 

partnerships and boards interconnect.

Principles for governance at Sheffield City Council

We’ve been monitoring the development of the ethical procurement strategy over a number of years and are very pleased 

with its progress. We were pleased to hear that we have been accredited with the Living Wage Foundation and that Sheffield 

City Council’s policy is more robust than other authorities in terms of enabling us to deal with misconduct issues within 

groups of companies. In terms of further development we have requested that we try to monitor the number of people with 

disabilities employed by companies contracted with the Authority and that ethical procurement is included within the Council’s 

performance management framework

Ethical Procurement

P
age 361



Budgets and Finance 

This has been a key area of work for us. In October 2018, we took an early look at planning for the 2019/20 revenue budget. 

We looked at a summary of the financial position, plans in place to address pressures, and the approach to the budget 

setting process and consultation on the 2019/20 budget. Recognising that the main pressures on council budgets come from 

social care, in November we considered how we plan to develop stable finances for health and social care services, and we 

invited NHS Sheffield Clinical Commissioning Group to our February meeting to explain how money flows in the NHS. We 

considered the 2019/20 budget proposals in February. We expressed our concern that continued cuts to local government 

budgets and rising demand for social care services have led to the planned use of reserves to balance the budget, but we 

did not recommend any changes or amendments to the proposals. This process has been repeated for 2019/20, with the 

early look at planning for 2020/21 in September 2019. At this point we considered the need to think creatively about how the 

Council consults on its budget proposals, whilst recognising the difficulties and further work required on this. We considered 

2020/21 budget proposals in February 2020.

The Committee also considered and commented on:

• Performance Management Framework

• Work based development and wellbeing

• Scrutiny Committees - work programme overview 

• The Role of the Lord Mayor

• Report of the House of Commons Select Committee into the 

effectiveness of Local Authority Overview & Scrutiny Committees

• SCC 2020

• How Money Flows in the NHS and Financial Planning for 2019/20

• Equalities Objectives

In Brief:

We took a look at progress on the 

implementation of the Customer Experience 

Strategy. We heard about developments to our 

digital and online services and how the focus will 

now shift to telephone and face to face services. 

We are keen to ensure that telephone services 

are affordable for all, and would like to see 

initiatives such as call-back services considered 

through the next phase. 

P
age 362


	Agenda
	4 Declarations of Interest
	5 Minutes of Previous Meetings
	26 November
	28 November
	3 December
	18 December

	7 Revenue Budget 2020-21 and Capital Strategy 2020 to 2025
	Revenue Budget 2020-21
	Budget Report 2020Council OSC V5 clean
	App 1 - Pressures
	App 2 - Savings
	App 3
	Blank - Portrait - Copy (2) - Copy
	App 3a People
	Blank - Portrait
	Appendix 3a  - People Portfolio Revenue Spend Plan
	App 3b Place
	Blank - Portrait - Copy (2)
	Appendix 3b  - Place Portfolio Revenue Spend Plan
	App 3c Resources
	Blank - Portrait - Copy
	Appendix 3c - Resources Revenue Spend Plan
	App 3d PPC
	Blank - Portrait
	Appendix 3d - PPC Portfolio revenue spend plan
	Blank - Portrait - Copy (2) - Copy
	Appendix 4 - Reserves
	Blank - Portrait - Copy (2)
	Appendix 5 - Risk Register
	Appendix 6 - Placeholder
	Blank - Portrait - Copy
	APPENDIX 7- TMSS 2020-21
	Appendix 8 - Pay Policy 2020-2021 - from HR
	Appendix 9 - EIA
	Appendix 10 - Glossary of Terms

	Capital Budget Book 2020-25 DRAFT

	8 Draft Two-Year Progress Report 2018-20 and Work Programme Issues 2020-21
	OSMC




